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ABOUT FRASERS GROUP

Founded as a single store in 1982, Frasers Group
ple {Frasers Group, the Group, the business or the
Company} is todoy the UK's largest sporting goeds
retailer by revenue.

The Group operates o
liFestyle and luxury fascias in over 20 countries. We have more th
c . .

T

s five business segments: UK §

u3 to have the right product, in the right place, ot the right time and at the
right price. Our strategy is aligned to this purpose and is based on three
interconnected focus pillars - the brands we sell, our d | offering and

our physical stores, These are supported by o set of enablers, focused on our
people, systems, gutomation and data,

TO SERVE OUR CONSUMERS
WITH THE WORLD'S BEST SPORTS,
PREMIUM AND LUXURY BRANDS.

WE DO NOT RUN THE BUSINESS FOR THE SHORT-TERM
BUT WORK TO ENSURE WE DELIVER SHAREHOLDER
VALUE OVER THE MEDIUM TO LONG-TERM, WHILST
ADOPTING ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES THAT ARE
CONSERVATIVE, CONSISTENT AND SIMPLE.

ing Lo create now Hnll

Approx, £250m paid
stoff share bonuses

25,000

Have a workforce of
approx. 25,000 people
worldwide, approx, 19,000
of h are in the UK

£2,100M

Contributed approx.
£2100m in VAT and Duty

£190M

Approx. £190m paid
in sales commissian ta
retail boryses

£600M

uted approx.
£600m in UK
Corpora

£180m in NIl employer
contributions

1t was the Agencies we were after”...
"We had te get you in order to get to
the agencies”

‘TUESDAY 4 OCTOBER 2016 MR STEVE TURNER
(ASSISTANT GENERAL SECRETARY UNITE UNIONY

wl avross the LK

FRASERS GROUP

QUTLOOK

The Group is continuing to invest inits
physical and digital elevation strotegy
ond our omhi-channel offering is growing

- In strength. Our stores in the UK have

reapened above expectations and our
online channel continues to significantly
outperform pre-Covid-1% periods. Nene
the fess, management remains of the view
that there is o high risk of future Covid-19
pandemic restrictions, likely to be over this
Winter and maybe beyond.

The board of Frasers Group hos continued
to consider the probable return of
rastrictlons during FY22, including within
its accounting judgements and estimates
far FY21. As the effects of the Covid-19-
pandemic continue to cause future ’
uncertainty, including the Delta variant
surge we are currently seeing, the board of
Frasers Group considers it cannot currently
confirm with enough materigl accurocy
whot the autcome far FY22 will look like,

Based on this we will not be giving

a projection to the market far FY22
performance. Any projections produced
by third parties such as research analysts
are not produced on behalf of Frasers
Group plc and Frasers Group plc takes
no responsibility for such projections.

As a result prospective investors and
other market participants should not
treat, and Frasers Group pic does not
intend to treat, the financial projections
produced by third parties as indicative
of the market expectations of Frasers
Group plc's future financial performance.
We specifically note thot we are under
no obligation to correct estimates made
by financial analysts or to inform the
market should we come to believe that our
actual performance will differ from those
estimates.

review the current situation

again at the haif year and depending on
whether there is more certainty on Further
restrictions or not we may be able to give
quidance at that paiat,
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GROUP AT
A GLANCE

UK SPORTS
RETAIL

54.3%

Tetal Group Revenue

£1,968.5M

10.7%

UK Sports Retail inctudes core
sparts retail store operations

in the UK, plus all the Group's
sperts retall online business
[excluding Bok's Stores, Eastern
Mountain Sports ond Sports
Direct Malaysial, the gyms, the
Group's Shirebrock campus
operations, retail store operations
in Northern Ireland, Evans Cycles
and GAME UK.

Cur store footprint is significant,
with 806 stores across the UK,
totalling approximately 6.5m
sa.ft, of retail space, The majority
of stores are operated under the
SPORTS DIRECT, USC, Evans
Cycles and GAME fascias.

4

Y

EUROPEAN
RETAIL

17.0%

. TJotol Graup Revenue

—

| £615.2M |

11.8%

Curopean Retail includes all
the Group's sports retail stores,
managerment and operations
in Europe including the Group's
European distribution centres

as well

. The totol

European staore count is 486
stores and ap imatefly 3.6m
sg.ft. of retail spoce.

During FY21, management
continued to elevate the Group's
European stores and work

to further tailor the Group’s
consumer value pronositions to

FRASERS GROUP

20.3%

Total Group Revenus

PREMIUM
LIFESTYLE

The Group's Premium Lifestyle division offers a broad range of clothing, footwear and accessories
from leading global contemporary and luxury retail brands through our fascias in the UK: Flannels,
Cruise, von mildert, Rouse of Fraser, Sofa.com and Jack Wills along with their related websites.
The majority of thesa fascias operate as muiti-brand premium retail destinations and are focused
on providing fashion conscious consumers with high-end and on trend products. The segment is
supported by our Group-wide centralised commercial and support functions, giving the benefits
af scale and operating efficiencies to each fascia. The sagment is a significant part of the Group's
new generation retail concept and as such, in certain locations, Premium and Lifestyle stores

are co-located alongside our Sports retail stores to benefit from increased customer footfall and
operating synergies.

The tota!l Premium Lifestyle store count is 179 stores end approximately 4.2m sa.it. of retail spoce.

4.2%

Total Group Reverwe

REST OF
THE WORLD —
RETAIL | e1527M

O |
Rest of World Retail includes sparts and outdoor retail stares in the US under the Bob's Stores and fastern
Mauntain Sports foscios and their corresponding e-commerce offerings. It also includes Lhe Group's retail
steres in Malaysiq, under the Sports Direct foscia, and its

12.3%

rresponding e-commerce offering

Total Rest of Warld store count is 76 stores and approximately 1.3m sa fi. of retc

4.2%

Total Graup Revepwe

WHOLESALE &
LICENSING

The Wholesale & Licensing segment operates our globally renowned hetitage Group brands
{such as Everlast, Lonsdole, Korrimor and Slazenger) and our wholesale, licensing and distribution
relationships across the world, os well as our partnerships with third party brands that we
license-in to sell certain products. The Group's own brands are managed hoth individually and
centrally within this segment. This unique, integrated approach to brand management leverages
the expertise of our people, encourages innovation, and ensures consistency.

4.3%
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FINANCIAL
HIGHLIGHTS

8.4°%

Group revenue decreased
by 8.4%
Excluding acquisitions and

©on a currency neutral basis,
revenue decreased by 11.456™

Reported profit after
Jr tax was o [oss of
£78.0m down 177.2%
177.2% from a profit of

£101.0m

A

422%

Group gross
margin increased to 42.2%
from 42.0%

42.0%

IRGIRY

FRASERS GROUP

T

Group underlying EBITDA®

compared to £302.1m in the

29.4%, | prior period

increased by 29.4% to
£390.8m ﬂmomv ,

Excluding ocquisitions and on
currency neutral basis, underlying
EBITDA increased 16.9%*

Reported busic earnings per
share fell by 189.2% to a loss
of 16.5p, from a profit
of 18.5p

Underlying basic earnings - per
share decreased by 2049% to o
loss of 17.0p from a profit of 16.2p

95.1%
£5.8M

Underlying profit before tax!®
decreased by 95.1% to £5.8m
from £117.4m

(16.5p)
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FINANCIAL
HIGHLIGHTS

£8.5m

Reported profit before tux was
£8.5m, down 94.1%
from a profit of £143.5m

£427.8M

£2489M

ot A B e DT WE NI §

Net debt decreased to £248.9m
(£366.0m at 26 April 2020}

Group reported EBITDA
decreased by 2.6% to
£536.5m compared to
£551.0m in the prior
period.

UNDERLYING FREE CASH
FLOW {PRE-CAPEX)
INCREASED TO £427.8M
COMPARED TO £263.1M IN
THE PRIOR PERIOD ™

FRASERS GROUP

11.8%
CTo —

EUROPEAN RETAIL REVENUE DECREASED BY 11.8%, LARGELY DUE THE
TEMPORARY STORE CLOSURES CAUSED BY THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC

Excluding acquisitions and on a currency neutral basis, revenue decreased by 20.5%,
largely caused by temporary store closures due to the Covid-19 pondemic.

Europedan Retail like-for-like gross contribution was down 15.0%:"

Premium Lifestyle revenue
increased by 1.9% largely

A ° NO\ due to growth in our online
. (o] business, und new store
openings

Excluding acquisitions,
revenue increased by 1.4%

Premium Lifestyle like-for-like gross
contribution was down 2.8%

UK Sports Retuil revenue decreased by 10.7%, largely due the
temporary store closures caused by the Covid-19 pandemic,
offset by growth in our online business and pent up demand on
reopening stores

Excluding acquisitions, revenue decreosed by 14.6% ", largely caused by temporary
store closures caused by the Covid-19 pandemic

UK Sports Retail like-for-tike gross contribution was down 134%™
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STRATEGIC AND
OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

L e ZcFQ.Q - WI@AN]

FEARLESS 1000 7@ | £1,000,000 SHARES WERE AT
FEHEME LAUNCHED 20 | £500,000 88.8% CWNERSRTR zmq>— F

AT YEAR END

The scheme axists to reward our top 1000 performers @@ tho-coo v>wz

when cur share price reaches £10, for 30 consecutive
trading days. These top perfarmers will be nominated by M@@ mdenooo

their colleagues for the embodiment of our 3 core values: HUGOQ BOS S

ink Without Limits, Don't Hesitate, and Own rﬂ DJ,\O hm°-°°°
Think Without Limits, Don't Hesitate, and Own It, c\rkru SHARES WERE AT MM__NQ@@&MQE

12.5% OWHNERSHIP
AT YEAR END £41,750,000

2072 ELEVATION PURCHASE PRICE
PROGRAMME S1/4TS

2178 TOTAL APPLICATIONS

44%
MALE

55%
FEMALE

Printed on Stenbeis 100, Recycled ¢ sarbon Caphured through the Woodland Trust, helping to creat: new Brls e across the UK
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OUR RESPONSE TO COVID-19

Throughout the Covid-19 pandemic, our highest
priority has been to protect the health, safety
and wellbeing of our colleagues, This reflects
both our duty to keep our people safe and

the business imperative: if we are not safe, we
cannot frade.

Qur response has been based on @ number of
key principles, in particular: .

+  foliowing Govemment: guidelines and
exceeding them in certain aspects;

+ completing thorough risk assessments and
reqularly updating them; ond
= communicating effectively, so our people
understand what we are doing and their
- port in keeping themselves and their
colleagues safe.

The standards we have developed have been
shared and followed across the Group, except
where local legislation mandates a different
approach.

The Group's senior mancgerment have been
closely involved in our response, ensuring

the safety of our people is put first and that
sufficient resources and equipment are
available. We have also been supported by an
independent heglth and safety censultant, who
is helping us to drive continuous improvement,
including in relation to our response to Covid-19.

Qur Initial Response Te Covid-19

in last year's report, we detailed the steps we
had taken across our warehouse, office and
stores in the first few months of the Covid-19
pandemic, These steps are surnmarised below.

Virtuaity alf furloughed cojleagues received
100% of pay during the first lockdown, in excess
of the 80% guaranteed by the Government,
and we sent home on full pay all colleagues
over 60, as well as those categorised as
vulnerable or at risk. Other measures we have
introduced included random temperature
checks for colleagues, strict protocels for
self-isolation after contact with a pesitive case,
encouraging regular testing and providing full

|

mnkse on Steinbars 1004 Hoeoyeled

pay far people who test positive, while they are
unable to work.

In summary, in the early stages of the Covid-19
pandemic we:

Warehouse

* Invited the local environmental health
officer and our independent consultant o
review our contrals and social distancing
measures

< Reduced the amount of troffic in and out of
the building and in key areas, for example
by stoggering start, finish and break times,
moving agency staff to four-day weeks and
opening a new entrance to reduce traffic
through reception

+ Introduced seven-day health and safety
coverage, to support the warehouse teams

+ Pravided first ciders with advice and PPE
(personal protective equipment), to protect
them when first 6id wos needed

*  Implemented hygiene stations and created
a new role of "Sorial Distancing Marshal”

*  introduced ‘no contact’ security checks
Qffice

+ Required colleagues to werk at home
wherever possible and where they needed
to shield

+ Communicated restart guidance through
Slack (an internal messaging service
avoilable to all heod office colleagues)

» Increased cleaning, provided hygiene
stations throughout and limited capacity in
key areas such as kitchens and lifts

»  Implemented protocsls to ensure there was
ne mixing between warehouse and office
staff in common areas such as ¢anteens

*  Allowed only quthorised visiters and
encouraged meetings throvgh digitol
platforms

ihe Wi

Stores

+ Created a retail restart pack for stores
reopening, inciuding signage. PPE, increased
cleaning schedules, lower store occupancy
lavels, one-way systems in-store and
training documents for all new procedures

* Reduced traffic in and cut of the building
and in key areas by staggering start, finish
and break times

= Revised delivery and processing procedures
to maintain secial distancing

= Added sonitisation stations throughout
stores and encouraged calleogues and
customers to use them

- Used unannounced visits by the Health &
Safety team to ensure the retail restart pock
had been correctly implemented

QOur approach was well regarded by lecal
authorities, with positive feedback following
unannounced visits to our stores and
warehouse.

Adapting And Developing Our Proced

Throughout this financiol year we tiave built
on our initial actions, as we have updated our
risk assessments and adapted to changing
guidance. This has enabled us to introduce
new and stronger measures, in particular as
the Covid-19 vanont first identified in Kent
began to spread. Examples of our key acti
undertaken in the year are set cut below,

< August 2020, We reviewed our warehouse
risk assessment and shared it with the
warehouse and agency teams, We started
weekly anti-wviral fogging’ of offices, sorters
and other areas to supplement the reqular
cleaning schedule, enhanced workstation
plexi-screens in the office to support social
distoncing ond introduced maximurm
capacities far meeting rooms.

- September 2020. We reviewed our
warehouse risk assessment ond our first
aid guidance and introduced a screening
questionnaire for all visitors.

+  October 2020. We introduced face shields
on all sorting machines, as an additionat
layer of protection,

FRASERS GROU®P

*  November 2020, We reviewed ond updated
our warehouse risk assessment ond shored
it with the teams. Face coverings became
mandatory in the warehouse, and were
encouraged in offices (except for medical
and operational exemptions}, going beyond
Government guidance, We issued guidance
ta all agencies and departments ahout
reporting Covid-19 cases, including follow-
up actions required. .

+  December 2020. We reviewed the head
office risk assessment and shared it with all
departments. To enhance social distancing,
we closed 50% of shared work areas ond
the office workstations used by people whe
cauld not work from home, ond further
reduced meeting room copacities. We

- reviewed and communicated our contacts
guidance and shielding requirements and
made foce coverings mandatory in head
office. All head office colleagues received -
a Covid-19 controls review document,
requiring on electronic signature of
acceptance.

+  January 2021, We reviewed the warehouse
risk assessment and issued a warehouse
working refresh. We produced risk
assessment’s for security, transport and
training and shared them with the relevant
teams. Training sterted for oll worehouse
managemant and supervisors, with
the “Covid Captain’ rofe introduced to
monitor work areas. We increased anti-
viral fogging in all areas, over and ahove
the monufacturers’ guidelines, and issued
quidance on pre-shift cleaning.

+  February 2021. We further ernhanced the
fogging pracedures and produced a risk
assessment for the Personaiisation teom,

We believe our efforts have been highly
effective. For example, infection rates at our
Shirebrook campus have been consistently
below those in the local community, We

wili continue to adapt our approach as
circumstonces change.

Outside of the UK we have complied with

all loca! Covid-19 laws and guidance which,

at a minimum, includes the same store and
warehouse measures s implemented in the UK.
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CHAIR'S STATEMENT

Introduction

The Covid-19 pandemic continues to be a
significant challenge for the country, the retail
industry and for Frasers Group. Our stores were
closed again in November 2020, followed by o
significant closure in the week befare Christmas
which then led to the third lockdown in January
2021. These Jockdowns resulted in virtuclly all o*
our UK stores being closed for approximately
six menths in FY21. Our European stores

were also impacted by closures clthough the
impact was not os punitive as it was for the UK
business.

| am proud of how our colleagues have

battled through these very difficult times to
help us achieve a solid set of financicl results
cn an underlying EBITDA basis. We are a
resilient business but the Covid-19 pandemic
has resulted in some significant non-cash
accounting impairments to our asset base. Qur
RNS announcements in February and April 2027
gave warning of the situation and consequently
we have to report an overall profit betore tax of
£8.5m down from £143.5m in FY20,

We apprecicte the Government support with
the furtough scheme and business rates relief.
We are predeminantly a bricks and mortar
business and this support has encbled us to
keep stores open that otherwise might have
been closed, particularly Joss making House

of Fraser stores, saving many jobs. We must
caution however that the return to pre Covid-19
business rates will present a threat to a number
of these stores. There must be o change to the
outdated business rates system for us to justity
the survival of some of these House of Fraser
stores.

We are |looking to take on a number of
ex-Debenhams stores across the country but
the excessive business rates moke the via
of these investments, and the jobs that could
be created, less likely. Again, we ask for clarity
frorn the Government ond for a new and
appropriate policy on business rates.

Y
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Elevation Without Limits

‘We continue to invest in all areas of the
business to support our elevation strategy.

Our flagship Sports Direct stere on Oxford
Street re-opened in June 2021 at a cost of
approximately £10m to the Group and we have
received overwhelming endorsements from our
custamers and our brand partners such as Nike
end Adidas.

OQur Flannels business continues to go

from strength to strength since we took full
ownership during 2017 and has revenue CAGR
from the end of FY18 to FY21 of approximately
A0%,, We have an ambition to reach
approximately £2 billion in gross turnover by the
end of FY26, with o forecast split of 60% from
physical stores and 40% from online channels.

We will continue to invest acrass the portfolio
of aur retail fascias, always pushing the
boundaries and thinking without limits, Our
investment in cur digital capal
on platforms and people, will continue os will
investment in automnation in our warehouse
to support our bricks and clicks fulfiiment
capabilities.

The Elevation No Limits strategy is working
and we are fully supported by our third-party
brands as elevation is complimenting their own
strategies.

Results

We do not hesitote to remind our stakeholders
of our key accounting principles, namely being
conservotive, consistent, and simple. 1t is with
this in mind that we present our financial results
for FY21 in a period of uncertainty, with in our
opinion, the effects of the pandemic far from
aver, and a probable risk of further restrictions,

Our results highlights are:

+ Underlying EBITDA increased to £3%0.8m
(FY20: £302.1m)

= Revenue decreased to £3,625.3m (FY20:
E3,957.4m)

yrouah thee Wondleod |

« Profit before tax £8.5m {FY20: £143.5m}
«  Net debt of £2489m (FY20: £366.0m)

More underlying detail is given throughout this
Annual Report and Accounts. The highlights
and explanations of these by segment is set out
in note 4.

Our People

Our people are our finest resource and we are
committed to treating all of our colleagues with
dignity and respect, Throughout the pandemic
we have kept colleagues engaged with regular
update videos and a provision for help and
wellbeing support where pecple needed it.
Frasers Group colleagues are talented, loya!
and resilient. | have been very impressed how
they have faund creative ways of warking
through the challenges of the pandemic with
undiminished enthusiasm. The Board are very
appreciative of the efforts of our colleagues
during these challenging times.

The Board is really pleased that The Fearless
1000 share scheme was unanimously voted
through at the AGM in October 2020 and is
now up ond running. The Board 1s receiving
reguler updates and progress reports and we
are comfortable it is running as intended. The
aim of the scheme is to pay out significant
bonuses in the farm of shares if the share price
stays above £10 for 30 consecutive trading
days. This could see 10 colleagues receiving
shares worth £1m each if the share price is ot
£10 at the vesting dates. One thousand of cur
Fearless colteagues, who live and breathe our
values of thinking without limits, not hesitating
and owning it, will be eligible to receive share
bonuses ranging from E£50k right up to E1m if
the share price is at £10 at the vesting dates.
There is also a cash bonus scheme which runs
concurrently with the share scheme which will
pay out bonuses for those eligible colleagues
whao do nat qualify for the Fearless 1000.

The Frasers Group Elevation Programme was
introduced in September 2020 to attract highly
talented people to Frasers Group. The quality
of the recruits from the initial intake has been
strong and they have impressed people ocross
all levels of the organisation including the
Board. We are looking to run this programme

ogoin in Septernber 2021 with o new intoke of
talent and our assessment centres are now up
and running. Qur objective is to populate the
organisaticn with high calibre, high potential,
well trained people wha we intend to be the
future leaders of the Company.

Acquisitions And Strotegic Investments

During the year we increased our investments in
Huge Boss and Mulberry and we also acquired
the DW Sports and Fitness business. These
investments are consistent with our strategic
objectives-and align with our elevation strategy.

As at period end, we held approximately

16.4% directly and indirectly in Hugo Boss. We
consider this strategic investment in Hugo Boss
to be very successful. We have strengthened
our relationship with the company and have
regular and constructive dialogue with the
senjor executive tearn. We have noted press
speculation about a potential acquisition of
Hugo Bess and stated we had no intention to
bid in our RNS of 26 May 2021,

We held approximately 36.8% of Mulberry
Group plc at the year end. We believe this is
an iconic British brand and hope that together
we can build @ mutually beneficial partnership
going forward.

\We acquired certain ossets of B\W Sports
Limited from administration fer a cash
consideration of £37m. The transaction
complements the existing gym and fitness club
portfolio within the Group and is consistent with
the Group's elevation strategy. Frasers Group
looks forward to elevating the gym and fitness
assets and is also pleased to have saved a
number of jobs. Further detail on the trade and
assets acquired can be found in note 31,

We consider a combination of both organic
ond acquisitive growth will assist in the angoing
delivery and success of our Elevation Strategy
and we will continue to fook at potential
opportunities across a range of categories to
complement and enhance our Group offering,
in the UK, Europe and beyond if apprepriate.
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Envi tal, Social & G

We are proud of the successes we have had
with our sustainability agenda to date. For
instance the majority of our waste fram our
Shirebraok delivery centre is recycled and

we are targeting zero waste to londfill from
Shirebrook in the next few years. Excluding
acquisitiens during the year, our stores and
gyms are operating on 100% renewable power
and we are targeting a reduction of 10% power
usage in our stores over the next few years.
Sustainability will centinue to ptay a key role in
our future processes and precedures led by our
Sustatnability Steering Group which is executive
spensored by our Chief Financial Officer.

We are proud to invest in lacal communities
and to support a key focet of British life, the
high street, We provide jobs for over 20,000
people in the UK alane and during the
pandemic we have done our utmost to retain
and support as many colleagues as possible
with very few redundancies.

During the yeor we have given gpproximately
£25m in discounts to NHS staff as we reopened
in June 2020 in gratitude to the unbelievable
job they have done during the Covid-19
pondemic.

Our workers representative Cally Price

is a shining example of goad corporate
gavernance and we theroughly recommend
the appointment of such « position across the
boardrooms of carporate Britain, Cally brings
colleague queries and concerns directly to
the boardroom for action by the Board. Cally
takes o very octive part in every Board meeting,
which she attends in full, and her vote counts
for as much in a Boord vote as mine or the
executive team. Alongside Caily, the rest of
our Non-executive Directors bring their own
knowledge ond experience to their roles in
helping to ensure we do the right thing by our
stakeholders.

The Board

We recently went through an independent
review of the Board which is a mandatory
obligation once every three years, We are very
happy with the findings and will act on the
recommendations,

10

We will continue ta look at the construction of
the Board ensuring we have the appropriate
blend of skills and experience. We consider
diversity, and energetic and passionote
individuals to be priorities us we lock ta
strengthen the Board in the future,

Due to the success of the Worker’s
Representative Board role we have decided
to extend the tenure of Cally Price for o
further few years and she will be proposed for
re-election at the 2021 AGM, :

Dividend And Share Buyback

Qur share buy back pregromme hos continued
which is o demonstration of cur confidence
in the Company and the strategy for future

growth. Further details can be found in Note 36,

No final dividend will be payable in relation to
FY21 as we intend to make further investments
in the business to support the elevation
strategy, ! .

Outlook

The Covid-19 pondemic continues to create
uncertainty and we must be prepared for
more lackdowns in the future, There must be.
concerns about the stability of some retailers
as Government support schemes come to

an end, yet there still seems to be very littie
tangible long-term action being taken by
the Government to save the high street.
Notwithstanding the probabile risk of further
lockdawns, which are considered and do
impact our property accounting estimates,
Frasers Group is confident in our long-term
strategy which we believe will help us to get
through this difficuit period.

We will continue on the poth of elevation and
to invest in our talented and loyal colieagues.
QOur business is built on reck selid foundations
and we believe we are well set for some
promising times in the future.

David Daly
Non-executive Chair

5 August 2021

:ed throwah the Woodiand Trost

OUR BUSINESS

Business Model

Founded by Mike Ashley as a single Store in
Maidenhead in 1982, Frasers Group ple today
operates a diversified portfolio of sports, fitness,
premium lifestyle and luxury store fascias. The
Group's colleagues work together with our
suppliers and our third-party brand partners

to serve customers in over 20 countries. The
Group ospires to be an internotional leader in
sports, lifestyle, and luxury retail. The Board

1s committed to treating ail people with

dignity and respect. We value our people,

our customers and our shareholders and we
strive ta adopt good practices in our corporate
dealings. We ¢im to deliver shareholder value
over the medium to long-term, whilst adopting
accounting principles that are conservative,
consistent and simple. Qur strategy is set outin
the "Our Strateqy - Elevation No Limits” section
of this report.

Our business model remains consistent in
previding customers with the world's best
brands. This requires us to have the right
product, in the right ploce, of the right time
and ot the right price. Our vision is to become
the elevated, multi-channel platform for our
Sports Retail and Premium Lifestyle fascias. To
this end, we are elevating across all channels to
enhonce the customer journey every step of the
way.

The Group's business model is explained in
greater detail below. This includes anh outline of
our fascias and retail channels, management
of our property gortfolio, our people, our
third-party brand partners, our Group brands
and aur centralised support functions.

Business Structure

The Group is structured across five business
segments. UK Sports Retail, Premium Lifestyle,
Europeon Retail, Rest of Worid Retail and
Wholesale & Licensing.

In UK Sports Retail, we offer a complete range
of sporting apparel, footwear and equipment
through our predeminant fascia,

SPORTS DIRECT.

FRASERS GROUP

This segment includes our lifestyle fascia

USC. Our current forward-locking view is

that the majority of our offering to customers
must include leading third-party brands. The
elevation of pur sports retoil proposition is

key to ensure we are fully aligned with the
future direction and ambitions of these brand
partners. UK Sports Retail includes core sports
retail store operations in the UK, plus oll the
Group's sports retail online business (exchuding
Bob's Stores, Eastern Mauntain Sports and
Sports Direct Malaysia), the gyms, the Group's
Shirebrook campus operations, retail store
operations in Northern Ireland, Evans Cycles
and the GAME UK stores and online business.

In Premium Lifestyle, we are developing the
Group's premium and luxury offering, which
consists of the Flannels, Frasers, House of
Fraser, Juck Wills and 5ofa.com fascias, along
with Cruise and van mildert. We aim to offer
fashion-conscious consumers a luxurious,
multi-brand retail destination with high-end
and on-trend products.

In European Retail, we are evolving our
customer proposition in line with the elevation
strategy, while also seeking to increasingly
tailor our proposition to the local markets in
which we operate. These include the Republic
of Ireland and continental Europe.

in Rest of World Retail, we operate 43 stores -
trading as Bob's Stores and Eastern Mountain
Sparts and we also have 33 stores trading os
SPORTS DIRECT in Malaysia.

In Wholescie & Licensing, the Group retains
a portfolio of world-fumous heritage

brands, which we offer via our fascias, ond
alse wholesale and license to partners
internationally. Our own brands include
Everast, Lonsdale, Karnmor and Slazenger.
The Group is also proud to have o number of
sporting and entertainment personaiities as
ambassadors, as well as supporting sporting
events ond venues.
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Multi-Channel Elevation Strategy

Our elevation strategy continues to work
towards improving our offering to customers
across all our channels, including marketing,
social media, preduct, digital and in-store. This
aims to enable the Company, along with our
third-party brand partners, to connect with
customers via a consistent voice across muitiple
platforms, including online, mobile, and on the
high street. This strategy enables our stores and
our online operations ko complemnent

each other.

The websites for each of our core fascias in
t1e UK, including SPORTSDIRECT.com, USC.
co.uk, Flannels,com, Houseoffraserco.uk and
GAME.co.uk, have undergene significant
enhancements to facilitate optimum appeal to
consumers, Qur product offering across these
core fascias, both in-store and online, aims to
credte a compelling shopping experience in
kay categories that include, amongst others,
football, women's, kids, running,*cycling,
lifestyle, fashion, luxury and gaming.

We offer product across @ range of price points,
including good, better and best. This enables
us to offer more premium product, which is
net-new to the business. This gives consumers a
g-eater range of choices for those who wish to
shop for premium products, whilst still retaining
our original entry-level and continuity product
offerings.

.\.u-om..ouumo.._ Of The Elevated Store Model

The elevation of the Group's stores continues
te progress and evolve across fascios and
territories. As reparted last year, for Sports
Direct the enhanced concept introducing

an area not just for USC, but also for Game
with a Belong Gaming arena and Evans
Cvcles was delivered ot the new Portsmouth
store. These combined elements develop the
destinction stotus of our stores catering to

a wider customer base. The Group has also
pushed boundaries with the opening of the
game changing Sports Direct flagship store on
Lendon's Oxford Street shortly after financial
year end. The stere features world class
design incarporating new activation spages,

technology and features including a first in kind
bra fitting studio.

Following the success of the Flannels regional
concept, the Group has developed a new
regional flagship concept. This concept
encompasses a much farger footprint and
incorporates new categories for the fascia
including beouty and food & beverage. The
first store to launch in this new concept is at
Meadowhall Shopping Centre with further sites
due to open in the coming financial year such
as Fosse Park in Leicester and Liverpool

city eentre.

A significant milestone for the Group was
delivering the new Frasers cancept with the
opening of Frasers Woliverhampton. The store
extends to ¢.34,000 saft housing beauty,
fashion, lifestyle, kids, home and food &
beverage. This new store is a live example of
the Group's vision for the fascia focusing on
experience, brands and service,

The Group is highly cequisitive across fascias
for new stores and with co-operative landlords
can offer a portfolio of new stare deals
providing a variety of retail offerings. Fhe Group
is prepared to sign long term leases for those
landlords willing to co-invest in the elevated
store concepts.

Investment in Freehold properties remains an
aption to assist the store elevation strategy as
has been the case in previous financia!l years,

Further details of the property strategies and
current property portfolio are included within
the Chief Executive's Report and Business
Review section of this annual report.

Ouwr People

The Group's pelicy is to treat all our people with
dignity and respect. Frasers Group colleagues
work together across all areas of the business
and we are proud that Frasers Group pic is one
of the first public companies in the UK to make
an elected Workers' Representative a Board
member. We welcormne all new colleagues into
the Group following the acquisitions in the year
and thase who joined us through the Frasers
Group Elevation Programme.

Remuneration and Rewards

Our policy is to foster a reward-bosed culture
that enables our colleagues to share in the
success of the Group. It is Company policy to
pay above the statutory National Minimum
Woge, including rates that are above the
statutory National Living Wage for those
over 25 years of age in the UK. In addition to
this, in current period the Group paid awards
and incentives of approximately £2.0m, from
which both permanent and casual colleagues
benefited.

We are pleased that the Fearless 1000 share
scheme is now up and running along with

the Fearless Focus performance reviews. Cne
thousand of our Fearless colleagues, who live
and breathe our values, thinking without limits,
not hesitating and owning it, will be eligible to
receive share bonuses ranging from £50k right
up to £1m if the share price is at £10 at the
vesting dotes.

Workers' Representative

The Frasers Group Workers' Representative

is Cally Price, o Manager at our Cardiff Bay
store. The Workers' Representaotive has a unique
insight in to the Group and will speak on behalf
of the Group's warkforce at all scheduled
rmestings of the Boord in order o fociiote o
healthy and constructive dialogue. Due to the
success of the Worker's Representative Boord
roie we have decided to extend the tenure of
Cally Price for a further few years and thus she
will be proposed for re-election ot the

2021 AGM.

bets 1007 Hecyoled cnd Carbon Captured through the Woodiand Tiust. heiping o create new Bntish woodland acioss the UK

Colleague Engagement

In addition to the Workers Representative,

the Company alse haos an ohgoing dialogue
with colleagues via an initiative called "Your
Company, Your Voice.' This is a system whereby
ceolleagues are able to raise any issues of their
choosing via a number of different routes, bath
physical and digital, This feedback is passed
to senior manaogement and the Workars'
Representative for review and appropriate
action.

Our Global Third-Party Brand Partners

We work with our leading third-party global
brand partners and provide significant
prominence for them with our customers across
all our platforms.

Our third-party and Group brands are
managed by central brand and marketing
teoms, This centralised structure significantly
benefits the Group by enabling the individual
brands to participate in Group buying and
sourcing; aggregated supplier relationships
and enhanced supply chain disciplines; Group
inventory monitoring and replenishment;

and mere inspired and harmenious visual
merchandising in-store,
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Group revenue

The Board considers that this measurermnent is a
key indicator of the Group's growth

Underlying EBITDA

Underlying EBITDA shows how well the Group is
managing its trading and operational efficiency
and therefore the overall trading performance
of the Group.

Group gross margin

The Board considers that this measurement is a
key indicator of the Group's trading profitability

Underlying basic earnings per share (EPS)

Underlying basic EPS is a measure of adjusted
total shareholder return and ultimately an
indicator to our shareholders of the success of
our elevation strategy.

Underlying free cash low

Underlying free cash flaw is considered an
important indicator for the Business of the
cash available for investment in the elevatian
strategy.

Net debt

Net debt is an indicator of hoth the Group's
investment in the elevation strategy and its
covenant headroom which is a key component
of the Group's going concern considerations.

Number of retail stores

The Board considers that this measure is an
indicator of the Group's growth. The Group's
elevation strategy is replacing older stores and
often this can result in the closure of two or
three stores to be replaced by one larger new
generation store.

Worklorce turnover

The Beard considers that this measure is a key
indicator of the cantentment of our people. For
more details refer to the retention section of the
“Qur People” section of this report.

1 Captured throuah the Woodland 11

Packaging recycling

The Board considers that this measurement is
@ key indicator of our impact and commitment
to the best environmental practices. For more
details refer to the environment section of

this report.

Lo create now Br

CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REPORT AND

BUSINESS REVIEW

Performance Overview

Group revenue decreased by 8.4% to £3,625.3m
in the year. UK Sports Retail decreased by
10.7% to £1968.5m, Premium Lifestyle revenue
increased by 1.9% and European Retail
decreased by 11.8% to £615.2m. Rest of World
Retail revenue was £152.7m, down 12.3% and
revenue in the Wholesale & Licensing division
decreased by 4.3%.

Group gross margin in the year was consistent
with the prior year with a smali increase of

20 basis points from 42.0% to 42.2%. UK
Sports Retail margin increased 110 basis points
to 42.1% (FY20: 41.0%; largely due to the
continually improving product mix, Premium
Lifestyle's gross margin decreased by 340 basis
points from 48.3% to 44.9% lorgely due to a
reducticn in concession sales within House of
Fraser as a percentage of totol sales which
have a higher gross margin. European Retail
gross margin increased 6C basis points from
38.4% to 39.0% largely due to the continuclly
improving product mix. Rest of World Retail
margin decreased 250 basis points from 44.4%
to 41.9%, largely due to the lower margin rate
in the US business which mokes up a larger
proportion of the segment in FY21. Wholesale
& Licensing gross margin increased 310 besis
points to 44.0% (FY20: 40.9%), largely due to
UK wholesale.

Group operating costs decreased by 15.7% to
£3140.0m [FY20: £1,353.0m), largely driven by
savings in store costs during the lockdowns as
o result of the Covid-19 pandemic, Government
support schemes such as CJRS (Coronavirus
Job Retention Scheme) and business rates relief
particularly in House of Fraser. The omount
received by the Group in the period in regard
to the CJRS [or equivalent where received

in non-UK territories) wos approx. EBOm.

The amount of business rates relief received

by the Group in the period {or equivalent
where recaived in non-UK territories) was
approx, £57.5m, See the Financial Review

wondland adross the K

for a reconciliation of Group operating costs
to selling, distribution and administrative
expenses,

As a result, Group underlying EBITDA for the
year was up 29.4% to £390.8m (FY20: £302.1m).
Excluding acquisitions and on a currency
neutral basis, underlying EBITDA increased

16 9%, UK Sports Retail underlying EBITDA
was £279.2m up from £227 4m in FY20, while
Premium Lifestyle underlying EBITDA was
EE3.9m, up from £4.5m in FY20, European
Retail underlying EBITDA was £4.1m, down from
£51.8m in FY20. Rest of World Retail underlying
EBITDA was £25.6m, up from a loss of £6.8m

in FY20 and Wholesdle & Licensing underlying
EBITDA increased to £28.0m from £25 2m.

There were property related impairments in
the period totalling £317.0m (FY20; £122.6m},
inckuding £168.2m in relation to right of use
assets (FY20: £97.8m), £84.4m in relation to
freehcld land and buildings {FY20: £nill, £63.8m
of other property, plant and equipment {FY20:
£24.8m) and £0.6m of investment properties
{FY20: Enil). Property related impairments have
been recognised following a re-assessment of
future expected cash flows largely driven by
anticipated future lockdowns as a result of the
Covid-19 pandemic, the change in consumer
behavicur in moving frem physical to online
shopping, the impact of Direct-To-Consumer
and increqasing costs as a result of Brexit.
Further details including sensitivity analysis is
included within Note 2.

Depreciation and amortisation charges have
increased by 11.3% to £307.5m (FY20: £276.3m)
largely due to an increase in freehold fand and
buildings depreciation, following the change in
useful economic life estimate in the period. See
accounting policies for further details,
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Group underlying prefit before tax ¥ decreased

to £5.8m {FYZ0: £117 4m), Jorgely due to the .
effects of the Covid-19 pandemic including

the closure of retail stores, the associated

provisioning and impairment and depreciation

and amortisation cherges. Underlying basic EPS

for the year decregsed by 2049% to « loss of

17.0p (FY20: profit of 16.20).

Within other comprehensive income, the Group's
hedging contracts decreased by £16.5m (FY20:
decreased by £18.7m} as o result of the fair value
movements in the period. With regard to the

Group's long~term finangiol assets, fair value

mavernents have resulted in a gain of £77.3m
(F20: {oss of £19.7m} in the period.

The Group genercted free cash flow during
the year of £427.8m, up from £263.1m in the
prior period. Net debt decreased by £1171m to
£248.9m at period end. Spend on acquisitions
and capex, including Wigen Robin Retail Park
ond warehouse automation, waos offset by
continued strong cash generation in the core
business. Net debt currently stands at 0.5 times
reported EBITDA (FY20: 0.7 times).

1] Underlying profit bafare toxation excludes the facts of RS 16,

reahsed laregn exchonge gas / lasses i seling ond

odrmnisEration costs, axcaptionnl tems, ana the peoht / loss on
disposal of subsidiaries, strategic nvestments and propethes
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REVIEW BY BUSINESS SEGMENT

UK $ports Retail

The UK Sports Retail segment includes ail of the Group's sports retail and USC store operations in the
UK (including Northern Ireland), all of the Group's sports online businesses lexcluding Bob's Stores,
Eastern Mountain Sports, Baltics and Malaysia), the Group's gyms, Evans Cycles, GAME UK stores and
online cperations and the Group's Shirebrook campus operations, UK Sports Retall is the main driver
of the Group and accounts for 54.3% (FY20: 55.7%) of Group revenue.

52 wasks anded 52 waeks ancded

18 Aprif 2021 26 Aprif 2020

(tm) wmi

'JK Spurts Retoll Revenus 196p 5 22033
Cost ot Sales 11139 1 113000
Grass Proft gk 9042
Grass Murgin azt an

Revenue decreased 10.7% to £1968.5m. Excluding acquistions, revenue fell 14.6%, This was largely
due to the temporary store closures in the UK caused by the Covid-19 pandeimic, partially offset by
growth in our online business and pent up demand on store reopening,

UX Sports Retail gross margin increased to 421% [FY20: 41.0%), largely due to the continuaily
improving product mix. Excluding acquisitions gross margin increased to 45.6% (FY20: 43.5%)

Operating expenses decreased by 16.8% to £548.7m largely driven by savings in store costs during
the store ciosure periods s a result of the Covid-19 pandemic, Excluding acquisitions, operating
expenses decreased by 20.2% largely driven by savings in store costs and Government support
schemes during lockdowns as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic.

Underlying EBITDA for UK Sports Retoil was £279.2m (FY20: £227.4m), an increase of 22.8% for the
year, largely due to the strong reopening of stores after lockdowns, growth in cur oniine business and
improved operating efficiencies.

UK $ports Retail Store Portfolic™®

25 April d021 29 Apri! 2028
rereghna 254 67
 ottand ] ar
Wolas El 8
Nortern arvland m 17
sl of M . 1 1
USC H) a7
Evons Cyctes <8 50
GAME UK 247 242
TOTAL w08 Té
Opened 93 pil
Closte (g8t 153}
ed 4 255
sty fe ) spprox_45m oppro A 3m
i Tuble eacludes Lthe Gioup's starddlone Gyms
2! Tha GAME LIK stare ruwbers nclude 7 concessions (FY20 31 aperanng within Sports Dieact tasoin stares and does notinchide BELONG oreans
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Premium Lifestyle

Premium Lifestyle consists of Flannels, Cruise, van mildert, House of Fraser, Jock Wills and Sofacom
fascia stores and corresponding web sales.

52 waaks snded 52wesks anded

28 April 2011 34 Aprl 2020

lEm) Em

Grass Tronsachion Valoe (GTV] BB 5031
Prarmium Lifestyie Revenue 1356 720
Cost of sales 1405 3} (373 4]
Gross Prafit ) EER ELET
Gross Margin % 449 4813

m G1¥ being gross sales net of VAT, discounts and returns and gross sales whers tie Growp octs as agent

Premium Lifestyle saies increased by 1.9% to £735.6m (FY20: £722.0m), mostly due to new Flannels
stores and increased web sales. Excluding ccqu sitions, sales increased 1.4%. The Premium Lifestyle
gross margin for the year decreased by 340 basis points to 44.9% (FY20: 48.3%) largely due a
reduction in concession sales within House of Fraser as o percentage of total scles which have a
higher gross margin.

Premium Lifestyle operating costs decreased by 20.1% to £275.1m (FY20: £344.1m) largely driven

by savings in store costs during the store closure periods as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic and
Government support schemes such as business -ates relief particularly in House of Fraser. As a result,
underlying EBITDA improved from £4.5m in FY20 to £53.9m in the year, largely due to Flannels store
openings, growth in our online business, continuad operating efficiencies and business rates relief
particularly in House of Fraser,

Premium Lifestyle Store Portfolio

23 apri 2021 26 April 2020
Flannels a1 3
Cruise 5 5
wan midert 1 1
Jack Wills - 60 67
Housa of Fraser / Fresers 43 48
Sotacam 24 El
1BMontiose Kl
Gafent Quorter 1
Peyche 1
e m
Cpened hF] 10
Acquied 5 n
Closed un 142)
Acaa [sq ft) apprax d2m approx 4 S

i Sola.com stora numbers include 17 concessions [FY20 12 concessisns] operagpg withn House of Fraser fasuia stores

Prnted on Stemnbals 1007 Recycled and Carbon Captinad throuah the Woodiand Trust, helpmg te cre

n
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Europeon Retail

The European Retail division includes the Group's sports retail store management and operations
in Europe, including the Group's Eurcpean distribution centres in Belgium and Austria, stores and

corresponding web business in the Baltic regions and GAME Spain stores and corresponding web
business.

52 waeks ended Stwenls ended

% apizon 26 April 2020

Em) (£m}

Eucopenn Retal Revedue 52 6377
Cerst of Sales {376 5t 1429 8)
Gross Prolit 1357 2679
Gross Proht % ELAC 384

Revenue decreased 11.8% to £615.2m. On a currency neutrat basis and excluding acquisitions,
European Retail revenue decreased by 20.5% largely due to the temporary store closures caused by
the Covid-19 pandemic.

European Retail gross margin increased to 39.0% {FY20: 38.4%)] largely due to the continually
improving product mix. Excluding acquisitions and on a currency neutral basis, margir: is up 100 basis
points to 46.3%. .

Operating expenses increased by 10.2% to £238.1m (FY20: £216.17m). Excluding cequisitions and on a
currency neutral basis operating costs increased by 9.3% lorgely due to property related provisions

including prior year releases as a result of disposals. As a result, underlying EBITDA decreased 92.%%
to £4.1m.

All of the following stores are operated by companies wholly owned by the Group, except Estonia,
Latvia and Lithuania where the Group owns 60.0%,

Brtsh woodtiand acioas the UK '
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European Retail Stare Portfolio ™

GAME 5pain

25 april 2021
236

16 Apyil 7020

Estomiar

Austria

Partugnl

Latwra

Lithuara
Fol

Shovania

Czach Republic

Hungary

Cyprus

Hollantd

Slovalea

France

Germony

Luxemizaurg

Spom

Icelarl

TOTAL
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Closed

{381

M4

Acqured

Acoa [sqft §
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265
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Excluding Hentons fosaa stares
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Rest Of World Retuil

Rest of World Retail includes sports stores in Malaysia trading under the SPORTS DIRECT fascig,
retail stores'in the US trading under Bob's Stores and Eastern Mountain Sports and their online
businesses. In Malaysia the Group has 33 stores which are 51.0% owned by the Group,

SFwenks wndad 52 wonhs shded

S Aapril 200 26 April 1020

{Em} em

Rest af World Revenus 1527 1742
Cast af sales (81 7 196,49
Gross Polit 640 773
Grass Margin % a9 and

Rest of World Retail soles were £152.7m for the year. Gross maorgin was 41.9%, down from 44.4%

in the priar year, largely due to the lower margin rate in the US business which makes up a larger
proportion of the segment in FY21. Underlying EBITDA was £25.6m, from a loss of £6.8m in FY20. This
was lorgely due to operating efficiencies in the US business.

Rest of World Retail Store Partfolia

23 Apil 2021 26 Apeil 2020

Malaysin 3 Ell
Bob's Slores n 2
Eustetn Mounten boorts ar 28
1] ™

Ared lsq . apsrar 1 3m QpRTo¥ 1 3m

Wholesale & Licensing

The portfolio of Group brands includes a wide variety of wotld-famous sport and lifestyle brands.
The Group's Sports Retail division sells products under these brands in its stores, ond the Wholesale
& Licensing division sells the brands through its wholesale and licensing gctivities. The Wholesale

& Licensing division continues to sponsor a variety of prestigious events and retains a variety of
globaliy recognised celehrities and sparting professionals as brond ambassadors.

52 wuhl 52 wwals anded

15 April 2021 26 Aprit 3020

m em)

Wiholesale s 134 4
Lisznsing a8 58
Total Whalsiole & Licsncing Revanue %33 160.2
Cest of Soles ias &t (3471
Gruss Probt 675 655
Gumss Murgn % 413 409

Wholesale & Licensing total revenue decreased by 4.3% to £153.3m (FY20: £160.2m).

Wholesale revenues were down 2 2% to £131.5m {FY2G: £134.4my), due to reductions in UK whalescle
activity offset by an increcse in the US. Total gross margin increased by 320 basis points to 44.1%
(FY20: 40.9%). Wholesale gross margins increased 430 basis paints te 33.6% (FY20: 29.5%), lorgely
due to UK wholesale,

Licensing revenues in the year were down 15.5% to E21.8m (FY20: £25.8m).

Operating costs decreased by 2.2% to £29.4m (FY20: £40.3m), As q result, underlying EBITDA
increased by 11.1% to £28.0m [FY20: £252m).
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EUROPEAN RETAIL
STORE PORTFOLIO
Republic of Ireland (RO}

.

QOver FY21 the remaining Heatons store
conversions to include Sports Direct were
completed.

There was one opening in the year, with 39
stores at the period end. Shortly after the
year end a new store in Galwoy opened, a
first for the Group in thot markat,

The intention for the coming financial year
is to increase the store estate across RO,
this has been bolstered by the increasing
number af new location opportunities now
being presented. In certain ocations other
Group fascios not currently trading in the
RCI are being considered.

Continental Europe

The Group continues to operate sports
stores in 18 countries in continental Europe.

211 Sports retail stores in Europe, excluding
Republic of Ireland [plus 26 non-core,
speciality and outlets).

Total sq.ft. of approximately 2.7m of
all sports fascias in Eurepe {including
Sportland, Lillywhites, Sportsworld ete).

Closed 25 GAME stores in Spain during the
period as part of rationalising the estate
and removing duplication finishing the
period on 236 storas.

Twelve openings in four different countries,
three of which were relocations.

10 closures in seven different countries with
a rixture of closing non-performing stores
and closures linked to relocations. The 1
Austricn store closure was due to o sale of
our freehold property in Salzburg.

During the period 8 Sparts Direct stores
incorporating a USC were opened during
the peried totalling 117,165 sq ft of retail
space. 5 of these were fraeholds purchased
in FY2Q that have been refurbished and
opened as elevated Sports Direct stores, -
A further freehold store opened in Malaga
shortly ofter FY21.

Hacyeled ana Larbo

As is the cose in the UK, the Group s firmly
committed to the rollout of elevated stores
across Europe. Due to the accelerated shift
to online experienced across Europe due to
the effects of the Cavid-19 pandemic and o
number of retailers reducing their portfolio
size. The Group believes it can capitalise
on these market conditions to efficiently
expand our physical estate, focusing on

. copital city and flagship opportunities,

REST OF WORLD RETAIL
STORE PORTFOLIO

33 stores in Malaysia with three apenings
and one closure in FY21. The clesure was a
Tasco bused store leaving us with three os
we continue to relocate our stores to higher
performance locotions.

The Malaysian elevation and expansian
drive continues, with 2 new elevated stores
opened in the period. We now have a total
of seven elevated stores in the region in fine
with UK standards and four stores with a
USC retail area.

As a major milestone our flagship ASEAN
HGQ opened in FY21in the Sunway Pyramid
shopping centre with the adjoining reta
store opening shortly.

43 stores in the USA, following two closures
and one opening in FY21.

m
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Over FY21 a total of 14 properties were
acquired ceross the UK totalling £84.3m.
The most significant purchase was Robin
Retatl Park in Wigan for £41.8m. No
propertias were acquired in Europe or RaW.

Disposal of property assets continues to be
standard practice for the Group. During the
period 4 disposals completed in the UK and
3 disposals completed in the EU.

For the upcoming financial period it is
anticipated that there will be an increase
in acquisition activity as we capitalise on
favourable market conditions coupfed with
the groups growing requirement for retait
space. Disposals will continue as has been
the case in previous financial years.

Mike Ashley

Chief Executive

5 August 2021

FRASERS GROUP
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FRASERS GROQUP

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Financicl Stotements for the Group for the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2021 are presented in
accordance with International Financial Reporzing Standards (IFRS).

Summary Of Results
52 waehs ended
16 Apsil 2020
. emd
Revanus 39574
Repented ERITRA 5510
Underlying EBITOA 021
Reported profit balore tax LPERY
Underlyng profit befane 1nx 58 n74
Eariinigs par shate [EPS| Pance per share Pence per shure
Japored bas EPS 11651 1B
Jndarlyng basic EPS nro 162

EBITDA is earnings before investment income and investment costs, finance income and finance
costs, tax, depreciction, amortisation and impairment. It includes the Group's share of losses from
asseciated undertakings and joint ventures. Underlying EBITDA is calculated as EBITDA before the
effects of IFRS 16, realised foreign exchange gains / losses in selling and administration costs, profit /
loss on disposal of subsidiaries, strategic investments and properties.

Foreign Exchange And Treosury

The Group reports its results in GBP but trades
internationally and is therefore exposed to
currency fluctuations en currency cash flows
in various ways. These include purchasing
inventory from overseas suppliers, making
sales in currencies other than GBP and holding
overseas assets in other currencies. The Board
mitigate the cash flow risks associated with
these fluctuations with the careful use of
currency hedging using forward contracts and
other derivative financial instruments.

The Group uses forward contracts thot qualify
for hedge accounting in two main ways - to
hedge highly probable EUR sales income and

USD inventory purchases. This introduces a

_level of certainty into the Group's planning and
forecasting process. Management has reviewed
detailed forecasts and the growth assumptions
within them and is satisfied that the forecasts
meet the criteria as being highly probable
forecast transactions.

As at 25 April 2021 and as detailed in note 29c
the Group had the following forward contracts
that qualified for hedge accounting under

IFRS 2 Financial Instruments, meaning that
fluctuations in the value of the contracts before
maturity are recognised in the Hedging Reserve
through Other Comprehensive Income. After
maturity, the sales and purchases are then
valued at the hedge rate.

Surrency Hudging spainst Currsney valun Timing Retar
USD / GRP USD inwentory purchases USD 720m FY22 - Fya 136 -141
USD / EUR USD inventory purchases USD 120m FY72, FY24 121131
FUR / G Euto siles EUR 740m e 099

The Group also uses currency options, swaps and spots for more flexibliity against cash flows
that are less than highly probable and therefore do not qualify for hedge accounting under IFRS9
Financial Instruments. The fair value movements before maturity are recegnised in the Income

Statement.

The Group has the following currency options and unhedged forwards:

Currency Expacied e

Curreney valua Timing Rate

EUR / GBP Furs soles FLR 380m FY13 054

The Group is proactive in managing its currency
requirements. The Treasury team works closely
with senior management to understand the
Group's plans and forecasts, and discusses and

Given the potential impact of commodity prices
on raw material costs, the Group may hedge
certain input costs, including cotton, crude oil
and electricity.

Group Opaerating Costs
32 wonhs ended %3 waohs ended
25 apell 2021 26 Apsi) 2030
Em) m
Croup oparcting wosts 11400 13530
Lepreciation and amartisation 2254 s 1
Irtangibla impairment - 59
IFR5 16 depraciot 821 1226
IFRS 16 disponl ond modilicotion/fremeasuramar 1212 197
IFRS 16 revarsni of rent expense AETE]
1FRS 16 reversal of anerous lease provision 13661 135 5
Realised £X loss/lgam) 263 349
Operghng Income 68 35
SELLING, DISTRIBUTION AND ADMINISTRATHGN COSTS 13100 14417

Group operating costs for the purposes of management reporting:

i. Exciudes depreciation, amortisation and impairments of property, plont and equipment,

intangible assets and realised FX gains and losses; and

ii. Includes other operating income.
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understands appropriate financial products
with various financial institutions, including
those within the Group Revolving Credit
Facility (RCF). This information is then used to
implement suitable currency products te align
with the Group's strategy.

Regular reviews of the hedging performance
are performed by the Treasury team longside
senior management to ensure the continued
appropriateness of the currency hedging in
place, and where suitable, either implementing
additional strategies and / or restructure
existing approaches in conjunction with our
financial institution partners.

Vwoudiand aeross the UK
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Toxation

The effective tax rate on profit before tax in FY21 was 1017.6% (FY20: 29.6%}. This reflects the impact
of the increase in property impairments and disallowable depreciation.

Earnings
51 weaks anded 52 waohs ended
25 apeil 2021 26 kgl 2010 Change %)
Reported RS [Bosic) 136 5 a5 1184 21
Underiying £PS (Boxich 120) 6z 120451
Weaghted tverngs number of shares tactust] 501,955.281 509.826 8%0
Basic earnings per share (EPS) is coleulated by Strategic Investments

dividing the earnings attributable to ordinary
shareholders by the weighted average number
of ordinary shares outstanding during the
financial period. Shares held in Trecsury and
the Employes Benefit Trust are excluded from
this figure.

"The undarying basic EPS retlzcts the undetying perfarnance

of the business camgpared with tne pror perad amd i colculated

using e werghted avertige number of sharss

profil meosura undar IFRS pnd may not be direetly comparable w

“adpusted” perlorrnance meosures used by cther companes Further
detals con be faund in the Glassary

Dividends

The Board has decided not to pay a final
dividend in refation to FY21(FY20 £nil).

The Board remains of the opinion that it is

in the best interests of the Group andi its
shareholders to prasecve financial flexibility ang
facititate future investments and other growth
opportunities, The payment of dividends
remains under review.

Capital Expenditure

During the period, gross capital expenditure
{excluding IFRS 16} omounted to £219.4m (FY20:
£323.5m), which included £84.3m on freehold
properties (FY20: £477.2m) and £48.5m on
warehouse autormation [FY20: £31.1m).
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The Group continues to hold vorious strategic
investments as detailed in Note 20. In additicn
the Group also holds indirect strategic
investments within contracts for difference and
optiohs.

The fair values of the contracts for difference
and options are recognised in Derivotive
Financial Assets or Liabilities on the Group
Balance Sheet, with the movement in fair value
recorded in the Income Statement.

Acquisitions

On 22 August 2020, the Group gcquired

the trade ond assets of DW Sports for cash
consideration of £37.0m which is deemed to
be the fair value of the consideration. The
acquisition complements the Group's existing
gyrn and fitness club portfolio and is consistent
with the Group's elevation strategy. Goodwill
represents the premium assaciated with
advantageous site locations, potential growth
opportunities offered by economies of scale,
and the assembled workforce. The fair value
adjustment to property, piant and equipment
relotes to the management's assessment of the
price that would be paid for the acquired assets
in an orderly transaction between market
participants ot the acquisition date, The leases
were acquited under short-term ficences and
therefore no right-of-use asset or lease liability
has been recognised on acquisition,

During the year the Group acquired the entire
share capitol of Psyche Holdings Limited,

the entire share capital of GRMNT Limited,
and the trade and assets of 18 Moentrose for
consideration of £2.7m., These acquisitions
will provide increased product offerings in

ad thrauah e Woodlaned Tar Yo

the Premium Lifestyle division. The fair value
adjustment to property, plant and equipment
relates to the recognition of right-of-use assets
and lease liabiliti

Related Parties

MM Prop Consultancy Limited, o company
owned and controlled by Michael Murray, who
s @ member of key management personnel

as per IAS 24, continues to provide property
consultancy services to the Group. MM Prop
Consultancy Limited is primarily tasked with
finding and negotiating the acquisition of new
sites in the UK, Europe and Rest of the World
for both our larger format stores gnd our
combined retail and gym units. It aiso provides
advice to the Company's in-house property
team in relation to existing sites in the UK,
Europe and Rest of the Warld.

in the year ali properties are assessed. Those
that are considered by the Group's independent
Non-executive Directors to have completed
development and be eligible for review at the
year-end are assessed and if required vaiued by
an independent valuer who confirms the value
created by MM Prop Consultancy Limited. The
Group's independent Non-executive Directors
then review and agree the value created and
have full discretion to approve a payment to
MM Prop Consultancy Limited of up to 25% of
the value created. There is a current pipeline of

FRASERS GROUP

properties that may be eligible to be assessed
both positively and negatively by the Group's
Non-executive Directors in future years.

In the current year £2.5m hos been accrued
based on 25% of the value created on two
propetties where the gain has erystallised
through centract exchange or completion

of sale [FY2C - £nil provided and £nil paid,
MM Prop Consultancy Limited was last paid
in relation to FY19). This is poyable to MM
Prop Consultancy Limited and agreed by the
independent Non-Executive Directors.

During the period the Group entered into an
agreement with M P M Elevation Limited, a
campany ewned and contrelled by Michgel
Murray in relation to elevation strategy services.
M.PM Elevation Limited will be paid an annual
fee of £0.1m in relation to the provision of the
elevation strategy services.

Other related parties are disclosed in note 34.
Cash Flow And Net Debt

Net debt decreased by £117.1m from £366.0m
at 26 April 2020 to £248.9m at 25 April

2021. Interest on bank loans and overdrafts
decreased to £11.2m (FY20: £17.8m} largely due
to reduced usage of the RCF in the period.

The analysis of net debt ot 25 April 2021 and at 26 April 2620 was as follows:

15 April 2021 26 April 2020

{Cm| Em)

Cash und) Coslh equivilents 2570 5M0
Borowings 1705 91 19000/
HETDEST 12489} I

The Group's Working Capital Facility is £913.5m [FY20: £13.5m). It is available until November

2021 and is not secured against any of the Group's assets. £847 5m of the faci

Novemnber 2022,

is due to expire in

The Group continues to operate well within its banking covenants and the Board remains
comfortable with the Group's available headroom, Nate: due to the timing of payrall and supplier
paymerts, net debt at calendar peried end 30 Apnil 2021 was approximately £350.0m (FY20:

n_uv_.ax:znﬂmz £408.0m).

TN
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FRASERS GROUP

CASH FLOW

Total movement is as follows:

52 wuuks ended 52 weahy wnidnd
S apdla0dt 16 April 2020
Emi® (L)
Underdying EBITRA 304 021
Realsed FX {loss}/ gain 1263] 48
Taxes paid 159 31 {485
Movarmant i inventory 953 n208
Noruing euprel and athed 23 955
UNEERLYENG FRAE CASH FLOW AFTER WORKING CAFITAL it 2619
INVESTED IN: N
Putchuse at owin shares 43 3%
Dwiderd powd to hoh-contralling nterest w0yl
Furchgse of subsidianss, net of cash uequirid 13541
Furchase of sted investments 1331
Futchuse of intangibles 1ol
Purchase of mssofiatas - 158
Proceweds on disposal of mvestmeits und denvatives 8581 49
Proceeds on disposal of intangibles 75
Net capital expendiure (1948 B1 o
E changs maverent on cash balgnces | 1531 5o
Irvastmant Incarme recelved 05 H
Fmance ineome recerved less finonce costs paid 108l (85)
DECREASE N NETOEBT 1 118
m This table excludes the impact of FRS16
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
Significant balance sheet iterns are shown below:
5 April 2011 16 Apil 2020
- 1Em) em)
Property, plont and equipment | 918 2 10419
Right of usa assets 2457 3054
Long-term finoncia) assets 7633 818
lovsntary 1096 6 11983
Trade and other recervablas 5465 ) 4132
Proisions. 136121 (3360
Trade aind other poyables 1646 31 1602 5)
tense habibties 7227 16241

The majority of the decrease in property, plant and equipment relates to the impairments of freehold
land and building and plant and equipment due t= the Covid-*9 pandemic and factors such as
changes in consumer behaviour.

- IFRS 16 right of use dssets have decreased largely due to impairments. Lease liabilities have
increased largely due to remeasurements during the period.

Lorg-term financial assets have increased during the pericd due to the additions of Huge Boss AG
‘and Mulberry Group plc.

Inventery has decreased largely due to a reduction in inventories held within the Rest of World
segrmnent.
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Receivables includes a £118.3m rebmbursement asset in relation to the Group's ongeing non-UK
tox enquiries (FY26: £18.3m) and £131.0m relating to deposits in respect of derivative financiol
instruments (FY20: £71.3m) with the increase mainly relating to Hugo Boss.

Provisions have increased mainly due to an increase in property provisions as a result of the Covid-19
pandemic.

Payables have increased largely due to rent _un_<3m:~m under nagotiation as a result of the Covid-19
pondemic.

COMPANY BALANCE SHEET
Significant balance sheet items are shown below:
25 Apeil 2011 26 April 2030
ttmy __Eml
veslmants 14949 12358
Debiois 166 & 868
Crecitors amounts fallisg due wathin one yeor {A04 0] 1901 3

_Investments relates to investments in subsidiaries and long-term financial assets. The majority of the

increase relates to additions due to a reorganisation of our U5 businesses and v:«n:ommm of physical
shares in Mulberry Group plc and Hugo Boss AG.

The majority of the movement in debtors relates to an increase in collateral to cover margin
requirements for derivative transactions held with counterparties,

Creditors relates to amounts owed to Group undertckings, the decrease relates to subsidiary
dividends declared during the period.

Chris Wootton
Chief Financial Officer
5 August 2021
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NON-FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The table below sets out where the information required by sections 414CA ond 414CB of the
Companies Act 2006 can be found in this Annual Report.

Losatien Relevont Palicies

ENVIRONMENT - pages % ta 27

Ruquirement

Enviranmental Matters Environmerital policy

Staff Hanobook Employee Data
Privucy Siotement
Acceplable Ye Poliy

HUMAN RESOURCES - page 73

Employees STAFF INVOLVEMENT - page 62

Social Mottars COMMUNITY INVOLYEMENT - page 75
SUPILY CHAIN - page 75
MODERN SLAVERY ACT 2015 - page 2§

Human Rights

ANTI-BRIBERY 5 CORRUPTION - poga 25

Ann-Bnbery & Camuption palicy WHISTLEBLOWANG - page 25

Busmess Mars| BUSINESS MODEL - page 10
RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES RELATING TO THE  Risks Reaister o
GROUP'S BUSINESS - pages 30 ta 36 Pratie fusiomer Di
VIASILITY STATEMENT - page 36 Duno Rer

KEY FERFORMANCE INDICATORS - poge 1

Principal Risks and Busivess Attty

Non-Financial key Pertarmnnce indicotors

* We continuglly work ta ensure thot we improve wn this seckor Our pelicy s not farenoksed although svdente of what wa do con be lacated on pages 21ta
30

Further infarmation is provided within the Group's ESG Report on poge 23.

|
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WORKERS' REPRESENTATIVE REPORT

1 have now been the Workers' Representative-
and Non-executive Director for aver two

years. The role has been challenging given the
pressures of the Covid-19 pandemic. However,
it is immensely rewarding and | remain proud
to be representing my colleagues ot Frasers
Group.

With the continuous lockdowns and the
uncertainty the Covid-19 pandemic has brought
during the past yeor to the Group, protecting
our colleague’s welibeing and maintaining
consistent, transparent communication have
been vital. | continue to have full controland
ownership of a confidenticl whistleblowing
hotline for retail cofieagues, as well as the stoff
welfare portal, where every colleague has the
opportunity to anonymously raise any concerns
ar queries that they may have. | operate with
complete tronsparency and any findings from
these platforms are shared with the rest of
Board.

As part of my role as the Workers
Representative, | have collaborated with our
Tramning team and the Retail Trust to safequard
the wellbeing of our collecgues, Using the
mast frequently asked guestions from the
staff portal, the Retail Trust's psychologists
and counsellors have used their expertise to
answer our collecgue queries. We have run
regular webinars and discussed financicl
support, emotional support and coping
mechonisms for all Frasers colleagues during
the Covid-19 pandemic. Each webinar was
recorded and made availdble across all of our
cammunication platforms.

Furthermore, | am pleased to confirm thot
despite the evident challenges thet the
Covid-19 pandemic has brought, we are
currently implementing pay reviews for our
retail teams, demonstrating the value and

faith we piace in our peopie. in addition ta this,
we have launched our 'Fearless 1000 bonus
scheme where some of our colleagues have

the potential te be rewarded with life-changing
bonuses. I am proud to represent my colleagues
ond a business that rewards its people so highly

and places its people ot the forefront of eny ©
successes

This year, despite the shift to working virtually,

I remain fully involved in all Board and strategy
maeetings, giving fresh insights and perspectives
on decision moking, and my relationship with
the other Board members has gone from
strength to strength. ! continue te be invelved
in ol decisions und correspondence regarding
safe systems of work to maintain good Covid-19
practices at cur warehouse, offices and stores.

Whilst we navigate the year ahead and the
challenges it will undoubtedly bring, ) hope |
can continue to make a positive difference ot
Board level to ensure that our paople continue
to be at the heart of all business decisions, and
to heip drive cur Elevation No Limits strategy
forward.
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ESG REPORT

Qur People

We employ more than 25,000 people ocross
the Group. Despite the challenges raised by the
Covid-19 pandemic, during FY21 we continued
to enhance many aspects of how we manoge
our peopie, to ensure that those who work

hard and want to be challenged can excel and
quickly progress within Frasers Groug.

Culture And Values

Having the right culture is critical to sustainable
business success. We want our colleagues to
feel valued and engaged, and to have o culture
that helps us to attract, retain and develop
talent to create our future leaders.

This year, we worked with a specialist
consultancy to develop an employer value
propaosition for the Group. As port of this we
leoked to understand how our people perceive
our cutture, including our unigue strengths

and where we can improve. Interviews with
people at all levels of the business showed

that we have a culture of acting fast and
without hesitation, and where people rise to the
challenge and are valued for their contribution.
We see strength in difference; offer the
potential to progress and develop strong loyalty
among our peaple.

Areas for improvement included the need for
better communication, more focus on work-life
balance and clear objectives. We have already
begun to address these matters, including
establishing an internal communications team.
Our Your Company, Your Voice' portal also
supports engogement and communication,
allowing our people to raise questions and
concerns with the Workers Representative, with
the rasponses then published. Other initiatives
this year include our new performance
muanagement process [see below) which
includes objective setting. Following o return to
the office under Covig-19 guidetines, we have
also introduced 'Frasers Fridays, so head office
colleagues can request to work frem home on
Fridays.
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Drawing on our people’s responses, we have
defined the core values that underpin how we
work. These are:

= Own it and back yourself
= Don't hesitate cnd act with purpose

+  Think without limits and take the team
with you

We have communicated these values across

the Group and use them in our recruitmeént,

performance management and reveard

schemes (see below). We will continue to

embed them going forwards,

The project also enabled us to define our
employer value proposition. For our existing
talent, this is about being trusted to perform.
For future talent, Frasers Group is ‘for the
fearless’.

Retention

We aim to hire the most talented and capable
individuals across our secter, ond to retain their
valuable knowledge and experience within the
Group. During FY21, 29% of our UK salaried
colleagues left the Group which is consistent
with FY20.

Stere Manager stability within Sports Direct

is currently sitting ot 84%, this is o decredase

of 1% compared te FY20. Assistant Manager
stability currently sits at 87%, an increase of
2% compared to FY20. Footwear Manager
stability currently sits at 24%, an increase of 6%
compared to FY20,

A significant proportion of cur people have
been furloughed at various times in FY21, in
particular when store closures have been
mandated. Use of the furlough scheme has
enabled us to retain people within the business,
while accessing Government support when our
stores have not been able to trade.

Diversity And Inclusion

We believe diversity plays an important role
in o successful business. We strive to ensure
that our people reflect the diverse cultures and

values of our customer base. We endeavour to
provide equal opportunities, recruit those with
the best skills and capabilities for the role and
to ensure that training, career development and
promotion opportunities are available to all.

We will not tolerate discrimination on grounds
of gender identity, sexual orientation, race,
nationality, religion, age, disability or any other
grounds.

We endeavour to meet our responsibilities to
train and employ discbled people. Applications

FRASERS GRQUP

for employment by people with any disability
are given full and fair consideration for all
vacancies and are assessed in accordance with
their skills and a es. People who have a first
language other than English are impartant to
our business. We provide free English language
lessons, to help them participate and be
successful in our workplace and more broadly
as citizens. Since their Introduction in Jenuary
2017, 248 collecgues have attendad these
classes.

The table below shows the gender diversity of our workforce at the year end, Approximately 53% of
our workforce is female, including 35% of our senior management (FY20: 32% UK workforce), We aim
to ensure that both male and femcle candidates are provided with equol oppertunities to apply for

and work in all positions across the Group.

Famal Mok
Direvtors 25, 75%
CHther seniar monagers 3% £5%
Other employees B 53% a7

Gender Pay Gap

Qur gender pay gap report for 2020 was
published in August 2021, We are pleased to
report that we have maintained a 0% average
gender pay gap across the Group over the
past three years compared to 6.3% in 2017.
We attribute this change to o continued focus
on reviewing and applying our pay structures
consistently across the business. We recognise
there is a difference in totot earnings between
female and male colleagues. We are therefore
continuing to explore and implement methods
that will estabiish enhanced processes and
training tools for our employees and engaged
workers to achieve maximum earning potential
through our various bonus and commission
schemes.

Talent And Capability Development

We invest without limit in peeple who show the
potential te be future managers and leaders,
and who can drive the elevation strateqgy.
Home-grown talent is key to us and mony of
our management and senior positions are filled
through internal promotions.

To inspire cur home-grown talent, we offer
existing colleagues the chance to take
apprenticeships, including obtaining relevant

external qualifications. Over 100 colleagues
have started apprenticeships since May 2020,
learning about topics such as customer service,
HR, finance, IT, warehouse management and
various levels of retail management. We have
alse recruited new peaple into apprentice
positions within iT and are looking ot extending
this to other areas of the business,

We ran our first early careers programme for
graduates this year, with 27 people joining

our commercial function through the Frasers
Group Elevation Programme. This two-year
programme will create the future leaders for
that part of the erganisation and enable the
highest performing participants to earn up to
£80,00G in their second year of to enter other
areas across the commercial teamn. The trainee
commercial managers (TCMs) started with an
intensive three-week crientation, cavering tha
Group's purpose, strategy and culture as well
as all aspects of the commercial division and
the essential skills required. The TCMs also took
part in a three-day business simulation, to learn
how their decisions affect other areas of the
business.

The 2020 intake olso has a dedicated Early
Careers Manager whe is responsible for their
learning and development, running frequent
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professiconal coaching and mentoring sessions
to ensure they are getting the mast out of the
programme and supporting them in all areas
of the role. The Early Careers Manager also
supports the entire commercial team to ensure
the programme runs effectively. The Frasers
Teum has been on hand to shift the structure
and scope of the programme to fit in with the
business’s strateqy throughout the Covid-19
pandemic and make sure all the relevant
{earning needs are accounted for. A second
cohort of people will join us in September 2021
and we will look to recruit for other parts of
the Group in future. We olso continue to run
placement years for undergraduates, primarily
within 1T, .

Managing performance is essential for
identifying key talent and heiping our
colleagiues to achieve their growth potential
We have therefore introduced our Fearless
Focus performance reviews which went live

for head office colleagues in March 2G21 and
will be rolled out acrass the business. We have
identified competencies against which to judge
performance and wiil alsc assess behaviours
against the vajues described abave. Each
function’s objectives will filker down to the
objectives far individuals and provide clear
expectations about performance. We will olso
genercte development plans, so collecgues
can improve in their current roles or fulfil their
aspirations to progress, in conjunction with our
succession planning.

f i And 1
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Ensuring our teams have the knowledge

they nead to perform at the highest level is
paramount to the continued success of the
business. While we have had to adapt our
approach to learning and development during
the Covid-19 pandemic, we are ladking farward
to resuming reqgulor in-person training when
possible, as part of a blended epproach. Our
Shirebrack training centre s state of the art and
is supported by owr brand portners Nike, Puma
and Adidas who have their own environments
in the tampus. The facilities offer an unrivalled
training environment, which alongside the
Shirebrook store, give colleagues the periect
mix of classroom and on-the-job training.
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We offer a varied portfolio of training options
for our teams. The training and development
portfoiio continues to grow and includes brond
and product knowledge, customer service,
managemerit training and induction, as well

as our apprenticeship courses and free English
lessons.

In FY21, we started to develop a new learning
management system {LMS] on Netex's Learning
Cloud platform. This went live to selective
groups in early 2021 with the aim to roll out to
all UK employees by the end of the calendar
year, Learning Cloud is industry leading in size
and scope, showing the importance we place
on the continued learnings of our colleagues,
It contains a blend of interactive e-learning
modules, videos and documents on specific
skills and copabilitias, as well as allowing us
to create bespoke content and digital events.
The system will give managers the option to
recommend further training to their teams
and to report on engagement, which wilt
allow us to understand the uptake of training
and to moniter completion of any mandatory
caurses. Learning Cloud is easily accessible
and is compatible with PC's, laptops, tablets
and mobile phones, giving every employee the
option of how they wish to absorb their training

While the Covid-19 pandemic has reduced

the eppartunity for fece-to-face training, we
have stepped up the use of online platforms.
This has included our Fearless Fortnights,
where we record a webinar every two weeks
on a specific topic. Examples include webinors
on performance reviews and on improving
communication skills.

R, tion And Reward

We faster a reward-based culture that enables
aur colleagues to share in the Group's success.
In the UK, our policy is to pay above the
National Minimum Wage, including rates that
are above the National Living Wage for pesple
aged over 25. We offer bonus schemes and
{ncentives depending on the rale and the fascio,
and colleagues receive discounts acress ¢ll
fascias.

The Fearless 1000 incentive scheme aligns the
interests of our people and our sharehotders.
Colleagues can be awarded points for

their performance by leaders across the
organisation, including for living our values. The
scheme runs for four years and if a £10 share
price target is reached for 30 consecutive days,
it will result in an oward of shares or a cash
equivalent for the tep 1000 people, with the top
ten receving an award equivalent to £im at a
share price of £10 on vesting. The scheme also
includes a cosh reward for all other colleagues
outside of the top 1,000 people based on their
length of service with the Group.

We have also introduced the Frasers
Champions recognition scheme, which allows
people to nominate colleagues for an award
for demonstrating our values, The strongest
nominations each month are chompioned
across the business and recaive an ad nal
month's pay. As at April 2021, 72 people had
received an award.

in addition, the introduction of the Fearless
Focus performance reviews described above
will support the move to a more structured and
robust performance-related pay review process.

Casual Workers

We strive to ensure our arrongements for casual
staff are fair and equitable. All casual workers
are paid the same rates as full-time employees
in the same role. We promote stability in
working hours, while our casual workers alse
benefit from the flexibility to decline shifts at
any time. This flexibility aiso benefits the Group,
enabling us to adjust staffing levels to cape with
peck times and quister periods,

Casual workers are also included in the Fearless
1,000 bonus scheme.

Heafth And Sufety

As the Group grows, we have continued to
increase our focus on consistently implementing
health and safety measures and evalusting our
safety performance, We implerment our polices,
in conjunction with legal standards, to protect
our colleagues and customers.
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During the year, the Group introduced a
new improvement team, responsible for
enhancing the efficiency and effectiveness
of cur operations at Shirebrook. This teom
is reviewing all processes across the site and
pulling together contributions from different
teams, including health and safety. This hos
the potenhal to further improve our safety
performance at Shirebrook.

In FYZ0 we impiemented a new accident

and incident reporting system, replacing
poper-based reporting with on online system
accessible from all our stares and businesses.
We are now reviewing the potential to
implement a more integrated system, which
will link to claims and capture the information
required by our insurers.

Appropriote health and safety training is vital
and we have facused this year on training the
store management teams. This training covers
all aspects of in-store safety, from testing

fire alarms to carrying out evatuations and
reporting incidents. The Covid-19 pandemic has
limited the number of people who have been
able to take this training in FY21and we are
locking te introduce a digital format to speed
up the rofl-out and make the training more
engaging

The majority of in-store health and safety
incidents relate to custormer trips and falls. The
elevation programme is helping to reduce this,
by providing more spece in store aisles and an
e(evated shepping experience.

Heclth And Salety Performance

Al RIDDOR incidents are recorded and ore
reportable to the local authority. The health
and safety team meet the Derbyshire local
authority with responsibility for Shirebrook on
a quarterly basis and work closely with other
authorities when required. All accidents ond
incidents are investigated in a timely manner
and worehouse RIDDOR incidents are reviewed
during these meetings.

During FY21 there were no fire, focal authority
or environmental enforcement actions or
prosecutions and no work related fatal

*
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Wellbeing

Colleague wellbeing is always a focus for

us and has become even more importont
during the Covid-19 pandemic. We cantinue
to partner with Retail Trust, which provides
all Frasers Group colleagues with access

to free und confidential wellbeing support.
Retail Trust offers advice, financia! assistance,
foce-to-face and telephone counseliing,
cognitive behavioural therapy, non-repayable
grants, career development support, legal
guidence and on-site critical incident support.
The helpline is available 24 hours a day, seven
days a week.

To ensure our people know whaot support is
ovoilable through Retail Trust, we have elevated
our communications during the Covid-19
pandemic. This has included webinars and
education sessions for managers, so they are
aware of what is available, as well as social
media messaging and other communications
for colleegues. This has resulted in a noticeable
uplift in use of the Retail Trust service.

Human Rights And Modern Slavery

We are committed to respect and equal
treatment for ali people.

We recognise that modern slavery is an
ongcing challenge for organisations, especially
those dealing in consumer goaods, and we
remain committed to addressing this risk.
Lltimately, we strive to ensure that no slavery
or hurman trofficking takes place within our
business or supply chain, We have policies in
place aimed at proactively identifying and
mitigeting these risks, These palicies aim to
send a clear message that we do not tolerate
these practices.

We have a range of tools in place including
videos and literature to educate colleagues
about their rights and a number of
cammunication channels, including an internal
telephone hotline and comments boxes on site,
for reporting any feadback or concerns. Anyone
making a report can remain anonymous if they
cheose. We also continue to review and deveiop
our colleague training, monitoring processes
anc evaluation of outcomes, and work with

our employment cgencies and other relevant
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bodies, including the Gangmasters and Labour
Abuse Authority and the pelice, to support our
training and knowledge.

If we find, or suspect, that any organisations or
individuals cre participating in modern slavery
we will take immediate action. Accordingly,

we have a policy of reporting any suspicious
activity to the police, which has histerically
assisted in successful convictions, Qur 554
Madern Slavery Act statement can be found on
our website www.frasers.group.

Developing Our HR Function And People
Policies

We are investing in the structure and copability
of our HR function, te enable it to effectively
support the Group os it continues to grow.

As part of this, we are reviewing our people
policies and the way that they govern our
people’s behaviours, as well os the appropriate
mechanisms we need to have in place to
ensure compliance. This will allow us to take

a mere preventative approach to instances of
nan-comgliance.

Our main focus for policies under review
includes attendance management, maternity/
paternity/parental jeave, performance
capability and redundancy. A significant and
positive change will be the maternity policy
for our casual workers where they will remacin
engaged with us throughout their maternity
leave period.

Community And Charity

We are committed to engaging with the local
and wider communities arcund our stores and
our offices in Londen and Shirebrook, and we
aim to minimise any detrimental impact on
them.

Our Sports Directory subsidiory has been a
specialist supplier of sports equipment to the
education sector for over 25 years, and part of
the Frasers Group since 2016. Sports Directory
plays a key role in giving back to schools in
the UK and helping to keep our young people
fit and healthy, often giving children their

first experience of team sports. Through its
‘My School’ scheme, schools purchase sports
equipment from the business and Sports
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Directory gives them the opportunity to claim
a voucher worth 25% of every purchase. To
date, Sports Directory has issued over 42,000
vouchers to UK schools, which equates to
more than £3.2 million worth of free sports
equipment. Sports Directory has also, via the
Professional Footballer's Assaciation, donated
free equipment to 72 football league clubs.

In addition to Sports Directory, we support the
development of grass reots tolent in tennis via
Slazenger. We hove donated over £350,000 of
tennis equipment to schools and tennis clubs
via the Slazenger Academy. The Academy is
supported by Tim Henman, as well as the All
England Tennis Club.

Closer to the Shirebrook campus, we donated
winter clothing te Nottinghamshire YMCA,
which was distributed to homeless people in
the lecal community. Store managers also
contribute to their local communities. An
example of this is in Aberdeen, where the store
has in previous years worked alongside & local
hospital to donate presents to the staff. Due to
the Covid-19 pandemic, this was not possible

this year, so instead the store donoted to a local

food bank,

Frasers has also worked on a number of
initiatives to empower women in sport. The
highlights of this include working with Women
in Spart to supply kit for their “Doughters and
Dads” programme, which encourages gitls to
pley more sport, The Group also sponsored
the “Driving Force” series on Sky Sports that
highlights the chailenges faced by elite
sportswomen.

As discussed in the Chair's statement, on 15
June 20290, in England, we offered a 50%
discount to all NHS staff in our Sports Direct
stores as a gesture of goodwill to these
Fantastic individuals as our stores re-opened; it
was an averwhelming success with gross sales
of approximately £50m before discount and
approximately £25m ofter discount.

Anti-Bribery And Corruption

The Group has an Anti-Bribery and Corruption
Policy in place, which was originally created
following the introduction of the UK Bribery
Act. As q result of the Act, all policies and
procedures were reviewed to ensure compliance
measures were put in place to mitigate stoff
being offered and / or accepting bribes. We
have a zero-tolerance approach to bribery and
corruption at Frasers Group, and we encourage
our people to speak-up if they have concerns
that bribery or fraud is taking place. No
instances of bribery, corruption or fraud haw
been reported during FY21, '

Due to the number of acquisitions into the
Group since 2018, the Group is reviewing policy
to ensure that the policy remains effective.

The revised policy will be subject to Audit
Committee cversight.

Whistlablowing

The Group has an approved whistleblowing
policy and a number of processes operate
which support our policy including Your
Company Your Yoice, our Retail Support Unit
Asset Protection hotline as well as a dedicated
whistleblowing e-mail address.

& policy review and revision process is ongoing.
The updated whistieblowing policy and related
processes will be subject to Audit Committee
reporting, approve! ond oversight on an
ongoing basis.

|
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ENVIRONMENT

We recognise that suppoerting and protecting
the envirpnment is _..}_uo;a:w to our
stokeholders and to the future success of our
business. We therefore look to be proactive

in making a positive contribution to the
environment, including through reducing

our @nergy use and greenhouse gas (GHG)
emissions, minimising waste, maximising
retychng and considering how we can make our
products more systainaple,

Frasers Group welcomes the introduction of
the Taskforce for Climote-related Financial
Disclosures (TCFDL We understand this is

an important step in tackling global climate
thange and we look forward to shoring our first
full disciosure in next year's Annual Repart. As
part of this process we have engaged external
advisers to carry out 6 gap analysis to ensure
we are in a strong position to meet these
requirerients. There is more to do and we have
aiready begun identifying opportunities and
fisks around climate change and are using
these findings to inform future strotegy.

Embedding Susteinubifity

During FY21, we formalised our approoch

fo sustainabifity in a number of ways. This
included creating a dedicated sustainability
function, which has been seeking out ond
implementing projects that are beneficial to the
Group and the envitonment.

Towards the end of the 2020 calendar year, we
farmed a network of Sustainability Champions
under the sponsorship of the CFO. This
reflected our balief that the best woy to embed
sustainabiiity across the Group is to take
everyone on the journey with us. All colleagues
wete given the opportunity to take part and we
recaived a significant number of applications
from around the business, demonstrating our
colieagues’ interest in environmental issues.

The Sustainability Champions work within their
own departments, using their unique knowledge
of their day-to-day roles to help moke all

areqs of the business more sustaingble. They
feed back to the newly formed Steering

Group, which has representatives from senior
management and key departments, including
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experts in retail, procurement, design, legal,

HR and finance. The Steering Group set the
Group's sustainability strategy and monitor our
progress, as part of our wider E3G opprooch.
This will enable us ta take o more strategic
approach to environmental matters in the years
aheod.

Training for aur Sustainability Champicns has
been delayed due to the Covid-19 pandernic
but will take ploce os soon as practicable.
We intend to run workshops, bring in externat
speakers and provide an opportunity for our
Champions to share good practice and learn
from each other.

Enhancing Energy Efficiency

The sustainability team's primary focus in the
year was oh reducing energy use and GHG
emissions, primarily through behavioural
changes and best practice. The vast majority of
our sites have smart meters, giving us live and
aceurate doto which is fed into o monitoring
and dlerts system. This allows us to take action
when usage issues are dentified.

We caritinue to comply with the UK
Government's Streamlined Eneray and Carbon
Reporting (SECR) and hiave identified key oreas
where we can make Further energy reductions,
in particuiar energy usage in our stores and
efficient transport and logistics.

Improving the environmental performance

of our stare portfolio is a significant facus for
us and presents the greatest opportunity for
associated costs sovings. For example, LED
light replacements resutted in a 52% energy
reduction and rapid payback on ther upfront
cost. All new light fittings are now LED and we
ore rolling out a programme of LED lighting
upgrades ¢t a rate of two stores a week. We
have also upgraded the externai lighting at
Shirebrook to LED.

We have tralled replacing overhead door
heaters in stores with infrared heaters, which
are much moere energy efficient, In our
Mansfieid store trial, for exomple, we replaced
three 12kw blow heaters with a single 3kw
infrared heater, However, store clasures due to
the Covid-19 pundemic halted these trials and
we are awaiting more data ond feedback from

stare collecgues on the heaters' effectiveness,
before planning a fuil rof aut

In addition, we carried out desktop studhes of
the feasibility of replacing oir conditioning units
in our stores with more efficient units, While
these studies showed that retrofitting stores

is not cost effective, particularly for leasehold
premises, we are using more efficient units

m new stoves. We will continue to review the
practicality of replacing existing units, at Jeast
annuaify,

In suppart of the transition to a low-carbon
econamy, we hove installed 18 electric vehicle
chargers at several points around our head
office which are provided ot cost to colleagues.

Excluding acquisitions during the year the
electricity supplied to all of our stores ond
gyms s from 100% renewable sources. Our
Shirebrook distribution centre electricity 1s from
a local mdependent power supplier, which
supports the grid during the transition to a
green network and e zero-carbon economy.

Transport

The Group's truck fleet all meet the Euro

& standord and we use an engine fuel

additive to further reduce emissions. By using
container optimisation, which maximises the
amount we can get inte a container, we save
approximately 0.6315 tonnes of carban per
forty foot container. Therefore, since 2013, we
have cut our transport impoct by approximately
26,473 tonnes of carbon. That is equivaient to
31,478,002 kilometres of lorry travel or 787 times
around the worid.

We work with our factories and third-party
brands to optimise our contuiner space and
reduce the number of containers shipped, to
avoid fuel waste caused by ‘shipping air’, Gur
freight forwarders continue to work hard to
condense shipping and to campare the impact
of ditferent bronsport modes, such s rail or
road.

Ail parce!s we send to customers via DPD are
carbon neutral and we receive a certficate
each guarter seftin-~g out the GHG emission
savings as a result, During the year we sent
56,572 parcels via DPD, saving 24,275ky of £02,
the equivalent to planting 93 trees.
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Waste And Recycling

Reducing waste and maximising recycling is
another impartant areq of focus for us and we
have a target to send zere waste ta landfill frorm
our UK operations by 2025. We are planning to
look at targets for the rest of the world once our
UK waste streams are managed as efficiently as
possible

Qur approach to managing each of our waste
streoms is set out below.

Cardboard

Sarting our retycling into different streams at
our Shirebrook warehouse aliows us to facilitate
the recycling of approximotely 95% of our
cardboard.

We ore o AAA producer of cardboard waste,
which means that we produce clean, high
density bales of o consistent guality. This
atlracts o high buy-back price and ensures we
are & preferred supplier when demand is tow.
50% of our cardboard is reprocessed in mills in
the UK by our recycling partner who we work
clasely with to constantly imarove recycling
rates. On average, we recycle around 900
tonnes of cardboard each month,

Paper

All office paper is made from Steinbeis recycled
paper in partnership with the Woodland

Trust and recyeled after use. From January to
December 2021, the partnership has created
3363.36m” of new native woedlond in the UK to
remove 130,494kg of carbon dioxide

Plostic

We have a separate baling operation

for plastic, which eliminates end-of-hale
contaminatian, The plastic we produce oh

site is high grade, making it very suitable for
recycling. Office plostics are also separated at
source ond recycled.

We aim to reduce single-use plostic within

the business as far as possible, such as tags,
pellet straps and packaging bags, We are
working hard to identify the 'hotspots’ we need
to address first and actively procure mare.
sustainable alternatives.
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Electrical Waste

IT waste is disposed of by a specialist
contractor who also cleans any hard drives of
sensitive information where required.

The majority of electrical waste we generate
is light bulbs and tubhes which are loaded into
waste containers provided by Electrical Waste
Ltd and exchanged as required.

Fridges and freezers are collected by the
supplier, as required.

Dccasional appliance waste is put in the scrap
metal bins for recycling.

Metat

We recycle scrap metal from Shirebrook and
our stores through a partnership with two lecal
coempanies. We are now sorting different grades
where possible, to facilitate a faster and more
efficient process.

General Waste

Every month, around 105 tonnes of dry

mixed recycling {non-scrted recyclables /
general waste) are baled from cur Shirebrock
distribution centre. Once baled, the waste is
sent to a third party for recycling at cost to us.
This has reduced by approximately 45 tonnes
per month from last year, partly due to the
Covid-19 pandemic and partly due to better
separation of waste which ensures we can sell
meore of our own recycling.

Racycling Initiatives In FY21

We continue to work on reducing waste and
tncreasing recycling. During the year, we have
communicated to all colieagues that our
expectation is for waste to be recycled. We
have supported this by replacing individual
bins at desks with recycling bins ir offices to
sort waste ot source. Food waste is also now
recycled. We are triglling waste segregation in
store, to further increase our recycling rates.
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Recycling Performance

In FY21, we recycled 86% of the waste we
generated at our Shirebrook distribution centre
{FY20: 88%). This inctuded:

= 6,418 tonnes of cardboard [FY20: 12,358
tonnes)

= 30 tonnes of waste paper (FY20: 27 tonnes)
+ 285 tonnes of plastic {FY20: 623 tonnes)
= 771 tonnes of metal {FY20: 778 tonnes)

= 3,227 units of electrical equipment (FY20:
5,051 units)

In FY21, we separated and directly recycled
7,558 tonnes (B6%) of materials. A further 1,241
tonnes (14%) of mixed woste.was collected by
specialised recyclers.

This compares to FY20 where we separated
and directly recycled 10,200 tonnes {88%) of
materials and sent away a further 1,517 tonnes
{12%) of mixed waste to specialised recyclers.

The recycling rate has stoyed broadly
consistent year on year but the absclute
quantity of waste produced and recycled this
year is down significantly due to store closures
because of the Covid-19 pandemic. There was
therefore much less stock coming into the
warehouse and no waste coming back from
stores during the country-wide lockdowns.

Praduct Design And Sourcing

We continue to explore ways to enhance the
sustainability of our products. Carrying out a
*sustainability check’ is now part of the design
and procuremant process for all new products
to ensure we use the most sustainable materials
and precesses for each line. We review
continuity products annually and refresh them
with o more sustainable materiol or process, if o
viable option exists.

For FY22, our biggest sustainability project w
be to improve the sustainability of the products
we offer, looking at water use, chemicals,

carbon emissions and row material production.

As part of this, we dre a founding signatory
of WRAP's {Waste and Resources Action
Programme) Textiles 2030 initiative, which

is designed to accelerate the fashion and
textiles industry’s shift towards circularity and
system change. Signatories will collaborate on
carbon, water and circular textile targets, and
contribute to natienal policy discussions. To
help move our product improvements forward
WRAP provides a scenario planning tool which
calculates environmental impacts such as water
and energy saving benefits from swapping
materials or processes. We continue to look
for more recycled content in our products and
request a recycled content or reduced impact
option with every proposal from sappliers,

Improving Our Puckaging

‘We continue te work to reduce the volume of
packaging for our products and to increase
the recycled content of the packaging that
remains, For example, we use an auto-boxing
machine that cuts boxes to the exact size
required, substantially reducing the guantity
of card used. We continue to use 100%
recycled card for all our own-brand shoeboxes
and all our card for packaging or labelling

is non-laminated, for easier recycling and
plastic reduction. This required substantial
research and development to get the desired
guality and appearance, while minimising the
environmental impact.

The Group has joined the On-Pack Recycling
Labei [OPRL) scheme, which ensures UK-wide
adoption of a simple recycling symboal system,
to help increase recycling rates. All the
packaging we have produced since April 2020
has an.OPRL symbel assigned and printed on it,
to help consumers dispose of it at home within
the correct waste streom.

QOur new Sports Direct bag for life which is
coming in Summer 2021 will have 85% recycled
content, up from 70% recycled content in FY20.
We are also introducing standard Sports Direct
carrier bags made from 100% recycled material
(80% post-consumer waste and 20% factory
waste] later in the year and all fascias with a
plastic carrier will have at least 30% recycled
content. Our plans to roll out these recycled
in-store bags have been delayed, as we use up
old stock due to store closures because of the
Covid-19 pandemic,

)
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Frasers stores will have an FSC certified
recycled grass paper bag.

Our in-store hangers are now made from more
than 80% recycled poiypropylene, replacing the
virgin plastic hangers we previously used.

Reducing Water Use

Reducing water usage in our estate is a focus
for us. We have begun installing water-saving
Hippo blocks in toilets in our stores and at

the Shirebrook distribution centre, These save
around three litres of water per flush. The
installation in stores is taking place in line with
the annual mointenance rota, meaning all
stores will be covered within 12 months,

Other Environmental Initiatives

The Group is involved in a number of other
environmental initiatives.

Group subsidiary Gul Watersports has teamed
up with the Big Blue Ocean Cleanup (BBOC)
te be its official partner for the next 3 years.
The BBOC mission is to drive positive change
towards clean aceans that support all marine
wildlife and sustainable living.

The Eco boat operated by BBOC will be
conducting one of the biggest microplastic
surveys in the world by caltecting vital
microplostic data using manta nets. The
open-source data collected will be availuble to
Governments and groups acress the world to
use for policy change. The team will afso rescue
marine animals that have become trapped in
pollution.

Another huge part of BBOC's work is beach and
river clean ups. |t provides equipment to help
volunteers clear beaches and rivers around the
world.

For Earth Day 2021, we partnered with Trees for
Cities to support its work planting trees in urban
communities and promote the health benefits
of spending time outdoors.

Frasers’ denation allowed it to plant 3,500 trees
on our behalf and supported work to improve
air quality in school playgrounds, as well as
teaching children to grow vegetables whilst
learning about where their food comes from.

Printed on Steinoeis 100%% Recycled and Carbon Gaptured through the Woodland Trusgt, helping to croate new Briish woadiand across the UK
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GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS AND
ENERGY CONSUMPTION :

REPQRTING PERHOD 1 May 2020 to 10 Apnl 201
BASELINE YEAR® FYa0
GCOMSDLIDATION
APPROACH Fingagak contrad
Al enties and focilbies globally, either ownad or under tinonciol control, were inchuded, Enrssvary T ar C nag ant
BOUMDARY SUMMARY  relngesateon umts ate mxciuded due te the cout of utd calkectan Thess are expected to be o neglgible percentage of scepe 1

amissions

Orgarusations dre toalign to tnonciol years, to o comparabibty and <o
linanrial parformance SECR raporing hos been prepared on an annuak basie to 10 Aprl 2071 w
year ol frasers Group The dilference i emissions of these date ranges 1s expected to be negl

le

wstency of iformation wih
ahgned waths firanc at

EMISSION FACTOR DATA
SOURCE

DEFRA GHG armission factors covanng the penod July 2019 - suy 2020 hove Lean used for oll emissiont sourcas

ASSERAMENT Tha faotprint 1= calculated in accordance with the Graenhause Gus IGHG! Pratacol and Envranmantas keporting Guidelnes,
Y spchxing SECR guidante Scope 3 repartng uses the morket-based alculution appres
ESTIMATIONS 26% af the ensrgy data (Wh) and 2 3% of the amssons duta vsed 1o prepare thete rusults 18 bused on estimtions ar
extrapolohons o5 Lulculated by o thid-porty provider
INTENSITY RATIO Emissians par fm of reverue

n Bue te the impact of Covid19, the base year chasen for ail future SECR cavmgarsans 18 ¥Y20 fist Moy 2019 to 30th Apr 2024 For the end af Murch

and ot &F Apeil 2020, thera s now Gnalytis ovatable for the ervissions moverments driven by the

and pred.

Erence to Carohavius Restotions gukiante
| etaul’. samDving prenous estimates

The Group has engaged a third-party provider
to assess emissions and energy consumption for
the pericds reported in these results.

Scope 1 GHG emissions comprise the emissions
associated with the combustion of fuels and

ely Uie ciosure of

of commercial fuels, using published emission
factors for the Well to Tank (WTT) impact

and additionally from metered electricity
consumption and published emission factors for
the Transmission & Distribution (T&D) aspect of
the delivered utifities.

operation of any facility by the Group, Scope

2 GHG ermissions comprise the emissions
associated with electricity consumption by

the Group, as wel as emissions from any
generated efectricity. The non-UK emission
factors ore those published by JEA and specific
to each country. Scope 3 GHG emissions are
calculated based on the purchased quantities

CO2 equivalent factars are used, which ensures
we have reported on all of the emission sources
required under the Companies Act 2006
Regulations. Con~-surnption considers all
Group companies and ne adjustments have
been made te comparatives for priar periods
for subsidiaries newly acquired in the period,

The Group's CO2 emissions and supporting metrics are detoiled in the following table:

Year [a4:] 0
Ssape | £O2 ermisaions onnest 19129 et
Scope 2 C07 emissions finorket bosed) ftonnest 28760 AB1ad
Scope 3 CO7 emissions Rannes) 6359 7550
Total Scope 1,2 and 3 emussions |nnes| 49798 9¢ Ayu
£ ermissioas tonnesl / fm (uroser, ) ira
CO2 emissinns vs Turnevar index (70740 = 100} . 951 1an

65.49% of Scope 1 and 2 emissions relate to the UK and UK offshore areas.

The table below shows the Group's energy consumption, Scope 1 consumption relates to the

consumption of fuet ond consumption from fa
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1 Stenbeis 100% Rocyals

es operated by the Group.

Bogn VAie
W VG

This excludes consumption from refrigerants
due to the cost of data collection, although
this is expected to be negligible in comparison
to the Group's tetal consumption. Scope 2
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consumption is based on the amounts of
electricity purchased through the period, as well
as heat and steam the Group generates for its
OWN use,

P Frio

s gongmpron kW 55479524 104,337,857
Sur pe 2 - ansurmpnor kD 205,561,486 75,648,954
Toal S npe 1 and 2 cansumptons fodh] 301,130,020 377956 881

The Covid-19 pandemic¢ hos brought about significant emission reductions,

The table below shows energy consumption for the UK and UK offshore areas only:

Year laci) FYI0
Seope 1 Lunsumation (WAh) 73,342,651 BREETAT
Stoud 2 constmplion Wh! 141507624 195,475,533
Totol Scope 1 and 7 consumpts kwhy FOBAS2IE 376,143,250

Frasers Group is committed to responsible
energy management and sustoinobility, which it
practises throughout the organisation where it
is cost effective to do so.

During the reporting year the Group has
implemented the following energy and carbon
efficiencies across the organisation to ensure
that energy consumption and ossociated
ermissions are reduced:

Each Retatl site in the UK has been set a
weekly target for consumption. The actuol
consumption versus the Target has been
reported on a weekly basis using the half
hourly data from the previous week, in

o league table format. Any Retait sites
cansurning mare than target have been
contacted and given guidance on actions to
take to brirng consumption down. This has
been part of o wider project to influence
behaviour, by comfnunicating the process
of controlling Retail consumption, on a
daily basis. When Frasers Group returns to
“husiness as usucl’, there is an indication
and expectation that cansumption wil} hove
reduced by 10% due to the actions taken
during the previous 12 months versus the
FY20 baseline;

We continue to upgrade fluorescent lighting
to LED. For the Retail sites alf opportunities
to replace lighting during o refit were taken
and the resulting consumption has reduced
by ¢. 52% for thase sites that have had o full

refit of lighting to the [atest LED technology.

- The number of faoce-to-foce meetings with
colleagues and suppliers has reduced
through the increased availability of video
conferencing thereby reducing the amournt
of travel and further reducing Frasers Group
corbon footprint. ©

- We are Implementing mini Building
Management Systems that are highly
flexible based on common industry
standards and provide excellent energy
savings;

- We are using additional submetering within
sites and properties ta improve real time
energy consumption and promote granular
in-depth review of facility energy data;

- Heating and Ventilations systems are
undergoing trials thot include retrofits ta
improve energy efficiency; and .

- We are implementing voltage optimisation
projects that provide cost effective solutions
and deliver optimised supply voltage.

A number of other energy efficiency measures
are under consideration for implementation
during the next reporting year.



FRASERS GROUP PLC - ANNUAL REPORT - 2021

Environmental Policy

During FY21, we defined an environmental
policy for the Group. This sets out our
commitments to:

+ have robust and transparent reporting anc
governance of environmental issues

+  minimise our carbon dioxide emissions

+ reduce waste, so we meet our target of zero
waste to landfill by 2025

«  consider the environmental impact of cur
supply chain, and

= work with partners to enhance
environmental performance.

The policy will be shared with suppliers aiong
‘with our regular terms and provided to new
celleagues upon induction.

Our newly formed Steering Group will ensure
the policy is implemented as port of business
as usual. This will be supported through regular
tracking and reparting of targets and with

the engagement of a third party energy and
carbon reduction specialist.

The policy is further supported by our
commitment to initiatives such as WRAP's
‘Textiles 2030 which obliges us to measure and
raport our progress annually.
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FRASERS GROUP

SECTION 172 STATEMENT

The Directors confirm that, during FY21 they
consider they have acted in good faith, and in
the way that would be most likely to promote
the success of the Group for the benefit of

its members as a whole having regard to the
stokeholders ond matters set out in s172{1){a}({f)
of the Companies Act 2006.

-9

This statement sets out the matters considered
under each subsection of $172{1} {a)-(F) and
provides cross references to where further
information can be found in the Annual Report.
Details of some key decisions taken have also
been provided.

The Likely Conseq ©Of Any Decision In
The Long Term

The Directors are mindful that any decisions
they make now can, have possibie long-
term consequences. The Directors take into
consideration the strategy, purpose, values
and culture when making decisions. During
the year the Directors have made decisions
based on Board papers, presentations from
senior executives, information documents,
and discussions with external advisors.

Principal Decision/Steps: During the year
the Board commissioned o report on the
culture of the Group. The outcome from
this was three key principles, set out below,
which will enhance the Group's journey

in enabling colleagues to implement the
elevation strategy long term.

= Own it and back yourself;

= Don't hesitate ond act with purpose.

= Think without limits and take the team
with you;

€. The Interests OFf The Company's Employess
Details of initictives and engagement with

our colleagues is set out in the Our peopile
repart and the Directors’ Report.

Principal Decision/Steps: During the year
the Group introduced the Fearless 1000

g o credate new Botsh woodiand across the UK

Bonus scheme which was approved by
shareholders at the 2020 AGM and the
Frasers Group Elevation Programme to
attract the best talent to the Group.

The Need To Foster The Company’s Business
Relationships With Suppliers, Customers
And Others

Details of the Company's business
relationships with suppliers, customers,
regulators and jenders are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report.

Principal Decision/Steps: The Directors have
worked closely with suppliers and banks
during the Covid-19 pandemic to ensure
thot the Group remains in the best possible
financial situation. The Elevation No Limits
strotegy targets stronger relationships with
key brand partners, and this continues to
be a priority. Enhancements were made

to the retail websites to enhance customer
experience, due to the higher demand

for online purchases during the Covid-19
pandemic,

The Impact Of The C y's Opercations

On The Community And The Environment

The ESG report details of the initiatives we
have undertaken in sustainability and the
community.

P al Decision/Steps: During the year
discounts worth approximately £25 million
were offered to NHS staff working in our
locaf communities to recognise their
contribution in the Covid-19 pandemic. A
network of sustainability champions has
been set up across the business together
with a steering group which sets the ESG
strategy and monitors progress. The Board
has also adopted an Environmental Policy

" duririg the year.
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£, The Desirability Of The Company
Maintaining A Reputation Fer High
Stondards Of Business Conduct

At cll times we endeavour to adhere to
strict corporate governance standards.

An external Board evaluation was carried
out during the year covering all aspects

of Beard and committee perfarmance,
Recammendations will be reviewed and
appropriate action plens put in place, The
Non-executive Workforce Director is another
method by which we ore implementing
good corparcte governance. Cally Price
brings colleogue queries and concerns
directly to the boardroom for action by the
Board. Further details can be found within
the Workers Representative Report.

Principal Decision/Steps: Although an
external review is only required once every
three years, the Board has decided to
undertake yeariy external reviews. External
advisors have been appointed to review the
Group's policies and ensure they reffect best
practice. Further details can be found within
the External Baard Review,
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The Need To Act Fairly As Between Members
Of The Company

All members of the Company hold ordinary
shores which attach the same rights and
benefits. Shareholders are able to raise

any queries through the Investors Relctions
email address, All investor presentations are
made available on the Group website for
sharehalders te access. The AGM aflows an
opportunity for all shareholders to attend
and ask questions of the Board. Following
the lifting of Covid-19 restrictions we intend
to revert to an in-person AGM this year. This
will allow sharehalders to meet face-to-face
with Directors.

ipal Decision/Steps: The re-
commencement of the share buyback

" programme has benefited all shareholders

by increasing the percentage ownership
held by each investor by reducing the total
nurmber of outstanding shares

FRASERS GROURPR

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Owr Risk Management Framework

The Board has overall responsibility for the effectiveness of the Group's systemns of risk management
and internal control. These systems are intended to manage, rather than eliminate, the risk of failing
to achieve business objectives, and they provide reasoneable but not absolute assurance against the
risk of material misstatement or financial {oss.

The Audit Committee supports the Board E:.J‘&mn:nﬂm:m_ its responsibilities, under a delegated
authority. The Chief Executive Officer has overall accountability for managing risks in the business,
and his direct reports are accountable to him for effectively managing those risks within their remits.

The Group's risk monagement framewark comprises a top-down and bottom-up approach to risk
identification, evaluation and mitigation. Principol risks are discussed and agreed by executive
management through the Compliance & Risk Group and by the Audit Committee on behalf of the
Board. The Board and/or its sub-committees discuss each principal risk at least annually and recefve
presentations and detailed risk reporting from risk owners on a cyclical basis. Risk owners re-evaluate
principai risks in advance of each Compliance & Risk Group discussion. Any changes are reported to
the Audit Committee, os part of pur Group Risks Profile reporting.

The Compliance & Risk Group provides connectivity between executive management's
jes for risk management and internal controls and the oversight roles of the Audit

Committee and the Board, It facilitates cross-functional discussion and collabaration across principal
risk areas ond matters of internal control. It also facititates horizon scanning and emerging risk
discussions, challenges the approprioteness of internal controls and progresses their effectiveness.
The Compliance & Risk Group's activities are reported formally to the Audit Committee. Qur Steering
Groups will also report formally to the Comptiance & Risk Group, completing our governance
structure.

facioss
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FRASERS GROUP

Our approach to risk management:

RISK MAMAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

Boord | Audit Committee | Sub-committees

ca & Risk Group
1ng Groups

THARE LIKES MODEL

Fiast line. Second line Thirdilna

Manugament

CONTROLY

MONITCRING &
ASSURANCE

copatics & waluation

COMMUNICATION
& TRAINING

PROCEDURES,
STANDARDS
& GUIDARCE

Principal risks are cascaded to operational
teams and central functions for discussion and
action on risk mitigations, as part of operational
risk manoagement activity. Operational risk
management facilitates the elevation of risks
to the Caompliance & Risk Group, for onward
reporting to the Audit Committee. We continue
to elevate our operational risk activity as part
of bur fivk management roadmap Yor F22 and
wa have put plans in place to focus on this in
the next period.

3
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ASSURANCE

During the period, the Audit Committee, on
behalf of the Board, has:

= undertaken a full review of the Group risk
register;

* received reports on the continued
development of the risk management
framework, including risk appetite
parameters ond internal controls definitions;
and

= received risk owner presentations, detailed
risk reporting and summary update
reporting on the Group's principal risks
profile, for further discussion and challenge.

The key elements of the Group's internal control
framewark are monitored throughout the year
in this way.

Board Review

The work of the Audit Committee and the
Internal Audit & Risk team has been presented
to the Board for discussion. The Board is
satisfied that the Group's systems of risk
management and internal control {including
finoncial, operational and compliance controls)
have operated effectively during the financial
period, up to and including the date of this
report, and no significant failings of internal
control were identified during the period.

The Group is committed to continuously
improving its risk management framework and
methodology, in line with regulatory standards
and the Group's elevation strategy.

Assesament Of Principal Risks

‘We have carried out a robust assessment of
our principal and emerging risks in the period
and our principal risks profile remained largely
unchanged through the period.

We have continued to respond well to

the challenges presented by the Covid-19
pandemic. The effects of the pandemic on
economies and society at large have been more
prominent than expected. Whilst mandated
restrictions are currently easing, travel is
opening up and the vaccination programme

in the UK continues at pace, new variants
continue to emerge. Uncertainty therefore
remains over the period of time needed to bring
the Covid-19 pandemic under control. As o
result, this risk remains a key focus for us,

During the period, we have continued to
respend to the pandemic by

+ prioritising the safety of our people and
customners;

= re-aligning our strategic response, to ensure
we are able to serve our customers;

= evaluating the strength of our business on
all levels; and

= optimising opportunities for growth and
investment, to ensure we are well placed for
the period of economic recovery.

As a result, our operating performance has
remained robust. This risk has therefore been
evaluated through the normal course of
reporting and in our viability statement, rather
than through separate risk disclosure in this
period.

Brexit has presented some challenges to the
Group in respect of administration, planning
and logistics, but we do not currently consider
these to be material. Accordingly, our
evaluation of Brexit risk has reduced since

the prior period, though this remains part of
our ongoing menitoring of broader global
macroecenomic conditions, events or political
factors. We will continue to monitor the full
effect of implementing the UK-EU Trade and
Co-operation Agreement and the development
of the trading relationship with the EU.

Prited on Steinbeis 1007 Roecycled and Carban Capturad through the Woodland Trust. helping o creale new Baitish woodlund across the UK

Environmental, social and governance

{ESG) issues feature more prominently in

our disclosures. Climate and sustainability
risks have remained an integral part of

our commitment to ESG and our business
operations, but have previously been
incorporated intg our broader disclosures

on corporate and sockal responsibility. With
increasing regulation and in recognition of the
potential significance of this ermerging risk to
the Group in the future, we have enhanced our
reporting and have included this as ¢ separate
principal risk for greater transparency.

The following risks and mitigations are an
extract from our principal risks profile and are
not presented in any order of priority. Principal
risks are those which we consider pose a threat
to our business model, future performance,
prospects or reputaotion.

Reference To Strategy

Building excellent
relationships with the world's
best brands

Elevation in our digital
offering

Elevation of our physical
stores

Enablers : People, Training,
Brand, Communication,
Systems, Automation, Data

Risk Trends

* Increasing

=3 Unchanged

+ Decreasing
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PRINCIPAL RISKS

The Group continues to deliver its elevation strateqy, which focuses on the brands we sell, our digital
offering and our physicol stores. Our vision is to become the elevoted multi-channel plotform for
sports, premium ond luxury brands.

We continue to deliver well ogainst all aspects of our strategy, during a challenging operating peried.

RISk CONTROLS AND

—  The Boand i serof tnanogement sel and ugite the Group strategy and undeftake Doth regular and dataded
Bl reviews

- Our Group is dwarse it berms of geogrophy and product and axecutive monogemant 15 gble to respond 10 strotegic
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strategy afficently, -
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wrang strategy, which
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- Effectie management of oUs propity pOH
wa m
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ongong b
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Third-porty Brand Relationships, Key Suppliers And Supply Chain In:nms:.o..—

Key brands, brond suppliers and major manufacturers are central to our business and elevation
strategy, Our strategic acquisitions and business model wim to bring attractive brands into the
Group, to support custorner demand and chaice.

OCur supply chain is international and is subject to stringent manogement of supply chain logistics
and working capital, to ensure the flow of product in jine with our strategic ambition.

We have continued to strengthen our brand ond supplier relationships during the pandemic,
demanstrating the strenoth of our business model and strategic performance. This also supports new
product availability, in line with our efevation ambitions.

RISK CONTROLY

= The Groug hos & polcy of orging close lang-term commercial ralationsirms wich ure undergmned by oun
commitment to prasuct. elevotion ond customer excellence

s with key brond pareers and s 1S o 00goINg Anchty
Dedichted 18latonship partners and pracurément gnd commers
engagement

wa foil 1o manage and - The elevation strategy targets forging strunger rakm

eams supgoet truby mtegruted suopl

- The Group utilises two leading 2upply Lhain Lompanes to procure much of s own-brsnd products A Groupowned
supply chaim entity further diversfigs nsh

- Durstock levels supported our ability to trashe through the Covid-19 pandemic and we hove contiued to serure
angomy suprlies, dus to tha depth and breagth of o.r commercia refitionships

- Suppliers s1Un-up 1o e Group's Suppher Mopual, winch enabies us to maniar und benchmuark supplier perfarmancs
- Strong service level agresm

1o seLunt The nght
ts for our busmess

s ore w ploce, i network
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Influenear pornerships ond brand cafigbermhnns ogwde cananunities for swn brund growth

- Cleatrenic g ind
supplier engagament through o dud

ravis aur wragass tlfcency thigugh the cammercsol cycle and enhanes
ted suppher partal
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Tracsury, Liquidity And Credit Risks

-

The global pandemic and Brexit are core aspects of this risk in the period under review. We alsc
menitor global and national political change on an ongoing basis, for impacts on cur strategy and
supplier networks. These are external events and we respond well to thase factors we can control,
The strength of our business and our performence enables us to absorb the broader indirect :
economic impacts associated with this risk, as we have a proven track record of responding with
agility to pricfitise trade and performance anc maximise opportunity.

Short, medium and long-term funding arrangements support our business operations and our ability
to meet our financial obligations and deliver our strategic ambitions,

Funding availability remains & principal risk but the overall risk level trended downwards towards the
end of the period, based on our trading performance and strotegic delivery through the height of
the pandemic. Whilst revenue has been impacted by the Covid-19 pandemic and prolonged periods
of mandated store closures, we have increased our e-commerce trade, supporting our liquidity
pasition. We are also prioritising renewal of our working capital facility which matures in November
2022, through strong funder diologue and engagement, supported by the Group's robust business
performance.

We are committed to escalating our elevation programme and building on opportunities that
support product and brand availability through our digital offering and physical stores.

RISK CONTROLS AND MITIGATIONS

. Interest rate risks arise on net borrowings. Foreign exchange risk arises from international trading,
future sales and purchases in foreign currency, loans to non-UK subsidiaries and unhedged options
to buy or sell foreign currency. Credit risk arises primarily through our Wholesale and Licensing
customers and there is some level of counter-party risk exposure, although we do not consider this to

Pandumic:

- W have impleinented effactiva rast onss procedures, with Board ove

t und prontisation
- Ourmandatad sofe working and opeiating standords priontse colleugue and customer wellbeing

We deployed new safety requiramerts quickly, with sxternal validation and ongamg evaluation, review ond

monitanng be material.
- W mode un ogile sw tg focus or e-comimerce delivery, as aresull of mandatad penods of lochd owin
Failurz to anticipare, - westirints i our en-lioe copobility and customer sernce delivery support our accalerated growth n e-commares RisK CONTROLS AND MITIGATIONS
= evaluate or oppropriataly -
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See Note 3 to the Financial Statements for further detait on financial risk management.

and acress the UK
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Customer

Custormer engagement and retention is vital to our Group, whether through our physical stores or
online. Harnessing customer value and loyalty across the Group is multi-faceted but underpinmed by
our product offerings, price and service.

We have enhanced our e-commaerce offering and significantly improved our customer expenence
through our elevation strategy, as well as our customer service and the underlying platform for our
digital business.

We continue’to strengthen our elevation through our new concent stores and flagship multi-fascia
offerings.

RISK CONTROLS AND MITIGATIONS

- Ongang monterng af customer insights and feadback, oo competitar and inarket trends, enables us 1a respang
Fanfus to anticmots and and cirre Gur custooer-led strategy
respand to customar
needs o changes m
consurner trepds ond
apendng, or tadrive

- Cantinued investinent m our cuskomer servity affernihg, syskers dnd commurncobian anabhes us to understond an-
Simireove GUE Gustomer experence, both anline e tirsugh the development of our store cperoting nwdel, su
by 8w ia-store technalogy

- W contimue I develop ond invest n our onling offenng, cupeuity and capebilty, nglding Lur uten
capnbiities aha payment Glal totns, fur on imMproves custarner expereice

- Turgebed sucial media ond dighol marketing Brogrammes suppoart our + ustomer geoups wid bronding

FePLLNGN TN strotegic
ambition

- Weusuin

wcer engagement LG roise brond and product qworeness.

- Ongoing enhancerment of our ESG ogehdos fupparts our stategy, In iine with our customer focus

Legal And Regulatory Compliance

m

The legal and regulatory landscape in which we operote is constantly changing, Qur commitment to
delvering robustly on our oblgations is central ta our culture and values.

We have increased our assessment of this risk in the period, based on factors which'continue
to impact the legal and regulatory landscape in which we operate. We are canservative in our
assessments and are confident in our ability to mancge these risks effectively. The trend we
are reporting recognises anticipated changes through our horizon scanning and emerging risks
evalugtions, until we have implemented our response plans.

RisK CONTRCLS AND MITIGATIONS

- Ourexpenenced and edk in-hause iegal team pravreles cars sernces an advice us welt 05 pversight of sew and
emerging lrgisiative and regulntory requirements

Extarnol ndvisers proveda agh
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may ecou which results - Keylegisiatwe and requlatery comphance nsk arens ore priontised and inchude ol Government-mandored

1 o Tegal or reguiatory requiremants in responee to the Covid-1g pandemi., the Group's wtellectedh properly nants, the Listing Rules, deata
baeach and which Protecttn and health and safety -
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inay resalt m itigation = Wa revibw the approuch ond content of mondutary induchion. palirias and angoing traiming nefoss relevant areos, fr

all colieagues.

- Arevew of our frumawerk for cngoing monitarng of comphonce Progeess

- The Legel team s 6 key contritrutar ond adviser (o the Comphome & Risk Group
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Technology Capability And Infrastructure Renewa) i '

I

We operate in a competitive and challenging customer-focused market. Our systems need to be
at the forefront of customer service excellence and support our end-to-end supply chain logistics.
Available technology is constantly evelving and managing changes and transformation in this
environment is a key focus

We have invested heavily in this period in our automation, plotforms and delivery capab
support on erhanced enline and in-store customer axperience, and our business resilience.

ies, which

Our roadmap includes improved technology and information security capak s, aligned to our
business continuity and IT disaster recovery review, which continues to strengthen our controls.

RISK CONTROLS AHD MITIGATIONS
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logies across our businesses, o5 they ore introduced

we use of existing technologies and new

ngthening our mlormation securiy capabimty as enhanced our transfor

v and the robustness of our second

atian programme, our strategn.

cowe il bacrons Hhes LK
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Cyber Risks, Data Loss And Data Privacy

. -
Attempts to attack or gain unauthorised access to systems ond data are becoming increasingly

sophisticated. Our systems are critical to our operations and trading. We have fegal and commercial
obligations to protect the security and privacy of the data we hold and process.

We combine the continuad investment in our digital offering, dutomation and technolegical change
with the strengthening of our people and in-house capabitities, to deliver on our risk mitjgations.

RESK CONTROLS AND MITIGATION3

-~ Weilawe strategies ond pol

3 1n ploce to support our IF sucunty

-~ Wecollaborats closely with our
cupabilities Copoiiity dulivery, se
strotegne partiurshys ter content d,

ustry leading serw e purtoers, wha provide cors sarvices heyond our m-house
wty and sovings are care drivers, Qur partners include Microsoft, s well os other
wery network suppart for our website and cyber mitigutions

A cyber-uttuck moy result
in data toss andfr denial
af servica, Impactin
our business fina
thraugh fines and

- Protection tooks, including encryticn, and detection tuals are in piace to suppart eflective monianng ond reparting,
and ars ravewed ragularly

iy - Wehaves

anced our information secunty copabiities and aur |

- We contuct

annual extermol review of our cyber posture and penatration testing acqoss Group
- Strengthening our dota protection i andate,
i Lo mitigate dato protect

penalties or lost trods, as

hohang our paloes and pracadures oad ongoing mternol troiming
ks und suppert delivery of aur change and transformal ian programme

Failure to adequately - Weiave an engang programime of secunty and privacy monitanng acrass our Group ond extendec antarprise
protect the duta we held
and procass may res
gl or regulatory braoc
o33 of trust ond finan
o053 -

> Out in-house Lagal tearn supports secand-line moritoning and reparting of legrlotive comy

~  We maka 0ngoimg Investmants in Ju-d pratection aining and commurnic olions f
our oversans apsratiens|

Incol legislative equatents in

and retam Data Fratection Impact Assessments

= Our poley frameveark 1y subyect (o argoing review and rewsion, with axternal support and i
agenda

e With our governance

- Benchmurk stondards form past of aur controls impravement activity

t And Incident R

£ P

Business Corntinuity M

our business operations. There is an ongeing and increasing reliance on the availability of technology
across our Group. We need the ability to respond to incidents effectively and on a timely basis, to
ensure continuity of operations and trade.

L RISK - CCNTROLY AND MITIGATIONS

- Qur Busmess Continuty nnd |1 Disaster Recovery plans are undergoing mview, revision and besting with external

Failura to respond N support

effactively or on @ timaly

.= Our govamance strurture suppurts ugla mcident response, with Clhear rotes, respons ibibties und reporting hnes

= Annunl exter
3
- inkernal ond sxternal comim

1 teviow and chollange of ouf Processes sUPports uur ta cont

- Omy supparts goad practice and kiicwlerige sharg for tontmuity

Jo§: revee e or huve - s, murketing ond PR cupob) & nteqral 1o gu mrident response g

+ a reputational lmpact - Hecovery priontisotion of 1T systems onc processes larms part of our business impact analysrs reviaw

bated o our cupa
and cammunicatior

- We huve tecovary bime

o narmal service functons

- Critical recovery copobilities olign to oy msuronce cover, appeble und controls
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Group Entities And Extended Enterprise

Qur Group is complex and extensive and includes oversight of our third-party and extended
enterprise partners and suppliers. We are committed to ensuring we have the right levels of
transparency, consistency and monitering across our Group, to enable effective oversight in line with
our values and culture.

.

We have an appetite for acquisitions as part of our strategic growth agenda. Our integration
strategy is being formalised and captures lessons learned to support ongoing efficient and effective
acquisition engagement and management,

RisK - CONTROLS AND MITIGATIONS

- Transparency acigss aur Group anc extended enterprisa ond 11s chaages 1s an angomg prigvity It 1s subject ta regular
review ond distussion and forms pant of our ask monagement framework and reporbing

- Ovamal
our Group entities, assurance
partnars and suppliers,
wha form pont of aur

axtended enterprise,

may result In .
reputationnl or legal - Govemance ond monite
complignze issues

rotes and responsibibities acrats aur Graup structure suppart rsk-based functional menitaring and

- We maintain strev

in our supply Lhawn manogemant and suppliar and purtie relatianships
- Ruskand cantrols repor

processes lor confirrmatron of com|

he Group s subject Lo rontinueus imp L ncluding self-
ncu with ey palicies, rontrals and other Graup requiremments

19 ore wn ploce for new investmants, ccou
The Group Interaal Audit tearn s devel
ocross the Group

s

d appartumbies

third-line m.

aring to suppart the broader internaf controls framewark

t And Successi

Paople, Talent-M:

Owr business benefits frorm strength and depth of knowledge, talent and experience, which has
long been pivotal to its success. Retaining and protecting this talent, providing for succession and
an ongoing pregramme of attracting and developing new talent is core to our people plons and
objectives,

We have made significant progress in the period in this area and when new initiatives hove time to
embed, we expect to see this risk trend decrease.

13K CONTROLY AND MIT

- Cantinued development of strang trainee management and apprenticesinps programmes supports our fulure tolent
ppeline

- We recant extemolly ta bl capability gups necessary lar aur growth ond transformation.
W priar

expanence

e mternnl development and promahion wherever possible and actively encournge cress-functional

€ to attmoct, retain ar
devulop talant across our
business and lnplamant
affective succussion

- Anew apprassol system hos baen introduced with clear axpactol
and Broader succession plunning

- Ak

- An

Tt pertormonce, oppartunities for developmant

far Peaple Fromework supporting perloimance ond talent recogritian v now i ploce across the Group
ternal racrust

nt mandate operates, with improvernents m onboording and opy

cunt tracking.

- Wa have created core pnnciples and o colleogue walue proposihicn that share the Group's values aivd amintians for
aur peaple, with an elevated and re-energised webste o ottract talent

- Anew recognition and banus structure has been lo
ndopt our core principles

hed, recognising and rewarding peopie wha are feorless and

- The Workars” Reprasentativa is a Boord Diractor who supports communcabion chonnels and gwes cur people o vencs
at the highest level in our business

- We have a strang strolegy tor diversity «

on ond people suppert

mea Bunshowaodiand across the UK
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Environmental, Social & Governance (ESG}

-

Tackling climote change is a global imperative and the resulting increase in regulation is a key focus

area for the Group.

Measures which support climate change initiatives and aur wider ESG agendo continue to be key

components of our strategic direction, supoorting sustaina
consumer choice,

y, the broader social ogenda and

CONTROLS AND

Foulure by mosmise
G posien ond vilve
reloting to ESG focters
Imaght tmpact aur bty
1o qchrayve gur growth,
velua, reputetion and
strategec ambntions

W hiove Boivd-level ¢ngauement ond an Execulive shensor of our £56G agenda

d the cantnued d of ur sustanainhty steategy

The Sustainghility $keerng Graup broadens our netl

D dieated op:
wpply chon

We have Sustoinability Charmpions vs piace, to Motwhse cross-Gloua and cross-funchianal suppon

W have appanted o Group Corbion Reductian Manager

the laskiorce Jar Chmatsermloled Fuianodl Disclosures (TCFD
We hove e ervironmental pahcy in place, which hos been renawed ond approved by the Boord

wnaf leadershin cantuksss 1 Onve project and pragomme mibiotives ond engagement through ue

We cre avalualing our readinets far comphonce w

We are reviewing o suppher contral framework 1o coplure commitments from Suppiers ivg brands art ESG molfsss
Wie hove erergy efhciency targets, monitorng and mensurerment, with extermol speciol staupporg

We continue to launch 1anges and produtts that dive sesponsible ond Sustainable g Chasing dewinng

Qur community inbiotives support the provision el 1iee sportswear ta orgarussbons ond schoois
Review and ungaing development ol the Group Code sf Cunduct supports aul values. colleague engugereat una

<alleugue ond supplier anbantding

Property

kb

This is a new risk added during FY21. The retail Jandscape continuas to see significant changes with
a high volume of retoil properties vacant due to the high level of retail insolvencies and retailers
moving oway from bricks and mortar te e-commerce due to the shift in consumer behavicur, which
has further been increased due to the Covid-12 pandemic.

As a result of the above, both the value and value in use of ret

RIsK

properties has declined.

CONTROLE AND MITIGATIONS

There 15 a finenciot

w1k 10 the Graup Wl qur
commitment tc o lense ar
the value of our freehold
properties deting whare
high votancy rotes oke
thie arec ess attractve 1oy
ol consumers and dive
less footiullta our stores

For new stare leuses we achvely engage ond work with sur Tgndlords [ support rents that are Hesble and Inked ta
Store tusnover

We gun to align rent free packages and coptol centnbutons fra rds 10 reflect the elevated siu
As units became mere uffordable we Took ta move nta mare prime locations with mere Tuodalt o oo

reslmvtes

We ore aetively reviewing our laase port andlords

stares

1o oml losking o reneggnate w 11T ON £ U et ng

The freghold estat: 1s actively manated by the propenty beam and we will lock to dispose of stes wh i ons nat

g with the Groups strategy

Mike Ashiey

Chief Executive on behalf of the beard

5 August 2021
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VIABILITY STATEMENT

The 2018 UK Corporate Gavernance Code
requires the Board to express its view of the
long-term viability of the Group and assess the
Company's prospects, capital management
and ptincipal risks.

Accordingly, the Board reqularly carries out
thorough und robust assessments of the risks,
including stress testing the Group's res
to threats to its business model, strategy,
future performance and liquidity and the

risks identified in the Principal Risks ond
Uncertainties section of this Repart, together
with the steps the Group has taken to mitigate
them. in addition, the Boord regularly reviews
the performance and financing position of the
Group ond its projected funding position and
requirements.

The Group continues ta face the challenges
presented by the Covid-19 pandemic on

the retail industry and changing consumer
behaviour, in addition to supply chain issues
due te both the Covid-12 pandernic and Brexit

The Board chose to review these over o three
and a half year period to 27 October 2024,
This period is partially covered by the Groug's
Revolving Credgit Facility {RCF) up to November
2072 phus two years beyond the maoturity date.
Monagement are currently of the opinion that
any negotiations to replace the current facility
will be concluded well in advance of maturity
with the expectation that o new focility will
have a minimum term of three years. This
period alse best reflects both the short term
budgeting and planning pracess of the Group,
the longer term forecasting and the expected
timescales for strategy implementation. The
process adopted to prepare the model for
assessing the viability of the Group involved

input from o number of departments across the

business to mode! a conservative scenario.

FRASERS GROGUP

I relotion to eoch viobility related risk the
Board has; '

Covid-19

reviewed the impact of the pandemic on the
Group's sales and margin in relation to both
store and online revenue;

forecast and modelled future temporary
full store closures from potential further
lockdowns [two months in FY22 and two
manths in FY23), potential Government
support, foreign exchange exposure and
cost saving initiotives.,

Murket Forces

tested the business model's resilience to
changes in the retail market and responses
to variability in sales and margins;

taken inta account further consumer shift
fram bricks and mortar to onfine; and

forecast the impact of key suppliers going
direct to consumer.

Treasury & Financial Risk

reviewed the RCF and its suitability for
the Group's cash flow cycle and liquidity
requirements;

considered the maturity date of the Group's
RCF and the potential financing opticns
post November 2022; and

reviewed the Group’s hedging strategy.

Brexit

forecast and modelled increased costs
associoted with leoving the £U and impoct
on margin,

Supply Chain

reviewed the arrengements with key
suppliers; and .

forecast and modelled increased costs
associated with such items as container
shortages,
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FRASERS GROUP

Viability has been assessed by performing

ity analysis and stress testing of the
Group's FY22 budget and forecast for the
viability period prepared by management.
This comprised a recent review by the Board
of a number of scenarios in which the Group's
income statement, balance sheet and cash
flow forecasts were stress tested to determine
how much the Group's trade would need to
be affected in order to breach the Group's
covenants (being interest cover and net debt ta
EBITDA ratios). These scenarios included:

« afurther decrease in sales of 10%, margin
remaining consistent with original budget
and direct costs falling in line with sales;

» afurther decrease in sales and margin of
10%, with no change in direct overheads;

+ maximum breakpoint, being breach of
covenants per the Group's RCF (Sales
would need to reduce by o further 20%
than forecast, with no change in direct
overheads)

The Group’s working capital facility is at
E£913.5m [FY20: £913.5m) ovailable until
November 2021 and is not secured against any
of the Group's assets. The Group enacted an

extension option for a further year to November

2022 for £847.5m.

The Group has consistently created a strong
free cash flow from underlying trading and
has on apprepriate hedging strategy to meet
cu-tency risks, There have been no post
balance sheet changes to liquidity.

The impact on the projected cash flow as a
result of the conservative model has been
reviewed, if required management have a
number of mitigating actions which could be
taken such as putting on hold discretionary

spend, liquidating certain assets on the balance

sheet, reduction in labeur and marketing costs.
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Based on its essessment, the Board has a
reasonable expectation that the Group will

be able to continue operating und be able to
es as they fall due for o period
of approximately three and ¢ half years, to the
end of the expected minirmum maturity of new
Group finance arrangements and facilities {the
period of the assessment).

The Vigbility Statement was approved by the
Beard on 5 August 2021, and signed on its
behalf by:

Chris Wootton

Chief Financial Officer

5 August 2021

THE BOARD

DAVID DALY

Non-Executive Chaiz, Chair of the Nomination
Committee

Appointed: 2 Gctober 2017

Committees: Nomination and Remuneration
Committees

Previous roles:

David held a number of positions during

a 30-year international career with Nike,
where his primary focus was the business of
footkall. He started in a sales role in 1986, later
becoming sales director for Nike UK / Ireland.
He retired in 2015 as a Senior Director for
Nike's Club and Federction business, where he
was responsible for the global merchandising
business for all of Nike's leading football clubs.

Presant roles:
David is a Non-executive Director
of Fulham Football Club.

Key skills, exp and contri
Dovid's career at Nike gave him significant
first-hand knowledge of the sporting goods
industry. He has worked in senior roles in
sales, marketing, product development and
general management, giving him a thorough
understanding of consumer trends and
behaviour. He spent 18 years working outside
the UK and this international experience has
proven crucial to the Board, Dovid joined the
Board in October 2017, allowing him to gain a
sound understanding of the business before
being appointed as Chair in October 2018 His
focus has been on improving best practices,
corporate governance, prometing diversity
and driving the elevation strategy. He ensures
the Board functions effectively by facilitating
an open and productive debate and providing
constructive challenge.

v Hntish woudiand across the LK

MIKE ASHLEY
Chief Executive
Appointed: 1982 (founder)

Previous roles:

Mike established the business of the Group
on leaving school in 1982 and was the sole
owner until the Group's listing in March 2007,
He was Executive Deputy Chair prior to being
appointed Chief Executive in September 2016,

Key skills, experience and contribution:

Mike was the founder of the Group and has *
the necessary skills for formulating the vision
and commercial strategy of the Group. With
over 40 years in the sports retail business with
Sports Direct he is invaluoble to the Group.
Mike's knowledge and experience in all areas
of retailing, buying, warehousing and logistics
ensures that he is cruciol to the effective and
efficient running of operations, During the
continuing Covid-19 pandemic his decisive
leadership hos meant the Group has managed
to come out of this crisis in good health and
will be able to take advantage of future
opportunities.
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CHRIS WOOTTON
Chief Financial Officer

Appainted: 12 September 2019

Previous rofes:

Chris worked in the gssuronce practice at PwC
for much of his acceunting career, including
working on large corporates and listed entities.

Koy skills, experi ond contributi

Chris is @ Chartered Accountant. After joining
the Group, he guickly understood the business
and progressed rapidly within the Finance
team. He has helped the Group on its elevotion
path and significantly improved the Finance
team's skills, experience and capabilities.

Chris is a key driver of the Group's accounting
principles, namely being conservative,
consistent and simple

Chris has had to play a key role as part of the

Leodership team in the Group's response ta

the Covid-19 pandemic, including stokeholder

management, and cashflow management and
. forecasting.
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CALLY PRICE

Nen-E ive Workf Director and Workers”
Representative

Appointed: 1 January 2019

Previousroles: .

Cally began her career with Frasers Group os
a casual sales assistant in our Sports Diract
Aberdore store in 2007, -

Present roles:

the Company’s Workers' Representotive ond
Manager of the Cardiff St David's Sports Direct
store.

Key skills, experi and ibuti

With over 12 years' experience with Frosers
Group, starting on the shop floor working under
a zere hours contract, Cally is ideally pfoced
to ensure that the voice of the workforce is ot
the forefront of the Board's discussions and
decision-making. She hos cusrent knowledge
of every aspect of the day-to-day running

of a retail outlet and applies this to her
directorship. Cally is committed to ensuring
full transparency acress the Group and has
control of the workforce company app and
confidenticl hotiine, taking on the responsibility
of answering every colleague personally.

Caolly reports to the Board with worker issues
raised and consistently challenges them

from her unique perspective. Alongside our
colleague development team, Caily has been
committed to ensuring that the wellbeing of
alt Frasers Group collecgues is paramount
during these unprecedented times. Through
our relationship with the Retaii Trust, Caily has
presented company-wide webinars with trained
mental heolth advisors, to offer support and
guidance to our colleagues. When restrictions
have permitted her to do so, Cally olse sits
with Senior Monagement at our Shirebrook
Head Office twice weekly, ensuring that <he is
continuously involved in the running of Frasers
Group Cally has become both the voice and
face of our people, representing all of our
colleagues and praviding @ collective voice
for aii.

RICHARD BOTTOMLEY OBE
Senjor Independent Nor ive Di "
Chair of the Audit Committee

Appointed: 1 October 2018

Committees: Audit and Nomination
Committees

Previous roles:

Richard has aver 25 years' experience working
with listed companies during his time as a
senior partner at KPMG, and he remains a
rmember of the Audit Committee Institute.

Priar to joining the Board, Richard was a
Non-executive Director of Newcastle Building
Society, where he choired the Audit Committee.

Prasent roles:

Richard is Choir of Trustees of the Greggs plc
1978 Retirement and Death Benefits Scheme.
He is also a Non~executive Director of MSL
Property Care Services Ltd, Marsden Fackaging
Lirnited and fessgrove Limited.

. Key skills, experi and thuti
Richard has strong experience in corporate
governance, corporate finance and strategy.
His expenence in the audit sector has proven
heneficial. Richard hos been influential in
the recruitment of o Head of Internal Audit,
ensuring that risks are properly assessed and
mitigated.

M e LIS

FRASERS GROUP

DAVID BRAYSHAW
Independent No stive Di Chaoir of
the Remuneration Cammittee

Appsinted: 8 December 2016

Committees: Audit, Nemination and
Remuneration Committees

Pravious roles:

Dovid is a very experienced senior investment
and commercial banker. He has over 30 years’
experience with organisations such as Barclays
Capital, HSBC, Citigroup and Pilkington pic,
Key skills, experi and ibuti

David graduated from Oxford in 1975 with a
Masters of Arts in Chemistry. He has spent
along career in corporate financing for a
number of major financial institutions, and
was the Group Treasurer of Pitkington plc.
David spent 15 years at Barclays Copital,
advising FTSE 350 companies on all aspects
of cerporate, syndicated, and copital markets
funding, together with interest rate, fareign
exchonge and balance sheet hedging. He has
funded countless public company acquisitions
and remains involved in an advisery role with
several corporates and bonks in a private
copacity. He has a proven track record in the
finance ond acquisitions sector, providing
sound advice in line with the Group's elevation
strategy.
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NICOLA FRAMPTON

-L h ! l-.. .Ir
P Non D

Appointed; 1 October 2018

Committees: Audit and Remuneration
Cornmittees

Previous roles:

Prior to joining Domino's Pizza Group, Nicola
was ot William Hill from April 2010, She was
Managing Director of its UK Retail division,
warking closely with the Bocrd, Exce and
operational management. During her time at
William Hill, Nicola led a number of successful
majar innovation and transformation projects.
Before switching to an executive management
career, Nicola spent the previous ten years
waorking in the professional services industry,
most recently as a Director at Deloitte.

Present roles:

Nicola has spent most of her recent career in
senior executive management roles and has
recantly been appointed to a new position
with Domino's Pizza Group, where she is Chief
Operations Officer.

Key skills, experience and contribution:

Nicola has extensive experience in risk
rmanagement, assurance and corporate
governance across o wide range of industries,
having specialised in these areas of corporate
octivity at both William Hill and grior to that
whilst at Deloitte. The Board benefits from
Nicola's current retwil experience as the serving
Managing Director of a large non-competing
retail business. Nicola serves as a Trustee
Board member on a number of charities and
brings an informed perspective on corparate
responsibility to the Board.
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FRASERS GROUP

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Chair's Introduction

&s Chair, | am responsible for leading the Board
to make decisions that will benefit the Group
and ultimately its stakeholders. My role is to
ensure that we adhere to high standards of
corporate governance and allow the Group

to thrive during these particularly challenging
times. From the downturn of the high street

to the current Covid-19 pandemic, we have
remained resilient and robust in our approach
to corporate governonce.

Our Non-executive Directors have a great depth
of experience, remain independent throughout
all discussions and are rigorous in challenging
the Executives in the best intesests of the Group.
Our Executive Directors understand the Group's
values and behaviours. They work tirelessly to
retain and grow shareholder value, engage our
workforce and promote the Group's strategy.

'The Boerd and the Audit Committee held

more meetings than usual during the year, to
ensure that matters arising from the Covid-19
pandemic were dealt with effectively and
promptly. | would like to thank Board members
far their additional time and commitment
throughout this period.

With increasing stakeholder focus and incoming
regulation, we have increased our work on
improving ow environmental impact and
sustainability. During the year, the Sustainability
Steering Group was formed under the CFO's
lendership. Further details are included in our
ESG report.

Further information regarding our compliance
with the Code can be found in our Corporate
Governance Staterment.

David Daly

Nonh-sxecutive Chair

5 August 2021

woudiand actoss the UK
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

This Corporate Governance Report ang
Statermant sets out how the Ou:.ﬁa% haos

Disclosures jp relation to DTR 7.2.6 (share
¢apital} and DTR 728 {diversity} qre set aut in

Frovivion Requimmene

Rermunaratios sehemes shoyly
PIGMmOts {ongvepm shareholdings

by Ereritoe Burac oy (gt SUpporg
SUSALREAL with (g g sharahote,
INerests, Shore owgnag grantsd iny

£2 Subrect 1o g 1 vesting ant

ROl PeNS i Sy perus or sncre

The &aimyrenstion oo
Mok devalop o lonngl pohicy far
restemployment sharhotding
TeQuITEmBNts encompassing by,
HINeStd W vested sk,

WO>H.U LEADERSHIP AND COMPANY
PURPOSE
The Bourd

years, _qou_oi.,zm its renewgl by the Board i July
2020
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Privtied on Sty I Racyeing A0 oo Capiy

Ruasan fyr Aoh-compliance esotrtinn

T GH0UY ot et herve a1
LN schaene for the Executmg
ireators 5Agre seheimg || be put

the Directors' Report and iy the Normingtion
Committee Stotemant

B3 toted n the Duperery
femunnralion Repery g B Ui

ShOIBhOIdens 0 e Adius v retgigcr of
Chts Waotto,

Business Model

The Group's business model Temaing consistent
in providing Custommters with the world's begt

Etlueen i

Cultyre

~ Ownit ang back Yourself-

- Dowthesitgre and act with PUpose.

= Think without limitg and toke the team with
you;

Further information an the Graup's Culture
s contained within the "Culture ang Valugs
section of thig report,

m.arum.oiqw Engagement

The Group has @ number of stakeholders to
cansider and we use 9 voriety of mathads o

£onstructive criticisem, Ioimcmn whilst we gre
mindful of egeh stakeholder 9roup, we hgve o
batance their views ggainst gtker €ompeting

on Baard papers, Presentations from senior
executives gnd discussions with ong reports
from externa) consultants,

m:.v—ﬁ%nnu

Please see the Directory' Report for detoils of
eolleagyue engagement,

FRASERS GROUP

Shareholders

resolutions receivay On "against” vote of 20% o
more,

The views of mdjor shareholgers are shared
amongst the Boerd when receiveq and we
respand as hecessary. The Baarg ensures that

agpropriote.
Customers

We strive to continually improve customer
engagement ung satisfaction. The Customer

within the Groug, miuqocm:m Customer
nOBS:EnQ:Q; nrnaam_M a__.os.:m Customers ia
self-service gng Improving the level and speed

out to one of our customer care team, helping
to resolve enquiries faster tharn aver before,

We are committed to listening to oyr customers
ond have recentfy engaged an independent
external partner 1o help us understund wng oct
upen customers' feedback. we hove improved

Satisfaction {CSAT) score, The Boarg Spproved
measures for store reopening fallowing the
Covid-19 pondemic to ersyre the safety of
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customers and colleagues. The Board also
approved a 50% discount for customers
employed by the NHS in recognition of their
work during the pandemic.

Through our digital elevation strategy we

are investing more than £100m te elevate

aur proposition across our retail channels,

This investment will build on our core digital
foundations and includes initiatives to improve
“he online customer experience by carefulty
rargeted investmant in plotforms that support
customer service, engagement and data. We
are also investing in digital marketing to drive
sales growth.

Suppliars

We aim to forge strong ond transparent
ralationships with all of our suppliers, to enable
us to provide customers with excellent products
cnd to meet the standards that our brand
partners set for their products, The Elevation Ne
Limits strategy targets stronger relationships
with key brand partners (including our Strategic
Investrents) and this continues to be a priority,
Having worked with Nike for over 30 years, the
Chair is instrumental in engaging and helping
to maintain our relationship with one of our key
brand partners, Nike.

Dedicated refationship and procurement and
commercial teams support truly integrated
supplier engagement, Electronic Data Interface
(EDI) capability alse improves our process
efficiency through the commercial cycle and
enhances supplier engagement, through o
dedicated supplier portal. .

We have long-standing relationships with two
key gateway suppliers, which we use to source
Group own-branded products.

Further details in relation to environmental and
ethiccl considerctions can be found within the
Environment Report.
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Regulators

The Group makes every endecvour to comply
with its legal and regulatory obligations. We
regularly liaise with HMRC, the FRC and the
FCAin an open and transparent manner. The
Financa team and the Board have established
regular communications with tax authorities
internationally.

During the Covid-19 pandemic, Board members
liised with the Government on a numbaer of
occasions, to clarify the Group's position, for
example, regarding store closures.

Lenders

Alongside attending all Board meetings, the
CFQ is always available to inform the Board
of any updates in relation to financial lenders,
With the assistonce of the Finance team, the
CFO ensures that the Group complies with

the terms and conditions in its credit facility
agreements. The CFO regularly ligises with the
Chair of the Remuneration Committee and the
Chair of the Audit Committee, to discuss the
Group's financial performance.

During the Covid-i9 pandemic, the Boaord
discussed cash flow forecasts and the
availability of headroom in the RCF. This
uncertain time also led to Board discussions
regarding other financing methods, including
the Covid Commercial Finance Facitity.

Our Finance team has engaged with our
lenders during the year. There was a particulor
focus during the early period of the Covid-19
pandemic in the UK, os management held
regular conference calls with lenders to say
engaged and informed.

FRASERS GROUP

Community

Details of our engagement with the community
con be found in our ESG report.

Workforce Concerns

Workforce concerns regarding the business

and its operations are taken seriously and we
provide a number of ways that colleagues can -
voice their issues. When issues arise, cclleagues
are encouraged to speak to their line managers,
or they can seek advice from the Retail Trust.

If colleagues want to express their concerns
confidentially or anonymously, they can use the
whistleblowing hetline or “Your Company, Your
Voice', Cally Price works with colleogues across
the business to resolve issues and she reperts
issues to the Board during scheduled meetings.
The Company Secretary is made aware of

all whistle blowing reports and has access te
independent advice as appropriate.

Director Concerns

During the year, no concerns were raised by the
Board regarding the operation of the Board or
the management of the Group.

Conflicts of Interest

Details of procedures regarding Directors’
conflicts of interest, including the Relationship
Agreement with Mike Ashley as the controliing
shareholder, can be found in the Directors'
Report.

Corporate Governance Policy Review

During the year, external advisors were
appointed to review the Group's governance
policies and ensure they are documented and
reflect best practice. A review of these findings
take place in FY22 once the external review
is completed.
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DIVISION OF RESPONSIBILITIES

REMUNERATION KEY BGARD AUDIT
The Chair Rale Qf The Non-executive Directors COMMITTEE RESPONSIBILITIES COMMITTEE
The Chair leads the Board, ensuring - The Non-executive Girectors have broad A ing budaget External
constructive cornmunications between Board experience from a wide range of sectors. pproving budgsts audit
members ond that all Directors are able to play Their role is to understand the Group in .Remuneration W@#, the Groug's vl d stendard
a full part in the Board's activities. The Chair its entirety, to constructively chollenge policy g the aroup's velues and stondaras . " Etnancial
sets Board agendas and ensures that Baard strategy and management performance, - . . .
meetings cqmmm?mn»_{m and that all Directors set mxmwan@ E:.E%m_,nzc: and ensure Approiing strategic aims and objectives. reporting
“m_wm”” pecurate, timely and ”_m”w S_Muuanzo? mnw :mm“w“mwﬂncnﬂmwwm%_h_ﬂushfwm»_maﬁ% HMM..S , Remuneration Approving acquisttions and disposals * . , _.,”.MH%_
e Chair communicates with shareholders icfi . ; ; schermnaes . . .

ity and vt ok e B e cre stitied ih e cecrey of il soronng e sppsinimentarrinowlof
understands the views of major investors, The and internal control processes are in place. Board members . s
Chair also provides advice and suppart to i ] ; managernent
both the Executive and Non-executive Board Independente Service >vna0<5@.mo~ €ign mxnw._azmm and :
members. Upon his appointment, the Chair met . contracts for commodities transactions above Compliance
the independence criteria set out in provision 10 There are n.,:qm:.nz three independent senior executives a material levet and fraud
of the Corporate Governance Code. Non-executive Directors, as well as a

Non-executive. Chair, a'Non-executive
The Chief Executive Workforce Director and Workers'

R . ) . Representotive, and two Executive Directors,
The Chief Executive has a pivotal role in _ : i '
iy and plorarna e ANt o obhertien e R RAp——
steategy. He is respansible for the day-ta-doy Representative, were considered independent
running of the business, equipping himself with upon appointment, The Non-erecutive Compaosition of the Boord
a nm.od.. of mxm.n:n_<mw to ensure nran.ﬁrm Board's Workforce Director and Workers' Representative . . '
decisions are implemented. The Chisf Executive is not considered to be independent as she is . i Succession planning
is the main paint .& communication _um_“i.mm_._ employed by the Group. .
the senior executives and the Non-executive
Directors, and reguiarly updates the Board on Delegation of Responsibilities . Matters Reserved For The Board
the Group's trading position. . i .
) The Board has three sub-committees, namely There i5 & formal schedule of matters that require Board approval, as they could have significant
The Senior Independent Director the Audit Committee, Remunaration Cornmittee strategic, financia! er reputational impact on the Group. These matters were reviewsd ond updated
. i A and Nemination Committee, The Committees by the Board during the year.

Richard Bottomley, OBE, is the Senior are govemned by Terms of Reference, which
Independent Non-executive Director. He pravide details of matters delegated to
supports the Chair ang Non-executive Directors them. The Terms of Reference are available
and is available to ossist shareholders if they on the Group's website at frasers group/ .
have concerns, financials/corparate-governance, The roles

of the Chairman, Chief Executive and Senior

Independent Director are clearly defined

and set out in wiiting. The role profiles were ’

reviewed and updated during the year,
42 .

L] . o . -
Frtted an Stembes 100°0 Recyclod and Catlan Copt




FRASERS GROUP PLC - ANNUAL REPORT - 2021

FRASERS GROUP

Bouord Performance

On an annual basis the Non-executive
Directors, led by Richard Bottomley, review the
performance of the Chair, taking into account
the views of the Executive Directors. The
cutcome of the review is relayed to the Chair,
with constructive comments to improve future
performance. During the period, the Chair
reviewed the performance of all Non-executive
Directors, to ensure their performance remains
effective and that they are committed to and
capable of performing the role. The Chair has
discussed with each Non-executive Director
how they can improve their knowledge,
behaviour and skills, in order to be better
equipped for the role. The performance of the
Executive Directors was also reviewed by the
Chair and the Non-executive Directors and
performance objectives set.

An external review by Belinda Hudson Limited
was also carried out during the year and this is
discussed within the Board Review report.

A number of informal meetings also took
olace throughout the year between various
Non-executive Directors and the Chair without
the Executive Directors present.

Director Commitment

Prior to accepting Board positions, prospective
Directors are informed that following induction,
they are required to dedicate between 15

and 20 days per annum to fulfil the role of a
Mon-executive Director. Non-executive Directore
cre aware that scheduled and unscheduled
meetings may take place, as well as other
events including site visits, shareholder
meetings and strategy meetings. The time
commitment specified in Non-executive
Directors' letters of appointment is regularly
reviewed by the Nomination Committee and
was recently deemed to be appropriate,
Regular training is offered to all Directors

and this is further considered during Director
evaluations.

The Directors are expected to attend all
scheduled Board meetings and are asked to
use best endeavours to attend unscheduled
maetings, To assist with managing their
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commitments, the Non-executive Directors are
given prospective annual Board calendars early
in the second half of the preceding year. During
the year, there were five scheduled and seven
unscheduled Board meetings.

A r + D, testian
PP

Details of Executive Directors’ service contracts,
and of the Chair's and the Non-executive
Directors' appointment letters, are contained
within the Directors' Remuneration Report.

Copies of service contracts and appointment
letters are available for inspection at the
Company's registered office during normal
husiness heurs and at the Annual General
Meeting. Neither of the Executive Directors hold
a directorship of another FTSE 350 company.

Meeting Documentation

A detailed agenda is established for each
scheduled meeting and appropriate
documentation is provided to Directors in
advance. Regular Board meeting agenda
items include reports from the Chief Financial
Officer, reports on the performance of the
business and current trading, and specific
proposals where the Board's approval is
sought. The Board manitors and questions
performance and reviews anticipated results.
The Board also receives reports from the
Non-executive Workforce Director and
Workers’ Representative, who attends all Board
meetings.

During Board meetings, presentations are
made on business or strategic issues where
appropriate, and the Boord considers the
Group's strategy ot least annually. Minutes of
Committee meetings are circulated te all Board
members for agreement. Copies of analysts’
reports and brokers' notes are also provided

to Directors. Guest attendees are inwted to
present at Board meetings.

Board Masting Attendance

The Board has a formal schedule of regular meetings, where it approves major decisions and uses its
expertise to advise and influence the business, The Board will meet on other occasions as and when
required. . ’

The Directors’ attendance at Board and Committee meetings during the year, and the total number
of meetings that they could have attended, are set out in the toble below. Attendance was high for
all Directors, who attended all meetings unless prevented frem deing so by a prior commitment.
There was a high number of unscheduled meetings during the year, to discuss the Group’s response
to the Covid-19 pandemic and its impact on our colleagues and stores. A number of additional Audit
Committee meetings also took place. A strategy day was held in October.

Baard Audit  Remnuneration Newdnatlon
Mastingt: it
Scheduled Mastitg ) Maotings Maeti
Mike Ashley 6/6 7
Richard Botromley ' 546 &7 B 31
Dovid Breryshaw 6/6 i a/8 372 ¥
Dovid Duly 66 u 33 el
Nicoln Frumpton [ > %] /T 1
« Woolton B/t il
Cally Prcs /6 i
Il Rithard was unalile to attend one Soard meeting which was schaduled ot shart nctice, due to teng oo holidoy

Nate & nymber of Audit Committee, C. und

were uttended by Boord members who were not
n of the Committee Chairs. Bourd mermbers attended
s for informatian rather than influence, and maoy not have ottended for the full duration of the meetings

|
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Company Secretorial Support

All Directors have access to the advice and
services of the Company Secretary, and may
take independent professional cdvice at the
Company's expense, subject to prior notification
to the other Non-executive Directars and the
Company Secretary, The compoany secratarial
team has been strengthened during the year,

to support the Group's expansion and ensure
compliance with increased regulation.

The Company Secretary ensures that the
Company maintains appropriate inswrance
cover in respect of its Directors and Officers.
He alsa advises the Board on corporate
governance matters, Curing FY21, externat
training was provided to the Board on the
Market Abuse Regulation.

The Group’s Position And Prospects

The Boord toke responsibility for the
preparation of the Annual Report and
Accounts for FY21, and is in agreement that
taken as o whobe, they are fair, balanced and
understandable. We are confident that the
Annual Report and Accounts provide sufficient
detail and that our shareholders hove been
provided with the necessary information on
the Group's position, performance, business
miodel and strategy, further details of which
con be found in the Strategic Report. Detailed
information on the Group's financial position
and performance can also be focated in the
Group Financial Statements.

* The Covid-19 pandemic and the rasulting
closure of nen-essential retail stores for much
of the year, has had significant impact on
high-street retailers, including the Group. During
this period the Board has met on a number of
occasians to discuss the impact of the Covid-19
pandemic on trading and the Group's long-term
futre. The Covid-19 pandemic is deemed to
be a highly significant issue for the Group. The
Board is confident that the Group has adequate
resource to remain in operational existence for
the fareseeable future and has continued to
adopt the going concern basis of accounting in
preparing the financial statements, As o result
of its findings, the Boord has adopted a going
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concern statement for FY21, and full details of
this can be found in the Directors’ Report. The
Directors hove also assessed the prospects

of the Group over 3.5 years, the Viability
Statement can be found at pages 36 to 37,

Risk Management

The Board's responsibilities and procedures

for managing risk and the supporting systerns
of internal control are set out in the Principal
Risks and Uncertainties section of the Stretegic
Report and further information is included in
the Audit Commiittee Report

Controls in respeact of financial reporting and
the production of the consolidated financial
statements are well established. Group
gecounting policies are consistently opplied
and review and reconciliction controls operate
effectively. Standard reporting packages are
used by all Group entities to ensure consistent
and standard information is available for

the production of the consolidoted financial
statements. The Group Accaunting Manual is
under a cycle of ongoing review and forms part
of our internal controls continuous improvement
activity during FY22,

The Board has carried out a robust assessment
of the Groups' emerging ond principol risks in
the period and further detail can be found in
the Strategic Report as noted above.

FRASERS GROUVP

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

Dear Shareholder

| am pleased to present the repart of the Audit
Cornmittee [the Committee) for the 52-week
period ended 25 April 2021. The report sets out
the Committee’s work and oreas of focus during
this unprecedented year, which has seen the
global spread of Cowid-19 and Government-
mandated lockdowns impacting all
geographies acrass our Group. The Committes
has therefore focused on and discussed the
Group's performance, and the impocts of, ond
response to these external factoss

We monitored the Group's ongoing viability
and geing concern positions, incorporating
the impacts of the pandemic and including
the review of key accounting judgements ond
estimates. We have kept the Group risk profile
and emerging risks under continued review
and had clear oversight of the ectivities of
the executive Compliance & Risk Group. We
have also monitored the Group's response to
opportunities and acquisitions, to ensure we
came through the peried stronger and on track
to meet our strategic targets on the return to
broader economic recovery, -

On behalf of the Board, the Committes
rmonitors the Group's financial reparting
processes and the integrity of its financial
statements and ensures high standards of
quality and effectiveness in the external cudit
process. The Committee also reviews and
monitors the effectiveness of the Group's
systems of risk managément and internal
control, governance and compliance,

We have built a strong and productive working
relationship with RSM since their appointment
in 2019 as our External Auditor and we value
the integrity, strength and depth of their audit
and approach

The Committee hus supported monogement
with the Group's RCF renewal with potential
new and existing lenders and is comfortable
with the strength of engagement and financio}
support for the business and its strategic intent.

We have made strong progress against our
continuous improvernent assurance agenda
gcross governance, risk and control and this
was noted in the Group's external Board
evaluation which is discussed in more detail
within the External Board Review report We
olso continue to strengthen relationships with
aur Big 4 and Top 10 co-source partners, We
have closely monitored the Government's audit
and governance reform agenda and considered
our approach to readiness ¢s part of aur FY21
and FY22 agendos.

The Committee values the ongoing work of the
Group's Retail Support Unit and Digital Risk
teams and continues to seek assurance that
their work remains a strength in our Group. Qur
performaonce as a business has remained strong
in these extremely chalienging circumstances,

It has been impressive to see the continued
strength ond depth of experience across

all aur busiress teams and their ability to
withstand and manage the significont risks that
materialised.

Taking its responsibilities as a whole, the
Committee is sotisfied that the going concern
basis of accounting is appropriate (see further
detail ot page 64) ond that the Group is viable
aver its assessment period isee page 36).

{ would fike to take the opportunity to thank all
our colleagues for their valuable commitment,
contributions and support towards aur Group
performance.
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Membership

During the year, the Audit Committee
comprised three Non-executive Directors, David
Brayshaw, Nicola Frampton and myself as
Chair. Biographies of each Committee member
are set out in the Directors' profiles on pages 37
to 39 of this Annual Report.

As Chair of the Audit Committee and Senior
Independent Non-executive Director, | am
satisfied that the Committee’s membership
includes Directors with recent and relevant
financial experience and competence in
accounting, risk management and governance,
and that the Committee as a whole has
competence relevant to the retail sector in
which the Group operates.

Meetings

The Committee met eight times during the
vear as we have extended our agenda to
accommaodate our assurance requirements,
Non-Committee members of the Board and
the executive management tearn attendad
Committee meetings at my invitation to
ensure the Committee is kept informed of
important developments in the business and
the risk and control environment. Attendance
by members of the executive management
tzam alse helps to reinforce a strong culture
of risk mancgement within the business.
Nen-Committee members do not participate in
Audit Committee decision making

Cur External Auditor attended oil Committee
meetings during the year. The Committee
meets privately with the External Auditor at
least annually. In my capacity as Chair, | have
reguior meetings with the External Auditor
pricr to each Committee meeting during

the audit planning process and as the audit
progresses, to address issues early and te aveid
any surprises. ! am also in continuous contact
with the Board Chairman, Chief Executive,
Chief Financial Officer, External Audit ! ead
Partner and our Head of Internal Audit &

Risk Management, who has an independent
reporting line to me.

a5
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The Main Responsibilities Of The Audit
Committee

The Committee's main responsibilities, as
delegated by the Board, remained unchanged
during the yeor and are set out in the
Committee’s Terms of Reference. These include
oversight, assessment and review of:

Financial Stetements And Reporting:

+  The integrity of the Group's financial
reporting as a whole and any formal
announcements relating to the Group's
financial performance, including any
significant judgements contained in them;
and

*  The Group's assessment of its going concern
and lohger-term prospects and viability.

External Auditar

*+  The effectiveness of the external audit
process taking into consideration
relevant UK professional and regulatory
requirements; and

- Developing and implementing policy on the
supply of non-audit services by the External
Auditor and approving any such work.

Risk M t And Int | Controls

*  The effectiveness of the Group's internal
financial controls, risk management and
internal control systems, including the
activities of the Internal Audit function,
and driving an agenda of continuous
improvermnent;

+  Identifying and assessing principal and
emerging risks and risk exposures; and

+  The effectiveness of whistleblowing
arrangements.

L hetping fo cres

In oddition, the Committes: = Menitored the effectiveness of the Group's
risk management and intesnal control
systems and received detailed reports
and presentations on principal risks
management;

+  Supports the Board in discharging its
responsibilities for Corporate Governance
Cade compliance;

+  Advises the Board on the outcome of the
external audit and whether it considers
the Annual Report and Accounts, when
taken as a whele, are fair, bolanced and
understandable and pravide informetion *  Reviewed its Terms of Reference; and
necessary to shareholders to assess the » Together with the Board, considered the
Group's position and performance, business Committee's own effectiveness.
model and strategy;

« Continued to support the Finance
leadership and evaluated the strength and
depth of the Finance team;

+  Makes recommendations to the Board on
the appointment, reappointment or removal
of the External Auditor;

‘»  Approves the External Auditor's fees and

terms of engagement;

*  Maintains strong relationships with the
Board, executive management, the External
Auditor and Internal Audit, in the execution
of their respective responsil es; and

*  Reports tc the Board on how the Committee
has discharged its responsibilities during the
year.

Ouring The Period

The Committee focused on a number of
significant areos of internal contrel (including
financial, operational and compliance controls),
During the period, the Committee:

+  Monitored the business response, internal
controls and impact on the Group's financial
performance and reporting os the Covid-19
pandemic risk materialised;

+  Reviewed the Group's financial statements
and assessed whether suitable accounting -
policies have been adopted and whether
management has made appropriate
estimates and judgements;

+  Reviewed the detoiled scenarios and
assumptions behind the going concern basis
of accounting and longer-term viability;

+ Assessed the effectiveness of the externat
audit process and considered the
reappointment of RSM as the External
Auditar for FY22;

lacross LUK
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Risk Management And Internal Controls

Information on our approach to risk
management and internal control is set out

in the risk section of the Strategic Report and
concluding of our review of these systems is
set out on page 30. Our plans for continuous
improvement of our risk management and
internal control systems remained in place
during the year and establishing a Group .
Internal Audit & Risk Management function has
reinforced our progress. The work of our Retail
Support Unit is central to the Group's system
of internal control. The Unit provides internal
assurance on the efficacy of controls over our
retail operationat procedures and systems.

In the year, the Committee focused ona
number of significant areas of internai control,
including:

«  Solvency and liquidity;
. Business continuity, [T disaster recovery and
incident response;

+  Key legisiative and regulatory obligations,
including dato protection, pandemic-related
regulation and overs| ght of Government
plans for audit and governance reform
- strengthening cantrols over financial
reporting;

- Cyber risk and data loss prevention,
including strengthening of our information
security capability;

+  Progress against business and finance
systems transformation; -

«  Updates on the governonce go ies review
and reporting;

- —

Reviewing significant accounting
judgements ond estimates;

The valuation of assets and stock and the
calculation of associated provisions;

The effectiveness of hedge accounting
and the management of foreign currency
exposures;

« Property and the systems in place to ensure
impairments are recognised on a timely
basis;
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+  Climate risk and our envirenmental, social
and governance agenda, supperting
Taskforce for Ciimate-related Financ
Disclosures reporting; and

+  The Group's banking arrangements.

See further at page 39 for the Board's
staternent on Cerporate Governance.

Audit Quality

The Committee received comprehensive
updates from RSM and the business in response
to outlined reform proposals in the current
Government consultation: restoring trust in
audit and corporate governance.

Building on the three significant reviews in

the last couple of years -the Competition and
Markets Authority [CMA] Market Study, the
Kingman Review and the Brydon Review - the
UK audit sector, the audit profession, audit
regulation, and the quality of the audit product,
have never been under greater scrutiny.

The Committee will continue to oversee the
development of plans for compliance readiness
in response to the current consuitation.

m.nno_..._m_ Auditor

The Committee was pleased to recormnmend the
reappointment of RSM as Exterricl Auditor for
EY21 following c robust external oudit review of
FY20. The length of tenure of RSM as external
auditors is 2 years.

RSM has reported to the Committee that, in its
professional judgment, it is independent within
the meaning of regulatory ahd prefessional
requirements and the objectivity of the cudit
engagement partper and audit staff is not
impaired. The Audit Committee has assessed
the independence if the auditor, and concurs
with this statement.

The Committee evaluates the effectiveness of
the external audit process on an ongoing basis
and makes recommendotions onnually to the
Board on the External Auditor's reappointment.
The External Auditor is then proposed for
reappointment (as applicable) each year at the
AGM,

in making its recommendations to the Board,

the Committee considers a number of factors

relating to the level of service provided by the
External Auditor, the quality of its work and its
independence. These include;

The gquality and scope of the planning of
the external oudit, including the External
Auditor's assessment of risks and how it
intends to evolve the audit plan to respond
to changes in the business;

The guality and timeliness of the External
Auditor's reposts to the Comrmittee and the
Board during the year;

The level of understanding that the External
Auditor has demonstrated in relation to the
Group's businesses and the retail sector;

The objectivity of the External Auditor's view
on any deficiencies in internal control which
came to its attention during the course of its
audit work, and the robustness of challenge
and its findings on areas which require
management judgement;

The contents of any external reports or
regulatory statements published in respect
of the External Auditor; and

The nature and scope of non-qudit services
provided by the External Auditer and the
level of fees charged for these services.

We have a stringent policy and approval
process in place in respect of non-audit
services and our view is to keep this type of
engagement mnimal unless in exceptional
but reasenable circumstances, and in line with
Group policy.

Opinion On The Annual Report And Accounts

The Board has asked the Committee to advise
it on whether the Annual Report and Accounts,
taken as o whole, are fair, bolanced and
understandable and provide the infarmation
necessary for shareholders to assess the
Group's position, performance, business model
and strategy.

FRASERS GROUP

The Comrnittee has reviewed the process
for preparing this An nual Report in order to
assess whether other information cohtained
in it is consistent with the Group’s financial
statements for the 52 weeks ended 25 April
2021, This process has inciuded the following
key elements:

- Reviewing new regulations and reporting
requirements with external advisers
to identify additional information ond
disclosures thot may be appropriate;

- Preparing a detailed timetable and
allocation of drafting responsibility to
relevant internal teoms with review by an
appropriate senior manager;

. Providing an explanction of the requirement
for the Annua! Report and Accounts,
taken as o whale, to be fair, balanced and
understandable, to those with drafting
responsibility;

. Monitoring the integrity of the financiol
statements and other information provided
to shareholders to ensure they represent
a clear and accurate assessment of the
Group's financial position and performance;

. Reviewing significant financial reporting
issues and judgements contained in the
financial statements;

. Review of il sections of the Annual Report
by relevant external odvisers;

+ Review by the senior manoger working
group responsible for the Annual Report
process; and

+ Overall review of the contents of the Annual
Report and Financial Statements for the
period under review.

The Committee has advised the Board that

it considers the Annual Report and ancial

Statements for the year ended 25 April 2023,

when taken as a whole, to e fair, balanced

‘and understandable and that they provide the

necessary information te assess the Group's
position, performance, business model and
strategy. .
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Significant Financial Reporting lasues CMA Order 2014 Statement Of Compliance
The Committee has considered the following areas of significance during the period and held Frasers Group confirms that it wos in compliance with the provisions of The Statutory Audit Services
discussions with management and the External Auditor in reviewing these motters. The Committee 15 for Large Companies Market Investigation {Mandatory Use of Competitive Tender Processes and

satisfied with how each of these matters has been discussed and addressed. Audit Cormmittee Responsibilities}) Order 2014 during the financial period ended 25 April 2021. The
; Committee has discussed all the items above in detail with the External Auditor.

Gomg concern and oty The Auchit Caemmillee hos held extensive (alks with managemant on geng cancern and viability, and

Raview Of The Committea's Effectiveness

The annuai review of the Committee’s effectiveness was included in the mxnmq:n_:_. facilitated Board
evaluation during the period. The Committee is pleased to see the positive outcome of that report, as
well as its observations and recommendations.

Winlst tha Group's RCF expres i Noveinber 2022, rmanogement and the Commuttee are confident new
financing will be awanged with the Group's syndicata of lenders, replacig tive current facility by

wd Lt e Gy bl d Furihs il Tuded h . . A . . N |
Ry Sttt oo T oracron amaeement pariad Furthur larmatan i mclided vt The Committee has improved its governance and annua! planning cycle in the year and will continue
to build on this in FY22. 1 monitor and assess the effectiveness of the Committee regularly as Chair
Inventory The Carr 1e wark performed an mvantary valuation ond prov

reviewed] monugement's methouology The Commatee 1s sabshied the appronch is consistent with the and invite input from the External Auditor on this.
priar penod and hos appropriately cansidered the impact of the Cowd-19 pondermic on the Group s
entory pestian Key Objectives For FY22

¢ consiered oll uspects of IFRS16 nccounting for leoses inuluring monugement's
methadolayy, judge ments and assumplions and the presentation in the +noncial Statements The The Committee’s key objectives for FY22 are:

Cainmnitiea is solist ed thut management’s approach is reasanoble

IFRS ¥ accourn

for lanses

Impawmant of nght-of-use assets; proporty, plant  The Commuttee rev swod und challenged mandagemen
& equipment, (reehold property and related assurnptons and methodologies used The propeted cosh Kaws, discount rates an:
proparty provisans t7e evaluulian ware considered approprnata within the context of
5

+ Continue to monitor the impacts ef the pandemic on our business, its performance, its response
and its financial position;

+  Oversee the development of plans in respanse to the Government's reform propesals: restoring
i disrussed with management the valuouon methodotogy used and

e Lo denvative contracts The Committes Glso rview deleqoted authortes trust in audit and corporate governance;
of such tronsactions and 15 sotishad thesa ore gppropnute

Forword currancy contracts

+  Monitor continuous impravement of the Group's systems of risk management and internal control;

Accaunting for investments and esseciotes - Investiments
respect of investmert sl

tae conwdered s work on and c sk,
195 40 excess of 20% Thus woek wolves monagement judgemuent

+  Maintain a streng relationship with our External Auditor and engagement on the delivery of a
robust, efficient and effective external cudit; and .

Assacuates’ the Com mittes also « Strengthen assurance activity across the Group based on the three lines model, [accountability,
nralowen to ossacickes The Cormy

representatons in detarmm actions, assurance).

Réicherd Bottomley

Chair of the Audit Committee and
Senior Independent Non: tive Di

e C

Reluted paties

e hus svaluated the opproprat
anogemert nrd review of papers outlining

and the FYH paym tey prowssioning in tespect af MM Prop Cansultant y Lum
Committes 15 sat 0t the disclosyres, payment and approuch Lo provisioning are appropriate

e penicd s the form of the Caranavus Job Refention 5 August 2021
Scheime based on inchndured stote closuras and the nesd ta preserve phs The tomplexities of the

scheme and the e to sasure Compliones withits legish
athe yenr and hor external a
teurms and externol adwisers thot manogement has appraprately
accounted bt dnd rec ogrised the Govermmunt support recenved and thot there 15 na malerol emgr in
the processes suppoiong tiess tlaims The Gomrmttee also nates the transparency and engagement
with HMRC thraughioLt thes procass

Cavernment support [furlough The Group has recewd Governmant support

Lugul and other prowsons omd accruals The Commities has raviewad and discussad with managerment s judgaments ond deranmnations in
sespect of legal provis oning and accrual for tox-related matters o d end Given the infiesent
levels of uncert 110 thess vreas, Iy conudered ond

i % thrd-purty (apors whera avaloble

o ot legal and ather prav

A4 asul
ure opproprinte
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NOMINATION nOZZ_._.._.mm REPORT

Dear Shareholder

To meet the Group's needs, the Nomingtion
Comrittee must ensure that the Board
remains competent, diverse, wetl bojanced end
equipped to deal with any prasent of future
{ssues which may arise. it is also important
that the Nomination Committee both supports
ond chellenges the decisiens of the Executive
Directors, which includes reviewing the Group's
{eadership ond making recommendations
regarding the nvvo._:n_._._mzﬂ of new Directors
gnd extending the term of office of existing
Directors.

Biographical details of eoch Commitiee
member are shown in the Board of Directors
profiles on pages 37to 39.

The Nomination Committee usually meets
formally twice 9 year, glthough additional
rneetings {ake place when nﬂﬂ..omin_"m. The
Committee formally met three tirnes during
Fy2i, with all meetings being held virtually due
to the Covid-19 pandenmic. The Committe®
members also had a number of informal
discussions during the year. Al members of
the Nomination Committee ofe Mon-executive
Directors ond. with the exception of the Chatr,
are considered to be \ndependent.

The zn-vu:-m_vm_._&uu OiThe Nomination
Committee Inelude:

. Reviewing the jeadership needs of the
Group, loocking at both Directors and seaior
Bazcmmgman

. Reviewing the compasition: structuce and
size of the Boord, and recommending
adjustments to the Board, having regurd to
diversity, skills. knowledge and experience:

. Reviewing the ime the MNon-erecutive
Directors are required to spend discharging
their duties;

. Identifying and nominating. for the appreval
of the Board, candidates to £l Boord
vacancies as and when they arise;

. Considering succession plonning for

48

Syl

Directors ond senior mancgement,

taking into account the challenges and
opportunities facing the Group and the
<kills and expertise therefore needed en the
Board;

. Formally documenting the appointment
and .m‘ovvoiﬁam% of Dicectars;

+  Identifying potential candidates for seniot
posts, and making recommendations to the
Board; and

. Considering the recommendations to
shareholders for re-electing the Directors,
ynder the annual re-election provisions of
the 2018 UK Corgorate Governa nce Code.

A full list of the Committee’s responsibilities
are set out in its Terms of Reference which are
available on the Group Wehsite: wiew frosers.
group.

What Has The Committee Done During
The Year?

foord Hominations

. The Committee considered and
recommended to the Board the
_.munvo__._nam:n of Caily Price a3 Non-
executive Workiorce Directorl. i rnaking
this :mnc-j:._m:n_nn.o:, the Commuttae
recognised the enormous vahue and
contributian that Cally brings to the Board.
She provides great insight and perspective
on off imporiant {ssues that affect the
performence of the warkforce across the
organisation.

v The Committee cansidered and
qmnoaamznma the election o7 1e-election
of ¢ll Directors at the AGM, following
consideration of their effectiveness and
commitment.

Composition of the Board

. The Committee has reviewed the Boord's
compesition and we continue & \ook to add
(alented people to the Board, whe will Bring
the appropriase <kills and experience. The
restrictions @5 O consequence of Covid-19
ockdowns have clowed the process but we
remain committed to strengthening oW
Board. We have again spoken to Audeliss
recruitment which speciglises in recruiting
diverse talent and we have also had
discussions with @ number of candidates
with strong experience and a background in
R, Audetiss has e ather connection with
the GCompany ar ary of its Directors.

. Inconsidering new n_uoo_:nam:ﬁ to
the Board, the Committee will identify
suitcibte condidates to fulfil the skill-sets
required, by taking into gecount succession
planning and diversity objectives. Members
of the Caramittee and the executive
anagement team will then meet with the
candidate before the Committee considers
recommending the nﬂcoinam:w to the
Board.

Rourd Evaluation

. Belinda Hudson Ltd was engaged
16 conduct the Y20 external Boo ré
evaluation. Due o restrictions coused by
the Covid-19 pandernic this wes delayed
until FY21 Neither the Company ner any of
its Directors has any otner connection with
Belinda Hudsoen Ltd. The evalugtion was
conducted vid one-to-one interviews with
indivicuol Directors and Ly members of
seniof management. This is discussed within
the Board Review report.

Annuet Performanca Appraisals

Al Board members, both Executive and
Non-Executive, went through an annual
performance review during FY21 and each
Director engaged iy in the process. This
included setting ohjectives for egch individual. )
led these appraisals, a5 Chair f the poard and
the Homination Committee. This process will be
repeated annually. Richard Bottomley, Chair of
the Audit Cornmitiee ond Senior Independent
Non-executive Director, led my perfarmance
gppraisal and goal satting.

ROUP -
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The Directors will take into account any
development neads identified in their appraisals
and will be chaltenged on how they have takent
qction agoinst these goals during their next
annual gppraisdi.

Diversity and inclusion

The Board reviewed VOTious diversity and
inclusion policies from other companies, 1o
enable us to benchmark purselves ogainst
industry standards. As g consedquence we have
now updated our Board Diversity policy, which
can be found on our website at
rﬁnvmc_\#nmma.macv_\

The Boord hos tve fermale Directors,
jepresenting 28% of the goard. There is
currently no representation from ethric minority
packgrounds on the Board. However, we note
the contents of the Hompton Alexander Report
ond the Parker Review for FTSE 260 companies
arcd we are continually seeking to increase
diversity ot Board tevel, as reflected in oul
objectives pelow.

The Group's objectives in elotion t& Board
diversity and inclugion are.

. 7o ensure thot the Board hasan apgpropriate
mix of skills, expefience and knowledge,
to ensure a variety of vmavmnﬂ..cmm are
Euﬁma:ﬁma on the Board and enable the
Board to effectively overse® and support the
Group's QSE? and .ﬁasamm_.:m:n

. To maintain Board representation frem
the workforce, which brings the voice of
colleagues into the boardroom, supports
our strekegy of ipwesting in aur people and
emcbles the Board ta effectively oversee
and support the Group's growth and
Bn_:ammim:".

. Toncrease female representotion on the
Board to 33%, in hine with the Hompton
Alexander target; and

. Tostrive to appoint ot {east one Director
of colour to the Board by 2024, a3
recommended oy the parker Review.

The Group achieved its Giversity policy

opjective n respect of mmvam,. and age, by
having a strong gender balance in senior
management and their direct reports (see



FRASERS GROUP PLC - ANNUAL REFORT - 2021

gender diversity table of page 23, and o varied
representation of ages in middle and senior
management. When reviewing candidates

who may become potential Board members,
the Committea has regard to factors including
professional experience, skills, education,
gender, ethnicity and background to ensure

a variety of perspectives are represented at
Board level. As discussed above, we have been
working with a recruitment agent specialising in
diverse candidates. The Boord is conscious thet
to successfully deliver the strategic goals of
the business our people, including the Beard cf
Directors must reflect the diverse cultures and
values of our customer base,

The Committee recognises the advantages

of having a diverse team and has therefore
reviewed the composition of the senior
management team, including their direct
reports, A number of senior manogement
roles were held by women at period end,
including the Head of Internal Audit and Risk
Management and UK Financial Contreiler. Our
senior leadership team is 27% female, whilst
the overall UK workforce is appraximately 52%
‘emnale.

‘We were pleased that our most recent Gender
Poy Gap Report showed a reduction in the
median gender pay gap within our largest
1elevant subsidiary [SPORTSDIRECT.com Retail
Limited] to 0%. However, we will continue to
explore ways to address other gender pay gap
differences within our business.

Further details on diversity and inclusion are set
cut in the Our People Report.

Frasers Group Elevation Programme

Curing FY21, we worked with We are Wiser to
launch the Group's new Elevation Programme.
This has resulted in the recruitment of a diverse
mix of talent, with the potential to become the
future leaders of the Group.

David Dely

Chair of the Nomination Committee

5 August 21
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EXTERNAL BOARD REVIEW

We recognise that some of the main driving
forces behind the success of Frasers Group

are our Board, Committees and management
teamns. To ensure we are getting the best from
our Beard, we undertook an independent review
of our Board and Committee effectiveness. We
hoped that this review would provide insight
and clarity into how our leadership team is
petforming, especially when benchmarked
against other listed companies, as well as
highlight areas of improvement that would
odd value to the Group and ensure we become
market leaders in governance and best
practice,

fn January 2020, the Board agreed to engage
Belinda Hudson Limited to undertake a review
of our Board and Committee effectiveness,
Belinda is a recognised expert in enhancing
board effectiveness and has over 15 years’
experience working with Boards, Committees
and directors of FTSE 350 companies. Belinda
Hudson Limited has ne other connection with
the Group or any of its Directars.

The Board review was originally due to be
completed prior ta the April 202¢ financial

year end. However, it was deferred when the
first lockdown was initiated as there was a
strong preference for conducting face to face
interviews, As it became clear that face to face
meetings weuld not be an option for some
time, it was decided to proceed with remote
meetings early in 2021 to ensure that evaluation
of the Beard's performance could be conducted
by the end of the April 2021 financial year.

Methodology

Belinda undertack confidential one-to-one
discussiens with members of the Board and

a selection of senior management who have
regular interaction with, and support the Board
and Committees. She attended the February
2021 Board meeting for observational purposes.
Belinda was given unfettered access to the
previous 12 months' Board ond Committee
papers und minutes and governance
documents to inform her review.

tf across tha L

She compiled o comprehensive repert which
covered all aspects of board and committee
performance. It was broken down into the
following categories:

- Board compasition and dynamics
- The Board's role

— The Boaord at work

- Committees

The report was presented to and discussed with
the Board at the April 2021 Board meeting.

Outcomes

The repert highlighted the many strengths of
the Board and Committees and contained
several recommendations for further
development. The Board accepts the
recommendations and where necessary, is
taking steps to implement them.

Belinda's findings in each section were as
follows:

Board Composition and Dynamics

The report found that "the Board at Frasers
Group has enjoyed a gocd period of stability
since the CFO was appointed in September
2019, The Board has strengthened and is
becoming increasingly effective under the
leadership of the current Chair with strong
support frem the Senior Independent Director
and others.”

The Board composition benefits significantly
from the inclusion of a full-time employee

as the Non-executive Workforce Directar

and Workers' Representative. It provides the
Board with “full transparency and visibitity on
the perspective of the workforce without any
filters” and very strong insights into workforce
engagement.

Despite some previcus investor opposition to
the Chair, the review presented a positive view
of the Chair, He brings many relevant and
useful strengths and is growing into the role
well. Board members and Senior Management
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were unanimous in their agreement that he was
an excellent choice for the role. He possesses
“invaluable knowledge and experience

relating to the sector, ecosystern and brand
relationships” and his relationship with the
Chief Executive "is based on openness and
transparency as well as mutua! trust and
respect. The relationship appeors robust so
that they can challenge each other and handle
disagreement”. The Chair is committed to
developing his skills and addressing the gaps in
his knowledge.

The overall view of the Senior Independent
Director and other Non-executive Directors of
the Board was positive. They are ali diligent
and focused on acting in the best interests of
the Group. They bring with them a breadth

of knowledge and experience that they

are willing to share koth inside and outside
the boardroom. The Senior Independent
Director plays a very useful role in developing
external relationships through networking and
promoting the Group in a paositive light.

The leadership provided by the Chief
Executive was described as being inspirational,
honest, transparent and colloborative, The
Chief Executive plays a pivotal role in the
success of the Group. He adopts a positive
and constructive attitude to the Board and
welcomes input and challenge from the
Non-executive Directors. The reviaw highlighted
the disparity between internally held views of
the Chief Executive and the Chief Executive's
external reputation. He is toking steps to
remedy the impact his external reputation
has on the Group by stepping back from his
external facing rofes - to enable the next
generation of tolent within the Group to elevate
- the external reputation of the Group.

The review has identified some creas of
suggested developrment including the
recruitment of a Non-executive Director

with strong fisted company experiance and
achieving o greater degree of diversity in Board
composition, While the Board benefits from
good gender diversity, it lacks age and ethnic
diversity. The Noemination Committee will seek
to address these issues during the next financial
year.
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Despite the challenges identified, the overall
assessment of the Boord's composition, senior
leadership and dynaimics was overwhelmingly
positive. Members of the Board and Executive
Committee enjoy positive relationships and
generally engage ih positive Board behaviours.

The Board's Role

Board members have o goad understonding of
the role of the Board, but further develogpment
is needed to ensure that the Board fulfils afl
aspects of its role and strengthens certain
aspeécts af the Groupg's corporote governance
These issues are already being addrassed

by the Board following o report produced by
external advisors.

Belinda noted that the Board offers o good mix
of support and challenge and adds value on
many fronts. The Non-executive Directors make
a good contribution to the Group in ways that
go beyond the usual remit of Non-executive
Directors. The introduction of the strategy

day has been very "positive and useful” and
leaves scope for further development. The
current oversight thot the Board exercises over
the financial and cperaticnal performance

is sound. Areas where improvements con be
made include stakeholder focus and oversight
of health and safety. However, it has been
highlighted that the Board tock great interest
in the health and safety of the workforce durning
the pandemic.

It is encouraging that the Board is increasingly
focusing on people reiated matters, has
employed experts to review and develop its
employer value proposition and is actively
pursuing a strategy of developing a younger
cadre of management to support the
sustainability of the Group. The intention of
communicating  positive culture from the
top appears to be effective; as Non-executive
Directors hove mode positive reports that
“there is a strong sense of oppottunity and
trust enjoyed by employees.” The Board is
alse driving the agendo of increasing diversity
and inclusian throughout the Group with the
CFQ and Non-Executive Warkforce Director
and Workers' Representative leading the
initiative. The Board is robust, has influence and

communicates a positive cutture whilst leoving
room for further growth and development as
the business grows.

The Board ot Work -

The current arrangements for the frequency of
formal Board meetings hove been assessed us
appropriate ond beneficial as they meet the
needs of the Non-executive Directors without
placing unnecessary burden on the Executives.
The format of the meetings has also been
commended as it gives the members ample
opportunity to interact outside the meetings
and develop their relationships.

The information provided to the Board is
generally of a geod quality and is presented in
a very open and transparent manner. However,
improvements can be maode to the timeliness
in which it is provided. There was concern that
the Company Secretarial team was sometimes
overwhelmed but this team hos recently been

strengthened with the recruitment of two new .
" hires and is better placed naw to provide strong

support to the Board and Commuttees.
Committees

The review of the Committees was equatly
encouraging. Altheugh areas of improvernent
have been identified for each of the
Committees, the overorching conclusion was

that they are becoming increasingly effective in

carrying out their furctions.

The Audit Committee has become more
eftective under the leadership of the Chair.
His background as a partner in a Big Four
accounting firm means he brings useful and
relevant experience, The Chair's management
of meetings has been commended and

the Committee enjoys good support from
management.

It has also been recognised that the
Committee’s oversight of risk governance

has seen significant improvements with the
recruitment of the new Head of Internal

Audit who has madé good progress in the
further development of the risk management
framework and is "bringing increused rigour to
the work of tnternal Audit.”

The Audit Committee enjoys o relationship with

the External Auditors that is collaborative and

FRASERS GROQUP

positive but also robust and challenging.

The review has highlighted the "very positive
and extensive role” the Remuneration
Committee has played in the development of
the Fearless 1000 share plan which secured
strong shareholder suppaort at the October
2020 AGM. The Group is currently spearheading
numerous initiatives to overhau! policies and
processes to ensure it offers compeatitive
puckages to employees with strong drive

and support from the Committee and input
provided by external remunsrotion consultants.

David Daly
Chuair of the Nomination Committee

5 August 2021



FRASERS GROUP PLC - ANNUAL REPORT - 2021

FRASERS GROUP

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION REPORT

Dear Shareholder,

As the Chair of the Remuneration Committee
{the “‘Committee”) | am pleased to present
our Directors’ Remuneration Report for the
year ended 25 April 2021, This report is split
into three parts: this Annual Statement, the
Policy Report and the Annual Report on
Remuneration.

Actions Taken In FY21 And Impucts On Poy

A key context for decisions taken by the
Committee in 2020 was the impact of Covid-15
on our business. Following the onset of the
Taovid-19 pandemic in late Q12020, the
Zommittee supported the actions taken by our
Board in relation to pay and wider colleague
welfare. These actions were considered
appropridate to align to the experience and
perspective of our shareholders and other
stakeholders, including our colleagues.

The actions taken included the following:

«  from May 2020 due to the impact of the
Covid-19 pandemic, our CFO, together
with the Chief Commercial Officer and
the Non-executive Directors agreed, in
order to assist the Campany, to make the
personal sacrifice of reducing their salary, or
respective fees, to £40,000 per annum. This
treatment applied until October 2020, at
which time withheld eamounts were paid;

« colleague welfare was prioritised:

« from March 2020, we sent home ali
colleagues over the age of 60 or those
with underlying health issues which was
over and above Government guidance
whilst continuing to pay them in full;

* in the UK we paid virtually all of our
contracted colleagues {including “casual
workers" } in full during March, April, May
and June 2020 even thaugh our stores
were closed for the vast majority of that
time; and
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« although the business has accessed
Government business-support initiatives,
including furlough and business rates
relief, we used these programmes in the
way in which we understood these to
be applied, and the consequence has
been that there have been no major
redundoncy rounds within our business
despite extended lockdown periods.

= the wider societal contribution of the
business was supported:

« we offered our fleet of vehicles to the
NHS for transporting vital equipment to
where jt was most needed; and

+ we also offered NHS staff discounts on
bikes and sporting goods equipment in
our Evans and Sports Direct stores. On
15 June 2020, in England, we offered
a 50% discount to all NHS staff in our
Sports Direct stores as a gesture of
goodwill to these fantastic individuals
as our stores re-opened. It was an
overwhelming success with gross sales

of approximately ES0m before discount

and approximately £25m ofter discount.

Against this background, we were very pleased
to be able to launch the new incentive plan

for our colleagues which we are calling the
Feorléss, 1000 and which was approved by over
99.9% of our shareholders voting at the 2620
AGM. The Fearless 1000 could pay out £100m
in shares if our share price reaches £10 ot any .
time during the performance period. The share
price must stay abave £10 for 30 consecutive
trading days to trigger the vesting of shares at
the end of the vesting period which could see
10 colleagues receiving shares worth £1m if the
share price is ot £10 at the vesting dates. One
thousand of aur Fearless colleagues, who tive

- and breathe our values, thinking without limits,

not hesitating and owning it, will be eligible to
receive share bonuses ranging from £50k right
up to £1m if the share price is at £10 at the
vesting dates. ‘

Following the successful launch of the Fearless
1000 plan in October 2020, the UK entered into
lockdown in December 2020 and a significent
portion of our stores were temporarily closed.
This has the potential to limit our ability to

hit the share price targets that apply to the
plan. We have therefore decided to extend

the performonce period for the Fearless 1000
plan, which will now end in Cctober 2025
|being a totel performance period of five years).
As a resuit of this change, the performance
pericd for the Fearless 1000 and the praposed
Executive Share Scheme (explained further
below) will be aligned.

In terms of senior executive remuneration in
FY21:

*  Mike Ashiey has not received any
remuneration from the Company since
before the Public Offering in 2007 and
continues to decline any remuneration in his
role of Chief Executive;

» as noted above, our CFQ's salary was
reduced to the equivalent of £40,600 p.a.
from May 2020 until October 2020; and

* no LTIP award operated for senior
executives in FY21, and the CFO and other
selected senior executives were specifically
excluded from participation in the Fearless
1,000 plan.

Against the background of our everall modest
positioning on executive pay ond considering
the CFO's exceptional efforts in leading the
company through a period of unprecedented
challenge to produce the resilient performance
that is detailed elsewhere in this report, the
Committee has decided that it is appropriate
to award our CFO a bonus of £100,000 for FY
202042021 {67% of base salary). In awarding
this bonus, the Committee considered a renge
of performance facters, including Group
financial performance, progress on strategic
initiatives and personal performance. This
award was paid as a cash sum. :

The Committee exercised what it regards as
normal cemmercial judgement in respect of
Directors’ remuneration throughout the year
{and in all coses in Yine with the Company's
Director's remuneration policy).
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1o Steant H00Y5 Recyoled and Carbon Capt it uh the Woadlnd Trast, helping ! Britis! fand fhe UK

There were no other exercises of judgement or
discretion by the Committee save as detailed in
this report.

Revised Remunaeration Palicy And Operation Of
Pay In FY21

At the 2021 Annual General Meeting [AGM') we
are asking sharsholders te renew our 3-year
Directot's remuneration policy {"policy”) which
was last approved at our AGM in 2018 (98.8%
approval).

Where any changes have been made to the
2018 policy, these are highlighted in the policy
report section. In particular, we are making
three changes in the operation of Executive
Director pay. |

CFO's Salary

+  Chris Wootton's salary has been increased
to £250,000 p.a. from 1st May 2021 (FY21:
£150,000 p.a.).

+ Chris joined the Board of Directors in
September 2019, with this being his first
main Board CFQO role ot a listed PLC. Since
that time Chris has grown and developed in
the role of CFO and his strong performance,
leadership and contribution to developing
the strategic direction of the business is
considered to merit an cppropriate review
of his salary level at this time, now that he
has teen in post for approximately
18 months,

+ As a Committee we are content that even
with this increase the salary level for our
CFQ remains amongst the lowest in the
FTSE 250. ’
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Board Succeasion

As a Reruneration Committee we fully support the prospective chdnges within our Board and senior
team mare fully described in the announcement dated Sth August 2021, Although same of these
changes will not become effective until later in the three-year period in which cur rew palicy will
operate, we already know some of the detoil around how we want pay arrangements for our hew
senjor executive team to be aligned to, and suppert, the growth and elevation strategy which our
Board succession changes will seek to accelerate and deliver.

Accordingly, where we are qble to do so, in the new policy we have set out details of proposed

incantive arrangements for our Executive Directors (both current ond prospective} and particulorly
our new Executive Share Scheme, as describad below. Any further detoils of pay arrangements for
new Executive Director appointments will be disclosed at the appropriate time when they join the

Board.

New LTIP To Align To Principies Of Fearlass 1000

At our 2021 AGM, we will be seeling shareholders' gpproval for o new share plan (the “Executive
Share Scheme’) which seeks to apply many of the principles of the Fearless 1000 to an LTIP. Three
awards, each subject to o £12 share price target, will be initially made to Chris Wootton {CFO), Sean
Nevitt {Chief Commercial Officer] and David Al-Mudgllal (CQO), An award, subject to a 15 share
price target, is also proposed to be made to Michael Murray when, as anticipated, he joins the Board,
The key terms, and how these compore to the key terms of the Fearless 1000, are summarised belaw:

EXECUTIVE SHARE SCHEME

FEARLEYS 1900 PLAN

AWARD LEVELS

TFIMING OF AWARDS

Three i l crwards are ax|
to be Mmade 1o the CFO. Ciuef
Cominergial Dfficer ong COO grar 1§
mulkon shares in ol {H00.000 shares
mammym per person]

A single gward 15 expected ta be
mate to Micnaet Mutiay, o s

wppmntment to the Board, over

6771140 shares in tetol. bemy a
number of shares which ot 0 share
price af £15 per shure [less the t0p
minal volue ot those

oy the valug of salares poid 1n the
perod to vasting

Awards to CFD, Chief Cammerc ol
Otficer arid COO (0 be iade o3 5000
s pesuble after 202t AGM

#ward to Michaet Murray to e made
an giing the Board

Far Lop 10 partormers (warth £l
euch for thuse ndividuals of £10 per
shorel, harther
Atners we e e LD

Award penod began lnlow ng 3030
AGM an 7 Qeteber 2020

TARGET $HARE PRYCE FOR VESTING

Esthar £12 per shore {for owatds to
CFO, Chiet Commearcial Gfficer und
£00) or £15 per shore [proposed
oward ta Michnel Murnmy

£10 pec share

FERFORMANCE PENIOD

Up to 4 yaors from AGM 2021

Up ta 5 years bom AGM 1020
extended by 1 yeor due 1o impact of
the Covid1¥ pandem

FOTRNTIAL VESTING DATES

if the shore price target 15 achuesed
by Octobur 2035 owords ve
equol tranches, 50% nial
50% 1 yeor iatar The Commnitres may
allow ull Gwards to vext sarky it the
£15 share prica target 1s achiaved
Howaver. shares woulsl normaty be
deliverad in two tranches

If 10 target acfueved bry Grtober
2024 nwards vest
tranches, $0%
1 yeqr lntar Vha Commiteg moy
allow oh awards ta vest early if the
£15 5hore price lusget s oCtweved
However, shares would normolly be
delivered m two tranches
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s Hing

The extension of the performance period

for the Fearless 1000 plan is seen to benefit
participonts as it provides an additional period
to achieve the £10 share price target given that
the difficulties associated with the Covid-19
pandemic have impacted the business in the
first year of the Fearless 1,000 plan,

As o Committee, we consider it very impartant
to align Executive Directors and senior
executives to the aspiration of the Feariess
10C0, albeit at an enhunced performance
target of £12 or £18 as appropriate.

Chair And Non-executive Director Fees

Although not a matter for the Remuneration
Committee (Being a matter reserved for the
Board), the Board has delegated responsibility
for setting the remuneration of the Chair to the
Remuneration Committee which has carried
out o review of the Chair’s fees and of the
Non-executive Directors’ fees. As o result of that
review the Board has decided {o increase fee
levels for the Chair and Non-executive Directors
as detailed on page 58, This is the first increase
in fees te the Chair and Non-executive Directors
since the |PO in 2007,

Format Of The Report And Matters To Be
Approved At Qur 2021 AGM

At the 2021 AGM, shareholders witl be asked to
approve three resolutions related to Directors’
remuneration matters. These resolutions ore:

= to approve the Directors' Remunergtion
Policy;

+  to approve the Directors’ Remuneration
Report; and .

+  to introduce the new Executive Share
Scheme described above.

The vote to approve the Directors’
Remunergtion Report is the normal annual
advisory vote on such matters.

If approved by our shareholders, the Directors’
Remuneration Policy will apply for a maximum
of three years from the 2021 AGM and will
replace the Directars’ Remuneration Policy
previously approved at the 2018 AGM,

For completeness, a resoiution wili also be
proposed at the 2021 AGM to amend the

rathened sross, the

FRASERS GROUP

Fearless 1000 plan for consistency with the
Executive Share Scheme with regosds to
potential acceleration of the vesting and
release of shares if the £15 share price target for
the award ta Michael Murray is achieved,

| hope that our shareholders remain supportive
of our approach to executive pay at Frasers
and vote in favour of the resolutions on
rermuneration matters to be tabled at the 2021
AGM.

David Brayshaw
Chair of the Remuneration Committee

5 August 2021

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION
POLICY

This report contains the materiol required

to be set out as the Directors’ Remuneration
Report for the purposes of Part 4 of The

Large cind Medium-sized Companies and
Groups {Accounts and Reports} {Amendment}
Regulations 2013, which amended The Lurge
and Medium-sized Componies and Groups
Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 (the
DRR Regulations').

This part of the report sets out the Company's
proposed Directors” Remuneration Policy
which, subject to shareholder approval, shall
take binding effect from the date of the 2021
AGM and remain valid until the 2024 AGM.
The proposed Policy is determined by the
Committee, and key proposed changes to }
elements of the current Directors’ Remuneration
Policy, which wos approved by shareholders

at the 2018 AGM and expires at the 2021 AGM
have been highlighted for ease. As exploined
in the statement from the Chair of the
Remuneraticn Cemmittes, the Remuneration
Committee has decided to introduce a new
executive share scheme that appropriately
aligns Executive Directors' interests with

the interests of shareholdess by focusing on
absolute shareholder valfue, and intends to
seek shareholder approval for the Executive
Share Scheme at the 2021 AGM. Consequential
changes have been made os to reflect the
changes to the Remuneration Policy.
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FUTURE POLICY TABLE )

The table below describes each of the elements of the remuneration packege for the

Executive Directors,

OPERATIGN

FRASERS GROUP

MAXIMUM

PERFORMANCE MEASURES

CHANGES TO POLICY 1O BE APFROVED AT
THE 2021 AGM

Base sulurs ure normally revivwad amwally

Mika Ashley does not cuctently receve a slary lar his
o

Although saluries for Execulive Directors [other than

Wik Ashley, who toes not currently recere u <aloryt are

sef ot levels below the omounts typicaily pard by sumlor
sized companies, tha Cammittes retains discretion ta
sat sabanes ot levalt considered appropnate for the
business, consmidering its size and complaxity

Not appilicable

Na change

curent Exer utive Directors do not recaive ony
benefits other than the colleague discount, which is not
ovallable for Mike Askley

Benefits oy be provided in hne with morket practice
ta recrult o nuw Executive Dineclor taking into uccount
ithwidual circumstances Such

benefits may mcluda reloratan expensas tiare fully
delanled in ‘Approach 1o Recrumment Rermuneratior
betow}

Although 1he Remuneration Committea has not set an
bselute moxemum level of benefits Exacutive Directors
oy reeve, the Company retans discrelion to set
bren#fits ot @ level wiich the Remuniecation Cormmiltes
considrs nppropriata agoinst the market and to
suppart the on-going strotegy of the Campany

Not appicable

Na chanye

The Executive Duectars are entitled te participata ina
stokehoidar peasion scheine on the same bass as otiver
amployses

O reguest this benlit may be paid ax a salary
supplerment n lieu of pension contribution os necessary

The Currant maxsmutn amployer contribulion to the
stakehutder penuan scheme 13 3%

The Committes mey increase employer contribution
rates to reilact changes i the auta enrolment emplayer
ceminbytion rores

Net applicable

Na change

E£xecutiva Ditectars, akiver than Mike Ashisy, muy surn

o honus Any bonus earned (n excass of 100% of solory
waould be delerred it shores tor o pened of two years,
unlass the QMBUNE b e defarred omount would be less
than £10,000 Tha Comdres alse retdms o discretian
not to oparata delerral in an axcephonal coss ond
where salary pard n the yeor was E250,000 or hess

Any banus poid would be subjact to Jowbach tor o
penad ot 3 yaors followng its detarminotian in the
event of gross misconduct, materal ymsstatement of the
Company's lnancial statements o corporate kalure

The maximum bonus thut an Executive Director may
earn shall be 200% of solary in respect of any financiol
year

Any bonus oppostunity shull be assessed agaist one or
mere malacs determined by tie Commttes and inked
10 the Company's strategy and/or the performunce

of the Executne Diectan in gk, with the weighting
between the metncs determined by the Committee

IF relevant Bonuses will be determmed between 0%
and 100% of the mammum opportuily based an the

o af the mitrcs

The onnual bonus plan s a discretionary arrangement
und the Committee retoins o standard power to apply
Its pucigamant to odjust the cutcorme ol tha annunl bomges
plon for any purlormancae measura (from zare to oy
cop) should It consider that to be

Na change

ELEMENT OF

REMUNERATION FURPQSE / LINK 7O STRAT EQY

FASESALARY Fuxacl elamunt of the rarmun rution package, whare the
bnlonce of fixed ond vanoh e reinunerotion 1s ckgned to
the cammercinl strategy o ong-term prahitoble growth
and reflacts the Cormpany remunatation philasopliy of
gaanng reward to perloriin 1ce with o shanng of risk
berwuen Executive Directors and sheaveholders

BENEFITS . Wath the pxcaption of & 20% collaugue discount an
products purchased lrom tha Group's retanl stores, whach
18 avoilabie ta Executive Bireclars other than Mike
Ashley, na additions! benefits are generully avaloble
to Executive Dwectors Tha sarme laval of discaunt 1s
ovaldabie to af colleagues

RETIREMENT Prowda post-ermployment betehts b recrut ond ratam

BENEFITS indivrdugls of the calibre required for the business

ANNUAL BONUS Rewards the Executive Diractur for performance wluch
SUPpPOrs the Group's strategy and pedormance s rale

LONG TERM INCENTIVES Touotivate and laeentivise de very

of sustdined perlormonce aver the long term, ond
ke promote allgnment with sharehoiders’ intarasts,
the Company intends to opera a on Executive Share
Scherne

Execulive Directors. other than Mike Ashley, may recerve
awards under the Executive Share Schame Awards

may be granted as nominal cost options o condibioinal
ahicirs awords which vest ta the extent the performonce
conthtions ame sutishied over o penod of lour years.

The Caunmittee shall hove dis¢retian to reduce the
aumber of Shares subject to on aword granted under
the Executlve Shore Scheme ty an amount egual o The
aggregate yrass sclary recewed by o participant dunng
U perlormance penod

Cluwbtick and mafus prowsons opply 16 awords granted

under the Executive Share Scheme Any amounts
recaived under the Cxecutive Shure Scharme may bea
subject to clawbock lar u peaod af 3 years lalowy
tha snd of the patformanca panod 16 the event of gross
misconduct, maturial misstatament of the Company’s
financial stutements, corporota fuure of reputational
damage

As 18 normal, the Commuttes 1etams power to settle
awartls in cash i exceptional cases only

For awords with @ £15 share price targat, tha moximum
opportumty tor an Executive Directae wiil be on aword
over up ta 6,711,409 shures

Frt owords with 0 £12 share price target, the maxmum
appartuty for an Executive Director will be an oward
aver ug ta RBO0U0O shargs

Awards will vest subject f an obsolule shure pnce
target of aithar £12 or £15 The shara prica must bu over
the target for ary periad af 30 consecutive deoling days
dunng the lour-year perigrngnce perod

The Committes moy set addiional performance
conditions an queards under the Execulive Shore
Scheme, a5 it considers appropnate

Introduction of the Executive Share Schame, which is our
naw long barm incentive plon tht wikk reward our sentor
executives for ochiewing sustained parforrmance over the
long term
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Chris Wootton, Chief Financial Officer

8000

sooh

1000

=ooa

1000

W rowdray [l Posicn [l Bonas

Purformance tn Line Manithum
Wilh Expactatians

Performanca

Lme Shara Price Growth

Far the purposes of the chart, the following assumptions have been made.

SCENARID

FIXED PAY

AORUS

Manimum Hamuasratan
wiith 50% Share
Brice inreass

LN

M.numum remuneration

Pertormance i line with
erpactabions

Meximurn remuneratian

Mcxmum ramuneration with 50%
shore price incraosa

Base solory of £250,000. .

3% of salary, capped ot lirst £50,000
of sotary,

No benefits {0z no banefts are
currently propasad to be provided ta
the Eswcutive Di

et b vellected in these charts
ts volue depends upon the valua
of the Executiva Director's purchase!

No Loinus aarned

Novasting af share awgrds,

No butws aamed becouse
opiron of the Catnnittea, the

performunce metnes wili be set
such that any borus surmed wo
ruquire the achievernent of stratch

- performanca

No vesting of share owords because
1n the opinion o the Cammuttes,
the share awards will oy vest as o
result of stretcn performonce

A bonus of 200% of salary s asmed

Coleulated based on the value of
A00.000 shares iImaxmmyrm patential
vesting far un award to the CFO

ew Executive Share

3 manth averoge)

A bonus of 200% of salory s aorned

Calculatad bosed on Hie value of
£00.000 shares ol of FY
lusing o 3 month ovierage| plus 50%
share prce increase
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Approach Te Recruitment Remuneration

When agreeing a remuneration package for the appointment of a new Executive Director, the
Committee will apply the following principles:

+ the package will be sufficient to attract the calibre of Director required to deliver the Company's

strategy;

« the Committee will seek to ensure that no more is paid than is necessary; and

* in the next Annucl Report on remuneration, the Committee will explain to shareholders the
rationale for the arrangements implemented.

The Committee will ordinarily seek to implement the remuneration package in accordance with the
elements referred to in the policy table en pages 53 to 54. Consistent with the DRR Regulations, the
Committee retains discretion to make appropriate remuneration decisions outside that policy to
meet the individual circumstances of the recruitment, subject to the limits and parameters of this
recruitment remuneration section of the Directors’ Remuneration Policy.

ELEMENT APPROACH

Base solary and benefits

Typicaity ahgried with the policy set out i the policy toble on poge 53 1n lins with the BRR Requlatons,
there 15 na formal cap on salanas in ralation fo 4 rerrulment

Retrement benshts

Adigred with the policy set out in the policy tuble an puge 53, pension benehts may ba prowdad ot
raotes aligned to mmployee levels, although the Committes may provide for such orount to be paid 1o o
pansian atrangsmant of pald as & supplement to hose salory i bew of @ pension arrangarment

Vurioble rermuneralion

Any vanabla reinunertition granted ta a newly eppormted Executive Director wauld be subysct to the
same maximum levels that generally apply undes the Dirsctars’ Remunerotion Poiicy,

The value of any buy-out atrangaments descfibed belaw} daes not count towards those maximum
Tevets Fhe Committes muy vary e apphicatian of deferal to any annual bonus apportunity to reflect
the cireumstances af the recnatment

Cormpansation tor lorleited arrangements

The Committea may muka owards on hiing an external o
arrangements forleitad on leaving u previaus emplgyer In dong so, the Comimittes wili have regard to
relevont factors including any perfonmoncs conditans uttacled ta such arrangements [and whather
such concitions ware or wees kely 10 be achiaved), the fotm of tose artunguments (e g cash or
sharat} and the tmelrame of such arrangements,

wuste o buy-out the remuneration

While such nwards are exchided from the mamimum [eval of vanubie ramu)
the Committee’s mtantion is thut the value aworded would b 1o higher
forfeitad orrongements

1referred to obowe,
he expected valye of the

Buy-out award will be subject to foreiture or clawback on early departure, with 100% being subjact te
ferferture if the Executive Dhrector departs within 12 months of inng, and o g scale down to 50%
1 Lhe departure occurs within 12 and 24 months of joiming, Gt the Cammittee's discretosn

IF necessary, the Campany will pay appropriate relocation casts in the yaar of appemnment ond for
Further bwo financial yeors, s it considers appropnate The Cormunitter will seek to ensure thol ne more
15 pard than s necessary

Any share awards referred to in this section will be granted as far as possible under the Company's
existing share schemes. If necessary and subject, where relevant, to the limits referred to above,
awards may be grented outside existing share plans as permitted under the Listing Rules, which
allow for the grant of awards to facilitate, in unusuol circumstances, the recruitment of an Executive

Director.

Where a position is filled internally, any on-going remuneration obligations or outstanding variable
pay elements shall be allowed to continue according to their subsisting terms or be adjusted to
reflect the new appointment as appropriate.

The remuneration package for a newly appointed Non-executive Director would normally be in line
with the policy set out in the future policy table above for Non-executive Directors.

throuah the Waoaodland Trust, helpmig 1o creala New Bntish woodiand across the UK
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Service Contracts And Policy On Payments For Loss Of Office

The Company's policy is for Executive Directars to be employed on the terms of service contracts
which may be terminiated by efther the Company or the Executive Director on the giving of not more
than 12 manths’ notice. All Directors are subject to annual re-election.

Executive Directors

Details of each current service contract are set out below:

UNEXPIRES TERM /
CTONTRACT DATE NOTICE PERIOD GOVERNING LAW
Mike Ashley Wo2/3007 12 marths” England & Woles
Chnis Woottan D6/03/2017 & manths Engiond & Wobes

*The Campany nioy trrmnate Mr Astiey's serve e confrart by gwing & manths' netica of be 1s unable to periorm s dutes tor over 120 duys . ony
comsecutive 12 manths.

The principles on which the determination of payments for loss of office wilt be approached are
summarised below:

Poyment in liew of nohce The Company moy 1 note gn Exacutive Diractor's emplayment with immadrges ellact by mpking o
1 of hotit® consisting of hasic salary UL exciuding any banus, Commission, benafis br

haliday entitlement durng the nobice penog

The Compary may & Y Ehe poyment 1n eu of NAUILE N 0 juMmp Lurm ar daf o 115 diserebion, pay
Use amount 15 equal monthly nstolments dunng Hhe notice penod, with such irstolment payments tn
e recduced i the evert thot the Executive (et tor cbbans olte/natue i o witin The Ratiee per ad

5. and his service controit does nt

Mke Ashlzy does not receive uny sukiry or contractuol be
prowide for a peyment ey of actice

Annuol honus ‘Whether to oward @ borus in full or i part in the evert of a term
of the s rehion of the Camontles on an individyal basrs ond dey

during the Lenus penod in guestion Typically banus amounts wauld anly be ouu to “good leuvers’ and
ba pro-vated for time in serice to sl cle on perk Any bonus »n respert at
the year of tirminotion &1 pracading yeor which would otherwse bie delumrec o shares moy b Lo d
el ur corsh ot the eleeiion of the Cominiltae

Any deferred bonus weuld tyRically contimue in the event of tervination (oth dsmssal tor
cgusel ond be relzgsad b the Executwe Dimctor ot the end of the orgerelly onticipated dufesrl penod,
although the Cufminittes haos Siscretion 10 relédse the MOUNE Laoher IN OpMOPNAlE it winalantes

Exerulive Srare Scheme

IF gn Executive Director ceuses mmplayment or resigns dunng the periormance peaar, nis
award will generally lopse However,f the Executive Dreelor dies e the Comimties yetec

the pOrtcipaNt ruthinned ermoloyer
Committee hos o stondore alibty to vary hme pio-rating Vsted Lut unexercised owrds o
be retainad by a participgnt, except 1n coses of miseoneuct

Qther poyments The Remunemtion Commttee reserves Hie rgh! Lo moke od nak ext poyments whare such
payments are madz in guod foith in diseharge af on existing legol obligar by woy of dumages for
bruach of such an abriegation) e by way of setlernent or compromise of M arngng in connechon
with the termination af o Directar's office or n qirc  paymeres
may alsc be made m respect of legal fees and autplatement seres Were the Company Lo moke
an oward o recrutment of on Executive Divector & buy out remunerotian orongamerds fgrleitsd an
loawing a previous smployer then the leaver pravisions for thot sward would be determined at
of grant A payment moy glsa ba meade in respect of acc rued but ontakes haliday For ine ave
doubk, the palicy does nat include an explicit cap on the cast of terminoticn payrments
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Non-Executive Directors

The Non-executive Directors enter into an agreement with the Group for a period of three years,
other than the Choir whose agreement continues until terminated in accordance with its terms. The
appointments of the Non-executive Directors may be terminated by either party on one month's
written notice and in cccordance with the Articles of Association of the Company. Terminotion would
be immediate in certain circumstanceas {including the bonkruptey of the Non-executive Director).

Non-executive Directors [cther than the Non-executive Workforce Director) do not and are not
entitled to participate in any bonus or share scheme. The Non-executive Werkforce Director is
entitlad to participate in employee bonus and share schemes for employees, including all-employee
schemes.

The oppraach to determining Non-executive Directors pay is to benchmark ourselves against
other companies/retailers within the FTSE 250. Each year the remuneration of all Directors is put
for shareholder approval at the AGM. Last year, 99.81% of shareholders voted in fovour of the
remunerction report.

Non-executive Directars ore subject to confidentiality undertakings without limitation in time.
Non-executive Directors are not entitied to receive any compensation on the termination of their
appointment.

Detoils of the Non-executive Directors' letters of appointment are set out helow:

KND DATE OF

" Dots of letteral  APPOINTMENT {subjnct

Pasition intmant  to annued eehtion at

the AGM)

Gouid Daty Non-executive C 16 July 2020 it Qurober 2023
Dawid Brayshow Non-emcutive Dheector 23 Apni 20790 Ak Dacember J0I2
Nt olg Fromptan - Nen-exscutve irectar I October 2018 30t Septamber 231
Rizicird Bultairiey Non-gxetulive Dwactor 1 Octoher 2618 30th Septambes 2021
Cally Pricy Nun-executrve Director & Ocroher 2020 Sth Oeroher 2072

Copies of the service contracts of Executive Directors and of the appointment letters of the Chair
and Non-Executive Directors are available for inspectian at the Company's registered office during
normal business hours and ok the AGM.

Payments Outside The Policy In This Report

The Committee retains discretion to make any remuneration payment or payment for loss of office
outside the policy in this report:

= where the terims of the payment were agreed before the policy come into effect;

+ where the terms of the payment were agreed at a time when the relevont jndividual was not
a Director of the Company ond, in the opinicn of the Committee, the payment was not in
consideration of the individual becoming o Director of the Cempany; or

«  to satisfy contractual commitments made under legacy remuneration arrangements.

Fer these purposes, "payments” includes the satisfaction of awards of variable remuneration and,
in relation to an award over shares, the terms of the payment are "agreed” at the time the award is
gronted
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E t With Shareholders

L k- 4

The Committee consults major shareholders
and representative groups where appropriate
concerning remuneration matters,

General representations have been received
from investors regarding overall FTSE
remuneration. The Committee has due regard
+o the Investment Association principtes, and
1s always happy to receive feedback from
shareholders. There have been no changes

to the Remuneration Policy as a resuit of
shareholder engagement.

Colleague Reward

It is worth reminding shareholders that our UK
colleagues [excluding the Executive Directors)
who have participated in our share schemes
have received, subsequent to any IPC bonus
payments, a total valtue of £250m of awards

s nee their introduction.

In addition to share schemes, the Company
cperates other bonus and incentive awards for
its workforce. By way of recent example, in FY21
colleagues in our UK retail operations received
a total of £5.4m in bonus and incentive awards,
A significant proportion of these other bonus
and incentive awards were paid to our casual
retail workers.

During FY21, the Company launched the
Frasers All-Employee Omnibus Plon (known
as "Fearless 1000") following approvel by
shareholders at the 2020 AGM. The Fearless
1000 plan is available to all
qualifying Fraser Group employees (except for
the Chief Executive, Chief Financial Officer,
Crief Commercial Officer and Chief Operating
Officer and is intended to provide a significant
one-off reward for employees if a stretching
share price growth target is achieved within a
five year period.

There are two related but distinct patts to the
Fearless 1000 plan as follows:

+  Share awards to those 1,000 eligible and
qualifying employees in the business whe
most demonstrate outstanding service and
performance consistent with the Company's
values; and
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» Cash bonuses to eligible and qualifying
employees in the Company's group, to
reward them for their loyalty and hard work

A similar incentive plan is alse available for our
non-employee Group workers.

As explained in the Committee Chair's letter,
we took the decision to extend the original four
year performance period for the Feorless 1000
plan to up to five years due to continuing UK
lockdowns in FY21. As a result, the performonce
periads for the Fearless 1000 plan and the
proposed Executive Share Scheme will each
end in October 2025,

The Remuneration Committee remains
committed to transparent and simple
remuneration for Executive Directors based ~
upon reward for significant finoncial and
personal perfoermance only. The Committee

‘also remains committed to appropriately

rewarding cur large and loyal workforce.

Qur Workforce nominated Director, Cally Price
engoges with colleagues through regular and
multi-channe! communication mechanisms.
This enables colleagues to understand the
strategy of the Company, the vital role ol
colleagues play in contributing to the overall
success of the Group and how this is rewarded
and to roise any questiens directly with « Board
mamber. Cally has been directly involved in

the review of retail colleague pay during FY21.
The Committee has reviewed the salaries, other
remuneration and other employment conditions
of senior and middie managers throughout

the Group, ond has taken them into account in
considering Directors’ salaries, The Committee
has considered pay and employment conditions

- of colleagues [other than the Directers) and has

aligned pension contributions and colleague
discounts of the Directors with employees.

Whilst the Company has not directly consulted
with employees on Directors' remuneration, the
views &f colleagues can be expressed by the
Workforce Director.

FRASERS GROUP

ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION

This part of the Directors’ Remuneration
Report sets out the actual payments made by
the Company to its Directors with respect to
the period ended 25 April 2021 ond how our
Directors’ Remuneration Policy will be applied
in the year commencing 26 April 2021,

Implementation of our Remuneration policy
for FY22

The members of the Committee hove no
personal financial interest, other than as
sharehotders, in the matters to be decided, no
actual or patential conflicts of interest arising
from other Directorships and no day-to-day
aperational responsibility within the Company.

Base Salary And Fess

Chris Wootten's salary has increased to
£250,000 per annum, with effect from 1 May
2021 (from £150,000). Whilst the Committee is
aware of sensitivities towards salary increases
for executive directors generally, the proposed
salary increase for Chyis is considered
appropriate due to his very strong performance
in his role since appointment in September
2019,

Despite this increase, Chris’ base salary will
remain at a level well below the lower quartile
for a CFO in a business of the size and
complexity of the Group.

Mike Ashley does not receive a salary for his
role.

Fees for the Chair and Non-executive
Directors are normally reviewed annually.

In respect of fees for FY22, David Daly wil
receive an increased annual fee of £150,000
{from £100,000) for his role as Chair, Richdrd
Bottomley, David Brayshaw and Nicola
Frampton will each receive a fee of £65,000
[from £50,00:0] for their roles as Non-executive
Directors. Cally Price will receive a fee

of £20,000 {from £15,000) for her role as
Non-executive Workforce Director.

o Trust. hetpng to create new Brlshs woodiand auross tho UK

Pension {Audited)

The contribution rate for Chris Wootton will be
3% of salary, copped at first £50,000 of salary,
being the maximum employer contribution
rate available under the Company stakeholder
pensien scheme. No Director participated in a
defined benefit scheme.

Mike Ashley is not eligible to receive employer
contributions under the Company stakeholder
pension scheme,

Annual Bonus Scheme

Chris Wootton will be eligible to earn a bonus
in respect of FY22. Any amount earned shall

be determined by reference to one or more
performance metrics determined by the
Committee cnd linked to the Company’s
strategy and/or Chris Wootton's performance

in role. The Committee will provide appropriate
and relevant levels of retrospective disclosure of
the assessed criteria applied to the FY22 bonus.
Any such bonus shall be of up to 200% of
salary, and any bonus earned in excess of 100%
of salary may be subject to deferral,

Mike Ashley shall not be eligible to earn
bonus in respect of FY22.

Long Term Incentives

Chris Wootton will be eligible to participate
in the new Executive Share Scheme (subject
to shareholder approval of at the 2021 AGM).
He will receive an award of 600,000 shares.
The award may vest four years after grant,
subject to a stretching obsolute share price
performance target.

Mike Ashley is not eligible to be granted awards
under the Executive Share Scheme.
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Single Figure Tuble {Auwdited)

The aggregate remunerction pravided to individuals who have served os Directors in the period
ended 25 April 2021 is set out below, along with the aagregate remuneration provided to individuals
who have served as Directors during the prior financial year.

Lomgetetm .
Solaries and Othar . Totol fixed Total variable
Biractar fors  Bunefits _u“hu_zﬂ.. Pansienfd| Ol emunnroticn ramunaretisn

FYal FY20 FYD B¥R0 Fvi EYI0 FYD £Y20 FYII FYI0 Fvz) Fvag F¥3l FYIG FYM FYan

GO0 QD £DDO FOODG FOO0 OO E£00Q EOOD £090 000 £000 €000 FODO  FOOY ECOO  EGQO

Ashlay - - - - - - N . . - - .
Chns Wonttan * O P8 - - w0 - - - ) 1% By S8 85 10p
Jon Kempster N 63 N - N - N L TNMA &4 N ()
David Daty WO 160 - : - - - - - 160 101 w00 1wl
Oavid Broyshaw 050 - - . . - - - 150 51 50 5 -
Micols Frampton 50 50 - - - - - - 1 15 &5 £
Richard Bottairley 5050 - - - . - - 150 50 51
Cally Price S WM - - - - N - -85 15 ]
TOTAL 4 an - - 10 - - - 2 & n an_ an 10 -
H Chos Woattons remuneration for FY20 o3 set out in the tabls i his remungratn ¢ perind from the dote of is uppantment o 12 Septemuar
2018
2} Jon Kempstar's remunerabion for FT20 05 set cut intiha abovg table 15 his temungranon For the pensd fram 29 Al 2013 uitil 17 September 201y
when he ceased to be an Exscutive Birgclor No payment wds made ta Jan follawing his resg
{3]  Further details of the bonus autturm for Chns Weakton lor FY3vean he found on page 38
4] Punsions re pravided via u defined coritirkubion to the Compuny stokehalder pension schame (see page 571

Futther Information On The FY21 Annual Bonus.
.Qim Wootton received a bonus of £I100,000 in respect of FY21.

In awarding this bonus, the Committee considered Chris’ strang leadership of the Group through a
very chollenging period. While no formal criteria were set at the beginning of the year due ta the
uncertainties of the Covid-19 pondemic, the Commitiee considered the impact of Chris’ cantribution
to the financial results detailed in the Financial Review and his personal leadership of the Group's
response to the Covid-19 pandemic.

Payments For Loss O Office And Payments Ta Former Directors (Audited)

No payments for loss of office or poyments to former Directors were made in FY21.
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Stut t OF Directors’ Shareholding And Share Interests (Audited]

The beneficial interests of the Directars who served during the year and of their connected persons
in both cases at the beginning of the financial yeor, or ot the date of appointment if later, and ot the
end of the financial year, or at the date of resignation if earher, in the share capital of the Company
ore shown below:

Ordinary Shutes held ot 23 Srdinary Shares held ot 28
Apri 7021 of if sarfinr the  April 2020 of if warfier the

FRASERS GROUP

dute of darts of revignation
DIRECTGRS AS AT 15 APRiL 2021
M Ashhey 330000500 330000000 _*
Chyis Woaton B
Gaia Doy 24205 2100/
Nitoln Frampton 5732
Bowd Broyshow 6 3
Ruchrred etariey 000 10060

Cally Pree

There has been no change to the interests reported above between 25 April 2021 and 5 August 2021,
Other than noted on page 62 the Company did not receive any nolifications under DTR 5 between
25 April 2021 and 5 August 2021, - ;

As at 5 August 2021, neither Chns Wootton nor Mike Ashley participate in any Company share
scheme arrangement. Therefore, there are ne outstanding share scheme interests held by any
Director of the Company.

Fririked an Steinbas 1000 Beeyaled
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Performance Graph And Table Total Ceoc Remuneration And Performunce-Reluted Pay
The followirg graph shows the Company's pe -formance measured by the Total Shareholder Return The table below shows details of the total remuneration and performance-related pay for the
compared with the performance of the FTSE “00 and FTSE 250 index {excluding investment trusts). Company's Chief Executive over the last ten financia! years.
xeculive Share Scheme
Tetal mmunsration at 0 % af maziawm
—=—  Frosers Graup ple - FISC100  ——@— FTSE 250 x Investment Trusts eppectunity
FY21- Mike Ashley MNIF N
450 FY20 - Mike Ashley N
FYie « Mike As N/A
400 F118 —"Mike: Asht NAA
FY17 — Mike Ashley N/
350 FY1? - Dove Forsey (62,500 Njb
FY16 - Dave Fatsey £150,000 N/A
a0g FY15 - Dave Forsey E£180,000 0% '
FY¥1d - Dove Forsey 150,000 NJA
250 FY13 - Duva Forsey 2150000 N
F¥42 - Dave Forsey F150,000 N/A
200 U M Ashisy was appomnted o5 Chiel Executive with aflect from 22 September 201
(2t Dave Forsey esigned with affect from 22 20% His totol 10 15 e ren Fon warned in the pracd from 25 Apnl 20% untl
150 the data his resignation took stact
K1) The figures for FY15 reflact Dava Forsey's detisian an & June 2016 16 forego an oward over 1 milhon shares which would otherwise hove been oue to
00 vest an 6 Septermbur 201/
50 3 . . .
Chief Executive To Employes Pay Ratio
a9 on 301 2010 2014 2018 016 017 208 1019 2020 a1 In line with reporting requirements, the Company s required to disciose ratios which compare

the total remuneration of the Chief Executive, to the remuneration of the 25th, 50th and 75th
percentife of the Group's UK employees. The Company has not disclosed these ratios and associated '
The Committee considered these as appropriat= indices against which to compare the Company's supporting information on the basis that Mike Ashley is not remunerated by the Company.
performance. They are widely accepted os national measures and include the companies that '

investors are likely to consider alternative investments.

Tears ¢
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Relative Importance Of Spend On Pay o

The table below sets out the Group's distributions to shareholders by way of dividends ond share
buybacks, investrnent |calculated as set out below) and total Group-wide expenditure on pay for all
colleagues las reported in the audited financial statements for FY21 and FY20] and the Company's
share price {calculated os of the close of business on the last day of FY21 and FY20).

iy FY10 -n-nn_hh-.—._MM

Distrsbrubions 1o shoreholdess by woy of divdend and shore buybock £43800.000 0%,
Investment” £231.300000 1322 RO0.00G 28 W%
1 diture on oy for il empk £377100,000  £482800,007 225°h

Share prce [pence)tt 5155 7266 127 5%

h

mprsas of Intwases
widlzw $rorm uperting 6

ond caprtol exsent
rex] as the Boord bulieves these to be the mast relgvan

be year Isee Consalifoted Custe Flaw Staterment and note 37
asurgs af e Group's Invesrment in fullre growth

"*For these purposes, the share price for FY21 and the share price tor FY20 s cotculated ot the close of busmess on 23 Apni 2031 ond 24 Apri 2070
cespactively, beg the lust warking doys price (o the year ends

Remuneration Committee

During FY21, the Remuneration Committee consisted of David Brayshaw ond Nicela Frampton who
are considered indepéendent and the Chair of the Board, David Daly. The purpose of the Committee,
as previously outlined, is to assist the Board to ensure that Executive Directors and senior executives
receive appropricte levels of pay and benefits.

Attendance at the meetings held during the year is detailed on poge 43.

The members of the Committee have no personal financial interest, other than as shareholders, in
the matters to be decided, no actual or potential conflicts of interest arising from other Directorships
and ne day-to-day operational responsibility within the Company.

Advisers To The Committee

Mike Ashley, the Chief Executive, and Chris Wootton, the Chief Financial Officer, have advised or
makeriafly assisted the Committee thraughout FY21 when requested. Executive Directors are not
present during, nor do they take part in, discussions in respect of matters relating directly ta their
own remuneration.

During the year, FiT Remuneration Consuttants LLP {*FIT") were oppointed as adviser to the
Committee. FIT are a founder member of the Remuneration Censultants’ Group and adhere to its
code of conduct. Fees totalling £127184 plus VAT have been paid for its services during the year for
the provision of advice to the Committee oh various aspects of remuneration including advice on
the remuneration policy and the drafting of the rules of the Fearless 1,000 scheme. The Committee
has reviewad the quality of the advice provided and whether it properly addressed the {ssues
under consideration ond i5 satisfied that the advice received during the year was objective and
independent. FIT has no personal connectien to the Company or its Directors.

Total Remuneration

The Committee considers that the current remuneration arrangements promete the fong-term
success of the Compony within an appropriate risk framework and are suitably aligned te the
Company's objective of delivering long term sustdginable growth in Total Sharehoider Returns giveri
bonuses are discretionary.
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_workforce expectations.

Remuneration Principles

A key priarity is to ensure that our
Remuneration Palicy is aligned with strategy

to achieve the long-term success of the Group.
The Committee ensures that it complies with
the requirernents of regulatory and governance
bodies including, but niot limited to, the UK
Carporate Gevernance Code (" the Code”),
whilst meeting stakeholdet, shareholder and

The Remuneration Committee and Board
remnin committed to a fully transparent and
simple Remuneration Policy that is oligned
with the interests of all its shareholders. In the
operations of the Remuneration Cammittee we
reitergte our commitment to the following key
principles:
+  Clarity: We provide open and transparent
disclosures regarding our executive
remuneration.

+  Simplieity: Our Remuneration Policy for
our Executive Directors is straightforward
and understocd by both Directors and
shareholders.

+  Predictability: Most components of Director
remuneration are either fixed or subject to
indwvidual caps set by reference to base
salory. Through the use of a share price
measure under the Executive Share Scheme,
performance cutcomes ore predictable
and highly aligned to the experience of our
shareholders.

- Propartionality: Our Executive Director
sglaries are amongst the lowest in the FTSE
250. Variable pay awards are ‘at-risk’ and
linked to delivery of aur strategy and long-
term performance, to ensure thot poor
performance is not rewarded.

*  Risks and behaviours: We ensure thot
in our operations we identify and
mitigate reputational risks arising from
our remunerotion qrrangements and
behavioural risks related to incentive
targets.

+  Aligniment ta culture: Increases to pay
and bonuses are enly owarded where the
Executive Director demanstrates high leve!
behaviowrs and performance cansistent
with Company purpose, values and strategy.

FRASERS GROUP

Responsibifities Of The Committee

« Determining the Company’s policy on
Executive Director's remuneration, including
the design of bonus schemes and targets,
shore schemes when oppropriote, together
with payments under them;

«  Determining the level of remuneration of the
Chair and each of the Executive Diractors;

+  Setting the remuneration for the first layer
of management below the Board level,
including the Company Secretary;

¢+ Monitoring the remuneration of
senior management and making
recommendations in that respect;

+ Agreeing any compensation for toss of
office of ony Executive Director; and

+  Ensuring that the Comparny's Remuneration
Policy remains fit for purpose and takes
note of any new regulotary requirements,

What Hus The Committee Done During The
Year?

+  Reviewed and approved amendments to the
Company's Remuneration Palicy;

«  Reviewed and epproved the Directors’
Remuneration Report for FY21;

+  Reviewed Executive Directors’ and senior
executives’ pay {including actions taken
in response to the impact of the Covid-19
pandemic);

+  Considered shareholder feedback regarding
rerruneration policy and implementation;

+ Considered and approved the appointment
of independent remunerction consultants;

+ Agreed the introduction of the Fearless
1,000 schems;

+  Reviewed gender pay gap reporting; and

+ Monitored developments in governance
and reporing requirements, refating to
remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee meets several

times a year, with 3 formal meetings and ¢
number of ad hoc meetings held in FY21.
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FRASERS GROUP

Shareholder Voting

DIRECTORS' REPORT

The following toble sets out actual veting in respect of the resolution to approve the Directors’

Remuneration Report for the year ended 26 A 3ril 2020 at the 2020 AGM and the resolution to Results For The Period And Dividends

approve the Directors' Remuneration Policy at the 2018 AGM.

The Directors of Frasers Group plc present their
Annual Report and Accounts for the period
ended 25 April 2021. The Groug's Corporate
Governance Statement forms part of the

Revenue for the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2021
was £3,625.3m and profit before tax was £8.5m

Votes far “otar a-:-.n_“.. wogolat Totevete Wetee Directors’ Report. cempared with £3,957.4m revenue and £143.5m
- profit before tax in the prior period. The trading
Directors” Ramuneration Repart tor the yaet ended 26 Apnl 1070 463,415,430 99 81 HO6,BEE 0¥ 464312296 1087 Pri mg- ivities And Business Review results for the ﬁm:o_u_ and the Gro U_m financial
Act up's fi i
Directars” Remuiecation Policy .
{vots to upprove ot 2016 AGH] 442947083 vear  Tneon 159 450007 a1l The Chief E tive's Report and Busi position as at the end of the year are shown
— e Chief Executive’s Report and Business ; < .
Diractors’ Remuneration Foticy ataga3se? e a1ia - s in the attoched financial statements and

[vota to amend at 2020 AGM m respoct of Fearless 1,000]

David Brayshaw
Chair of the Remuneration Committee on Behalf of the Board

Review provides a detailed review of the
Group's current activities and potential future
developments together with matters likely to
affect future development, performance and
conditions. Principal risks and uncertainties
likely to affect the Group are set out within the

discussed further in the Chief Executive's Report
and Business Review and in the Financial
Review on pages 19 to 21.

The Board has decided not to propose  final
dividend in relation to FY21 {FY20: nill. The

> August 2021 . Principal Risks and Uncertainties section. The Board remains of the opinion that it is in the
financial position of the Group, its cash flow, * best interests of the Group and its shareholders
liquidity position and borrowing facilities are to preserve financial flexibility, facilitating future
described in the Financial Review. The Strategic investments and other growth opportunities. '
Report covers environmental maotters, including The current situation in relation to the Covid-19
the impact of the Group's businesses on the pandemic has resulted in o number of retailers
environment, the Group's workforce, customers, finding themselves in extreme financial
suppliers and on community engagement. difficulties. We therefore currently feel that
aying a final dividend at this uncertain time
i._m. principal activities of the Group during the ﬂoﬁ_umvm inappropriate when facing such an
period were: unknown future. The payment of dividends
+ retailing of sports and leisure clothing, remains under review.
footwear and equipment, lifestyle and Share Copital And Control
luxury apparel;
+ retailing through department stores, shops. As n.un 5 August 2021, :._..w:m, are m.ao..monmo.
and online: ordinary shares of 10p in issue and fully paid,
' of which 127,180,137 were held in treasury. As at
+ wholesale distribution and sale of sports the period end there were 121,260,175 ordinary
. and leisure clothing, footwear and shares held in treasury.
equipment, lifestyle and luxury apparel
under Group-owned or licensed brands; and Further information regarding the Group's
) . issued share capital can be found in note 24, ~
+  licensing of Group brands. Details of our share schemes are alse set out in
Frasers Group ple, through varicus subsidiaries, note 24,
has established branches in @ number of " o
different countries in which the business There are no .m_umn_*_n restrictions on the transfer
operates. of shares, which are governed both by the
general provisions of the Articles of Association
Further information on the Group's principal and prevailing legislation. The Directors are
activities is set out at the front of this document not aware of any agreements between holders
and in the Chief Executive’s Report and of the Company's shares that may result in
Business Review. restrictions on the transfer of securities or on
voting rights,
61
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Authority To Issue my..n.ﬁu

The Directars were authorised to allot shares
in the capital of the Group up te an aggregate
nominal amount of £17,311,406 (being
approximately. one third of the then issued
share capitol} for the period expiring at the 2621
AGM,

In line with guidance from the Association of
British Insurers, the Company was also granted
authority te issue a fursther third of the issued
shara capital to o total neminal amount of
£34,622,812 in connection with a rights issue.

An aythority to cllot shares up to o

maximum nominal value of £2,596,711 (being
approximetely 5% of the then issued share
capital) os if statutory pre-emption rights did
not apply, was alse gpproved. In addition, the
Directors were granted a further authority

to aliot up to o maximum nominal value of
£2,696,711 (being opproximately 5% of the then
issuedt capital) as if statutory pre-emption rights
did not apply when such allotment was for the
purposes of financing (or refinancing, if the
pewer s used within six months of the original
transaction) a transaction which the Board
determined to be on acquisition or other capital
investment of a kind contemplated by the
Pre-emption Group's Statement of Principles on
disapplying pre-emption rights.

The Group wes quthorised to make market
purchase of ordinary shares of 10p each in

the Company of up to a maximum aggregate
number of 77,849,395 representing 14.99% of
the Company's issued ordinary share capital at
the 2020 AGM. The above authority expires at
the close of the next AGM of the Company.

The authorities expire at the close of the

next AGM of the Company, but a contract to
allot shares under these authorities may be
made prior to the expiry of the autherity and
concluded in whole or part ofter the AGM, and
at that reeting other authorities will be sought
from shareholders.

$hare Buyback

During the period to 25 April 2021 the Compony
did not purchase any shares under the
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Share buyback programme. The Company
recommenced its Share buyback programme
a4 May 2021 ond on 21st June 2021 and since
4 May 2021 has purchased 5,519,962 additianal
ordinary shares. No shares have been disposed
of by the Company to this date.

Shoreholders

No shareholder enjoys any special control
rights, and, except as set out below, there are
no restrictions in the transfer of shares or of
voting rights.

As a controlling shareholder Mike Ashley has
entered into a written and legally binding
Relationship Agreemert with the Company.
This agreement ensures that the controlling
shareholder camplies with the independence
provisions set out in Listing Rule 6.5.4. Under
the terms of the Agreement Mike Ashley
undertook that, for so iong as he is entitled to
exercise, or to control the exercise of, 15% or
maore of the rights to vote ot general meetings
of the Company, he will;

= conduct all transactions and relatianships
with any member of the Group on arm's
length terms and on a normel commer<ial
basis;

.+ exercise his voting rights or other rights in

suppart of the Company being managed in
acrordance with the Listing Rules and the
principles of good governance set out in the
2018 UK Corporate Governance Code ond
not exercise any of his voting or ather rights
and powers to procure any amendment ta
the Articles of Association of the Company;
and

+  other than through his interest in the
Compony, not have any interest in any
business which sells sports apporel and
equipment, subject to certain rights, ofter
notification to the Company, to acquire
any such interest of fess than 20% of the
business concerned, and certain other
limited exceptions, without receiving
the prior approval of the Non-executive
Directors; and not solicit for employment
or employ ony senior employee of the
Company.

FRASERS GROUP

The Company has complied with this Agreement's independence provisions during the period and,
as far as the Company (s aware, the controlling shareholder and his associates have also complied

with them.

As at 25 April 2021, the Company had been advised that the foilowing parties had an interest in 3%
or more of the issued share capital of the Company pursuant to Rule 5 of the Disclosure Guidance

and Transparency Rules {"DTR");

Mk Ashley

o

1% Asse! MATTIgenent FortMars Liftkted

m Mike Asnley howels the shares thiougly bwg con

the Campany! respectively

o5, namely MASH Bato |
5 158 £4%. Of tha 1ssusld andmary Sorg fotate) of the Coimpuny] ind 26 492,940 ordmary siares 1510% ol

PERCENTAGE CF
NUpnER gp  SSUED ORDINARY HATURE OF
SHARES HELD $HARE CARITAL HOLBING
WITH VOTING
KIGHTS HELD
330100000 53 54%s Bt
3B B72 152 74 Dhrecy

it and MASH Holdings Lim»

hold 303507460 ordinary
e issued Srceary share copital of

12 Thase hgures are s at 1 il J071 buing the (st ate g wirch thie Compuny was nothed of a crunga 1nthe par ritage of shares

Between 25 April 2021 and § August 2021 [being the lotest practicable date prior to the publication of
this Report) there hove been no changes in the interest held by the above parties.

ADR Programmes

We are aware of unspansored American
Cepository Receipt [ADR) programmes
established from time to time in respect of our
shares, We have not sponsored or autherised
their creation and any questions should be
directed to the relevant depositary.

Frasers Group has not and does not intend

to offer or sell its ordinary shares or other
securities (in the form of ADR or otherwise) to
the general public in the United States nor has
it listed or intend to list its Ordinary Shares

or other securities on any national securities
exchange in the United States or to encourage
the trading of its Ordinary Shares on any over

the counter market located in the United States.

The Group does not moke arrangernents to
permit the vating of ordinary shares held in the
forrn of ADRs and its publication of periodic
financiol and other information is not intended
to facilitate the operation of any unsponsored
ADR programme under Rule 1293-2(b) of US,
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended or
otherwise,

Articles Of Association
The Company's Articies of Association may only

be amended by special resolution ot a general
meeting of shareholders, Subject to applicable
laws and the Company's Articles of Association,
the Directors may exercise ali powers of the
Company.

Takeovers

The Directors do not believe that there are any
significant contracts that may change in the
event of a successful takeover of the Company.

Share Schemes

Detaits of the Executive share scheme are set
out in the Directors’ Rermuneratien Report.

Colleague Involvement

The Group currentfy has more than 25,00G
colleagues in its stores, offices and warehouses.

The workforce is notified of announcements
and major changes in the businiess via
Company emails, Slack, socic! media and

our intranet, as well as information being
communicoted through line menagers.

The Company has elected @ Workers'
Representotive, Cally Price, who attends all
Board meetings and provides feedback from
colleagues to the Baard and is a trusted
advocate for colleagues. The Company also has
the “Your Company, Your Voice" scheme which
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enadbles colleagues to raise issues of concern
via suggestion boxes. The contributions are
read by senior management and the Workers'
Representative who provides the Board with
an overview and replias to colleagues as
appropriate. A selection of questions received,
and answers given by management are
disployed in communal areas for colleagues.
Cally has been key in representing colleague’s
views in the Board room and has a dedicated
time slot at every scheduled Board meeting.
Much focus this year has been on the impact
of the Covid-19 pandemic on our employees
and Cally has been involved in Board decisions
and communication to staff regarding new
safe systems of work approved by the Board
to maintain good Covid-19 practices at our
warehouse, offices and steres and has alse
provided feedback to the Board on mental
health wekinars run in conjunction with the
Retail Trust. Cally makes weekiy visits to Head
office and has worked with management on
initiatives including diversity, pay structures and
staff benefits.

Training programmes ond induction courses
provide the workforce with opportunities to
keep up to dote with the iotest developments
of the Group. Prior to the Covid-19 pandemic
our annual retail conference offered attendees
an opportunity to celebrate their successes,
receive updates on how the Group's strategy
is progressing, and for them to judge how

the Group is performing via the ‘Confident or
Concerned’ questionnaire.

There are various incentives availukle to our

. retail colleagues. These incentives include our 5
Star Commission Scheme, Turnover Bonus, PBT
Bonus, Stocktake Bonus and other commission
schemes. These schemes vary between fascias.
Retail colleagues (including casual workers) are
also el le to participate in the Fearless 1000
bonus scheme.

Further information on engagement with our
people can be found in the Cur People report.

63

Diversity And Equal Opportunities

The Group's recruitment policy is to match the
capabilities and talents of each applicont to
the appropriate job. Factors such as gender,
race, religion or belief, sexual orientation, age,
disability or ethnic origin are ignored, and
decisions are made with regard to candidates
irrespective of these factors. Diserimination in
any form is not tolerated within the Group.

Applications for employment by persons
with any disabitity are given fufl and fair
consideration for all vacancies and are
assessed in accordance with their particulor
skills and ab

The Group endeavours ta meet its
responsibilities towards the training and
employment of disabled people, and to
ensure that training, career development and
promotion opportunities are availabie to all,

The Group makes every effort to provide
continuity of employment if any of our
colleagues become disabled. Attempts

are made in every circumstance to provide
employmaent, whether this tnvolves adapting
the current job role and remaining in the same
jobs or moving to o more appropriate role.

Job retraining and job adeptation are just

two examples of how the Group works in the
interests of its workforce to promote equal
opportunities in order that an individual's
employment within the Group may continue.
The Group values the knowledge ond expertise
thaot our people hove gained throughout their
time with us, and therefore does not wish to
lose valued colleagues,

Further information on our approach to
diversity can be found in the Our People report

Business Relationships

Details of relationships with our suppliers,
customers and other stakeheolders are set out in
the s.172 stutement within the Strategic Report
and the Corporate Governance Report.

R ch And Devel "

{4

The Group designs some clothing and footwear
for our in-house bronds for sale in stores.
External brands are purchased from third-party

suppliers although we do work with them to
agree on the specific pieces which we sell
in-store.

Charitable And Political Donations

During the year, the Group made charitable
donations of £3k (2020: £13k) in the UK. No
political donations were made (2020: nil).
Further information on our charitable donations
and community initiatives can be found in the
ESG Report.

Directors

Details of current Directors, dates of
appointment, their roles, responsil
significant external commitments are set out on
pages 37 to 3%. The membership of the Board
of Directors has remained the same throughout
FY21,

Although the Company’s Articles of Association
require retirement by rotation of one third of
Directors each year, the Group complies with
the 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code and
at each AGM all of the Directors will retire and
stand for reappointment.

Infermation on service contracts and details of
the interests of the Directors and their persons
closely associated {[PCAs) in the share capital
of the Company at 25 April 2021, and at the
date of this Repoit, 1s shown in the Directors’
Remuneration Repoit.

Copies of the service contracts of Executive
Directors and of the appointment letters of the
Chair and Non-executive Directors are available
for inspection ot the Company's registered
office during normai business hours and at the
AGM.

No Director has @ directorship in common or
other significant links with any other Director.

Director appointments are governed by The
Companies Act 2006, the 2018 UK Corporate
Governance Code and the Group's Articles of
Association.

The Diirectors confirm that:

» 5o far as each Director is oware, there is
no relevant audit infermdtion of which the
Company's auditors are unaware; and

Prinlerd on Steinbess 100°% Hecycled and Cabon Caplurad through the Woodland Trust, helping {o create new Brtish woudiand across the UK

*+  the Directors have taken all steps that they
ought to have token to make themselves
aware of any relevant audit information and
to establish that the auditors are aware of
that information.

Directors’ Conflicts OF Intarest

The Boerd has formal procedures to deai with
Directors’ conflicks of interest. The appointment
letters of Non-executive Directors state that
they agree to consult with the Chair prior to
accepting any directorships in publicly quoted
cormpanies or any major external appointments.
Also, if any Non-executive Director becomes
aware of any potenticl conflicts of interest

the Chair and Company Secretary must be
natified as soon as this becomes apparent.
During the period neither the Chair or the
Company Secretary were aware of any

further appointments or patential conflicts of
interest. The independence of Non-executive
Directors is reviewed by the Board annually. All
Directors complete an annual questionnaire

to record any potential conflicts of interest .
The questionnaire for FY21 did not disclose any
conflicts of interest-

The Company has entered into a'Relationship
Agreement with Chief Executive, Mike Ashley,
whose wholly-owned companies, MASH
Holdings Limited and MASH Beta Limited,
currently hold approximately 510% and 58.44%
respectively of the issued share copital of the
Company (excluding treasury shares). This
agreament is described in the Directors’ Report.
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Directors’ Indeninities

The Group has gualifying third-party indemnity provisions for the Directors within the meaning given
ko the term by s234 and 5235 of the Componies Act 2006. This is in respect of any potential exposure
of liability in their capacity as a Director of the Company and of any Company within the Group.
Such indemnities were in force throughout the financial period ond will remain in force.

Sporty Ditect Employee Benefit Trust

We note that the Trustees of the Sports Direct Employee Benefit Trust have waived their right to
receive dividends on the ordinary shares comprised in the trust fund. No dividends were paid by the
Company for the period ended 25 April 2021 (FY20: £nit).

Disclosures Required Under Uk Listing Rule 9.8.4
The information required by Listing Rule 9.8.4 is set out in the table below:

APPLICABLE FUB-PARAGRAPH WITHIN LR 9.0.4 DISELOSURE PROVIDED

[N Interast capitaksed by the Group N/A

{2} Publieation vf unaudited Fnoncial information i)

[3 Requiremnent deleted [rom the Listing Rules

14) Distoils f long-term ineentive slemes only N
rwaiving o Director

5] whuver ot amelumants by o Dvectar N/A
181 Wruser ol luture amoluments by a Directar [
{2 Non pro-raote allotments lor esh [issuer) ~i
18 Nor pro-rote olatments for cash Imajor N
subsithiciries)

(%) Parent porticipotion n a plocmg by a isted N,
subsdary

110 Contracts of significance NAA
1} Prewision of services by o controling bage 56
shoreholder

02 Shoreholdey wawers of diyidends poge &1
$13] Shareholdur wavers af hature dradands N
(14} A with fing sf . nage €l

Green House Gas Emmissons And Energy Consumption

See The Environment report
Annuo! General Meeting

Furthar detoils on the date, time and format of proceedings will follow shortly after the finalisation
of these Annual Report and Accounts, taking into account Government guidance surrounding the
Cavid-19 pandermic,
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Going Concern

The Group's business activities, together

with the factors likely to affect its future
development, performance and position are set
out in the Chief Executive’s Report and Business
Review.

The financial position of the Group, its cash
flaws, liquidity position and borrowing fac
are described in the Financial Review. In
addition, the financicl stotements include the
Group's objectives, policies and processes

for managing its capital, its financial risk
management objectives, details of its financial
instruments and hedging activities, and its
expasures to credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group still trades profitably, is highly cash
generative and has considerable financial
resources. The Group is able to operote within
its banking facilities and covenants, which

runs until November 2022, and is well placed

to take advantage of strategic opportunities

as they arise. As a consequence, the Directors
believe that the Group is able to manage its
business risks successfully despite the continued
uncetain ecohomic outlook.

Management has assessed the level of trading
to date since the impacts of the Covid-19
pandemic and has forecast and projected o
conservative base case and also a number

of even more conservative scenarios taking
into account a potential further wave and
associated lockdowns over winter, Government
support, foreign exchange exposure and

cost saving initiatives. These forecasts and
projections show that the Group will be able

to operate within the level of the current
facility and its covenant requirements {being
interest cover and net debt to EBITDA ratios).
Managerment also has o number of mitigating
actions which could be taken if required such as
putting on hold discretionary spend, liquidoting
certain assets on the balance sheet and paying
down the Revolving Credit Facility. See the
Viability Statement for further details,

Having tharoughly reviewed the Group's
performance and baving made suitable
enquiries, the Directors are confident thot the
Group has adequate resources to remain in

FRASERS GROQUP

operational existence for the at least 12 months
from the date of these financial statements.
Trading would need to fall significantly below
levels observed during the pandemic to require
mitigating octions or o relaxation of covenants.
On this basis, the Directors continue to adopt
the going concern basis for the preparation of
the Annuo! Report and Financial Statements
which is a period of at least twelve months
fram the date of opproval of these financicl
statements,

Accountability And Audit

A statement by the External Auditor can
be found on poge 66 detailing its reporting
ies, The Directors fulfil their
responsibilities, and these are set cut in the
Directors’ Responsibilities Statement.

Auditor

RSM UK Audit LLP will be proposed for
reappointment ot the AGM. in accordance with
5489(4} of the Companies Act 2006, resolutions
to determine remuneration are to be agreed at
the AGM.

Post Balance Sheet Evants

See note 36 of the Annual Accounts,
Future Developments

Future developments are discussed throughout
the Strategic Report.

B iol Risk M t

Financial risk management is discussed in note
3 of the financial staterments.

By Crder of the Board.

Tom Piper
Compuany Secretary
5 August 2021
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DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The directors are responsible for preparing the
Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report, the
Directors' Remuneration Report, the separate
Corporate Governance Statement and the
‘inancial staterments in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare
group and company financial statements for
each financial year. The directors have elected
under company law to prepare group financial
statements in accordance with international
accounting standards in conformity with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and
are additionally required under the Listing Rules
of the Financial Conduct Authority to prepare
the group financial statements in accordance

with international financial reporting standards -

adopted pursuant to Regulation (EC) Ne
1606/2002 us it opplies in the European Union.
The directors have elected under company law
to prepare the company financial statements
in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice {United Kingdonr
Accounting Standards and applicable law),

The group financial statements are required
by taw and international accounting standards
in conformity with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006 and international
f.nancial reporting standards adepted pursuant
to Regulation (EC) No 1606/2007 as it applies
in the Europecn Unicn to present fairly the
financial position and performance of the
group; the Companies Act 2006 provides in
relation to such financial statements that
references in the relevant part of that Act te
financial statements giving a true and fair
view are references to their achieving a fair
presentation.

Under company law the directors must not
approve the financial statements uniess they
are satisfied thot they give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the group and the
company and of the profit or loss of the group
for that period.
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In preparing each of the group and company
financial statements, the directors are required
to:

a. select suitable accounting policies and then
apply them consistently;

b. make judgements and accounting estimates
that are reasonable and prudent;

¢. for the group financiol statements, state

whether they have been prepared in
accordance with international accounting
standards in confarmity with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006
and international financial reporting
-standards adopted pursuant to Regutations
{EC) No 1606/2002 as it applies in the
Eurapean Union;

d. for the company financial statements,
state whether applicable UK accounting
standards have been followed, subject
to any material departures disclosed
and explained in the company financial
statements;

e. prepare the financial statements on
the going concern basis unless it is
inappropriate to presume that the group
and the company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping

" adequate accounting records that are sufficient

to show and explain the group's and the
company's transactions and disclose with
reasonable aceuracy at any time the financial
peosition of the group and the company and
enable them to ensure that the financial
statements and the Directors' Remunetation
Report comply with the Companies Act 2006 -
and, as regards the group financial statements,
Article 4 of the [AS Regulation. They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of

the group and the company and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and”
detection of fraud and other irreqularities.

D rertoes’ . B,

To The Discl

ahd Transparency Rules

Each of the directors, whose names and
functions are listed on pages 37 to 39 confirm
that, to the best of each person's knowledge:

a. the financial statements, prepared in
accordance with the applicable set of
accounting standards, give a true and
fair view of the assets, liabilities, financiai
pasition and profit of the company and the
undertakings included in the consolidation
taken as a whole; and

b. the Strotegic Report contained in the
Annucl Report includes a fair review of
the development and performance of the .
business and the position of the company
and the undertakings included in the
consolidation taken as o whole, together
with a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties that they face.

The directors are responsible for the
maintenance and integrity of the corporate
and financiai information included on the
Company's website.

Legislation in the United Kingdom governing
the preparation and dissermination of financial
staternents may differ from legislation in other
jurisdictions.

Chris Weotton
Chief Financial Qfficer
5 August 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO
THE MEMBERS OF FRASERS GROUP PLC

OPINION

We have oudited the financial statements of
Frasers Group PLC {the 'parent company') and
its subsidiaries (the ‘group’} for the peried ended
25 April 2021 which comprise the Consolidated
Income Statement, the Consolidated Statement
of Comprehensive Incame, the Consolidated
Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Cashfiow
Statement, the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity, the Company Balance
Sheet, the Company Statement of Changes in
Equity and notes to the financial statements,
including o summary of significant accounting
policies. The financial reporting framework

that has been applied in the preparation of

the Group financial statements is applicable
law and International Accounting Standards

in conformity with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006 and international
financial reporting stondards adopted pursuant
to Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002 as it applies
in the European Union. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in the
preparaticn of the parent company financial
statements s applicabte law end United
Kingdom Accounting Standards, including

Financial Reporting Standard 102 ‘The Fincnciat -

Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and
Republic of ireland’ (United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice),

In our opinion:

+  the financial statements give a true end fair
view of the stote of the group's and of the
parent company's affairs as at 25 April 2021
and of the group's loss for the period then
ended:

+ the group financial statements have been
properly prepared in accordance with
International Accounting Standards in
conformity with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006 and internationcl
financial reporting standards adopted
pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002
as it applies in the European Union,
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- the parent company financial statements
have been properly prepared in accordance
with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice; and

- the financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Componies Act 2006

Buasis for apinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing {UK] (i5As
{UK)} and appticable law. Our responsib
under those standards are further described

in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of
the financial statements section of cur report.
We are independent of the group and parent
company in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financia! statements in the UK, including
the FRC's Ethica! Standard as applied to listed
public interest entities and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have abtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide u kasis for our opinion.

Conclusi luting to going J

In auditing the financial statements, we have
concluded that the directors' use of the going
concern basis of accounting in the preparation
of the financial statements is appropriate.
For an explanation of how we evaluated
management's assessment of the group’s
ond parent company's ability to continue to
adopt the geing concern basis of acceunting
and our key cbservations arising in respect to
that evaluation, ptease see the Impoct of the
Cevid-19 pandemic and Going Concern key
audit matter.

Based an the work we have perfarmed, we

have not identified any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that, individually
or collectively, may cast significant doubt on
the group's of the parent company’s ability to
continue as a going concern for a period of at

vhy
[N
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Jeast twelve months from when the financial
statements are outhorised for issue.

in relation to the entities reporting on how they
have applied the UK Corporate Governance
Code, we have nothing material to add or
draw attentian to in relation to the directors’
statement in the financial statements cbout
whether the directors considered it appropriate

to adopt the going cencern basis of accounting.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of
the directors with respect to gaing concern are
described in the relevant sections of this report.

Summary of our audit approach

Key audit maotters

Group - Recurring risks

«  Valuation of inventory

+ Impairment of property related assets
= Property, Legal and Other Provisions
- Classification of investments

Group - event driven

= Impact of the Covid 19 pandemic and geing
concerrt

Materiality

Group

»  Overall materiality: £11.milliors

+  Performance matenality: £7.2million

Parent Company
+  Qverall matenality: £11million
< Performarnce innmz.ﬂzwﬁ E71 million

Scope

Qur Group audit procedures covered 88% of
revenue, 88% of total assets and 78% of the
result before tax.

DI

B

Key awdit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that,

in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in aur audit of the group and
parent company financial statements of the
current peried and include the most significant
assessed risks of material misstatement
{whether or not due to fraud] we identified,
including those which had the grectest effect
on the overali oudit strategy, the aflocation of
resources in the oudit and directing the efforts
of the engagement team. These matters, and
any comments we make on the results of our
procedures thereon, were addressed in the
context of our audit of the group and parent
company financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opirion thereon, ond we do not
provide a separcte opinion on these matters
This is not a complete list of all risks identified
by our audit.

Inventory - valuotion and existence
Key audit matter description

At 25 April 2021, the Group Consolidated
Balance Sheet records inventory of £1,096.6m

(2020 £1198.3m}. This amount is net of an

invantary provision of £219.8m {2020: £223m).

The Covid-19 pandemic resulted in ghysical
stores being temporarily closed at various
points during the period and the resultant
reduction in the level of demand and a reduced
ability to selt through seasonal inventory may
increose the risk of inventory obsolescence.

As described in note 2 to the financial
statements, mancgement use a forward looking
inventory provisioning model which calculates
g provision by category of inventory bused an
historical experience, pricing and discounting
strategies ond management's assessment of
risk.

There is significant estimation involved in the
calculation of inventory provisions to ensure
that inventory is held at the lower of cost and
net realisable volue, This invalves consideration
of expected future losses on sale of inventory
including assessing the likely impocts of the
Covid 19 pandemic, inventory obsolescence and
the additional costs to sell which need to be
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included in calculating the net realisable value
of inventory,

Due to the factors explained above, we have
dentified the valugtion of inventory as a key
audit matter.

How the matter wus addressed in the audit
In respect of inventory valuation we:

«  Assessed the appropriateness of
management's inventery provision
colculations, including testing the aecuracy
and completeness of the data used and the
mathematical accuracy of the provisioning
model

+  Critically challenged the assumptions made
in the inventory provision model in respect
of the expected level of discounting and the
expected costs of sale, including:

- The basis on which expected discounts
were calculated and whether calculated
discounts were realistic based on
historical experience and the current
trading environment

- The assumptions regarding the
expected volume and allocated costs of
redistributing {tunnelling) and repricing
product

-~  Whether different assumptions and
estimates should be applied for different
fascias given the differentiated product
mix

+ Considered management's strategic options
for addressing demand in the uncertain

retail economic environment present das a

resuit of the Covid 19 pandemic, including

discounting levels and further development
of en-line retail channets.

As a result of our findings from challenging
management’s model, we independently
deveioped an alternative model that opplied
historic inventory loss experience to calculate
& provisicn ogainst current out of season and
clearance inventory and inventory that would
be expected to remain unsold and fall into
those categories in future periods. In addition,

and repricing costs to take account of our

« assessment of the likely future costs of these
activities in relation to products that would
have a net realisable value which was below
cost,

We then formed on assessment, based on
discussions with management and available
market datg, to reflect the impact of the
Covid-19 pandemic. This included consideration
of forecast future sales performance, axpected
margin decline, the increased risk of inventory
becoming out of season and adjustments
considered relevant for specific fascias,

where the risk of inventory obselesence was
considered to be higher. Our alternative model
allowed us to develop an estimate of the level
of provision we considered appropriate and
supportable against which we were able to
assess management’s estimates.

Key observations

Our audit work on inventory valuation, and
in particular the development of our own
alternative pravision model, did not identify
any material misstatement in the inventery
provisions.

Impairment of property related assats
Key audit matter description

As a result of the Covid 19 pandemic and
changing patterns of retail consumer behaviour,
particularly in relation to physical stores, the
Group identified that there were indications

of impairment in relation to freshold property
interests, right of use assets and related PPE
("property related assets”). As required by

1AS 35 {Impairment of Assets) the Group has
performed an impairment review of all such
assets.

As a result of this review, impairments in
relation to freehold ond long leasehald property
(£88.4m), right of use assets (£168.2m) and
related PPE (£63.8m) have been made in these
financial statements.

As described in note 2 to the financial
statements, the impairment review involves
management judgements and estimates in
relation to the volue in use of the property
related assets (being the net present vatue

of the forecast related cashflows) and, in the
case of freehold property, comparison of
calculated value in use to internal and external
property valuations. The values derived are
then compared to the book value of the related
assets ta determine whether impairment

15 required. In making this assessment
management determined each property or
store to be a cash generating unit (CGU).

The value in use calculations involve significant
assurmptions regarding future cashflows, the
long term growth rate in like for like sales, an
assessment of the propensity for customers

to switch to online purchases, pressure on’
margins and determination of an eppropriate
discount rate s well as considering the
possibility of futuré lockdowns. In the case of
freehold property, valuations are dependent
on assumptlions regarding the ability to

relet property, the length of void and rent

free periods and future rentals achievable,
Accordingly we determined that the valuation
of property related assets had a high degree of
estimation uncertainty and this is illustrated by

identified completeness, valuation, presentation
and disclosure of property reloted assets as a
key audit motter.

How the matter was addressed in the oudit

We obtained an understanding of how
management performed their impoirment
testing of property related assets and their
approach to valuation,

We critically assessed the methodolagy

applied by management with reference to

the requirements of 1AS 36 and tested the
integrity of the value in use catculations and the
caleulated impairments by CGU.

In the case of freehold property, in addition

to assessing the value in use caleulations,

we evaluated the approach to the voluation
of freehold interests with input from an
independent external retail property valuation
expert and critically challenged the underlying
assumptions.

In particular we challenged the significant
assurnptions within management's models
through:-

* Evoluating monagement's assumptions
through consideration of historical and
current trading performance and external
data points

= Sensitised the assumptions in
management’s impairment models and
reviewed the financial statement disciosures
documenting assumptions and the impacts
of applied sensitivities

+ Tested the reconciliation between
the cashflows used in the value in use
calculations with those used to assess going
concern and viability to ensure they were
consistent

+  Critically challenging whether it was
appropriate to exclude properties from the
impairment model and assessing whether
the reasons for exclusion were supportable ~
for example where specific properties were
under redevelopment

* Comparing the discount rate used with that

we recalculated the expected future tunnelling the sensitivity analysis set out in note 2, independently calculated by our internal
R Due to the factors expicined above, we have valuation expert
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We assessed whether the disclasires within the
financial statements are consistent with JAS 36,

Key observations

Our audit work in respect of the impairment

of property related assets concluded thot the
refated balances were not matenally misstateq
ond the disclosures management have made
are appropricte.

Proparty, Legal and Other Provisions
Key audit matter description

The Group makes provision for fia es where
itidentifies there is a present obligation as a
result of a post event and where it is probable
that there will be a resultant outflow of
resources that can be reliobly megsured.

The Group hos a significant Rrovision in relation
to legal and regutatory matters gnd property
refated provisions, As detailed in note 28 to

the financial statements, the Censolidated
Balance Shaet includes pravisions of £215.8m
{2020 £225.4m) relating to legal and regulatory
matters and £144.1m, (2020, 107.9m) relating to
property provisions which principally comprises
provisions for dilopidations on leasehold
properties,

The dilapidation provision requires significant
judgements to be made as to future amaunts
payable bosed on histarical experience,
external advice and evolving conditions within
the property sector,

Additionally, the Group faces o number of
legal, tax and other commercial claims and
sigritficant judgement is required in determining
whether a provision should be recorded and for
what amount.

Due to the amounts involved and the
significant judgements fequired in quantifying
and assessing provisions we have identified
existence, accuracy, completeness, presentation
and disclosure of property, iegal and other
provisions as a key oudit motter,
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How the matter was addressed in the qudit
Our audit work included the folowing: -

»  Considering management's assessment
in respect of provisions and assessing
whether the recognition criteria of |AS
37 - Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent assets had been met.

* Chollenging the assumptiens made in the
dilopidation pravision model in respact
of the expected level of dilepidations on
a store by store basis, As o result of our
findings from challenging management's
model, we independently deveioped an
aiternative modef thot applied historic
dilepidation costs and relevant foctors
such as geography and property type as
well as considering the impacts of tikely
tuture changes in the property market. Dur
alternative modal aliowed us to develop
an estimate of the level of provision we
considered appropriate and supportabie
against which we were able to assess
management’s estimotas.

» Challenging provisions and related
assumpticns with key management outside
the finance function, including membaers of
the property ond legal teams and obtaining
colroborative evidence from third parties inr
relation to materiat ongoirig legal and tax
rmatters

* Auditing the movement in provisions and
checking for completeness through the
review of ongoing claims for dilapidations
and through circularisation of legal advisors
in relation to other claims,

Key observations

Qur audit work in respect of Property, legat and
other provisions concluded that the related
balances were not materially misstated and
the disclosures management haye made are
approprigte.

Classification of investments
Key oudit matter description

The Group has a number of investments in
which it holds more thon 20% but less then
50% of the voting share capited of the investee.

{AS 28 - Investments in associates and Jaint
Ventures - requires that where an investmeit
falls within this range it should be accounted
for as an associate, unless management can
rebut the presumption that significant influence
exists and can cleorly demonstrote that this is
the case.

The Group sold its investment in French
Connection plc duting the year but at the year
end has strategic investments i Studie Retail
Group plc {36.9%} and Mulberry Group plc
(26.%) and has rebutted the presumption that
significant influence exists, These investments
have been aceounted for at fair valye through
other comprehensive income as explained in
note Z to the financial statements.

Since the judgements that the Group has made,
that it does not have significant influence over
Studio Retail Group plc and Mulberry Group
Ric, have « significant impact over the financial
stoternents we have identified the classification
and disclosure of investments as o key audit
motter.

How the matter was addressed in the audit
Our oudit work included: -

*  Assessing the accounting for the ahove
investments under IAS 28 - Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures ond IFRS 9 ~
Financial Instrurments.

+ Obtaining and criticolly challenging
rnanagement's papers addressing the
acceunting for the above investments
against the requirement of the accounting
standards and the judgements made in
addressing the questions of significant
influence

+  Discussing management's strategy for
holding the investments and challenging
whether this was consistent with the

accounting treatment

FRASERS GROUGP

*  Assessing the five criteria set aut in IAS 28
95 suggesting whether significant influence
may exist by examining both confirming
and disconfirming evidence,

In particular we: ~

*  Obtained and examined certain
agreements and correspendence
between the Group and the investees tg
corroborate managements assertion that
no significant influence exists

* Reviewed investee financial statements,
Press announcements, articles of
association, shareholder agreements and
media reparts to gssess whather there
was evidence of significant influence

*  Made enpquiries of the Group's Head of
Strategic Investments to understand
the Group's interaction with those
irvestments, including in particular, the
nature and purpose of the abserver role
on the board of Studia Retail Group plc

* Considered whether transactions
between the Group and the investeas
were indicative of significant inflyence

¢ Critically challenging whether the
judgements macde are clearly disclosed in
the financial statements,

Koy observations

Qur audit work in respect of the classification
of investments concluded thot management's
judgements that they did not have significant
influence over Studia Retail Group pic and

Mulbetry Group ple to be supportable and the
related classification and disclosures made in
the financial stotements to be appropriate.
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Impact of the Covid 19 pandemic and going
concern

Key audit matter description

The Covid 12 pandemic and the mandated
temporary cosure of retail stores at various
times during the year, has had a significant
irmpact on the group's revenue and result
before tox, In addition te heightened oudit
risks relating to the carrying value of property
related assets and inventory set out in the
key audit matters above, the pandemic has
implications for;-

»  The Group's considerations in relation to
going concern and viability

= Accounting for monies received under the
UK Government's Job Retention Scheme
[CJRS)

Significant judgements are always required
around the assumptions underpinning future
cashflow projections. These judgements are
heightened in the current retail environment
given the uncertainties surrcunding the lenger
term impact of the pandemic and structural
changes to the UK retail sector. Whilst retail
stores have opened post year end, and web
sates have performed well, the longer term
impacts on shopping habits and the risks of
a global recessicn are difficult to accurately
predict.

Taking account of these sensitivities, the
Directors have acknowledged there will be
potentially material variations in forecast
financial performance, but concluded that

the Group has sufficient resources available

to meet its liabilities as and when they fall

due ond that therefore there are no material
uncertainties that cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern,

in undertaking their assessment of going
concern, the Directors hove reviewed forecast
future performance and anticipated coshflows
for the Group, These forecasts have also been
applied in determining the need to impair
property related assets as set out in the key
avdit matter above. Their assessment has
censidered cashflow forecasts and financing
and covenants in place for the period to
November 2022, which is the dote ot which the
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current Revolving Credit Facility expires.

As part of the assessment and as disclesed in
the viability statement on page 36, the Directors
have determined appropriate sensitivities to the
farecasts, including a reverse stress test of the
Group’s ability to meet its covenants.

We have identified a key oudit matter related
to going concern as a result of the judgernent
required in undertaking a going concern
assessment in the current uncertain trading
environment, the adequacy and accuracy of
disclosures and the conclusion that there is not
a material uncertainty related to going concern.

The Group has received furlough {CJRS) income
of approximately £80m in the year and has
recegnised this as @ reduction in payroll costs in
the income statement. The rules that applied to
furlough claims in the year were complex and
subject to variation and there are significant
penalties for non-compliance. Consequently

we identified a potentiai risk of misstatement
relating to the processing and management of
claims.

How the matter was addressed in the oudit

Our audit work in relation to going concern
included:

*  Obtaining an understanding of
management's going concern models,
discussing key assumptions with
management and assessing whether those
assumpticns were consistent with those
applied elsewhere, such as in relation to
inventory valuation and the assessment of
property related provisions

» Checking the mathematical accuracy
of management's cashfiow models, and
agreeing opening balances to 25 April 2021
actual figures

= Checking management’s covenant
compliance calculations to determine
whether there is a risk of breach and
assessed whether the assumptions in
management's base model appeared
realistic, ochievable and consistent with
other internal and external evidence

» Comparing forecast sales with recent
historical information to consider the

nd Cerbon Caplurad through the Woodland Trust, helpneg to o

accuracy of forecasting

= Considering post year end sales patterns ta
assess whether they were consistent with
those assumed in the base model

+ Testing management's sensitivity analysis
ond reverse stress test and performing our
own analysis based on further sensitising of
the maodels to take account of reasonably
possible scenarios that could arise from the
risks identified

+ Challenging menagement regarding their
identification of discretionary spend that
could be reduced should mitigating actions
become necessary

= Reviewing agreements and correspondence
relating to the availability of finoncing
arrangements

+  Evaluating the Group's disclosures on going
concern against the requirements of IAS 1

In relation to the furlough income received
by the Group under the UK Government's
Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme (CIRS) we:

+ Obtained an understanding of how
management communicated and operated
the scheme and the process by which
management calculated and submitted
their claims

* Reviewed correspondence between the
Group and HMRC

+ Agreed cash recewved for claims made
during the year to bank statements

+  Reperformed the calculction of a sample of
claims including agreeing details to payroll
records

* Reviewed the internal audit work performed
over CJRS claim procedures

1o woodiant across the UK

Key observations

Our audit work in respect of the Covid 19
pandemic and going concern concluded that
the directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements is appropriate and we did not
identify any material uncertainties relating

to events or conditions that, individually or
collectively, may cast significant doubt on
the group's or the parent company’s ability

to continue as a going concern and that the
associated disciosures are in accordance with
accounting standards.

However, the impact of the Covid 19 pandemic
on Future performance is difficult to predict with
any certainty and no audit can be relied upon
to identify all possible scenarios that may have
future implicatiens for the Group.

Our work in respect of CJRS claims did not
identify ony macterial misstatement.
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There are no key qudit matters relating to the parent comgany.

Cur applization of moteriolity

When estoblishing aur overall audit strategy, we set certain threshalds which help us to determine
the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures. When evaluating whether the effects of
misstatements, both individuclly and on the financial siatements as ¢ whale, could reascnably
influence the economic decisions of the users we take into account the qualitative nature and the

size of the misstatements. Based on our professional judgement, we determined mater

financial statements as follows:
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An overview of the scope of our audit

Our audit appreach was based on o thorough
understanding of the Group's business and is
risk based, ond in particulor included:

+ Evaluation of identified components to
assess the significance of each component
and to determine the planned audit
response based an a measure of materiolity.
This included significance as a percentage
of the Group's revenue, total assets and
result before tax;

«  For those components that were evaluated
as significant, or likely ta include significant
risks, either a full-scope or targeted
appraach was token bosed on their
relative materiality to the Group, and our
ossessment of the audit risk. For sig
components req g a full-scope
approach, we evoluated controls over the
financial reporting systems identified as
part of our risk assessment and addressed
critical accounting matters. Substantive
testing was performed on significant classes
of transactions end balances, and other
matenal balances, determined during the
Group scoping exetcise;

= Full scope audit procedures have been
performed on the financial statements of
Frasers Group plc, and on the financial
information of the main trading companies
withirt the UK Retail component;
Spertsdirect.com Retail Limited, Wareshop 2
Limited, $ports Direct International Holdings
Limited, House of Fraser Limited, The
Flannels Group Limited, Jack Wills Retail
Limited, Evans Cycles Limited and GAME
Retail Limited;

+ Inrelation to overseas components we
engaged RSM member firms in Austria,
treland and Spain, to perform full scope
componeant audits and RSM in the United
States and Belgium to perform targeted
audit procedures. Additionally, RSM
member firms attended inventory counts in
a number af locations;

FRASERS GROUP

= The group engagement team reviewed the
woark performed by the component auditors.
We determined the level of involvement
we needed to have in their audit work
at those reporting units to be able to
canclude whether sufficient, appropriate
audit evidence had been obtained as o
basis for our opinion an the Group finoncial
statements as a whole,

»  Further specific audit procedures over the
Group consulidation and areas of significant
judgement incluging impairment of property
reioted ossets, leoses, taxation and treasury
were performed by the group engagement
teair.

The aperations that were subject to full-scope
audit procedures made up 80% of consolidated
revenues, 82% of total assets and 72% of
absolute profit before tax.

The operations that were subject to targsted
audit procedures, including specific significant
judgement areas noted above, made up 8% of
consolidated revenues, 6% of total assets and
6% of profit before tax; and

The remaining operations of the Group were
subject to analytical procedures over the
balance sheet and income statements of the
relevant entities with a focus on applicable
risks identified above. This made up 12% of
consalidated revenues, 12% of net assets and
22% of profit befere tax.
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The coverage achieved v< our oudit procedu-es was:

g Full Scope ..._.nﬂm_"mn audit - Analytical procedures

Fuil scope audits were performed for 5 components {some of which included a number of legal
entities which were combined for group reporting purposes), targeted audit procedures for 4
components and analytical procedures ot group level for the remaining components.

......____......_.._...-..." Revenue Totalossets Bk
FULL SCOBE AUDIT 5 HI% H2% T2%
TARGETED AUDIT PROCEDURKS 4 B4 6% 5%
TOTAL k] BB% BB% 8%

The Group teamn hod planned to visit component locations in Austria, Spain and the USA. However,

these visits were prevented by travel restrictions imposed as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic and

instead the group team held video conference calls and perfermed remote file reviews to assess the
zudit risk and the work planned and performed in respense. )

The parent company was subject to a full scope audit for the purposes of the Group ond Parent
Company financial statements.

Other information

“he directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report on pcges 1to 65 other than the financial stataments

and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinion en the finoncial statements does not cover the other
information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our gudit of the financial sta:ements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is material
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstatad.

IF we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required

to determine whether there is o material misstaterment in the financial statements or a material
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a maoterial misstaterment of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

7
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Opinions on other matters prescribed by the
Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, the part of the directors'
remuneration report to be audited has been
properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006.

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in
the course of the audit:

+ the information given in the Strategic
Report and the Directors' Report for the
financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with
the financial statements and those reports
have been prepared in accordance with
applicable legal requirements;

+ the information about internal controf and
risk management systems in relation to
financial reporting processes and about
share capital structures, given in compliance
with rules 72.5 and 7.2.6 in the Disclosure
Rules and Transparency Rules sourcebook
made by the Financial Canduct Authority
(the FCA Rules), is consistent with the
financial statements and has been prepared
in accordance with applicable legal
requirements; and

» information about the company's corporate
governance code and practices and about
its administrative, management and
supervisory bodies and their committees
complies with rules 7.2.2, 7.2.3 and 7.2.7 of
the FCA Rules

» new Brlish woodiand acioss the 1K

Muatters on which we are required to report by
exception

In the fight of the knowledge and
understanding of the group and the porent
company ond their environment ohtained in
the course of the cudit, we have not identified
material misstatements in:

+ the Strategic Report or the Directors’ Report;
of

» the information about internal control and
risk management systems in relation to
financial reporting processes and about
share capital structures, given in compliance
with rules 7.2.5 and 7.2.6 of the FCA Rules

We have nothing to report in respect of the
following matters in relation to which the
Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to
you if, in our opinion:

+ adequate gecounting records have not been
kept by the parent company, or returns
adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

+ the parent company financial statements
and the part of the directors' remuneration
report to be audited dre not in agreement
with the accounting records and returns; or

« certain disclosures of directors’
rermuneration specified by law are not
made; or

+ we have not received ali the information
and explanations we require for our oudit.

Corporate governance statement

The Listing Rules require us to review the
directors’ statement. in relation to going
concern, longer-term viability and that part of
the Corporate Governance Statement relating
to the parent company's compliance with the
provisions of the UK Corporate Governance
Statement specified for our review.




FRASERS GROUP PLC - ANNUAL REPORT - 2021

e ——

Based on the work undertaken as part of

our qudit, we have cancluded that each of

the following elements of the Corporate
Governance Statement is materially consistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained during the audit:

.+ Directors statement with regords the
appropriateness of adopting the going
concern basis of accounting and any
material uncertainties identified (set out on
poge 64}

. Directors’ explanation as to its assessment
of the group’s prospects, the period this
assessment covers and why this period is
appropriate (set out on page 36);

. Directors’ statement on fair, balenced and
understandable (set out on page 44};

. Boord's confirmation that it has carried out
a robust assessment of the emerging ond
principal risks (set out on page 3);

. The section of the annual repert that '
describes the review of effectiveness of risk
management and internal control systems
{set out on page 44}, and,

. The section describing the work of the audit
committee {set out on page 44)

s of directors

Responsibi

As explained more fully in the directors’
responsibilities statement {set out on page
65), the directors are responsible for the
preporation of the financial statements and
for being satisfied that they give a true and
fair view, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are
free from material musstaterent, whether due
to fraud or erros.

In preparing the financiat staternents, the
directors are responsible for assessing the
group's and the parent company's ability

to continue as o going concern, disclosing,

as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend
to liquiclate the group or the parept company
or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.
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Auditor's responsibilities for the oudit of the
financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial
statements as o whole are free from material
misstotement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinian, Reasonable assurance is a high
level of ossurance but is not a guorantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with [SAs
(UK) will glways detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
feaud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the bosis
of these financial statements.

The extent to which the cudit was considered
pable of detecting irregul rities, including

froud

Irregularities are instances of non-compliance
with laws and regulations. The objectives of
aur audit are to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence regarding compliance with
laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the determination of material amounts
and disciosures in the financial statements,

to perform audit procedures to help identify
instances of non-compliance with other laws
and regulations that may have a material effect
on the financial statements, and to respond
appropritely to identified or suspected
non-compliance with laws and regulations
identified during the audit.

In reiction to fraud, the objectives of our audit
are to identify and assess the risk of material
misstatement of the financial statements

due to fraud, to obtain sufficient appropnate
audit evidence regerding the assessed risks of
rmaterial misstatement due to fraud through
designing and implementing oppropricte
responses and to respond appropriately to
fraud or suspected fraud identifled during the
audit.

2 e

However, it is the primary responsibility of
management, with the oversight of those
charged with governarnce, 1o ensure that
the entity's operations are condugcted in
accordance with the provisions of laws
and regulations and for the prevention and
detection of fraud.

in identifying and assessing risks of material
misstatement in respect of irregularities,
ineluding fraud, the group cudit engagement
team:

+  obtained an understanding of the nature
of the industry and sector, including the
legal and regulatory frameworks that the
group and parent company operates in and
tow the group and parent company are
cormplying with the legal and regulotory
frameworks;

+  inquited of management, and those
charged with governance, about their own
identification and cssessment of the risks of
irreqularities, including any ¥nown actual,
suspected or alleged instances of fraud;

+  applied analytical review procedures to
identify unusual or unexpected relationships;

+  discussed matters about non-compliance
with laws and regulations and how fraud
might oceur including assessment of how
and where the financial statements may be
susceptible to fraud

As the group is regulated, our assessment of
nsks involved gaining an understanding of
the effectiveness of the control environment
inciuding the controls established to mitigate
the risks of froud and the procedures for
complying with reguiatory requirements.

All relevant laws and regulations identified at a
Group level and areas susceptible to fraud thot
could have a material effect onthe financial
statements were communicated to component
auditors. Any instances of non-comgliance

with laws and regulations identified and
communicated by component auditors were
considered in our audit approach. We remained
alert to any indications of fraud throughout the
audit.

ERASERS GROUP

As a result of these procedures, we considered
the opportunities and incentives that may
exist within the Group for fraud and identified
the greatest potential for fraud in those areas
in which management is required to exercise
significant judgement. In comman with al
audits under 1543 {UK) we dlso performed
specific procedures ta respond to the risk of
management override and the risk of fraudulent
revenue recognition. These procedures
included:

» testing the appropriateness of journal
entries and other adjustments based on risk
criteria and comparing the identified entries
to supperting documentation

+  assessing whether the judgements made
in making accounting estimates were
indicative of potential bias

+ evaluating the business rationale of any
significant transactions that are unusua!l or
outside the normat course of business

« testing the operating effectiveness of
the manual controls in relation to the
completeness, accuracy, and existence of
cash sales

»  investigating transactions posted to nominal
ledger codes outside of the normal revenue
cycie identified through the use of data
analytics tools,

The Group is subject to laws and regulations
which directly affect the materia! amounts

and disclosures in the financial statements

The most significant laws and regulations were
detertmined to be as fallows:-IFRS and FRS

102, the UK Companies Act, inancial Conduct
Authority regulations, including the Listing Rules
and tax legislation.

iy addition, the Group is subject ta other

Jaws and regulations which do net have a
direct effect on the financial stetements but
compliance with which moy be fundamentat
to the Group's ability to operate or to avoid
material penalties. We identified the following
areas as those most likely to have such an
effect: competition and anti-bribery lows, dato
protection, employment, environmental and
health and safety regulations.
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In response to the above, audit procedures
performed by the audit engagement team
included:

+ reviewing financict stotement disclosures
and testing to supporting documentation
to assess compliance with provisions of
relevant laws and regulations described
as having o direct effect on the financial
statements

+ enquiring of management, the Audit .
Committee and in-house legal counse!
concerning actual end potentiai litigation
and claims

= reading minutes of meetings of those
charged with governance, reviewing internal
audit reports and correspondence with
HMRC

A further description of our responsibilities for
the audit of the financial statements is located
on the Financial Reporting Council's website at
httpfwww fre.orguk/ouditorsresponsi
This description forms part of our auditor's
report.

Other motters which we are required to address.

Following the recommendation of the audit
committee, we were appeinted by the Audit
Comnittee and the Board on 18 November
2919 to audit the financial statemaents for tha
year ending 26 April 2020 and subsequent
financial pericds.

Tae peried of total uninterrupted consecutive
appointments is 2 years covering the years
ending 26 April 2020 to 25 April 2621.

The non-audit services prohibited by the FRC's
Ethical Standard were not provided to the
group of the parent company and we remain
independent of the group and the parent
company in conducting our cudit.

Cur audit opinion is consistent with the
additional report to the audit committee,
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Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company's
members, as a body, in accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so
that we might state to the company’s members
those matters we are required to state to them
in an ouditor’s report and for no other purpose.
To the fullest extent permitted by low, we do not
cccept or assume responsibility to anyone ather
than the company and the company's members
as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or
for the opinions we have formed.

Mark Horwood
[{Senior Statutory Auditor}

For and on behalf of RSM UK Audit LLP,
Statutory Auditor

Chartered Accountants
25 Farringdon Street
London

EC4A 4AB

5 August 2021

2w 3

o across the UK
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

For the 52 weeks ended 25 Aprif 2021

FRASERS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2021

GROUP
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1 Properky raloted impoirments of E70m huwe been separately presanted for the year ended 25 Aprl 2021 The priar year compurctive of £1,7 ren

which was previ
e be comparobla

The Cons

'y included withr SeMing, dhstibubion and ediministrotive expanses 1nthe FY20 Annual Report has been rapresen

continuing. The accompanying accounting policies and notes form part of these

financial staterments.
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ated Income Statement has been prepared on the basis that off operations are

Nete 32 warls endid 52 waeks tided
18 April 2031 26 April 2020
{&m) &m
N ossipprolt dor the penan 4 {7801 100
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
ATEMS THAT WILL NOT BE RECLASSIFILD X oRLOSE
Fur vnlue movement on long-term inanciol oxcats 20 773 g7
ITEMS THAT WILL RE RECLASSIFIED TO PROFIT GR LOSY
£ 1 hange ehlferances on tronsiaton of foren operations ZED] 98
Four vishss movement on hedged contracts - recognised n the panod 2528 04 64
Fore vaakse: movement on hadged contracts - neflechyeness 2529 -
Fenr wnhue mowerment on hadged eontraets - reclossitied and raportad in soies 528 78
Foure vl rrcmvemens o hedged euntrarts - reclassifed ond reported i cost ot sales 2529 17 374
Fair vohue movement on hadged eontroets - 1axation token 1o raseryes 2575 ., o 28
OTHER COMPREKENSIVE INCOME/ (LOSSE FOR THE PERIOD, NET OF TAX wr 1.6
TOTAL COM | INCOME FOR THE PERIGD . les.3) 714
ATTRIBUTARLE TO:
Fawty holders ot the group 213 652
Nesn_earmroling interest sg 72
168.3) T4

The accompanying accounting policies and notes form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

At 25 April 2021 For the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2021
Nets 28 Apeil 2021 1o Aprit2020 Note STweaks ended S2waeks saded
o feml 25 Aprdi 2928 26 Aprit 2020
ABIETS = NON CURRENT . Eml fEmi
Progerty, plant and equpmant . ey aart CASH INELOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 32 s7a3 4153
Inwestrsal propertms 1 41 iR Incame taxes poid (593) 148.5]
Intangible assats 'a 1205 34 KET CALH INFLAWS FROM OPERATING ASTIVUHES [y ez
Long-term financial ossefs n 2631 s18
Deferrad tax assets 27 PP ws Praceeds on dsposal of property. plant and aquiprmant and mvesiment property 2086 1528
[Py Frocesds on disposal of intangrbies dssels 75 -
ASSETS - CURRENT Procesds on disposal of histod uwvestments und deavativas 551 49
Invantorias 2 10966 1198 3 Purchnse of pssocites - 1560
Teaids ond other tecaivobles kg 546 5 4142 Purchnse of subsidiorias, net of cash acquirdd 139 4] 73}
Dervolie financiol ssets 22 554 | Purchase of property, plant and aqupiment (215 4] 1323 5]
Zosh ond cash squivalents 7 4570 5340 Prrehare of o e aveets ™ ol -
11553 21244 Furchase of listed investments - RIEE 1248
TOTAL ASSETS 2951 b 8682
Invastmant income raceived o5 05
waury
p— o e o Finance inrome received yo °,
Share premiurn PO o NET CASH DUTELGWS FROM INVISTING ACTIVITIES [580.4) 1195.4)
“reasury sharas ressrve 12957) (295 7 [PSS— am e
Permanant contnibution to capital 5 o1 o1 E——— oo o
Capital ion reserve 5 Y
Barrowings drawn down % 281 5100
Fareign currency branslatian ceserus . 75
Feverse cambination reserva 75 (973} Barrawings rapoid 2% A8 f435 5
Chwin shara reserve 165701 Dwvidends paid to non-controlling ntarests 109 -
Fadging resarve P 80 Furchase of pwn sharas ta3t 1435
S ure Linsad payment ressrva . NET CASH OUTFLOWS FRO TIVITIES 31037 {102y
Rzlmined earnings 15645 -
LESULD CAFITAL AND RESERVET ATRIBITABLETO GWNERS OF THE PARERT v NET{DECREASEYINCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EOUIVALENTS INCLUBING OVERCRAFYTS s "o
Non-contrafng Inferests oo Exchangs movament on cash balances 153 50
TOTAL BQUITY e CASHAHD SATH EUIVALENTS INCLUDING GVERDRAFTS AT BEGINRING GF PERIOD 5.0 4dva
LIARM,ITAES - HON GURRENT CASH AND SASH LGUIVALENTS INGLUDING DYERDRAFTS AT THE PERICD ENG 23 4520 sH.0
Leasse iability 2 5342 4763
w”.ﬂﬂ””ugﬁ: P = SMM BJM The accompanying accounting policies and notes form part of these financial statements.
Deferred bax abiles 27 274 B
Pravisions 8 812 3360
18303 [Rerad
LIABLITIES - CURRENT
Derivative tinancial hability o) 92 42
Trede and athr poyables 30 6453 6025
Lease okl ¥ 26 188 S 1479 N
Curent tox liabilites 895 516
433 432
TOTAL LIABILITIES 23 15479
TOAL ENTY AN LIARILITIES 38402

The accompanying accounting policies and notes form part of these Financial Statements. The
Financial Statements were approved by the Board on 5 August 2021 and were signed on its behalf by:

Ckris Wootton

Chief Financial Officer
Company number: 06035106
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES
IN EQUITY

For the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2021

* Share capital Shore pramium’™ Trmasiry shares  Shars schame peusrve B Ownshamreerve  Retuined sarnings theyn Totel bt -r-.:u.. teeking Total
i {Em) 1Em) tem) wmi Em icmi tm (L 1Em) wm}
AT 29 APRIL Ja1¢ [Ya} LX) ann - [ 1613} 14308 Ip325) 12159 54 12113
Furchase of awn shores . - - Jad o - - 02 - 143 1 . (a2
Reversol of FY15 Far valungion of share buyback contaactyol oblgahion - - 3no - - - - - 00 - o0
INTHEIR CAPACITY AS OWNERS - - wo] . - [X] - - L] - ma
Profit for the financiol penod - - 938 938 72 w010
QTHER € OMBREMENSIVE INCOME
Cash flow hadges - recoghmsed In the bariod - ~ . - - - a kY] - LX)
Cash How heuges - welectivenesy - - . - - - 0y 03 - 02
Cash flow Brages - rackassibed ard reportad in sules . - - mnn [1k;] - an
Lnsh flew hedges - oo reported in eost of sales - - - - - 1374 341 - {37 a)
Gush How hesiges - tauation - - - - - 18 28 - 3y
Far value odjus o i respect of long term linantigk assuts - recogrisud. - - - - HERil 19 71 - 7
Tronslabon differences - Group . - 48 - - - 78 - 98
TOTAL INCOME FOR THE PSRIOD - - " - 43 (1831 €52 1 T24
AT 26 APRIL 2020 [YE] o3 1298.7) - ns 15645 1931.2) 13603 ne 12001
Acquisitions (note 31| - - . - - - - - 10 10
Share schema - - 13 - 031 147 - Gy - [
Drerlends pewd to non-cantrolling intersts - - - 1091 oy
TRANSACTIONS WITH OWNERR 1N THIIR CAPACITY AS QWNERS - - - 13 - LE) {1 X)) - [2A)] ol [LE]]
{Loss)/profit for the Binoncial penod - - - - 16301 75 50 1780y
OTHER COMPREMENS!VE INCOME
Coshflow herges - racognised in the perod - - - - - 04 o2 - o4
Coshflow hedges - rectnssified und reported in salas - - - - - - 128 28 - 128
Cashilow hedges - reclaseified gnd raporred 1n cost of solas B - - . . ] 1171 - 171)
Cushilew hedges - tesotion - - - - - - 30 19 . 20
Faw watue adpmtment m tespect of long-term finahcml assels - recogiused. - - - 73 - 173 173
Transkauon diffsrences - Group . - - g - - 433 - (231}
TOTAL COMPRRHENSIVE (LOSS| FOR THE PERIOD - - - - ()] - (k] (16.5] ey 30 (68.9)
AT 25 APRIL 2071 [l (] (2983} 13 (662) 15545 {9611 11929 w1 1,310

The share premium occow? s wred b2 record the excess proceeds over norminal value on the issue of snares

@ Cihar reserves coMpnses Parnanant Contn 110 repitol, o)
mawerments 11 the period reintad to the hedging reserve [note 258

ERNIPLION M5Arve, Taverse LuIMDAGtiON reserve of

rescio: A

The accompanying accounting policies and notes form part of these financial statements.
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FRASERS GROUP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2021

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Frasers Group plc {Company number: 06035106}
is o0 company incorporated and domiciled in
the United Kingdom, its shares are listed on tha
London Stock Exchange. The registered office

is Unit A, Brook Park East, Shirebrook, NG20
8RY. The principal activities and structure of the
Group can be found in the Directors' Report ard
the "Our Business' section.

Basis Of Preparation

The consolidated Financial Statements have
been prepared in accordance with International
Accounting Standards in conformity with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and in
accordance with international financial reporting
standards adopted pursuant to Regulation (EC)
Neo 1606/2002 as it applies in the European
Union. The consolidated Financial Statements
have been prepared under the histerical cost
convention, as modified to include fair valuation
of certain financicl ussets and derivative
financial instruments.

The accounting policies set out below have
been applied consistently to all periods in these
Financial Statements and have been applied
consistently by all Group entities, Certain
subsidiaries have been consolidated based on a
calendar year-end dote of 30 April 2021,

The numbers presented in the Financial
Statements have been rounded to the nearest
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Going concern

The Group's business activities, together with the
factors likely to affect its future development,
performance and position are set out in the Chief
Executive's Report and Business Review.

The financial position of the Group, its cash flows,
liquidity pesition and borrowing fac
described in the Financial Review. I addition,
the Financial Statements include the Group's
objectives, policies and processes for managing
its capital, its financial risk management
objectives, details of its financial mstruments and
hedging activities, and its exposures te cradit risk
and liquidity risk.

The Group still trades profitably, is highly cash
generative anhd has considerable inancial
resources. The Group is able to operate within

its banking facilities and covenarts, which run
until November 2022, and is well placed to take
advantage of strategic opportunities as they
arise. As a consequence, the Directors believe
that the Group is able to manage its business
risks successfully despite the continued uncertain
economic outlook.

Management have assessed the level of trading
to date singe the impacts of Covid-19 and has
forecast and projected a conservative base case
and also o number of even moere conservative
sceharios taking into account a potential further
wave and associated lockdowns over winter,
Government support, foreign exchange exposure
and cost saving initiatives. These forecasts and
projections show that the Group will be able to
aperate within the level of the current focility and
its covenant requirements (being interest cover
and net debt to EBITDA ratios). Monagement
alse have a number of mitigating actiens which
could be taken if required such as putting on
hold discretionary spend, realising certcin

assets on the Balance Sheet and paying down
the Revolving Credit Facility. See the Viability
Statement for further details.

Having thoroughly reviewad the Group's
performance and having made suitable
enquiries, the Directors are confident that the
Group has adequate resources to remain in

wouah the Wood

ang o create fow B

operational existence for at least 12 months

from the date of these Financial Statements.
Trading would need to fali significantly below
ievels observed during the pandemic to require
mitigating actions or a relaxation of covenants.
Cn this basis, the Directors continue to adopt the
going concern basis for the preparation of the
Annuel Report and Financicl Statements which is
a period of ot least twelve months from the date
of approval of these Financial Statements.

Basis Of Consolidation

The censolidated Financial Statements
incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and entities controlled by the
Company [its subsidiaries) each year. Control is
achieved when the Company:

+ bhaos the power over the investee;

= is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

» has the ability to use its power to offect its
returns.

The Company reassesses whether or not it
controls an investee if facts and circumstances
indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Company has less than a majority of
the voting rights of an investee, it considers that
it has power over the investee when the voting
rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability
to direct the relevant activities of the investee
unilaterally, The Company considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether or
not the Company's voting rights in an investee
are sufficient to give it power, including:

+ the size of the Company's holding of voting
rights relative to the size and dispersion of
holdings of the other vote holders;

« potential voting rights held by the Company,
other vote holders or other parties;

= rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and

= any additional facts and circumstances that
indicate that the Company hes, or does not
have, the currert ability to direct the relevant
activities at the time thot decisions need
to be made, including voting patterns at
previous shareholders' meetings.

I woodlund across the UK

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Company obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Company loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, the results of subsidiaries
acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in profit or loss from the date the
Company gains contral until the date when the
Compony ceases to control the subsidiary.

Where necessary, adjustrnents are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries te bring
the accounting policies used into line with the
Group's accounting policies.

Ali intragroup assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between the members of the Group
are eliminated on conselidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are
identified separately from the Group’s equity
therein. Those interests of nen-centrolling
shareholders that are present ownership interests
entitling their holders to a propertionate share
of net assets upon fiquidation may initially be
measured at fair value or ot the nen-controlling
interests’ propertionate share of the fair vaiue of
the acquiree’s identifioble net assets. The choice
of measurement is made on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis. Other non-centrolling
interests are initially measured at fair value.
Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount
of non-centrolling interests is the amount of
those interests at initial recognition plus the
non-controlling interests’ share of subsequent
changes in equity.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are dttributed to

the owners of the Company and to the
non-controliing interests. Total comprehensive
income of the subsidiaries is attributed

to the owners of the Company and to the
non-contrelling interests even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.
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Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiories
that do not result in aoss of contro! are
accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amount of the Group's interests and
the nen-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiaries. Any difference petween
the amount by which the nan-controiling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to the owners
of the Company.

\When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the gain or loss on disposal recognised in profit
or loss is calculated os the difference between
{i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (i} the previous carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwilll,

Jess liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests. All amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that subsidiary are accounted for

as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary

li-e. reclassified to profit of Joss or transferred .
to another category of equity as recquired/
permitted by applicatle IFRS Standards). The
fair value of any investment retained in the
former subsidiary at the date when control

s lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under
IFRS 9 when appticable, or the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associote of
a joint venture.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for
using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in @ business combination is
measured at fair value, which is calculated
as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values
of assets transferred to the Group, liabilities
incurred by the Group to the former owners
of the acquiree and the equity interest issued
by the Group in exchange for contral of

the acquiree. Acqui tion-related costs are
recognised in profit or joss as incurred
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At the acquisition date, the identifigble assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed ore
recogrised at their fair value ot the acquisition
date, except that:

. deferred tax assets or labilities and assets
or liabilities related to employee tenefit
arrangements are recognised and measured
in accordance with 1AS 12 and 1AS 19
respectivel

. liabilities or equity instruments related
to share-based payment arrangements
of the ncquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered
into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquire are measured
in accordance with JFRS 2 ot the acqu
date (see below); and

«  assets {or disposal groups) that are
classified as held for sale in accordance
with IFRS 5 cre measured in accordance
with that Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree,
and the fair value of the acquirer's previously
held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net of the acquisition-daote amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed. If, ofter reassessment, the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer's
previously held interest in the ccquiree (if any),
the excess is recognised immediately in profit or

loss as o bargain purchase gain.

For business combinations achieved in stages,
the Group remeasures its previously held equity
interest in the acquiree ot its acquisition date
fair value and recognises the resulting goin

or loss, if any, in the Income Statement as
appropriate.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence and that is neither

a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture.
Significant influence is the power to participate
in the financial and operating pelicy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control

over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of
associates are incorporated in these financial
staternents using the equity method of
accounting, except when the investment is
classified as held for sale, in which case it is
accounted for in accordance with IFRS S.

Under the equity method, an investment

i an associate is vecognised initiclly in the
consclidated stotement of financial pasition at
cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group's share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate. When
the Group's share of losses of an associate or
a joint venture exceeds the Group's interest in
that associate (which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group's net nvestment in the associate), the
Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. Additional losses are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the assaciate.

An investment in an associate is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on
which the investee becores an associate. On
acquisition of the investrment in an associate
any excess of the cost of the investment over
the Group's share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and lid
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is
included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group's share .
of the net fair value of the ident able assets
and liab s over the cost of the investment,
after recssessment, is recognised immadictely

FRASERS GROUP

in profit or loss in the period in which the
investrment is acauired.

The requirements of 1AS 36 are opplied to
determine whether it is necessary to recognise
any impairment loss with respect to the Group's
investment in on associate When necessary,
the entire carrying amount of the investment
{including goodwll} is tested for impairment

in accordance with IA5 36 asa single asset by
compating its recoverable amount (higher of
value in use and fair value less costs of disposal)
with its carrying amount. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance
with |AS 36 to the extent that the recovercble
amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity
method from the date when the investment
ceases to be an associote. When the Group
retains an interest in the former associcte

and the retained interest is a financial asset,
the Group measures the retained interest

at fair value at that date and the fair

value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition in accordance with IFRS 9. The
difference between the carrying amount of the
associate at the date the equity method was
discontinued, and the fair value of any retained
interest and any proceeds from disposing af

o part interest in the associate is included

in the determination of the gain or loss on
disposal of the associate. In addition, the Group
accounts for all amaunts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to
that associate on the same basis 05 would be
required if that associate had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if

a gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income by that associate would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal
of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit
or loss (as a reclassification n&:m:._.._m:: when
the associate is disposed of.




\When the Group reduces its awnership interes:
in@an associote gt the Group continues @

use the equity rnethot, the Group reclossifies
to profit of logs the proportion of the aain

o loss that had v_.miocw_z been Enom:..mmn
nother nDBﬂ..m:m:m,zm ncomne ¥
that reduction in ownership inberest fthat

with an associate of the 30Uk profits and
losses resulting fror the transactions with the
associate oF joint venture e yacoghised in the
froup’s no:mo:&onma financial statements only
to the extent of nterests in the gssociat® that
are not related to the Group.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue with customers 18 neasured pased o0
the five-step mooe) under IFRSS ‘Revenue
from Controcts with n:mno:.éqm_“

1. identify the cantract with the custamer

5. identify the vm}u:ﬂo:nm ohligations inthe
contract;

3, determing the transaction price:

4. ofocote the yransaction price O separate
performance obiigutions inthe contract
and

5  recognise reyenuas when tor a8l each

ﬁmq_"o_.an_snm abligation is satisfied.

peovenue i rneasured at the foir volue of the
consideration received, OF receivobie: ond
epresents amounts caceivable for goods
w:.ov:ma_ srated net of discounts retuwns and
value added taxes. Customers have 8 right of
return within @ mvmnimm period and this gives
rise to yorioble consideraiion under FRS 15,

custorners on seturn of thei® goods recognised
wthin trade ond okhet no<g_u_wm,

\n the case of goods sold through retail Stores,
revenue s recognised wnen we have satisfied
the Humzo:.:o:nm obligation of transiermng the
goods o the custome’ ot the peint of sale, less

. Pnnc:ﬁ_bnma experience i
Lsad to estimate and provide for such returns at
the time of the sale. Retail sales ore usualy in

s, Giaeyched and Garben ot

cash, by Jaebit card of by credit card.

tn the cOs8 of goods soid an the jnternet
where the customer has oppred for detivery.
revenue is _.m,nc@:,wm& when we hove satisfied

Provisions are made for internet credit notes
posed anthe expected |avel of etusms using the
expected value method which in turn s pased

derpmed k@ have peeh 52

are dispatched frorn the worehouse:

In the case of goods cold ko othey businesses
Vi wholesdle channels, revenue 1s ,doom:.ﬁma
when we have satistied the ﬁmmo_...:n:nm
0.0_60:03 of rransierring the goods 1© the
customer upon delivery. ﬂﬂ(Bm:« Lorsms GFe

ganerdlly 30-60 days with no

right of return.

Iy the COSE of income mm:waﬂw& from
ﬂammBn_.rw and licences javere is _‘mnomamma

Revenus from Gym membership fpes is
Eno@:.w&. onthe accruals hosis over the

related mempership period.

iy the £O5€ of renEnME from hird party
cormmission on concession sales within the
House of Frasar department stores this

sold to the

stoted ot the yalue of the commission thot
the Group raceives o0 the pransaction rather
than the Qross revenue from the sai@ of the

no:nmmmmo:n:mm. goods.

al pauey e Woadand it

a1, D TORR I HUER

The Group operates loyalty U_.om_.u_.:_.:mm
which allow mesmnbers accumulot® points
on purchases and recaive exclusive offers and
penetis. The foir value of the points awarded
to customers i3 determined relative to the
totol transoction price ond accounted for 05
a mmvnq.onm dentificble campanent of a sales

DS@BBBmm. the revenus that wos deferred 5
recognised. \n the UK. points awarded expire
foltowing @ paviod of 12 morehs of ingetivitys
in Spain they are vatid il the end of the

represent deferred reverne priof o the
redemption.

mn..-ins..n Grants

Government grants oré not recognised antil
tnere 15 qmamosDEm assurance that the Graup
wilh comety with the conditions attaching te
thern and thot the grants will be jeceived.
Gronts that ore raceivople a5 no_,:vm:mozg for
expenses OF losses already incurred of for the
purpese of giving immediate financial suppert
o the GTOUP with na future related Costs Or8
yecognised 1 the Income Seatement i the
period in which thay become receivoble.

Yhe Group has raceived 00<mq:3man suppatt
mihe um:.om relating 1o business jotes revief
ond the Coronavinis Job Retention Schame
(CIRSYasa cesult of the Covid19 panderaic.
The armount received DY the Group finchding
the UK in the vmaoa in Emo& to the CIRS for
mﬂczaﬁnn where received n non-Uk wmzﬁoq_mw,
wis appror. ganm, The amount of business
rates retief received BY the Group 10 the period
lor mc.:Zo__m:n where raceived N non-JK

o Trrnsh woudliang across e LK

_u.»mmw.m cROV?

“

Lerritories) was approx- £97.5M. Government
grants that compensaie the Group for expenses
incurred are recagnised 0 profit of |oss as @
deduction against the related expense Ve

the periods necessary t© mateh therm with

heen qmnoma_mma in Selling, distripution ond
D&B..Emnqﬁm._qw axpenses inthe umzon—.

muaav»mo.an_ {rtems

The Group presents mxnwn«,o:u_ terns o0

the foce of the income Sroternent. Yhese are
significant iterns of incom® and expense which
because of their size nature and infrequency
of the everts giving Hse ta them, et
separate ﬁamaznen_oa o cllow chareholders

1o better c:nm..w_n_u:n_ the elements of financial
performance in the year, =0 as to facilitot®
companison with prioY periods and Gasess
trends it financial pertarmance rmare readly.

Interest income

|nterest income is Encama on an accruals basis
using the effective interest rethod.

Toxotion

liobilities attributcble {0 temporary differences
ond to urused (osse3-

Deferred taxation i no;n:_.nnma using the
liclbility methad, o0 ramporary ditterances
arising petween the tox boses of assets and
nd theif carrying arnounts in the
idated Einancicl Stotements: However.
ferred tdx arises from he initiat
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nat roxable profit oF lass, it is not nnnocz_”ma
for. Deferred tox 0 Lernporary differences
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impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the refevant asset is
carried at a re-valued amount, in which case
the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease to the original historic cost and then
as ah expense.

lonpaoirment losses recognised for CGU's to
which goodwill has been allocated are credited
initially to the carrying amount of goodwill. Any
remaining impairment loss is charged pro rata
to the other assets in the CGU.

Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
[CGU) excluding goodwill, is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but
so that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (CGU) in prior periods
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
in the Income Statement immediately.

Assats Held For Sale

Non-current assets clossified as held for sale
are presented separately and measured at the
lower of their carrying amounts immediately
orior to their classification as held for sale and
their fair value less costs to sell. Once classifiec
a5 held for sale, the assets are not subject to
depreciation or amortisation.

Inventories

Inventaries are valued at the lewer of cost and
net realisable value. Cost includes the purchase
price of the manufactured products, materials,
direct lobour and trensport casts. Cast is
caiculated using the weighted average cost
method. Net realisable value is based on the
estimated selling price less all estimated selling
costs.

The Group receives trade discounts and rebates
from suppliers bosed upon the volume of
orders placed in a given time window. Typical
discounts and rebates received by the Group
include early settlement discounts, volume
rebates on inventory purchases, supplier
rebates based on faulty goods, and marketing
support. Where there is sufficient certainty
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that a discount or rebate will be received in
the future that relates to historic purchases this
is reflected in the cost of inventories. Where
the receipt of rebates is uncertain, the cost of
inventories is held at full cost price until the
rebate is received. Recognised rebates are
refeased to the Income Statement to the extent
that the stock has been sold.

Cash And Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in
hand and deposits held on call, together with

" other short term highly liquid investments that

are readily convertible to known omounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value. .

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabiiities are
recognised in the Group's Balonce Sheet when
the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly ottributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and

i ies (other than financial assets
ies at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the Fair vaiue of the finoncial assets or financial
es, as oppropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the
ion of financial assets or financial

es at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets are derecognised when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or when the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards are transferred. A financial liability
is derecognised when it is extinguished,
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Financial Assets

Classification and initial meosurement of
financial assets

Except for those trode receivables that do not
contain o significant financing compenent

and are meosured at the transaction price in |
accordance with IFRS 15, all financial assets
are initially measured at fair value adjusted for
transaction costs (where applicable),

Financial assets, other than those designated
and effective as hedging instruments, are
classified into the following cotegories:

+ omortised cost

«  fair value through profit or loss .ﬂ.<._._u5

+  fair value through other comprehensive
income [FVOCI)

All income and expenses refating to finoncial
assets that are recognised in profit or loss
are presented within finance costs or finance

. income, except for impairment of trade

receivables and amounts due from related
parties which are presented within selling
distribution cnd administrative expenses.

Sub t t of fi ial assets

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are measured ot amortised
cost if the assets meet the following conditions
{ond are not desighated as FVTPLY:

« they are held within a business moedel whose
objective is to hold the financial assets and
collect its cantractual cash flows

«  the contractual terms of the financial
assets give rise to cash Aows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding

After initial recognition, these are measured

at amortised cost using the effactive interest
method. Discounting is omitted where the
effect of discounting is immaterial. The Group's
cash and cash equivalents, trade and most
other receivables fall inte this category of
financial instruments.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets that are heid within a different
business model other than 'hold to collect’

or 'hold to collect and sell’ are categorised

at fair value through profit and lass. Further,
irrespective of business model financial
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assets whose contractual cash flows are not
solely payments of principal and interest are
accounted for ot FYTPL. All derivative financial
instruments fall into this category, except for
those designated and effective as hedging
instruments, for which the hedge accounting
requirements apply {see below).

Assets in this category are measured at fair
value with gains or losses recognised in profit
of loss. The fair values of financial assets in
this category are determined by reference to
active market tronsoctions or using a voluation
technique where no active market exists,

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVYOCH

On initial application of IFRS 9 the Group made
the irrevocable election to account for tong
term financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income [FVOCI) given these are
not held for trading purposes. The election has
been made on an instrument-by-instrument
kasis, only qualifying dividend income is
recognised in profit and loss, changes in fair
value are recognised within OCl and never
reclassified to profit and loss, even if the asset is
impuaired, sold or otherwise derecognised.

Impairment of financial ossats

IFRS 9's impairment requirerments use more
forward-locking information to recognise
expected credit losses - the 'expected credit
ioss (ECL) model'. Instrurnents within the
scope of the requirements include loans and
other debt-type financial assets measured at
amortised cost and FVOCI trade receivables,
other receivables, amounts due from related
parties, contract assets recognised and
measured under iFRS 15 and loan commitments
and seme financial guarantee contracts {for
the issuer) that are not measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

Other raceivables and amounts due from
related parties

Recognition of credit losses is no longer
dependent on the Group first identifying a
credit loss event. Instead the Group considers
a broader range of information when assessing
credit risk and measuring expected credit
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Variable lease payments are only included in
the measurement of the lease liability if they
depend on an index or rate. In such cases,

the initial measurement of the lease liability
assumes the variable element will remain
unchonged throughout the lease term. Other
variable lease payments such as revenue linked
property leases are expensed in the period to
which they relate.

On initial recagnition, the carrying value of the
lease liabitity alse includes:

* amounts expected to be payable under anv
residual value guarantee;

+ the exercise price of any purchase option
granted in favour of the Group if it is
reasonably certain that the option
exercised;

be

» any penclties payabie for terminating the
lease, if the term of the lease has been
estimated on the basis of the termination
option being exercised.

The lease liabitity is presented as a separate
1 ne in the consolidated Balance Sheet,

Subsequent to initial measurement lease
liabilities increase as a result of interest chorged
ct the effective rate on the balance outstanding
and are reduced for lease payments made.

Right of use assets are initially measured at

the amount of the lease liability, reduced for
any lease incentives (payments made by a
lessor to a lessee associated with a lease, or
the reimbursement or assumption by a lessor of
costs of a lessee) received ar impairment, and
ircreased for:

* lease payments made at or before
commencement of the lease;

* initial direct costs incurred; and

«  the amount of any provision recognised
where the Group is contractually required
to dismantle, remove or restore the
leased asset, providing it meets the
Groups property, plant and equipment
capitalisation policy.
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When an indication of impairment is identified,
right of use assets are tested for impairment

in accordance with 1AS 36 by comparing the
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and
fair value less costs of dispasal} with its carrying
amount. The right of use assets are presented
within property, plant and equipment in the
consolidated Balence Sheet.

Subsequent to initial measurement, right-of-use
assets are amortised on a straight-line basis
over the remaining term of the lease or over the
remaining economic life of the asset if this is
judged to be shorter than the lease term.

When the Group revises its estimate of the

term of any lease {because, for example, it
re-assesses the probobility of a lessee extension
or termination opticn being exercised), it adjusts
the carrying amount of the lease liability to
reflect the payments to make over the revised
term, which are discounted at 4 revised
discount rate. The carrying vaolue of fease
liabilities is revised using the original discount
rate when the variable element of future lease
payments dependent on a rate or index is
revised. In both cases an equivalent adjustment
is made to the carrying value of the right-of-use
asset, with the revised carrying amount being
amortised over the remaining (revised) lease
term. .

When the Group renegotiates the contractual
terms of a lease with the lessor, the accounting
depends on the nature of the modification:

« if the renegetiation results in one or more
additionai assets being leased for an
amount commensurate with the standalone
price for the additional rights-of-use
obtained, the modification is accounted for
as a separate lease in accordance with the
above policy

+ incll other cases where the renegotiction
increases the scope of the lease (whether
that is an extension to the lease term, or
one or more additional assets being leased),
the legse liability is remeasured using the
discount rate applicable on the modification
date, with the right-of use asset being
adjusted by the same amount

+ if the renegotiction results in a decrease in
the scope of the lease, both the carrying

amount of the lease liability and right-
of-use asset are reduced by the same
proportion to reflect the partial or full
termination of the lease with any difference
recognised in profit or loss. The leqse
liability is then further adjusted to ensure

its carrying amount reflects the omount

of the renegotiated payments over the
renegotiated term, with the modified lease
payments discounted at the rate applicable
on the modification date. The right-of-use
asset is adjusted by the same amount.

Sale and leaseback

Cn entering into a sale and leaseback
transaction the Group determines whether
the transfer of the assets qualifies as a sale
{satisfying a performance obligation in IFRS
15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers').
‘Where the transfer is a sale and providing
the transaction is on market terms then the
previous carrying amount of the underlying
asset is split between:

+ aright-of-use asset arising from the
leaseback [being the proportion of the
previous carrying amount of the asset that
relates to the rights retained), and

= the rights in the underlying asset retained
by the buyer-lessor at the end of the
leaseback.

The Group recognises a portion of the total
gain or loss on the sale. The amount recognised
is calculated by splitting the total gain or loss
into:

+ an unrecognised amount reloting to the
rights retained by the seller-lessee, and

+ arecognised amount relating to the buyer-
lessor's rights in the underlying asset at the
end of the leaseback.

The leasebock itself is then accounted for under
IFRS 16.

Rental income from operating leases where
the Group acts as a lessor is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.
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Treasury Shares

The purchase price of the Group's own shares
that,it acquires is recognised as ‘Treasury
shares' within equity. When shares are
transferred out of treasury the difference
between the market value and the average
purchase price of shares sold out of treasury is
transferred to retained earnings.

Employee Benefit Trust

An Employee Benefit Trust has been established
for the purposes of satisfying certoin
share-based awards. The Group has ‘de-facto’
control over the special purpose entity.

This Trust is fuily consolidated within the
accounts. The cost of shares acquired by

the Sports Direct Employee Benefit Trust is
recognised within'‘Own Share reserve’ in equity.

Share-Based Paymants

The Group issues equity-settled share-based
payments to certain Directors and employees.
These are measured ot fair value at the date of
grant, which is expensed to the consolidated
Income Statement on a straight-line basis cver
the vesting period, with the correspending
credit going to equity.

Non-market vesting conditions are not taken
into account in determining grant date fair
vafue, Instead, they are taken into account by
adjusting the number of equity instruments to
vest, At the end of each reporting period the
Group revises its estimates of the number of
options that are expected to vest based on the
non market vesting and service conditions. Any
revisions, if any, are recognised in profit and
loss with an adjustment to equity.
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Fair value is calculoted using an adjusted form
of the Black-Schotes model which includes a
Monte Carlo simulation madel that takes into
account the exercise price, the term of the
option, the impact of dilution {where materiat).
the share price at grant date and the expected
price volatility of the underlying share, the
expected dividend yield, and the risk-free
interest rate for the term of the scheme. The
expected staff numbers used in the model has
been adjusted, based on management’s best
estimote, for the effects of non-transferability,
exercise restrictions, and behaviourat
considerations.

For cash-settled share-based payment
transactions, the Group measures the services
received and the liability incurred at the fair
value of the liability. Until the liability is settled,
the Group remeasures the fair value of the
bility at the end of each reparting period ond
at the date of settlerment, with any changes in
fair value recognised in the Income Statement
for the period.

The credit for the share based payment charge
does not equal the charge per the income
Stotement as it excludes amounts recognised
in the Balance Sheet in refation to the expected
nationcl insurance contributions for the shares.

Equity Instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Group are recorded
gt the proceeds received, net of any direct issue
costs.

Foreign Currencies

The presentationaf currency of the Group

is sterling. The functional currency of the
Company is also sterling. Foreign currency
transactions are tronslated into sterfing using
the exchange rates prevailing on the dates
of the transactions. Exchange differences of
‘the Company arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retransiation of
monetary items, ore inciuded in the Income
Staternent for the period.
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Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carriec

at fair volue are included in the Income
Staternent for the period except for differences
arising on the retranstation of non-monetary
items in respect of which gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
For such non-monetary ikems, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is also
recognised directly in other comprehensive
income. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign curfencies are
transiated ot the rate of exchange ruling at
the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost

in a foreign currency are not retronslated.
Non-monetary items that are held at valustion
are transiated at the foreign exchange rate at
the date of the valuation.

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of
foreign operations which have a functional
currency other than sterling are translated
into sterling at foreign exchange rates ruling
at the balance sheet date. The revenues and

. expenses of these subsidiary undertakings are

transkated at average rates applicable in the
period. All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income
ond documented in o separate component of
equity.

When o foreign operation ss sold, the
cumulative exchange differences that have
been recagnised os a separate component
of equity are reclassified from equity to the
Income Statement when the disposal is
recognised.

in order to mitigate its exposure to certain
foreign exchange risks, the Group enters into
forward contracts {see Chief Executive's Report
and Business Review and the cash flow hedging
accounting policy).

Dividends International Financiol Reporting Standards

"Standards’) In | But Not Yet Effecti
Dividends are recognised as a liability in {"Stan ) Infawae ° e

the Group's Financial Stotements and os a
deduction from equity in the period in which
the dividends are declared. Where such
dividends are proposed subject to the approval
of sharehelders, the dividends are regarded

as declored ance shareholder approval has
been obtained and they are no longer at the
discretion of the Company.

At the date of authorisation of these
consolidoted Financial Statements,

there are na standards in issue from the
Internaticnal Accounting Standards Board
{*IASB") or international Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee (“FRIC™} which
are effective for annual accounting periods
beginning on or after 26 Ap | 2021 that will
have o significant impact on these Financial

Materiality Staternents.

In preparing the Financial Statements, the .
Board considers both quantitative and

qualitative factors in forming its judgements,

and related disclosures, and are mingful of

the need to best serve the interests of its

stakeholders and to avoid unnecessary clutter

borne of the disclosure of immaterial items.

in making this assessment the Board considers
the nature of each itern, as well as its size, in
assessing whether any disclosure om| sions or
misstatements could influence the decisions of
users of the Financial Statements.

New Accounting Standards, Interpretations And
Amendments Adopted By The Group

The Groug has not early adopted any other
standard, interpretation or amendment that
has been issued but is not effective. The Group
apphes for the first ime the following new
standards:

. Definition of Material - Amendments to 1AS
1and IAS 8

«  Definition of o Business - Amendments to
IFRS 3

+  Interest Rate Benchmark Reform -
Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS
4ond IFRS 16

«  Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions —
Amendments to IFR5 16

+  Amendments to References to the
Conceptuai Frameworl in IFRS Standards

By adopting the above, there has been no
mpact on the Financial Statements.

FRASERS GROUP
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2. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The critical accounting estimates and
judgements made by the Group regarding

the future or other key sources of estimation,
uncertainty and judgement that may have

a significant risk of giving rise to a material
adjustment to the carrying values of assets ond
liabilities within the next financial period are:

Key Judgements
Determining Reloted Party Relationships

Management determines whether a related
party relationship exists by assessing the
nature of the relationship by reference to
the requirements of IAS 24, Related Party
Disclosures. This is in order to determine
whether significant influence exists as a
result of contral, shared directors or parent
companies, or close family relationships. The
level at which one party may be expected
ta influence the other is also considered for

transactions invalving close family relationships.

Control And Significant Influence Over Certain
Entities

Linder |AS.28 Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures if an entity holds 20% or more of
the voting power of the investee, it is presumed
that the entity has significant influence, unless
it can clearly demonstrate that this is not the
case. During the period the Group has held
greater than 20% of the voting rights of Studio
Retail Group Plc, French Connection Group Ple
{sold during the period) and Mulberry Group
Plc, whereby management consider that the
Group does not have significant influence over
these entities for combinations of the following
reasons: -

«  The Group does not have Gny
representation on the board of directors
of the investee other than a Frasers Group
representative having an observer role
on the board of Studic Retail Group Ple.
Maonagement have reviewed the terms
of the cbserver arrangement and have
concluded that this does not give them
the right to participate in or influence the
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financial or operating decisions of Studio
Retail Group Plc. Studio Retail Group Plc
can terminate this arrangement at any

time, and can determine which parts of

the Board meetings the representative can
be present at and what information they
are given access to. It should be noted the
Frasers Group representative did not attend
any beard meetings in full or part during the
reporting period;

= There is no participation in decision
making and strategic processes, including
participation in decisions about dividends
or other distributions;

= There have been no material transactions
between the entity and these investee
companies;

+  There has been ne interchange of
managerial personnel;

+ No non-public essential technical
management information is provided to the
investee.

In assessing the level of control that
management have over certain entities,
management will consider the various aspects
that allow managemaent to influence decision
making. This includes the level of share
ownership, board membership, the level of
investment and funding and the ability of the
Group ta influence operational and strategic
decisions and effect its returns through the
exercise of such influence. If mancgement

were to consider that the Group does have
significant influence over these entities then the
equity method of accounting would be used
and the percentage shareholding (disclosed in
note 20} multiplied by the results of the investee
in the period (os disclosed in note 34) would be
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group holds 49% of the shore capital of
Four {Hotdings) Limited which is accounted
for using the equity method. The Group does
not have any representaticn on the board
of directors and no participation in decision
about relevant activities such as establishing
operating and capital decisions, including
budgets, appointing or remunerating key
management personnel or service providers
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and terminating their services or employmaent.
However, in pricr periods the Group has
provided Four {Holdings) Limited with a
significant loan. At the reporting date, the
amount cwed by Four [Holdings] Limited for this
loan totalled E60.0m [£21.6m net of amounts
recognised in respect of loss allowance). The
Group is satisfied that the existence of these
transactions provides evidence that the entity

has significant influence over the investee but in ~

the absence of any other rights, in isolation it is
insufficient to meet the contrel criteria of (FRS
10, as the Group does not have power over Four
{Holdings) Limited and therefore Four (Holdings)
Limited is not equity accounted.

Cash Flow Hedging

The Group uses da range of forward and option
contracks that are entered into ot the same
time, they are in contemplation with one
another and have the same counterparty.

A judgement is made in determining

whether there is an economic need or
substantive business purpose for structuring
the transactions separately that could not
also have been accomplished in o single
transaction, Management are of the view that
there is a substantive distinct business purpose
for entering into the options and o strategy for
managing the options independently of the
ferward contracts. The forward and options
contracts are therefore not viewed as one
instrument and hedge accounting for the
forwards is permitted.

Under IFRS 9 in order to achieve cash flow
hecdge accounting, forecast transactions
{primarily Euro denominated sales and USD
denominated purchases} must be considered
to be highly probable. The hedge must be
expected to be highly effective in achieving
offsetting changes in cash flows attributable
to the hedged'risk, The forecast transaction
that is the subject of the hedge must be highly
probable and must present on exposure to
variations in cash flows that could ultimately
affect profit or loss. Management have
reviewed the detailed forecasts and growth
assumptions within them, and are satisfied
that forecasts in which the cash Bow hedge
accounting has been based meet the criteria

Printod on Stenbeais 1009% Recycled and Carbon Capturad through the Woodlind Trust, helpng lo create new Briish woodland across the UK

per IFRS 9 as being highly probable forecast
transactions. Should the forecast levels not pass
the highly probable test, any cumulative fair
value gains and losses in relation to either the
entire or the ineffective portion of the hedged
instrument would he taken to the Income
Statement.

Managernent considers various factors when
determining whether a forecast transaction is
highly prolkeable. These foctors include detailed
sales ferecasts by chanrel, geographical area
and seasonality, conditions in target markets
and the impact of exponsion in new areas.
Management also consider any change in
alternative customer sales channels that could
impact on the hedged transaction.

If the forecast transactions were determined
to be not highly probable and all hedge
accounting was discontinued, the Hedaing
reserve of £11.5m would be shown in Finance

Income.

Key Estimates

Provision For Obsolete, Slow Moving Or
Defective Inventories

The Directors have applied their knowledge and
experience of the retail industry in determining
the level and rates of provisioning required in
calculating the approgriate inventory carrying
values. Specific estimates and judgements
applied in relation to assessing the level of
inventory provisions required are considered in
relation to the following areas:

a. Continuity inventory

b. Seasonal inventory lines - specifically
seasons that have now finished

Third party versus own brand inventory

o n

Ageing of inventory

@

Sports Retail or Premium Lifestyle

bl

Lacal ecenomic conditions

Divisional specific factors

T v

Increased cost of inventory and lower
margins with the devaluation of the Pound

i. Over-stock and out of season inventory as a
result of Covid-19
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Provisian estimates are forword looking and
are formed using a combination of factors
including historical experience, management's
knowledge of the industry, group discounting,
sales pricing protocols and the overall
assessment made by management of the

risks in relation to inventory. Management use
a number of internally generated reparts to
monitor and continually re-assess the adequacy
and accuracy of the inventory provision. The
additional cost of repricing inventory and
handling chorges in relation to relocating
inventory {tunnelling) are considered in arriving
at the appropriate percentage provision, The
assessment imvalves significant estimation
uncertainty, therefore in order to check

that the assumptions applied remain valid,
muonogement produces a range of outcomes
and the provision is set within this range.

Key assumptions used to create the estimates
are.

+  Discounting - Based on historical
experience and management's anticipated
future discounting including the impact ot
Covid-19

«  Tunnelling ~ Cost of handling stock for
reworking, repacking and repricing

+ Repricing - Labour cost associated with
repricing units of stock

+  Shrinkage - Stock lost through domage ond
theft

Tota) Group inventory provision at 25 April 201
is 16.6% [FY20: 15.7%). A 1% change in the total
pravision would impoct underlying EBITDA by
approx. £13.2m {FY20: £14.2m). Management
do net consider it appropriote to disclose

ies for key assumptions in isclation as
in practice changes in one assumption would
lead to an offset in another.

Property Related Provisions

Property related estimates and judgements
are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience, external advice and other
factors, including expectations of future everits
that are believed to be regsonable under the
circumstances.
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Dilopidations

The Group provides for its legal responsibility
for dilapidation costs following advice from
chartered surveyors and previous experience

of exit costs {including strip out costs and
professianal fees], Management use a reference
estimate of £100,000 {FY20: £100,000] for large
leasehold stores, £50,000 (FY20: £50,000} for
smaller feasehold stores {£25,000 per store

for Game UK and Game Spain stores) and
$/€50,000 (FY20: $/€50,000} for nen-UK stores,
Management do not consider these costs to be
capital in nature and therefore dilapidations
are neot capitalised, except for in relation to

the sale and leasebuack of Shirebrook in the
prior period in which @ matericl dilapidations
provision was capitalised.

A 10% increase in dilapidation cost per store
would result in an approx. £8.0m reduction in
underlying EBITDA.

Other Provisions

Provisions are made for items where the Group
has identified a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as o result of & past event, it
is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obiigation and o reliable
estimate con pe mode of the amount of the
obligation.

Legal and regulatory provisions relote to
manoagement’s best estimates af provisions
required for legal and regulatory claims and
ongoing non-UK tax enquiries, Other provisions
relate to managemenit’s best estimates

of pravisions required for restructuring,
employment and commercial. Where
applicable these are inclusive of any estimated
penclties, interest and legal costs. See note 28.
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In relation to the non-UK tax enquiries
management have made & judgement to
consider all claims coilectively, applying the
following key estimates to the gross amounts
lexcluding re-imbursement assets):

» 10% penalty [FY20: 10%). A 5% increase to
15% would result in approx. £6.5m increase
in the pravision (FY20: approx. £7.0m).

~ 3% interest an the liobility IFY20: 3%). A
1% increase to 4% would result in approx.
£11.5m increase in the provision {FY20:
opprax. £10.0m).

Maonogement are sctisfied that the judgement
to consider all claims collectively is the only
reasonable approach because they are alt
dependant on the outcome of o court ruling an
the interpretation of the non-UK tax enquiries,
Management are satisfied thot with regard to
timing a reasonable range of outcomes are all
greater than cne year and so are satisfied with
including the provisions s nen-cuerent.

Other Receivobles And Amounts Owed By
Related Parties

Other receivables and ameunts owed by
related parties are stated net of provision for
any impairment. Menogement have applied
estimates in assessing the recoverability of
warking capital and loan advances made to
investee companies. Matters considered include
the reievant financial strength of the underlying
investee company to repay the leans, the
repayment periad and underlying terms of the
monies advanced, forecast performance of the
underlying borrower, and where relevart, the
Group's intentions for the companies to which
menies have been advanced,

P acions the 1

IFRS 16

The key areas of judgement in relatien to
property leases recognised under IFRS 16
are below:

« IFR3 16 defines the Yease term as the non-
cancellabie period of a lease together
with the options to extend ar terminate a
lease, if the ‘essee were reasongbly certain
to exercise that option. The Group will
assess the likelihood of extending lease
contracts beyond the breck dote by taking
inte account current economic and market
conditions, current roding performance,
forecast profitability and the level of capital
investment in the property.

+ IFRS 16 stotes that the jease payments shall
be discounted using the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate where the rote implicit in
the lease cannot be readily determined.
Accordingly, afl lease payrnents have been
discounted using the incremental borrowing
rate {IBR). The {BR has been determined
by using & synthetic credit rating for the
Group which is used to obtain market data
on debt instruments for companies with the
same credit rating, this is split by currency
to represent each of the geographical areas
the Group operates within and adjusted for
the lease term,
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The weighted average discount rates based on incremental borrowing rotes used throughout the
peried across the Group's lease portfolio are shown below, The disceunt rate for each lease is
dependent on lease start date, tarm and location.

Lease Tarm w Surepe Rest of Warld
Upto 5 years 145 - 18% 0.3% - 08% 15% -3 3%
Graoter than 5 ysars and up to 10 years 20% -2 2% 05% -1 3% 2 5% - 35%
Greater thon 10 years aud up o 20 yaars 2 7% - 25% 0 8% - 4% 29% - 3%
Greoter than 20 years 25% - 28% 1% 17% 35% - J6%

*  The right of use asset will be reviewed for impairment at each reporting period in line with 1AS
36 impairment to review whether the corrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. For
irmpairment testing purposes the Group has determined that each store is a separate CGU. The

. recoverable amount is calculated based on the Group's latest farecast cash flows which are
then extrapolated to cover the period to the break date of the lease taking inte account historic
performance and knowledge of the current market, together with the Group's views on future
profitability of each CGU. The key assumptions in the calculations are the sales growth rates,
gross margin rates, changes in the aperating cost base and the pre-tax discount rate derived
from the Group's weighted average cost of capital using the capital asset-pricing model, the
inputs of which include a risk-free rate, equity risk premium and a risk adjustment (Beta). Givan
the number of assumptions used the assessment involves significant estimation uncertainty.
The assumptions used are consistent with those disclosed in the Freehold Land and Buildings
and Long-term leasehold section below. Impairments in the period have been recognised for
the amount of £174.9m, being £168.2m against the right-of-use asset {E114.1m UK Sports Retail
segment, £20.5m Premium Lifestyle segment, £31.0m European Retcil segment, and £2.6m Rest
of the World Retail segment) and £6.7m against plant and equipment {£2.6m UK Sports Retail
segment, £0.5m Premium Lifestyle segment, £3.6m European Retail segment). The impairments
were due to the ongoing impact of Covid-19 and the challenges in the retail sector on the
forecast cash flows of the CGU.

The key assumptions, which are equally applicable to each CGU, in the cash flow projections used to
support the carrying omount of the right of use asset are consistent with the cashflow projections for
the Freehold land and Buildings impairment assessment.

A sensitivity analysis has been performed in respect of sales and margin as these are considered to

be the most sensitive of the key assumptions. With regard to the sales assumption below we hove

performed a sensitivity for bath no lockdown in year 1 and a lockdown which lasts four months
_compared to twe months:

Feretast: Impdet of chatge in _..la.:.t:.s _.a.c-.-.. ..._.
Sales yeor | « No lackdown 154 - improvement 1239
Salus year 1 ~ 4 months lockdown 15% - redurtion £35
Existing Gross Margin year 1240% 100bps - improvermnent 146
Existing Gross Margin yaor 1240% 100bps - reduction 83
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Freehold Land and Buildings ond Long-term ieasehold

Freehold land and buildings and leng-term leasehold assets are assessed at each reporting period
far whether there is any indicatien of impairment in line with IAS 36 impairment.

An asset is impaired when the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. IAS 36 defines
recoverable amount os the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's fair value less costs

of disposal and its value in use, the Group has determined that each store is o separate CGU.
Impairments in the period have been recognised in the amount of E117.9m (FY20: £nil} due to the
ongoing impact of Covid-19 and the challenges in the retail sector on the forecast cash flows of

the CGU. This is split £84.4m against freehold land and buildings {(£68.7m UK Sports Retail segment
and £15.7m European Retail segment], £3.9m against long-term leasehold [£2.9m UK Sports Retait
segment and £1,0m European Retail segment}, £29.0m plant & equipment (£15.1m UK Sports Retoil
segment, £8.8m Premium Lifestyle segment, £5.1m European Retail segment), and £0.6m investment
property (all UK Sports Retail segment).

Volue In Use (VIU)

The value in use is calculated based on five year cash flow projections, These are formulated by
using the Group's forecast cash flows of each individual CGU excluding any Covid-19 impact, toking
into account histeric performance of the CGU, and then adjusting for the Group's current views on
future profitability of each CGU as a result of Covid-19 and knowledge of the current morket. The
key assurmnptions in the calculations are the sales growth rates, gross margin rates, changes in the
operating cost base and the pre-tax discount rate derived from the Group's weighted average cost
of copital using the capital asset pricing model, the inputs of which include a risk-free rate, equity
risk premium and a risk adjustment (Beta). Given the number of assumptions used the assessment
involves significant estimation uncertainty.

The key assumptions, which are equally applicable to each CGU, in the cash flow projections used to
support the carrying amount of the freehold land and buildings were as follows:

Koy assumptions Yaur1 Yo 2 Yeard Yeard Yaar5
Sales dechne -15% -5% A% 3% %
Exsting gross margin » 40% -1006ps -I75Lps -I50hps -125hps A00hps
Dparonng costs increase per atumm 1% 3% i% 3% %
Discount rake 6% 6% 6% 5% 6%

Termunal growth rate of 2%

A sensitivity analysis has baen performed in respect of sales and margin as these are considered to
be the most sensitive of the key assumptions. With regard to the sales assumption below we have
performed a sensitivity for both no lockdown in year 1.and a iockdown which lasts four months
compared to twe months:

Farscant: Inypesct o _..InS._._.s.wn_hn!i-_lmh
Sales year 1 - No lockdtwn 1§% - improvement {533)
Sales year 1 - 4 manths Iockdown 5% - raduction 576
Ewsting Gross Margin year 1 340% 100bps - Improvarment 4l
Exsting Gross Morgin year 1>40% 1008ps - reduetion 93

ng fe create new Bobsh woodland across the UK
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Fair value fess costs of disposal

For those CGUs where the value in use is less thon the carrying volue of the asset, the fair value less
costs of disposal hos been determined using both external and interno) market valuations, This fair
value is deemed to fall in to Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy as per IFRS 13. The property portfolio
consists of vacant, Frasers Group occupied and third party tenanted units, one property can include
all three types. The following valuation methodology has been adopted for each:

Sesnariv

Valuation methadelegy K+ gasumiptions

Estimated Rentol Value |[ERY] ond sutobly reversionary yield
appied 10 reflect the Mmarkel 10 generate n net CaDtalvalue A
deduction ta the capitul value genarated s Lan moae baserd
an tha void paniod with opplicabile rates payable far the it
undd rent tree incentive

Vorgnt units

Frasers Group cecupied  Will be ossumed the Unit 5 vacan: given there 1s na legalty
buintlng Jnker-compony ngreement in ploca Therelore o vaid
od assumed, the cast omount then
nl volue generated by the ERV and
reversionary yield, Although we cansider the cammaercial re
15 thar fuir wDlye Jass Costs o sell wiil be gher than vaean:
postession this very conservatwve assumption 1s i line with
bothtachmical aceounting rules and that of our manageimant
exparts

void penod and rent free band ~ twe bonds opplied depending
ONn Tircumstonces

+ tyearvod,? yeors sent frew, or
© 2 yaors voud, 3 yeors rent free
Yield bonds - ranging from 7% - 15%

Vaid periad i rent rus band - two bonds apnted dependicg
an cucumstonces

« 1yearwaid. 2 years rent free. or
+ 2 yeors voud, 3 yenrs cent free
Yield bands - ranging from 79 - 15%

Thie porty tenanted An ERV 15 opplied using o percentage bond on the pasuing ren:
An oppropnote reversionary yiald 15 apphed reflecting the sk
of tenant ond renewal to geneiate o cop

provda o net witinl yield based off the cuvnent possing rent

£RY bands opphied 10 passng renl - ronging lsm (% ra -50%
Yaeld honds - sanging from 5 5% - 15%

A 10% increase in the market valuation amounts used in the impairment calculations would result in

a decrease in impairment of £7.5mmn,

The total recoverable amount of the assets that were impoired ot the period end was £170.0m, with
£87.0m of this being based on their fair value less costs of disposal and £83.0m being based on their

valye in use.

To Al "

zu‘ﬂ [ Lrrpary —:’ ()
Performance Measures

The Directors helieve that underlying EBITDA,
underlying Profit before tax and underlying
basic EPS provide further useful information for
shareholders on the underiying performance

of the Business in addition to the reported
numbers and are consistent with how business
perfermance is measured internafly. They are
not recognised profit measures under IFR5 and
may not be directly comparable with "adjustad”
profit measures used by other companies.

EBITDA is earnings before investment income,
finance income and finance costs, tax,
depreciation, amortisation and impairment.

It includes the Group's share of losses from
associated undertakings and joint ventures.
Underlying EBITDA excludes the impact of IFRS
16, foreign exchange gains/losses in sefiing and
administration costs, exceptional costs, and the
profit / foss on disposal of subsidiaries, strategic
investments and properties. Underlying EBITDA
alsa excludes fair value adjustments on step
gcguisitions.
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Management will from FY22 change aur main
reporting KP( fram Underfying EBITDA to
Adjusted PBT. Thus from FY22 the Group wili no
longer report Underlying EBITDA. Adjusted PBT
is Reported Profit Befare Tax less the effects of
unhedged FX, exceptional items, and gains and
losses on strategic investments. Management
have taken this decision for the following
redasgns:

- With the continued significant investment
in and rolt out of our elevation strategy
on bath the physical and digital fronis,
the importance of depreciation and
amortisation te both the Board and
our stakeholders in terms of assessing
performance has grown.

»  Ourunderstanding from a number of
financial sectors including the banking
sector is that FRS16 is becaming an
increasingly important consideration,
including on covenants in many new
financing arrangements.

- Wiith this new measure being introduced
we are trying to align with the Financial
Reporting Council’s thematic standpoint
with regard to 'alternative performance
measures’ as far a3 possible whilst retaining
a degree of interpretation given factors
outside of our control, such as FX and
strgtegic investments movements which
are exceptionally difficult to forecast,
particuiarly months in advance.The
following are further key estimates used
with reqard to the clternotive performance
meosures used by the group.
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Onerous lease provision

Provisions for onerous leose contracts are
recognised when the unavoidable costs of
meeting lease obligations exceed the economic
benelits expected to be received over the term
of the lease. Where on cneraus lease has been
identified, the property, plant and equipment
associated to that store ore olso reviewed for
impairment

Management use store EBITDA in order to
determine whether an onerous lease exists.
Specific ossumptions, which involve the use of
estimates and involve significant estimation
uncertainty, that are used to determine the
appropriate level of provision are consistent
with the cashflow projections for the Freehoid
land and Buildings assessment except for the
following:

+ Discount rate 2% [FY20: 29%) across the
Group

«  Opergting costs increase 3% (FY20: 3%)
across the Group

+  Store profitability includes 100%
contribution towards central overheads

+  Assumed get out cap of 10 years [FY20: 10
years), being the maximum period for total
unavoidable costs

+  Pianned store closures, refocations and re-
brandings

A sensitivity analysis has been performed in respect of sales and margin os these are considered to

bé the most sen

ve of the key assumptions. With regard to the sales assumption below we have

performed o sensitivity for both na lackdown in year 1and a leckdown which lasts four months

compared to two months:

Foretapt:

Bravisien increass /

Sales yeur | - No lockdown

Sales year ¥ - 4 months lockilawn

Farsting Gross Storgin yeor 1 >40%,

Existing Gross Margin yenr 1 >40%

Impuct sk: {derraasn) Em

15% - imywovement 10441

% - redurtion 1510

Wbps - mpravement 126
HIOS - reduttian 125

Further information on the basis of the estimation of provisioning for dilapidations and onerous lease
contracts is detailed in the provisions cccounting policy and note 28,

Impairments of plant and equipment and short-term leasehotd improvements of £24.2m have also
been recognised as ¢ result of identified onerous lease contracts [£6.4m UK Sports Retail segment,
£2.7m Premium Lifestyle segrent, £15.1m European Retoil segment).
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3.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's current activities result in the
following financial risks and set out below are
management’s responses to those risks in order
to minimise any resulting adverse effects on the
Group's financial performance.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk
principally via;

a. Transactional exposure from the cost of
future purchases of goods for resale, where
those purchases are denominated in a
currency cther than the functional currency
of the purchasing company. Transactional
exposures that could significantly impact
the income statement are hedged, These
exposures are hedged via forward foreign
currency contracts which are designoted
as cash flow hedges. The notional and fair
value of these contracts is shown in note 29;

b. Transactional exposure from the sale of

goods, where those sales are denominated

. in a currency other than the functional
currency of the selling company.
Transactional exposures that could
significantly impact the income statement
are hedged. These exposures are hedged
via forward foreign currency controcts
which are designated as cash flow hedges.
The notional and fair value of these
contracts is shown in note 29;

c. Loansto nen-UK subsidiaries. These are
hedged via foreign currency transactions
and borrowings in matching currencies,
which are not formally designated as
hedges, as gains and losses on hedges and
hedged loans will naturally offset; and

d. The Group uses currency options, swaps
and spots for more flexibility against cash
flows that are less than highly probable
ond therefore do not qualify for hedge
accounting under IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments. Exposures in respect of
written options to sell Eures or buy USD are
explained in the Financial Review, These
are not hedged and movements in fair
value could significantly impact the Income
Skatement in future periods. See note 29.

8%
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Interest Rate Risk

The Group has net borrowings, which are
principally at fleating interest rates linked to
bank base rates or LIBOR. The Group uses
interest rate financial instruments to hedge

its exposure to interest rate movements using
interest rate swaps although hedge accounting
is not applied, The Group regularly monitars
and reacts accordingly to any exposure to
fluctuations in interest rates and the impact on
its monetary assets and liab

Credit Risk

The Directors have a credit policy in place
and the exposure te credit risk is monitored
on an ongoing basis. Credit evaluations are
performed on all customers requiring credit
over a certain amount. The Group does not
require collateral in respect of financial assets.

At each balance sheet date, there were no
significant concentrations of credit risk. The
maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset
in the balance sheet.

Investments of cash surpluses, borrowings and
derivative instruments aré made through banks
and companies which must fulfil credit rating
and investment criteria approved by the Board.

Liquidity Risk

The Group has sufficient Jiquid resources to
manage the operating reguirements of the
business and it does this through utilisation

of its revolving credit facilities together with
equity and retained profits thereby achieving
continuity of funding ond short-term flexibility,
while keeping interest to a minimum.

Management regularly review forecasts to
ensure there is adequate headroom on the
facilities and to ensure the Group is operating
within its financial covenonts.

g to croats new Brd

Price Risk

The Group is exposed to price risk in respect
of its long term financial assets [in relation to
listed company shares).

The price risk relates to volatility in the market,
and how other comprehensive income and
equity would have been affected by changes
in market risk that were reasonably possible at
the reporting date. If the quoted stock price for
these securities increased or decreased, other
comprehensive income and equity would have
changed. The listed securities are classified as
Long term investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income so there would be
no effect on profit or loss. ’

The investments in listed equity securities
{long-term financial assets) are considered
medium to long-term strategic investments.
In accordance with the Group's policies, no
specific hedging activities are undertaken in
relation to these investments.

Copitul Management

A description of the Group's objectives, policies
and processes for managing capital are
included in note 29.

woudland across tha LK
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4. SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS

Management has determined to present

its segmental disclosures consistently with

the presentation in the 2020 Annuai Report.
Management considers operaticnally that

the UK Retail divisions (UK Sports Retail and
Premium Lifestyle} are run as one business
unit in terms of allocating resources, inventory
management and assessing performance.
Under IFRS 8 we have not at this reporting
date met the reguired criteria with enough
certainty to aggregate these operating
segments. We will continuaily keep this under
review at subsequent reporting dates. We
continue to monitor the impacts of Covid-19,
Brexit, and the continued uncertainties this
has brought relating to the political and
economic environments, and market ond
currency volatility in the countries we operate
in. European countries have been identified as
operqting segments and have been aggregated
into a single operating segment as permitted
under I[FRS 8. The decision to aggreguate thesa
segments was based on the fact that they each
have similar ecanomic characteristics, similar
long-term financial performance expectations,
and are similar in each of the following
respects:

+  The nature of the products;

+ The type or class of customer for the
products; and

+  The methods used to distribute the
products.

Ely)

i

In accordance with paragraph 12 of IFRS 8
the Group's operdting segments have been
aggregated into the following reportable
segments:

1. UK Retail:

i. UK Sports Retail - includes core sports
retail store operations in the UK, plus all
the Group's sports retail online business
(exciuding Bob's Stores, Eastern
Mountain Sperts, Malaysia and Baltics),
the gyms, the Group's Shirebrook
campus operations, GAME UK stores
and online operations, and retail store
aperations in Northern Ireland,

ii. Premium Lifestyle - includes the
results of the premium retail businesses
Flennels, Cruise, Van Mildert, Jack Wills,
House of Fraser and Sofa.com along
with related websites.

2. Europecan Retail - includes all the Groug's
sports retail stares, management and
operctions in Europé including the Group's
European Distribution Centres in Belgium
and Austrio, os well gs GAME Spuain stores
and Baltics online.

3. Rest of World Retail - includes the results of

US based retail activities, Asic baséd retail
activities, along with their e-commerce

4. Wholesale & Licensing - includes the results
of the Group's portfolio of internctionally
recognised brands such as Everlast,
Karrimor, Lonsdale and $lazenger,

It is management's current intention to run the
Group as four opercting segments being UK
Retail fincluding UK Sports Retail and Premium
Lifestyle), European Retail, Rest of World Retail
and Wholesale & Licensing. Management is
satisfied that the UK Sports Retail and Premium
Lifestyle will meet the criteria permitted under
IFRS 8 to aggregate as one segment in due
course.

oty 1he YVooi

Segrmental information for the 52 weeks ended
25 April 2021:

FRASERS GROUP

W T N Snme e et e
L) Eml i ikl ! Hemd Tt (Em}
Sales ta extarnol CUSTOmens 15968 5 156 21,0041 5152 1327 14720 1533 - 1,625
Sules (o other segments - - - - 554 195.4) -
REVENUE 19685 738 27041 1.2 12 14720 ey [ 34280
Girass prafit B293 3301 11506 2397 640 14633 E7S 13303
QPERATING PROFIT/
(LESS] SEFORE FORUIGN
EXCHANGE, EXCEPTIGNAL wr e Y] 508 we 17 12 ns
ITEMS, DISPCSAL OF
PROPERTIES AND IFR3 16
Exe epib i 1d.4] nay 8.0} 1374 (i - L3}
rat
e v - 0w - - m - _om
Prcsht 5 sule of properies 10 - 19 a8 n 7] - - 97
Foreign exchange realised 12032| 103 12043 9 na t11.0) 53 1263
RS 14 udjusirrenl N9 7 e A7 (35) |65.0) (85.0)
OPERATING WOSSLPROFTT 1383) ns (36 .4 152,41 W L2 us (60.3f
b intomg 027
it reat costs on
Fingnce incaime .2
‘munce rosts asn
PROFIT REFORE a5
Taxatipn (L)
LSS FOR THE PERHID meo)
Other segment items included in the Income
Statement fer the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2021:
"
uK Fremium UKRetoll  Eurepean Resto! Tarol Group
Sports Lifertyle Yotal Rebail Werld Retail Retail Tetal
(Emf €mi et Um o Em Wml
Feoperty plonl & eauwpment depreciobion 1838 Wa a2 353 57 25,2 64
Praperty, pltnt & equiprnent impoitment 956 o 107.6 406 ue.2 3.2
FRS 16 ROU deprectatiarn 518 &d 59 ny 1 21 - and
1ERS 16 ROY tmpasment Tia) 05 [ o 26 ton2 163
iwaLlinent (roperty depriCiotion 29 - 1.2 - 1% - 1%
Inves: 1 property impairment 06 - LX) 04 04
s e 200! 56l e na ) n - 2]
angible oimertisation - - - 55 03 66 kAl
1O G It W TIERCTTIE T 37 2z 5.0 31 1 1




FRASERS GROUP PL.C - ANNUAL REPORT - 2021 FRASERS GROUP

Infermation regarding segment assets and liabilities as at 25 April 2023 and capital expenditure for Information regarding segment assets and liabilities as at 26 April 2020 cnd capital expenditure for
the 52 weeks then ended: the 52 weeks then ended:
uK Pramlum UK Retall —:-.'-n_- Total Wheletols Eliminatiens Group uKk Premwlum UK Ratsil Eurepudn Rust Of 409-.n ‘Wheletals Ellminationt Group
Sports Litsatyls Totall Ravail Retil & Llcenning Tetal Sparts Lifatyle Total Retall  Werld Retoll Retoil & Liewnsing Tetal
it} e, It} wm i lem) {Em) (] ftmy (2] lem) Iim) lem) [ (e} itm)
Tatul assets 35157 436.7 19739 AIO A 3447 11,354 91 17851 Total asgets 33349 a787 1345.8 A55 4 186 4,354.% 3443 1860.2) TA68.2
Total liabikbes (2,357 8] 1495 6} 12,0574} 18510) 127 %) 13625 13,5040 Tolol habities 1,986 &) 1586 1) (,542.9} 16370} 1951} 13,345.0} 860 2 (L5879}
Tangible osset additions LETS ny " 74 ao 216y 15 - %4 Tangibla assat additiens 368 54 Pt 487 125 s - - 35
Rughk of use aset addnons s 141 " 343 24 "Ll o5 - BN Rught ot use asset addibong 514 g i 58 21 wma - - 101
tatangible cssats dequired 37 89 ne 21 - wr - - ®3
Intan le assets acquired a7 23 50 - - &0 10 70
Geographic Information

Segmental infermation For the 52 weeks ended 26 April 2020: .
Segmental information for the 52 weeks anded 25 April 2021:

UK Premium  UKRehsil  Europsan  RestOF Total  Whalessis | Greup
! Tetal Rt i
Sperts  Lifestyle o il Workd Retail Retoll & Licensing Tetal - wrape A Atlo Himinations otal
Em} (£m] {Em) {Em) (Fm) (L} Em L] Em &ml 1£ml m 1l r= {Lm}
~.alus to external customars 22013 7219 insa 5977 2 Eh, 4 W03 19504 Sagrmental revenu fram sxternl customers 27 P a7 a7 R 3
* oles to other sagments - - - - - - 178 {178] - Total capital axpanditure 1965 14, - 3.2 23 - 2194
FEVENUE 23033 1] 383 L ™2 1912 ™o (7.8} 29574 Non-currant segment assats’ 1052 7 4y 17 a6 B 12995
Gross proht 2017 1486 13518 267y Fid 15971 H5 5 . 1,442.8 Total segmental ossets 42647 sS4 2 25632 79 1,362 9 37881
CIPERATING PROFIT S B
{-OB5) BEFORE FOREIGN *Eacludses delerrad tax and hnanciol instruments
ENCHANGE, EXCEPTIONAL use (a0} 1276 us (118 "oy na - win
\"EMS AND IFRS 5 Segmental information for the 52 weeks ended 26 April 2020;
Exceptional tems 27 59 198} 13.5] - - 1.1
F-olit on sale of proparties 312 - i no - - 4.2 uk Nor-UIK us Aslo Eliminotions Tatal
Fartgn exchange reolised 95 14 0.4 a1 04 105 - M (L] L] L] L] fem 1Emi
IERS 16 adjustments 23 197t [ [46 5) 79 . {48.0) Sagrnental ravenue IFm wier al custumers 29510 i3 2357 a9 - 21,9574
OPERATING PROFIT / (LOXS] 01 ) "4y 0.4 na 108 N e Yool capital axpanditure 225 L1 149 2.9 - 3215
182 Non-turrent segmentul auwsets” 11526 nan 2104 138 - 15099
Irsastrment costs [ ] Totol segrmental ossets 18611 4733 ELYEY 395 as0.2) 1,068
Frwance income 1o “Excludes defarred tax und financial instruments
Friance cost vy -
Share of Joss of assorinted > e Material non-current segmental assets - by a non=UK country:
urerkakings
Fe :a_w:w gam on step 104 USA Delgium Autria Estenia Trulund Spaln
acquisition
[£m] £ £ £l J£ il (£
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION - uirs 1£m) IEm] 1€m L] [eml {bmi
i 1277 A6A8 224 - 2.5 395
Tazahan {82.9)
FY10 1438 2 30.3 247 525 367
PROFIT FOR THE PERICD 101.0
. . Material segmental revenue from external customers - by 4 nen-UK country:
Scles to other segments are priced at cost plus a 10% mark-up. 9 by J_
. N . o usa Balgium  Auatr Exteni Irsland Spal
Other segment items included in the income Stot2ment for the 52 weeks ended 26 April 2020: m e e e P
km] [em} IEn) (Em] (Em) (£}
UK Pramium  UKRetall  Eurepean Rast OF Total Greup Fran . 237 a 21 957 854 2081
Sporta Lifustyln Total Ratall Warld Ratal Ratail Tatat F{Im . 73532 955 55.2 1611 173 1841
{Eml {em ftm ftm) L) L] 1Em) Note tha Group has na mdividual customer whith accounts for mote than 10% of ravenue n the current o prior penod
Dag reciaton ECE) 07 8.2 azé - 48 wid dd.
IFR: 16 ROU depres winfimogimRent 11 61 119.2 70 133 1193 . ms
IFRL 36 dispasal of laose hal 7 wy 12.9) 0d n - {7
Excsptional Impawment 2.7 &5 LX) 25 - h R} . 31
)__x,n_m::n,:\_:ﬁc:_ﬂmj_ n 20 41 33 - o 124 w04
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The following table reconciles the reported operating profit to the underlying ERITDA as it has been
one of the main measures used by the Chjef Operating Decision Maker when reviewing performance
during the period:

Reconciliatior of operating (loss)/profit to underlying EBITDA for the 52 week period
ended 25 April 202v:
UKSports  Premium UK Retall  Puropean Rest of Whatesols
Retail  Lilwityle Total Hatall Werld Rupgil  RoTallTObE i g Greu Tetel
itm) lemi lemi (el $Em 1 ftm ]
GPERATING (LOSST/ PROFIT 158.3) 1.9 136.4) {33.4) us 1521 149 180.3)
1-RS 16 dispatal and Mol ahaon/ -
remnaatrament of lensa i aoa} 156l 125.63 4 LR 2 2]
IFRS ¥6 ROU depreciihon a1s L) 519 N9 23 21 - nt
1FRS 16 ROU impairment ey m5 1146 ano 15 J6d.2 - 1682
PPE depweciation inchuding investingnt 9557 04 261 w3t &7 ma 12 s
propetty}
PPE imagirnent nehading myestmant -
property] b6 2 Lo 0.2 ans - 1use - ua s
Intangible armartisation - - - as - 0s LK LA
REPORTED KEITDA ma e i s s ma (2] san§
(Frofit)l/ines on sale of propertas 114 - n.oj 15 &4 o1 nn - (LR}
Excepticnal Rems 31 16 ns) a1 . 14 14
1FRS 16 ndjustnients 7% 1239 {6 [LFE (o4 ez} ’ {1619
Reolsed FX loss / [goin) N2 b2 04 wa| 14 ne C M3
AMOERLYING ENTEA e e nH a1 156 %L Mo
B Relotes tathe revorsol of IFRS 16 rent and onarous lease pravisions

Recenciliation of operating profit to underlying EBITDA for the 52 week period ended 26 April 2020;

UK Premum  UKRetit  Guropean  Rewef Toial  Whalesols Greup
Sparts  Lifestyle Tatal Hatall World Ra Ratail & Licensing Tatal
Em} {Em) teml teml tem} [(1.] Hmi Emt
OFERATING PROFIT / [LOSS} 019 31,3 i (10.4) [£5)] 0o e "t
IERS 16 Dispotgl of letse Talshly an 10 3 na) 154 1041 1%.3)

LFRS 16 ROU dapresation/mparment n31 161 uy.2 7o 173 5 M5
RS 16 PPE iMpcurhant 12 - 1z 60 9.2 Lk
Dapraciction 953 W6 159 s I t342 e 1858
Amorbsotion/imporment 2t 20 41 39 - [L ‘25 15
Share ot boss &f assaciated undertkings 1159) - N2y - - (1) - 08
REPORTED ERITDA 490.0 5.2 082 1036 U4 332 us %510
Prolit oh sate of properties (332 - b} 12101 1342 (s¢.2!
Exceptional iterns 7 59 .6 as - n1 - 1
(FRS 16 orjustments {159 " (81t 2.9 130 1) 1208 inrs - {n2.9)

Reulised £X {gain) / loss 1257 5 ] (¢.2] 0.4 as.3) 04
ESITDA ms 45 bl 8 16.8) 263 8.2 3021

m Relntes 1o tha reversal ol (FRS 76 rent onid omznsus legse prowsicns
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5. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

FRASERS GROUP

# 25 Apsil 7021 " 28 apel 3020
tem |Eml
Hunt recemable 51 w3
<hiler 07 %2
384 328
Other nperating income rebutes 1o charges for nanr prermiuns, ad hat income and sundry Charges ta tied eorties
6. EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

52 wioka aniled 52 weekn anded
15 april 2021 26 April 1020
(tm {Em)
impanmants. 1e)) u3n

Prohit on disposal of intongible assets £]
1.6 ma

Tha impaument inbeth the current and prior year relates ta goodwil, wherby the discounted prasent vulue of future casn llaws ds not support the full

‘e axsels retates to the sals of cedoin P relating to the BELONG husinass

value of the ossets Tha pratit an disposal of intar

7.  PROFIT ON SALE OF PROPERTIES

2 wenkianded
15 apeil 2021

ikmp
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8. OPERATING ({LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD
Operating {loss)/profit for the period is stated after charging/(crediting):

23 wephe undad 52 wasks andnd
3% Aprit 202 26 Aprll 1030
{tmi {Em}
Fareign exchange ass / [gamn) 63 13491
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION OF NON-CURRENT ASSETE:
- Jrpreciation ol property, 8¢ sset] Eit] 758 4
lrgprtany OF Jrof By oot b eauiprient Gincl ngnt-ofouse acset) 364 1236
-Oegres dtior of invettinent pronerties 19 13
moorment of investmant praperty, 06
Arnertisatan of iatong-ple asgefs n 4%
“rus et sty 91 150
IFRS 16 LEASES:
Prolit on ghsposal and moditicot e of tensg labjiibies @77 vl
vanubls lmase prymants 255 B8
Shart term and luw volue lense expenses L 560

s the LK
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FRASERS GROUP

SERVICES PROVIDED BY THE GROUP'S AUDITOR

The remuneraticn of the auditors, RSM UK Audit LLP, and associated firms, was os detailed below:

52 waahs endud 52 wshis uricdud
35 Aprll 2031 24 Apil 2020
iem) (e}

AUDIT
Aucht of the Group and company - recur 1% 14
of the Group and company - non-recurting 61 04
of subsidiory companies 08 LY
Audit relotad assuronce senices . - 1
24 1

There were no non-audit services provided in either the current or prior period.

9. PAYROLL COSTS

The average monthly number of employees, including Executive Directors, employed by the Group
during the period was:

52 waaks anded 52 wasks sndad
25 April 2021 8 April 2020
12122 25,505

4378 4674

26,498 10,179

The decrease in employees is mainly due to natural attrition, including in port, the integration of new
aequisitions.

The aggregate payroll costs of the employees, including Executive Directors, net of amounts received
from Goverriment grants, were as follows:

51 weeks ended 5T wanks ended

28 Apell 2021 26 April 2020

wages ond salaries 34272 4564
Sociol security costs 253 05
Penswon costs - 56 59
ma ina

Aggregate emoluments of the Directors of the Company are summarised below:

52 wialis wnded 52 wirdhs etyibad

28 aprll 2021 26 Apel 2020

temy i

Agzgregate erncluments o5 od

Further details of Directors' rermuneration are given in the Directors' Remuneration Report. Details of
key management remuneration are given in note 34.

93
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10. INVESTMENT INCOME

52 waska anded 52 wasks apded

35 Apeil 2631 26 Aptll 2020

. (Em) - {km)

Pralit on disposul of f 1al assets and eguity derivatws financiol instruments 274 ra
Prarmwm racerved on dervative hnoncil istruments 06

Fair value gan on equity denvotive linanciul instrumants 552 73

Ondend ingome 05 o5

w0y 15,2

The profit ¢n disposal of financial assets mainly relates to Hugo Boss contracts for difference. The
fair value gain on equity derivative financial instruments mainly relates to Hugo Boss options and
contracts for difference. The premium received on derivative financial instruments mainly relates to
Hugoe Boss options.

11. INVESTMENT COSTS

52 wawks andad %52 wesks ended

25 Apeil 2023 8 Aprl 2020

oy it

Loss on disposal of financial assets and equity denvativ cial mstruments - 140

Fou valus loss on aquity denvotive Inancial nstruinants 77 ase
7 »

The fair value loss on equity derivatives in the current peried mainly relates to movements in
contracts for difference.

The loss on disposal recognised in the prior period mainly relates to the sale of equity derivatives.
The fair value loss on equity derivatives in the prior period mainly relates to Hugo Boss options and
commadities.

12. FINANCE INCOME

52 weahe andud 52 wanks ended

25 April 2021 26 April 2020

Em {Emi

Haonk interest recervobie 15 14
Other fnance intoma 55 Bt
Foir value edjustment to dervabive inancgl mstruments - na
4.0 .o

The fair value edjustment to derivative financial instruments relates to differences between the fair
value of forward foreign currency contracts and written options that were not designated for hedge
accounting from one period end to the next. Other finance income largely relates to premiums
received on option contracts.

ind aoross the UK
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13. FINANCE COSTS

52 waaks ended 52 wesks snded

15 Aprid 2011 26 Apeil 2010

tm} (Em)

Intersst on bark loans and averdrafts " 1 2y

Other imarest 86 04

Interest on rebrement benalit gbligonans [ 01

RS % |ease nterast mng 1oy
Fair value adyustment to denvative hinono! instruments ik

362 ELE)

The fair value adjustment to derivative financial instruments relates to differences between the fair
value of forward fareigh currency contracts and written options that were not designated for hedge
accounting from one peried end to the next.

14. TAXATION
52 wasks ended 52 weaks anded
. 25 April 1028 26 April 2020
{Em} Em
Cueent tax 831 572
Adjustemant i1 respect Lo prive penards ) [EL3 34
TOTAL CURRENT TAX 160 Lafs
Dafarred tax R 12581
Adgustrent in resprct of priar perods 021 73
TUTAL DEFERRED TAX {SEE NOTE 27] 110.3) {1.8)
[ LX) 25
Prokit afore taxatuan as 425
Taxotion ot the standord rate of tax n the UK of 199 (2020 15%} E) 273
Non-toxable income E] 122 3
Expenses not deductible for vax putposes 1o 134
Othar tax adjustments x5l 36
Adjustments w respeet of prior pencds - currant tax 3% 3g
Adjuskments in respect ol pripr penogs - dalerrer tox EF] iz
Changes in deferied tox rate - 1241
s 5

Non-toxoble income largely refates to profits on property disposal due to differences between capital
allowances and depreciation. Expenses not deductible for tax purposes relate to non-qualifying
depreciation, impdirments, and fair valuation of investments.
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15. EARNINGS PER SHARE FROM TOTAL AND CONTINUING OPERATIONS
ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders
of the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares cutstanding during the year

For diluted earings per share, the weighted average number of shares, 501,955,281 (FY20:
505,826,890), is adjusted to assume conversion of all dilutive potentic! ordinary shares under the
Group's share schemes, being 88,605 (FY20: 1,239,075), to give the diluted weighted average numher
of shares of 502,043,886 [FY20: 507,065,965). However, as there is g loss for the period ended 25 April
2021, the effect of potenticlly dilutive ordinary shares is anti-dilutive, and therefore the weighted
average number of shares for the Diluted EPS calculation has been kept the same as for the Basic
EPS calculgtion for the current period.

Basic And Diluted Earings Per Share

31 wenhs snded Sxwonky updded

25 April 28 Apeil 26 ApHl 28 Aprit

2021 ozt 220 201D

Baric Dikuted Waske Dilsted

i L] €m (Lm}

{1 assifarait lor the penca 1830] (830} 918 28
Numbar in theusanda Number in theusands

Weghted gventge mumber of shares 501955 501955 506,837 501066
Pants pershare . Pance pérshate

Eanungs per shire 116 51 165 E] L
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FRASERS GROUP

Underlying Earnings Per Share

The underlying earnings per share reflects the underlying performance of the business compared
with the prior period and is calculated by dividing underlying earnings by the weighted average
number of shares for the period. Underlying earnings is used by management as a measure

of profitability within the Group. Underiying earnings is defined as (loss)/profit for the period
attributable to equity hofders of the parent for each financial period but excluding the post-tax
effect of certain non-trading items. Tax has been calculated with reference to the effective rate of tax

for the Group.

The Directors believe that the underlying earnings before exceptional items and underlying earnings
per share measures provide additional useful information for shareholders on the underlying
performance of the business and are consistent with how business performance is measured
internally, Underlying earnings is not a recognised profit measure under IFRS and may not be directly
comparable with "adjusted” profit measures used by other companies.

52 wanks ended 32 weahs sndud
23 Apdl 25 Apeil b April o April
o 0ar poro] 1010
Bosic Dlluked Basie Dikrted
L] lEm) tkm) {m)
(LOS3H/PROFIT FOR THE PERIDD 183.0) 2 5] " 7”4
Post tax adjustment to {loss)/prafit for the perod for the fellowing tems
Realised lossfligain] on forward lameign exchaige coatrocts 197 17 1261}
Foir value adjustmant ta forwnid fereign exchange cantracts 14 115 0)
Fair vulue goin an step acqusition - |304)
Fair volue od) to d Ive linancial [47 51 |47 51 %9
W....wmm; :.mn_n.._wﬁu._u_ﬁ_ wprofit on disposal ol ancial E.,“Em ohd equil y denvative e 71 77
Profit on dispesal of proparties 197 15421 154 2)
impairmant of geodwili 91 121 131
Proiit on disposol of intangible assets 1561 -
1FRS 16 odjustments %8 e 569
UNDERLYING |LO3SL/PROFIT FOR THE PERIOR (853} 185.3] nr
Rumbet in thouiends In thousands
$hares in issue ot the perod end 501,955 501955 505827 507066
Pones pat chars Pence p
Earnings per share . (1.0} im0 182 161
95

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
. A e GelD e e
Buildings Improvemants
. 1] (Em) (L] lem) tem) tm)
COsST
AT 22 APRIL 2018 - ML 68.0 m.7 6208 157128
Reeagnised on adoption of IFRS 16 a5 - L. B - ans
Acquisitions 188 54 H - &1 s0.8
Additions - 1012 2 22 15.4 1287 -dzaT
Efminated on disposals (209 1335 103} 11671 17.8] (s3.3)
Reclassifications / Remeasurements' i 28 - - - 330 EiE
Exchanga dilfersncas - - 02 10.8) 28 &
. AT 26 APRIL 2020 su4 e 1316 728 2411
Acquisibians |ses nots 31) . 21 a5 - - 0 ne
Additions.. “118.8 843 a1 20 128.8 1182
Elminated on disposals T qaan) {16.5) %] 160) 157.4) (za.n
Reclassiffcations / Remeosuremants' } 764 1794 792 04 87 asg
Exchange dilferences 1221 01 1031 1.2
AT 35 APRIL 2011 - 5694 2054 1512 14 170
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT
AT 28 APAIL 2019 - 11aL.8) 4.2} unn 4a49) 49.8)
Recognised on adoption af IFRS 16 - - - - 6.21 [CX]
Charge for the periog ™ 22 &) {a2 B} [FE] [7.0) (4.2} ey
minated on disposals. - 78 wo t 248 ‘623
Exchange diflerances 05 105) 08 2.6 ar
AT 26 APRIL 2020 {2187 L1 1] (1a7) 1H133) (5628} {1070.5)
Charge for the period {821 (745 1.6 11.5] {118.81 (a98.5]
Innpowrrent {t68 2] 184.4) 1as) 1011 155 8] (a4
nated on disposals 475 nz° 03 . &7 544 12041
Reclassifications £ Remeosurements!” * - 181 - 28 1441
Exchange diffarencus,. - 2 63 01 01 23 s
AT 25 APRIL 2021 i) (2823) - (493) [GILE] (6988 (13890
NET8ODK VALUE )
AT 25 APRIL 2021 2403 127 1004 (3] 180.2 11649
AT 26 APRIL 2020 ) 1087 7458 519 -oonr ‘1042 LUTE
AT 28 APRIL 2019 . U5 538 140 3.9y gy

1}
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[E]]

The £33 0m was reclassrfied due to Shirebrook warehauss plant and equipment not forming part of t

the prior year

In the puar penad there is na sepurate atimp Irom
impanrtment in Y20 wos L122 6m of which £97 8m reloted to the i

n respect of the praperty,
af-use nssats

f and aguipment Totol

I sale und leusebock completed during

In tha current period a number of properhes were idantified thot were praviously classified withu Freehold Land ond Bulldings but monagemant
behava it to ba more appropriata ta clossify within Long-term Leasehold These have therefare baan adjusted in the period os raclassificotions

Note 2 provides further detail on the property related impairments {relating to ROU assets, freehold

lend and bu

ings and onerous lease provisions),

tedt on Stenbers 1007 Recycled and Carbon Gaplured throuah the Woodiand Trust, helping to create new Britsh woodiand acioss the UK
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Leases

The Group adopted IFRS 16 on 29 April 2619, The Group only has property leases within the scope of
IFRS 16, including retait stores, offices ond warehouses. Leases are largely for a period between 1~ 15
years typically with break clauses. It is management’s intention to continue to enter into turnover
linked leases in the future.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment property in
‘property, piant and equiprment’, the same fine item as it presents undeslying assets of the same

nature that it owns. The carrying amount and movements in the period can be seen in the table
above.

Lease fiabilities are presented separately within the Conschdated Balonce Sheet. The maturity
analysis of lease ligbilities is show in note 29e. Interest expense on the lease liability is presented as o
component of finance costs as per note 13. Cash payments for the principal portion and the interest
portion of the lease iiability are presented in the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement with further
details given in note 26.

The Group is party to a number of leases that are clossed os short term leases and with variable
lease payments. These ara typically property leases on turnover based rents. Nete 8 discloses
variable lease payments and short term and Jow value lease expenses incurred in the pericd. Cash
flows in the period relating to variable lease payrments, short term lease payments, and leases for low
value aisets were approx. £24m (FY20: approx. E72m). It is expected that future cash flows wilt net be
materially different to the FY20 cash flows. Leases to which the Group is committed but have not yet
commenced at period end dre not considered to be material.

17.  INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Frashold land and
Suiidings

{Emi

cotT
AT 23 APRIL 2078 AND 24 APRIL 1020

Elminotad on disposals

AT 25 APRIL 2021 "2

ACCUMUL AND

AT 18 APRIL, 2019

Charge for the period

AT 24 APRIL 3070

Charga for the pancd

imparment

El

wnated on dispossls

AT 25 APRIL 2021

NLY EQOK VALLE

AT 25 APRIL 3021 e

AT 26 APRIL 7020 - 1y
. AT 2B APRIL 019 n:

The fait values of the Groug's investment properties as at 25 April 2021 were estimated as being
materially in line with carrying values. The valuations were colculoted by the Group's internal
property team who are approprictely qualified chartered surveyors and follow the applicable
voluation methodology of the Royal Instituté of Chartered Surveyors. Note 2 provides further detail
on the property related impairments.

96

;1007 Reoyeled and Carbon Captuad theouglts he Wooudited

FRASERS GROUP

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Gaasrit Jroiearts Bronds Total
Hm) 1emy ikm) (Em]
cosT
AT 11 ARRLL 2018 146y ”e oA i TE]
Acyuisnans 27y 20 - uz
Dispoals. - o4 104}
Fxchungs ady stments . 46 o6 .0 (X}
AT 38 APRIL 1020 e %o "W ELA
Acquistions fsee note 3t 6y - - 60
Addhbons 10 - 10
Dispasals 33 - )
Exchonege adjugtments 183} 110 (98 98
AT 25 APALL 3021 "y 0! ne U0
AMORTI£ATIGN AND IMBATRMENT
AT 28 APRIL 207F (v5.0) h23) Hna
Amartiation thargs 13 L] i6 01 [02]
Imponrment 1% - (19.00
Dispasal - 04 04
Excnunge sristments 102) az - -
AT 16 APRIL 2020 - 19.3) ) 16.0} (T 4f
Meardgatan choane waa k] (551 i3]
Irpoimnt @Y - - »ay
Drspasol . a3 - 13
Exchange austmEnts a7 04 07 58
AY 25 RPRIL 2021 (1240} (88.7) {100 fans)
AT 25 ADRIL 2021 X 40 695 1203
AT 28 APRIL 020 344 a8 i a4
AT 28 ADBIL 3098 T LX) "4 ;.0

Amortisation is charged to selling, distribution and administrotive expenses in the consolidated
Incame Statement.

The majority of the net beok value of intangible ossets relates to the £86.5m purchase of Everlast in
2007,
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The carrying value of goodwill and brands that are considered to have an indefinite life are allocated
to the Group's operating segments before aggregation. With the exception of Everlast, none of

the individual cash-generating units (CGUs) cre considered material to good:

or indefinite life

intangibles. The carrying value of goodwill ard brands allocated to the Group's CGUs [as aggregated

except in the case of Everlast) is shown below:

25 April 2021 26 April 2020
tosdwlll Brapds Soadwlll Brands
(Em) ] (i} [
Europeon Retoil 36
Wholesala & Licensing jexcl. Everlast] 143 - 143
Evarlust 324 698 3532 Bad
[ " 541 A

The Group tests the carrying amount of
goodwill and assets with an indefinite life
annually for imeairment or more frequently if
there are indications that their carrying value
might be impaired. The corrying amounts

of ather intangible assets are reviewed

for impairment if there is an indication of
impairment.

Impairment is calcutated by comparing the
carrying amounts to the value in use derived
from discounted cash flow projections for
zach CGU to which the intangible assets are
allocated. A CGU is deemed to be an individual
fascia ot brand and these have been grouped
together into similar classes for the purpose of
formulating operating segments as reported
in note 4. The total recoverable amount of

all CGUs in relation to the above intongible
assets was £262.3m of which £136.8Bm related
to Everlast. Due to the ongoing impact of
Covid-19, the European Retail goodwill was
impaired to £nil with an impairment charge of
£3.1m {FY20: £nil) being recognised where the
ciscounted present value of future cash flows
did not support the full value of the asset.

Value in use calulations are based on five-year
management forecasts with a terminal

growth rote applied thereafter, representing
management's estimate of the long-term
growth rate of the sector served by the CGUs.

Tota! impairments of £9.1m (FY20; £19.0m)
have been recognised in relation to good
on loss making companies and are individually
immaterial to each CGU that has been

wiitten down. These impairments include the
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European Retait goodwill and the goodwill from
acquisitions in the period.

The Everlast brand is amortised over a 15
year period within the selling, distribution and
administrative expenses category within the
income statement, The amount charged to
the income statement in the period is £5.5m
[FY20: £6.0m), the future amortisation charge
is expected to be approximately £6.0m per
annurn for the remaining 13 year amortisation
period (FY20: 14 year).

The key assumptions, which are equally applicable to each CGU), in the cash flow projections used to
suppott the carrying amount of goodwill were as fellows:

Av et 13 ApH 2031 Buspram it WPl Euenne Erariost
Ternunal sales growth " 20% 7.0% 20%
5 ywor fore st growth ! 13 5%} 5.3%} 13 6%}
Gross margin 30%- 0% - .
Drscount rate 63% . £ 3% 121%
e at 26 Apeil 2010 Curopenn Antail Evarknt
Terminol soles growth 20% 20%
% year forecast growth: 20% 9%
Gross margin 30%-40%

Discount rate 6% < 62% %

) The 5 year growth rates are based o the averoge growth over § yeors,

The same pre-tax discount rate is used in European Retail and Wholesale & Licensing (excl. Everiost)
as these CGU's are considered to have similar risk profiles. A specific discount rate is used for Everiast
as this business operates in a different market and has different characteristics.

The key assumptions are based on market data and management's historical experience and future
plans for each CGU.

Sensitivity Analysis

A reascnably possible change in any key assumption would not cause the carrying value of the
Everlast or Wholesale & Licensing {excluding Everlast) CGU to exceed its recoverable omount,
the table beiow shows the amount of headroom and the revised assumption required in order to
elimincte the headroom in full. -

The European Retail goodwill has been impaired in the period as a result of the ongeing impact of
Covid-19.

Whalesole & Liceniing Evedast

{auek. Everlast)
Recoverable amount of CGU (Eml 1255 n68
Currant headroom tEm] mz 6
Ravised 5-year forecast grawth rate % |7 7% ) 12 5%
Revised terminal growth care % < (1DGE%) 05%
Revised discount rate % 52 6% 140%

|
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19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATED UNDERTAKINGS

The Group uses the equity method of atcounting for associates and joint ventures in occardance
with IAS 28. The following table shows the oggregate movemnent in the Group's investment in
associates and joint ventures:

AssoCiotes

@t

AT 28 APRIL 2018 10
Adchitions 56
Share of lass bor the period 15yl
Fa volug adjustment 204
Drspasals a1

AT 26 APRIL 2030 AND 25 APRIL f021 -

The share of loss in the priar period relates to Game Digital ple prior to obtaining a controlling
interest in July 2019,

The fair value adjustment in the prior year relates ta the increase in the faic value of the previously
held 38.1% equity interest in Game Digital plc ot the acquisition date on 8 July 2019,

The disposals in the prier period mainly relates to the de-recegnition of Game Digital plc as an
assaciate due to obtaming a controlling interest.

The Group currently holds g 49.0% share of Four {Holdings) Limited (FY20: 49.0%), the carrying
amount of this investment is £nil. Detailed disclosures have not been presented as the results are
immaterial. The Group is owed £64.9m from the group of companies headed by Four (Holdings)
Limited [E26.5m net of omounts recognised in respect of loss allawance) (FY20: £67.5m, £33.8m net
of loss allowance), see note 22 for further details. The group of companies headed by four (Hotdings)
Limited made o profit of £8.1m in the pariod [FY20: loss of £19.8m}.
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20. LONG-TERM FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group is not looking to make gains through increases in market prices of its long-term financial
assets, therefore on initial application of IFRS 9 the Group made the irrevacable election to account
for long term financict assets at fatr value through other comprehensive income (FYOCY. The
election has been made on an instrument-by-instrument basis, only qualifying dividend income is
recoghised in profit and loss, changes in fair value are recognised within OC| and never reclassified
to profit and lgss, even if the asset is impaired, sold or otherwise derecognised. The majority of
leng-term financial ussets are recognised in the UK Sports segment.

The Ffair value of the Yong-term finoncial assets is based on bid quoted market prices at the balance
sheet date or where market prices are not available, at management's estimate of foir value

The following table shows the aggregate movement in the Group's financial ossets during the period:

2% Apail 2021 36 April 2020

1tmi IEmi

At begmpang of penod H38 " a6
A s ik 248
Drsposalc oy 591
Amaunts recogrised bhrough ather coimprehensive ncome w3 17
Exchange difteren: s TR -
3633 A

Included within fong-term financial assets at the period ended 25 April 2021 are the following direct
interests held by the group:

+ 36.8% (FY20: 12.5%) interest in Mulberry + 5.1% (FY20: 0.2%) interest in Hugo Boss AG
Group pic

= 35.6% (FY20: 36.9%] interest in Studio Retail
Group plc

= Various other interests, nane of which
represent more than 5.0% of the voting
power of the investee

During the period the Group sold its 26.1% interest in French Connection Group pic due to it no
longer being considered part of the Group's long-term strategy. The fair volue ot the date of
derecognition was £2.6m with the £1.7m gain on disposal being recognised in investment income

The following table shows the fair value of each of the Group's long-term financial assets {all listed):

15 April 202% 16 Apnil 2020

&m| 1£m|
Mulbesry Gron S50 EE

897 612
Hugo Bass AG 7 24
#rench Gonnertian Group pl; - 16
Otrar 29 40
AT END OF PERIOD pLiE] nL

These holdings have been assessed under
IFRS 9 Financial instruments ond categorised
as long-term financial assets, as the Group
does not consider them to be associates and
therefore, they are not accounted for on an
equity bosis, see note 2.

assist in building relationships with key suppliers
and brands.

Qur strategic investments are intended to allow
us to develop relationships and commercial
partnerships with the relevant retailers and

AT
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21. INVENTORIES

W apdi 2001 26 Aprid 2020
{Em) IEm)
Goads lor resale 09646 1198 3

As at 25 April 2021, goods for resale include a right of return asset totalling £4.5m :Jﬁo £2.4m}.
Amounts written off in the period reloting to stock was £24.3m (FY20 £39.0m).

The following inventory costs have been recoganised in cost of sales:

5 Apl 20621 26 Aprid 2030
[T leml
Cost of snventones recognised 03 an axpanse 20945 22948

The Directors have reviewed the opening and closing provisions against inventory and have
concluded that these are fairly stated. The Group has reviewed its estimates and assumptions for
caleulating inventory provisions at 25 April 2021, Overall provisions have decreased from £223.0m in
FY20 to £219.8m as at 25 April 2021, changes ir the provision are recognised in cost of sales.

22, TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

28 April 2021 26 April 1030

(i 1&m)

Trade recaivables 572 575
Deposits In raspuct of derwutive fmancial instruments o ni
Amaunts owad by related portl#s {see note 34) 68 342
Dihar recervabiles 469 1967
Irepayments BAG 545
5465 A2

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates to
their fair value. The maximum exposure to credi risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of
each class of osset ubove, plus any cash balances. Cther receivables also include unremitted sales
receipls.

Ceposits in respect of derivative financial instruments are collateral to cover margin requirements for
derivative transactions held with counterparties The collateral requirement changes with the market
{which is dependent on share price, interest rates and volatility) and further purchases / sales of
underlying investments held.

Included within other receivables is the reimbursement asset totalling £918.3m [FY20: £118.3m] in
relation to the Group's engoing non-UK tax enquiries, for further information see note 28.

The majority of the Group's trade receivables are held within the Wholesale & Licensing businesses,
each customer’s creditworthiness is assessed before payment terms are agreed.

Uder IFRS 9, the Group has applied the simplified approach to providing for expected credit losses
fer trade receivables, using the lifetime expected loss provision for all trade receivables. To measure
the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped besed on a very low credit risk
characteristic, representing management's view f the risk, and the days post due. The credit quality
of assets neither past due rior impaired is considzred to be good. The Group considers a debt to be
defaulted at the point when no further amounts are expected to be recovered. Financial assets are
written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. If recoveries are subsequently made
af-er receivables have been written off, they are recognised in profit or loss.

9%

beis 100% Recycled and Carbon Copliiad theoy

v the Woodland Trust, helpmg to create new Bt

The amounts owed by related parties mostly relates to the group headed by Four {Holdings) Limited,
for further details see note 34.

Exposure to credit risk of trade receivables:

25 apsdl 2021 28 Aprl J030

{emy 1em)

LCurrent kil o
0-30 days past duy 120 10
30-60 days past due 40 47
66-90 days pust due 74 20
Ower 90 days past due 70 . 13
572 5.5

The credit quality of assets neither past due nor impaired is considered to be good.

The movement in loss allowance relating to trode receivables and amounts owed to related parties
can be onalysed as follows: -

52 washs d 53 weaks andad

5 Apeil 2011 26 April 2020

trmy ikm)

Qpening posibon 4632 18
Amounts charged to the incoima stalement 23 12.6
Amounts wiitten off as uncollectal 101 i
Amounts recoverad during the penod 101 1081
CLOSING POMTION 83 482

Included in the below table is the loss allowance movement in amounts due from related parties as
follows;

52 waaks ended 52wanksended
25 April 2021 26 Aprid 2010

(Em) (Em)

Gpening posion 338 08
Amounts charged ta the incane stuterment 46 120
CLOSING POSITION i na

The gross carrying omeunt of the balance due is £65.2m [FY20: £67.5m). The charge in the period has
been recorded in Selling, distribution and administrative expenses. £12.4m of the gross amounts due
from related parties balance is due in less than one year with the remaining being due in more than
a one year (FY20: £2.9m due less than one year).

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over @ large number
of customers. The ioss allowance / charges have been determined by reference to past default
experience, current / forecasted troding performance ond future economic conditions.

Deposits in respect of derivative finoncial instruments and prepoymenits are not considered to be
impaéred.

woodiand acioss the UK
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23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

25 april 2821 16 April 2020
toml sttt
Cash v bank and in hand - Starling 1441 257 B
Cash in bank and n hond - US Doliars 574 1"s
Caosh n berk and 1 hang - Eures. w5 552
Cash in honh ongin hand - Other 230 35
4500 540
24. SHARE CAPITAL
28 April 2001 26 Apeil 2020
Emi i)
AUTHORISED
999,500,010 wrdinary shores of 10p each e 1000
ALLOTTED, CALLID UP AND FULLY FAID
540,602 363 12020 640,602,369 orchnory shures of 10p sach 641 641
SHARKE CAPITAL
At 25 Apnl 202 and 26 Apal 2020 fad €41
The Group holds 121,260,175 shares in Treasury as Contingent Share Awards

at period end (FY20: 121,260,175).

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to
receive dividends cs declared from time to time
and are entitled to one vote per ordinary share
at general meetings of the Company.

We are awere of unsponsored American
Depository Receipt (ADR) programmes
established from time to time in respect of cur
shares. We have not sponsored or authorised
their creation and any questions should be
directed to the relevant depasitary.

Frasers hos not and does not intend to offer or
sell its Ordinary Shares or other secyrities {in
the form of ADR ar otherwise] to the general
public in the United States nor has it listed

or intends to list its Ordinary Shares or other
securities on any national securities exchange
in the United States or to encourage the trading
of its Ordinary Shares on any over the counter
morket located in the United States. Frasers does
net maoke arrangements to permit the voting of
Ordinary Shares held in the form of ADRs and
its publication of periodic financial and ether
information is not intended to facilitate the
operation of any unsponsored ADR programme
under Rule 12g3-2(b} of U.5. Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended or otherwise.
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The Executive Share Scheme

Under the terms of the Executive Share Scherne,
which was approved by Shareholders on 10
September 2010 and is a HMRC approved
scheme, the Board may make share awards in
respect of the ordinary shares in the Company.,
Awards may be made to Executives and Persons
Discharging Managerial Responsibilities over a
fixed number of shares subject to performance
conditions. Further details are set out in the
Directors’ Remuneration Report,

An award of 8,073,036 shares was granted an
10 September 2010 ot a share price of 125.%
pence. Between 27 April 2020 and 25 Apni 2021,
1,000,600 shares sold by participants fallowing
exercise of awards were ocquired by Estera
Trust {Jersey) Limited, as Trustee of the Sports
Direct Employee Benefit Trust {Trustee), with
the acquisition funded by a loan advanced

by the Company. The shares were acquired at
374.8 penice per share. At the period end 6m
of the shares in the scheme have since vested
{FY20: 5m] and 2Zm have since lapsed meaning
olf shores granted by the scheme have now
exercised or lgpsed,

Share Schemes

The 201 Share Scheme was a four year scheme
based upen achieving underlying EBITDA
{before the costs of the scheme) of £215m

in FY12, £250m in FY13, £260m in FY14 and
£300m in FY15 coupled with the individua!
participating employee’s satisfactory personaf
performaonce and centinued employment.

All of the above turgets have now been met
meaning that approx. 11.6m shares vested in
September 2017 and approx. 4m shares vested
in September 2015.

Between 27 April 2020 and 25 April 2021,
150,470 shores sold by participants foliowing
exercise of awards under the Group 2011

Share Schierme were acquired by Estera Trust
{Jersey) Limited, as Trustee of the Sports Direct
Employee Benefit Trust {Trustee), with the
acquisition being funded by a loan advanced
by the Company. The shares were acquired at
prices of between 251.8 and 460.8 pence per
share in off-market transactions. The weighted
average purchase price was 365 pence per
share [FY20: 257 pence per share).

A share-based payment charge of Enil (FY20:
nil) wos recognised in respect of this equity
settled award for the 52 weeks ended 25 April
2021, based on the Director's best estimate of
the number of awards that will be made. The
charge is calculated based on the fair value on
the grant date, which is deemed to be the date
on which the entity and counterparty reached o
shared understanding of the scheme.

The Group holds 17,386,913 shares in the
Own Share Reserve as at period end [FY20:
17.386,913),

FRASERS GROUP

Fearless 1000 Bonus Sch

At the annuat general meeting in October
2020, our shareholders gave approval for

the Fearless 1000 bonus scheme. Under this
scheme shares may be issued by the Group to
employees for no cash consideration. All Group
employees [excluding executive directors, their
family associates, and the Chief Commercial
Cfficer} are efigible to participate in the
scheme. Under the scheme, 10 mitlion shares
arg awarded to eligible employees if certain
market conditicns are achieved. This would
equote to £100m worth of fully poid ordinary
shares in Frasers Group ple that could be poid
to eligible employees if our share price reaches
£10 any time aver the next four years. Tha share
price must stay above £10 for 30 consecutive
trading days to trigger the vesting of shares at
the end of the four year vesting period. 50%

of the shares are granted ofter 4 years and the
remaining 50% ofter 5 years. One thousand
aligible employees will receive the shares with
o potential value ranging from £50k to £1m if
the share price is at £10 at the vesting dates. In
all other respects the shares rank equally with
other fully paid ordinary shares on issue.

The share element of the scheme is deemed

to be an equity-settled scheme as defined by
IFRS 2 Shore-based payment. In line with the
accounting policy in note 1, the fair value at the
date of grant is expensed to the Consolidated
Income Staterent on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, with the corresponding
credit going ta equity.

The assessed fair value ot grant date of the
shares granted during the period ended 25

April 2021 was 165.69p per share for the 4 year
vesting period and 165.95p per share for the 5
year vesting period. The fair value at grant date
is independently determined using an adjusted
form of the Black-Scholes model which includes
a Monte Carlo simulation modal that takes

into account the exercise price, the term of the
option, the impact of ditution {where matenal),
the share price at grant date and expected
price volatility of the underlying share, the
expected dividend vield, and the risk-free
interest rate for the term of the scheme
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The model inputs for shares granted during the period ended 25 April 2021 included:
~ exercise price: £nil

- grant date: 10 February 2021, being the daze the Deed of Grant was executed

- expiry date: 7 October 2024 and 7 October 2025

- share price at grant date: 450p

- expected price volatility of the company's shares: 38.8%

- expected dividend yield: 0%

- risk-free interest rate: 0.1%

The expected price volatility is based on the historic velatility [based on the remaining life of the

scheme), adjusted for any expected changes to future volatility due to publicty available information.

A charge in the Consolidated Income Statement of £0.8m has been recognised in the period in
-elation to the equity-settled element of the sc1eme resulting in £0.8m now being held in equity.

The scheme also has a cash-settled bonus for all other eligible employees who do not qualify for
the Fearless 1000 share scheme, The cash honus at the end of the 4 year period is based on the
employee tenure and has been occounted as on other long-term employee benefit as defined by
A5 19 Employee Benefits. A charge in the Consolidation Income Statement of £0.5m has been
recognised in the period along with a corresponding ligbility. ,
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25, OTHER RESERVES

Pesmanent  Copital Reverss _jgng  Total other
to sopital e rasena reserve  Reserves
] ] {Eml iEml Eml
AT 28 APRIL 2018 01 50 [ e 19325)
Coth llow hedges
- recogrised in the penord . - 164 164
- recoghued in the penod - neffectivaness - - 037
« reclassihed in the period and raported in the sales
- recinsyiher ond reported in cost of saes . - 374
- taxation - - - s 18
AT 26 APRIL 2030 04 o e we ()
Coth llow hedges
 tecognmsed in the penod . - - a4 a4
- reclassihed in the period and reported in soles . - (28] 1280
- teclatsihed and reported m tost of sles . - nz1l n7y
- taxohign - - - in EL
AV 28 aPRIL 202 01 3 9ez.3) "s 2]

The permanent contribution to capital relates to a cash payment of 50,000 to the Company on 8
February 2007 under o deed of capital contribution,

The capital redernption reserve arose on the redemption of the Company's redeemable preference
shares of 10p ecch at par on 2 March 2007,

The reverse acquisition reserve exists as a resuit of the adoption of the principles of reverse .
acquisition accounting in accounting for the Group restructuring which oceurred on 2 March

2007 and 29 March 2007 between the Company and Sports World International Limited, Brands
Holdings Limited, International Brand Mcenagement Limited and CDS Holdings SA with Sports World
International Limited as the acquirer.

The hedging reserve represents the cumulative amount of gains and losses on hedging instruments
deemed effective in cash flow hedges. The cumulative deferred gain or loss on the hedging
instrument is recognised in the income statement enly when the hedged transaction impacts the
income statement.

wh across the UK
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Other Bulance Sheet Reserves

The foreign currency translation reserve is used to record exchange differences arising from the
translation of the Financial Statements of foreign subsidiaries and asseciotes,

The own shares and treasury shares reserve represent the cost of shares in Frasers Group ple
purchased in the market and held by Frasers Group Employee Benefit Trust to satisfy options under
the Group's share options scheme.

The Group holds 17,386,913 shares in the Eraployee Benefit Trust us ot period end {FY20: 17.388,755).

The non-controlling interests of the Group mostly relates to Sportland International Group AS and
its subsidiaries. This company is incorporated in Estonia with the principal places of business being o
number of Baltic countries in Europe. The non-controlling interests hold 40% of the share capital of
Spoartland International Group AS. During the period £3.0m profit (FY20: £2.8m) has been aflocated
to the non-controlling interests of Sportiand internationatl Groug AS, resuiting in an occumuiated
non-controtling interests at the end of the period of £12.4m (FY20: £2.4m). A dividend of £0.9m was
paid to the non-controlling interest in the period {FY20: £nil}. The group of companies headed by

Sportland (nternational Group AS has toto) ossets of £67.8m and total ligbilities of £14.6m.
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26. BORROWINGS

25 April 2021 26 April 2020
Iy (e}
CURRENT
. ense e B S W
NON-CUNRENT:
Bank onuy oteer foorrs 7055 H00 0
1 wase e 5347 aral
TQTAL 14286 1,514

An analysis of the Group's total borrewings other than bank averdrafts is as follows:

25 Apedl 3021 25 April 1020
femj L)
Borrravings - steting 1059 9000

As at period end, loans are at a rote of interest of 1.3% {FY20: 13%} over the interbank rate of the
country within which the barrowing entity resides,

Reconciliation Of Liabilities Arising From Financing Activities
The changes in the Group's liabilities arising from financing activities can be clossified as follows:

Non-curent  Corent  Sharsbuy

borrewings  berrewingy. backs Tatal

m itml {Eml itm)

AT 1B APRJL 2699 5265 - 16.0 2588

CASH-FLOWS:

Burtcwinys drawn down 5100 . - $10.0

BorOwings rehard 143% 5 - - U

i by buck, . 433! 19
LEASE LIABILITY,

PR R L euse Liaphibies 4558 138 3 - L
- IERS 14 Lease Lubilitees - Acourstions e ne - 1o
NON-CASH MOVEMENTS:

- Share buy bark . 139 ns
AT 26 APRIL 2030 19962 ure - 1821
CASH-FLOWS:

- Barrowings drown down 11281 - 11284

- Burrawiays repaid (1222 2) . . f13:2.2)
HEASE LIABILTY:

FRY "8 Laase ¢ abrlnes - cosh-Hows - (780 Pe.0)
e , rome iy a
- IFRS16 Letrse Lig 05 - new lgoses PH.3 plk] 1188
AT 18 APRIL 202) 12401 s 14206

The acquired Borrowings [note 37) of £1.4m were repand in full during the period,

The Group's Working Capital Facility (s ot £913.5m {(FY20: £913.5m]) available until November 2021
and is not secured against any of the Group's assets, During FY19 the Group enacted an extension
aption for a further year to November 2022 for £847.5m.
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The Group continues to operate comfortably within its banking facilities and covenants, The carrying
amounts and fair value of the borrowings are not materially different.

Reconciliation of Net Debt:

18 April 2021 1 April 2030

Emi {Em)

Barrowings MA2B 6 52411
ADD BACK:

- Lease liobihihey T 6241
Cosh and cash eguivolents 4518 5340
MNET DEMT (248.9) [366.0)
27. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Azesunts
g e Tl fde 00 S ey Tl
L.v-ln_n:..- esntrach Sfferancar
|Em} (Em} m} £m] tm) {Em) {Emy

AT 20 APRIL 2019 - e L {20.0) Loy %]
Credlted/{charged] ta the income statement 213 10 (34 24 B e
Charged 1o reserves 72 - - - 11
Crediled to hedging reserve - - i8 - 38
AT 26 APRIL 1010 s 1% - - 1a.0] 117.6) . ul
Credited/icharged) to tha incame stateinent 46 41 . - 20 10 24y 10.3
Charged to ieserves - - - [{)] 1% - il
Credited to hedqing reserves - - - - 30 10
AT 13 APRIL 2031 411 nt - [{-%} (X} uw.n {5.6) wa

25 April 2021 28 April 1020
Em] {Em)

Deleiiud tox npgets - 468 459

Jelared tox liabibties {270 125 €]
HET OEFERRED TAX BALANCE 39,3 W3

The tax rotes used to measure the deferred tax assets and liabilities was 19%, on the basis that this
was the tox rate that was substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit is probable
on the basis of the Group's current expectations of future taxable profits. The Group has approx
E134m of taxable losses not recognised as a deferred tax asset {approx, £25m deferred tax asset).

Included within other temparary differences is  deferred tax asset in relotion to the Share Scheme
and a deferred tax liability recognised on other intangible assets upon acquisition.

The deferred tax effects of the acquisitions made in the year were considered and it was determined
that there was ne material impact ¢n the Group, or the fair value of net assets acquired.
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28.- PROVISIONS

Legeland  Preperty

regulotery related Other Totaf

[E£m) Iem] {Em} {Em)

AT 29 APRIL 2019 0 923 50 wa
Amounts provided 130 758 - asa
Amounts ublised / reversad 12161 (70 8 153} 1977}
Acquisitons - a8 - 106
AT 26 APRIL 3020 54 1079 a7 a0
Arnounts provided 73 a5 - 488
Ambunts ublised / reversed 1631 15.3) 4 (2161
AT 25 APRIL 2011 18 i1 12 Wl

Legal and regulatory provisions relate to management's best estimote of the potential impact of
claims including legal, commercial, regulatery and ongoing non-UK tax enquiries. The timing of

the outcome of non-UK tax inquiries and legal claims made against the Group is dependent on
factors outside the Group's control and therefore the timing of settlement is uncertain. After taking
appropriate legal advice, the cutcomes of these claims are not expected to give rise to material loss
in excess of the amounts provided.

A reimbursement asset of £118.3m (FY20: £118.3m) has been recognised separately within debtors
relating to ongoing non-UK tax enquiries.

Included within property related provisions are provisions for dilapidations in respect of the Group's
retail stores ond warehouses. Further details of managements estimates are included in note 2.

Other provisions relote te provisions for restructuring and empleyment {non-retirement related).

During the period, onerous lease provisions [pre-IFRS 16) were recognised due to an engoing
management review of the Group's store profile and strotegy including current and anticipated
freehold acquisitions, resulting in overall increased provisions of £71.9m (FY20: £26.9m), with reference
to the Group's alternative performance measures. See Glassary for more details.
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

o. Financial Assets And Linbilities By Category And F
The fair vaiue hierarchy of financial assets and lial
Sterling or US Dollars, were as foilows:

Value Hierarchy
es, which are principally denominated in

FINANCIAL A35ETS - 23 APRIL 2011 Lavel1 tavel2 Luveld Qther Total
lem} iEmy lem) Lad (£}
AMORTISED COST;
Trade and other recuvables - - . 4351 2151
Cash and cash equesalents - - 4570 510
Avvounts oved bY reluted pariies - - - 208 65
Fvoey,
Long Term Firancwal Assets {Equity Insteurants) - desigriated 2631 - - 2633
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS (FV):
Foreign forward purchase and sules contiacts 353 - - ELX]
Denvatva fingncrat gfsats « contracts tor diltarant s & 8quiy opteans 201 - - 201
) 554 - 554
LARILITIES ~ 28 ARRIL 2021
AMORTISED COST:
Nat-Curtant bandwmgs - - 170591 @osy
Trade and othar puyables*t - - - 1620 1) (6207
IFRS 15 Leass lobikties . - - 1722 1 ran
ITIES (FV):
Fareign forward ond wnitten options purchase ang soles eontrycts - Unhadged ' nrs) - [L50]
Denvrtive financial ligbilties - contracts far ddfarence § eguity apbians - ) ny
(] - - 9.3}

*Prepuyments of 84 b are nof ncluded os 0 lmoncinl asset

**Other {axes ncluding socnt secunty costs of £262m are nat included ns o financiol ooility
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FINANGIAL ASSETS - 26 APRIL 2020 Lol vl 2 Lavsld Cther Total
1Em) I£ml m Hmi 1o
AMORTISED COST:
Trade o ottt cecsvables® - - - 3255 35.8
Cush and coth squwolents - - - 5340 5149
Armount e by reiated porties - - 342 343
FYGC:
Lang Terem Froganeu! Assets Equily tnstruments) - dessgnated 838 - . e
OERTVKTIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS [FY):
 torward purchase and seles cantvacts - 04 - . 704
Ourrvative menciol ossers - controcts for difference - 77 - - 32
- iy Lk
FINANCIAL LUARILITIES - 26 APRIL 2020
AMORTISED COST:
Now-current borrowings - - - 1500 01 (%00.0§
Trase and ether puyables™ - - 504 7} 1524.9)
IFRS 16 Legse hahilites - - {6241 {8241
DERIVATIVE FINASNCIAL LIARILITIES {FVh
Farmign farward ond writtern gphor puschgse ond sales contmet - Unniedged 198} B (9.8}
Defvotive hnondal I3biHes - ceptracts bor difterence & =auity uptians - 13444 - - (TR ]
- 144.2) N - 144.2)

wied as o finonciol nssat,

“Propaymants of £54 5 are not

“H0ther toxes inc ludng $0cif SECunty costs of (H78m ars net Inpiuded os a lnanciol Tobity

b. Financial Assets And Liabilities Sensitivities By Currency

The Group's principal foreign currency exposures are to US Dollars and Euros. The table below
Mlustrates the hypothetical sensitivity of the Group's reparted profit ond equity to 6 5% increase
and decrease it the US Dollar / Sterling and Euro / Sterling exchange rates at the year-end dote,
assuming all other variables remain unchanged. The figures have been calculated by comparing the
fair values of cutstonding foreign currency contracts, assets and liabilities ot the current exchange
rate to those if excharige rates moved os illustrated. The income statement figures include the profit
effect of any relevant derivotives which are not in a designated cash flow hedge. The impact an US
Dollar und Euro related hedging instruments is included in equity.

The analysis has been prepared using the following assumptions:

1. Existing assets and liobilities are held as at the period end;

2. No additional hedge contracts are taken out,
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ORPE

Othar usc KUR Total 5% +5% % +5%
#¥11:
Trode und Other Recaivobles Erich] 252 328 4354 12 {20) 10
Cash ond cush equivalents 3514 494 547 isre 28 [t3.] 17
Trade and Other Payobles 1489 0) 124.5) 1106.6] (20 13 na 53 5.3}
FYg:
Trade and Other Recaivobles 577 66 a2 prA) [LE]] 14 {2.0) 12
Cosh and cosh aquivalents 4613 78 553 s34 08 1] 4 2%
Trada and Other Payables 1451 £) 1259 (072l (TR t2 (14) (3] 8.4)

There is no difference between fair value and garrying value of the above financial instruments

{FY20: Enil).
Fair Value Hierarchy

The Group uses the following hierarchy for
determining and disclosing the fair value of
financial instruments by valuation technicue:

*  Level T: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active
markets for identical assets or ligbiities;

+  Level 2: other techniques for which alt
inputs which have a signéficant effect on the
recorded fair value are ohservable, either
directly or indirectly; and

»  Level 3: techniques which use inputs which
have a significant effect on the recorded
fair value that are not based on observable
market data.

Contracts for difference are classified as Level
2 as the fair value is calculated using quoted
prices for listed shares and commedities at
contract inception and the period end,

Foreign forward purchase and sales contracts
and options are classified as Level 2, the

Group enters into these derivative financial
irstruments with various counterparties,
principally financial institutions with investment
grade credit ratings. Foreign exchange

ferward contracts and aptions are vaiued

using valuation techniques; which employ the
use of market observable inputs. The most
frequently applied valuation techniques include
forward pricing and swap models using present
volue calculations. The models incorporate
various inputs including the credit quality of
counterparties, foreign exchange spot and
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forward rates, and yield curves of the respective
currencies.

Long-term financial assets such as equity
instruments are classified os Level 1 as the fair
value is caleulated using quoted prices.

The fair value of equity derivative agreements
are included within the derivative financial
assets balance of £20.1m and derivative
financial licbilities bulance of £1.7m. The
derivative financiol assets ond derivative
financial liabilities as at 25 April 2021 relate to
strategic investments held of between 0.04%
and 8.41% of investee share capital.

Sold options are ciassified as Level 2 as the
fair value is calculated using other techniques,
where inputs are observable.

Trade receivables / payables, amounts owed
from related parties, other receivables /
payables, cash and cash equivalents, current /
non-current borrewings, and lease liabilities are
teld at amortised cost.

The maximum exposure to credit risk as ot 25
April 2021 is the carrying value of each class of
asset in the Balance Sheet, except for amounts
owed from related parties which is the gross
careying amount of £65.2m.

o creals

ror Btisl veooc

c. Derivatives: Foreign Currency Forward
Contracts

il HEDGING

The most significant exposure to foreign
exchange fluctuations relates to purchoses
made in foreign currencies, principally the US
Dollar and online sales in Euros. The Group's
policy is to reduce substantially the risk
associcted with foreign cusrency spot rates

by using forward fixed rate currency purchase
contracts, taking into account any foreign
currency cash flows. The Group does not

hold or issue derivative financial instrumenits
for trading purposes, however if derivatives,
including both forwards and written options,
do not qualify for hedge accounting they are
accounted for as such ond accordingly any gain
or loss is recognised immediately in the income
statement. Management are of the view that
there is o substantive distinct business purpose
for entering into the opticns and a strategy for
managing the options independently of the
forward contracts. The forward and options
contracts are therefore not viewed as one
contract and hedge accounting for the forwards
is permitted.

Hedge effectiveness is determined at inception
of the hedge relationship and at every reporting
period end through the assessment of the
hedged items and hedging instrument to
determine whether there is still an economic
relationship between the two.

The critical terms of the foreign currency
forwards entered into exactly match the terms
of the hedged item. As such the economic
relationship and hedge effectiveness are based
on the qualitative Factors and the use of a
hypothetical derivative where appropriote.
Hedge ineffectiveness may arise where the
critical terms of the forecast transaction no
longer meet those of the hedging instrument, for
example if there wos a change in the timing of
the forecast sales transactions from what was
initially estimated or if the volume of currency

in the hedged item was below expectations .
Jeading to over-hedging. Differences can arise
when the initial value on the Hedging instrument
is not zero,

Crons the UK

The hedged items and the hedging instrument
are denaminated in the same currency and as a
result the hedging ratio is always one to one.

All derivative financial instruments used for
hedge accounting are recognised initialiy at fair
value and reported subsequently at fair value

in the statement of financial position. To the
extent that the hedge is effective, changes in the
fair value of derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in cash flow hedges are recognised
in other comprehensive income and included
within the cash flow hedge reserve in equity.
Any ineffectiveness in the hedge relationship is
recognised immediately in profit or {oss.

At the time the hedged item affects profit or
loss, any gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss and presented

as a reclassification adjustment within other
comprehensive income. If o forecast transaction
is no longer expected to cceur, any related

gain or loss recoanised in other comprehensive
income is transferred immediately to profit

or loss. IF the hedging relationship ceases to
meet the effectiveness conditions then hedge
accounting is discontinued and the related goin
or lass is held in the equity reserve until the
forecast transaction occurs.
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The fair value of hedged contracts as at 25 April 2021 was:

25 apsil 2021 26 April 2020
£mi (Em)

ASSETS
US Dallar purchases - GBP 24
US Doltar purshases - EUR 73 Al
Eurw sofes o7 415
TaTAL : 4 s
LABUTIES
US Daliar purc hases - GEP 73
US Bollar purchdses - EUR o
TOTAL 14 N

The details of hedged forward foreign currency purchase contracts and contracted forword rotes
were as follows:

I3 Apiil2021 26 ApHI 2010
(Em) 1Zml
Currency sep Currancy L

U Datiar purchases 7200 5231
Controcted rates USD / GaP 136 141 -
S Dollas purchases 1200 [LE] 1200 509
Contracted rates USD/ EUR - 132
Eurd sales i 2400) (28 41 154001 1512 8)
Cantructed ratas EUR / GBP 099 059 - 109

The timing of the contracts is as follows:

Cuktuncy - Hedging aghinst Curraney value Timing Roter
USD/GER USD mwertery purchases UsH 720 0m Fy2e- Fr23 T e
USD/EUR USD mventary purchases S0 120 Om Y22, Y24 e
EURAGER Furo sates EUR 240 0m f Frei a4y

Hedge ineffectiveness may arise where the critical terms of the forecast transaction no longer meet
those of the hedging instrument, for example if there wos a change in the timing of the forecast sales
transactions from what was initiclly estimated or if the velume of currency in the hedged item was
below expectations leading to over-hedging.

28 Apsil 2011 26 April 2020

. (Em) itm!

Chenye n discounted spet volue of outstanding hedging instruments since inceptien of the Redge 114 5} 35 4)
Change i value of hedged tem uted 1o determine hedge insHectiveness 289 Exsd
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25 April 202¢ 24 Apeil 2030
1€m) lemt
Chongs Change
. in the bair o Inthe fair
value of the g n_.."_.H..< vohie of
cumency torwary T hedged
1% Dolprs purchasws - GBP 48 -
U5 Dullars purchases - EUR 21 Il 67 87
Eawras S0l a1 31 28 95

At 25 April 2021 £242 4m of forward sales contracts and £607.0m of purchase contracts qualified
for hedge accounting and the gain on fair valuation of these contracts of £0.4m has therefore been
recognised in other comprehensive income.

At 25 Aprit 2021, £210.5m hedged purchase contracts had ¢ maturity of greater than 12 months (FY2Q;
£nil of purchase contracts) and £242.4m of hedged safes had a maturity of greater than 12 months
{FY20: £242 4m of soles contracts)

The movements through the Hedging reserve are:

Tetal
TotgtNedys Daferspd

USD/GRP  BUR/GRP  AVD/GBR  Uso/kum LIS 4ol ﬂ.na..a
esurn
AS AT 20 APRIL 281% U8 6.3 134 56,3 {41 463
Recognised . 98 - &4 64 - %4
inetiectvenasy 07 - - oz - 0.3
Reclassfied n soles - ©% - K} - wn
Wesassihiag In ivemory / Cost of sales 1349 - - 125 wia - (374}
Deferred Tax - - - - 38 3LE
AS AT 16 APRIL 2020 - 1w - 7”1 N [LE 1] s0
ReLogises g9 37 - 21 D4 - ad
Hackassried 1 soles za - - 128 - 2.8
Rselass rventary £ cost of sales - - - niy nry - ny
Deterred Tox . - - - 30 0
AS AT 25 APRIL 2011 s e - 23 us s "s

[ii} The sterling principal amounts of unhedged forward contracts and written currency option

contracts and contracted rates were as foilows:
5 Aprt 2021 26 Apri 1016
(Em {em)
403

Caniracted rotes USD /EUR i -
buro sales |3838) (6300}
Cantracted rotes FUR / GBF 049 095 -109
Eurc purchases W0
Cantracted rates EUR / GBP - 116

The loss on fair value of the written options and swaps of £4.6m has been included within finance
income (FY20: gaih £21.3m).
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At 25 April 2021, £nil of unhedged purchase contracts had maturity at inception of greater than 12
rmonths (FY20: Enil purchase contracts} and £335.4m of unhedged sales hod a maturity at inception
of greater than 12 months {(FY20: £240.0m of sales controcts).

These contracts form part of the Treasury management activities, which incarporates the risk
management strategy for areas that are not rzliable enough in timing and amount to qualify for
hedge accounting. This includes acquisitions, disposals of overseas subsidicries, refated working
capital requirements, dividends and loan repayments from overseas subsidiaries and purchase and
sale of overseas property. Written options carry additional risk os the exercise of the option lies with
the purchaser. The options invalve the Group receiving a premium on inception in exchange for
accepting that risk and the outcome is that the bank may require the Group to sell Euros. However,
the Group is satisfied that the use of options as a Treasury management tool is appropriate.

In FY21 there are nil short term swaps ot period end. FY20 value excludes short term swaps of USD/
GBP of USD 190.0m ond EUR/GBP of EUR 75.0 and EUR/USD of EUR 80.0m which were required for
cash management purposes only.

d. Sensitivity Analysis

The Group’s principal foreign currency exposur=s are to US Dollars and Euros, The table below
ilustrates the hypothetical sensitivity of the Group's reported profit and equity to o 10% increase
and decregse in the US Dollar / Sterling and Euro / Sterling exchange rates at the year-end date,
assuming all other variables remuain unchanged. The figures have been calcufated by comparing
+he fair values of outstanding foreign currency contracts at the current exchange rate to those if
exchange rates moved as illustrated. The income statement figures include the profit effect of any
relevant derivatives which are not in o designated cash flow hedge. The impact on US Dollar and
Eura related hedging instruments is included in equity.

Pasitive figures represent an increase in profit cr equity:

Incams Statement Equity
25 Apel 26 Apeil 28 Agril 16 Aprid
201 1020 won 010
(Em} 1em| lem) itm)
Starling strengthens by 109
US Dollor * B1 146 174} 134
Eurn 234 131 0% an
Sterling weakens by 10%
U3 Dollar 195] [34m NI
Euro 30 8] nid) e

Interest Rote Sensitivity Analysis

The following table iflustrates the sensitivity of the Group's reported profit and equity to o 0.5%
increase or decrease in interest rates, assuming all other variables were unchanged.

Tne analysis has been prepared using the following assumptions:

= For floating rate assets and liabilities, the arr ount of asset or liability outstanding at the balance
sheet date is assumed to have been outstanding for the whole year.

+ Fixed rate financial instruments that are carr ed at amortised cost are not subject to interest rate
risk for the purpose of this analysis.

1c7

t ko ere

Pasitive figures represent an increase in profit or equity:

Freonve Stotemant Bauity
25 Apell 26 Apell W Apd 8 Apel
201 010 200 030
[Em] iEm] I1Emt
esk rate 1ncrese of 0 5% 3o 4 [£L:]
ast rote decraose of 0 5% . kbl 41 20

Long-term Investments Sensitivity Analysis

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of price risk in relation to long term investrments held by
the Group:

5 Apeil 2021

Equity

1£ml

Shore prica increuse of 10% 58
Shara prics dectease of 10% 125 8

e. Liquidity Risk

The table below shows the maturity analysis of the undiscounted remaining contractual cash flows of
the Group's non derivative liabilities and foreign currency derivative financial instruments.

Lesithun Tysor  lte2ysan  2taSyenrs OvarSyears Teotal
[ [Em] (Em} Lm} {Em)
101
HNOHN DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIARILITIES
Bonk loans ang ovardrafts - 7059 - - 1059
Bank [nans dnd evardrahts interest - Wy - - L]
Trade and other payables £46.3 - - - S48
1ERS 16 Lense habuities 1965 n? 1968 6709 171e
s T -
Cash inflows 1396 51 17669 (806) ]
Cash outflows 3891 TH9 a5 - 12695
(1113 0.8 wrt €09 23646
W
NON DERIVATIVE FINANE AL LIABILITIES
Bonk loans ond ovardratts - 906 O - -
Bank Inans and overdralts interest - a2 . -
Trude and other payables 6025 . . - (11
IERS 16 |ensa habilities 1467 021 1982 2571 Tod1

ATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS*:

Cash [452.8) - - 16493
Cash outfows 484 & - - 17095
10513 19,2 71 1,280.4

*Excludes cantingent cash {lows

W across the UK
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Copital Management

The capital structure of the Group consists of
equity attributable to the equity holders of the
parent company, comprising issued share copital
{less treasury shares), share premium, retained
earnings and cash and borrowings.

it is the Group's policy ta maintain ¢ strong
capital buse 5o as to maintain investor, creditor
and market confidence and te sustain the
development of the business.

In respect of equity, the Board has decided that,
in order to maximise flexibility in the naar tarm
with regards to a number of inorganic growth
opportunities under review, not to return any
cash by way of o final dividend at this time.

The Boord is committed to keeping this policy
under review and to looking to evaluate
methods of returning cash to shareholders when
appropriate.

The objective of the Share Scheme is to

30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

encourage empioyee share ownership and to link
emplayee's remuneration to the performance of
the Company. It is not desioned as a means of
managing capital.

In respect of cash ond barrowings, the Board
regulorly monitors the ratio of net debt to
Reported EBITDA (Pre-IFRS 16}, the working
capital requirerments and forecasted cash flows,
however no minimum or maximum ratios are set.
The ratio for net debt to Reported EBITDA [pre
IFRS 16) is 0,5 {FY20: 0.7). The objective is to keep
this figure below 3.0 (FY20: 3.0}

Based on this analysis, the Board determines
the appropriate return to equity holders whilst
ensuring sufficient capital is retained within the
Group to meet its strategic objectives, including
but not limited to, acquisition opportunities

These capttal management policies have
remained unchanged from the prior year.

32 wawks snded 52 waeks andad

28 Apeil 1024 26 Aprl 2020

iLm} ml

Trade poyobles 2793 1026
Amounts ewed to telaled undertakings 26 24
Other tuxes including social secunty gosts 263 Ve
Gther poyables u3g wWh i
Accruals 2453 122
sdt3 028

Included within other payables are amounts outstanding in respect of gift cards and vouchers of

£28.8m (FY20: £40.6m}

The Directors consider thot the carrying amount of trade and other payables approximates to their

fair value

108

31. ACQUISITIONS

i.  Qn 22 August 2020, the Group acquired
the trade and pssets of DW Sports for cash
consideration of £37.0m which is deemed
to be the fair value of the consideration.

The acquisition complements the Group's ii.

existing gym and fitness cluls portfolic and is
consistent with the Group's slevation strotegy.
Goodwill represents the premium associated
with advantageous site jocations, potential
growth opportunities offered by economies
of scale, and the ossembled workforce. The
fair value adjustment to property, plant

and equipment relates to mancgement's
assessment of the price that would be

paig for the acquired assets in an orderly

The psset ond liab values at acqui
the assets and liab

consideration paid:

FRASERS GROUP

tronsaction between market participants
at the acquisition dote. The leases were
acquired under short-term licences and
therefore no right-of-use asset or lease
liability has been recognised on acquisition,

During the yecr the Group acquired the entire
share capital of Psyche Holdings Limited, the
entire share capital of GRMNT Limited, and
the trade ond assets of 18 Montrose (51%
owned) for consideration of £2.7m. These
acquisitions will provide increosed product
offerings in the ‘Premiurm Lifestyle' division.
The fair value adjustment to property, plant
and equipment relates to the recognition of
right~of-use assets and lease liabilities,

on are detailed below. We have reviewed the fair value of
ies acquired. The following table summarises the fair values of

PW Sparts Cther

(] )

Crsh ¢ onsarat.on a0 27
Othur

Foirolue  WaokVohe BV g v

Em} Em) L) I€m]

Property. plont und equipment .0 it 15 16

Intaimgrlsle cssets 29 (201 - - -

Irventories 1 0y 40 52 a7 34

Coshand cash equivalenty - 03 0.3

Aorrawrgs - 14| 4y

W cuptol 03 . [33 10B) {0

_eute lnbilty - - n 1

agow 37 a1 - 21 21

Barguin purchase - - I3 a9

Wor-caritraling mlerests - - 10} o)

Net assets arquirg 774 140 41 no a4 ar

The bargain purchase of £3.1m from the Other acqui

tions has been recognised within cost of sales

within the period. The Goodwill grising on oll acquisitions of £6.0m has been impaired to Fnil as at
period end with the impairment being recognised in Exceptional ltems, see note 6

UL
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Since the date of controd, the following amounts have been included within the Group's Financial 33. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Statements for the period: .
The Group had capital commitments of £87.1m as at 25 April 2021 (26 April 2020: £31.8m) relating to

Aequishlons DW Sparts Other Tetal warehouse development.
1iml 1Em) {Lm}
Revene 22 3 , L 34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Operating (Loss)/prolit 115.2¢ 03 1491
ILOSSL/WROFTY BEFORE TAX s 02 | The Group has taken advantage of the exemptions contained within |1AS 24 - "Related Party

Had the acquisitions been included from the start of the period the following amaunts would have
been included within the Group's Financial Statements for the period:

Disclosures” from the requirement to disclose transactions between Group companies as these have
been eliminated on consolidation.

The Group entered inta the following material transactions with reioted parties:

Actpbaltlen DW Sperts Othet Total
) {em) by 52 weeks ended 25 April 2021
Revenua 160 a3 243
Operating loss 147] [tE) e Teade
Ralatienship Soles  Purchosss  and sther
LOSY SEFORE TAX a4y o9 ey recabvables
. A . . ¢ £ £
There were no contingent liabilities acquired as o result of the above transaction. m L lem
RELATED PARTY
 Four iHoldings! Limited & subudiunes - Associota 37 411 5 ot
32, CASH INFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES o
- Mosh Holdings Limited - - 3] -
company
52 weaks endad 52 weskit mdnd
28 ApHl 2031 26 Apri 2030 Mike Ashiley Pic Director 13 - - -
. )
L (fmd M M Design Landon Limiled Connacted - o1 - -
Profit before taxation A5 35 parsons
~et finonce costfimeomal , 72 na MM Prap Cansultancy Limited Connected . 35 . 25
Net nwestment [incomelicost 19601 48 parsans
hore of lasses of assorated undertakings - 159 Newcastie Unied Foatball Club Lirnited & St James Holdings Lumited(3t n%HMM 02 ir)] at
Fairvalue gain on step ncquistion - {204 i
OPERATING [LOSSPROFIT - o e Rangurs Retoil Lirited Associate . i B 01
Lepreciation of property, plant und ey ) 2985 380
Leprecialian i1 aweskinent propert 19 i3 52 weeks ended 26 April 2020:
Eain an dispasol and modiicationjremeasutemant of laass lic 7 197 -
Amortisotion of mtongible assets 71 45 Trads . Teade
Rolcti
Ir yperment of tangtble and i assets and prop 3761 9o forship Sober  Furcha !wn‘r.._“. and sther
Profil on disposal of property, plant and agquipiment 97 (54 2) [T (e lem)
Frofit on disposal of intangible assats s - RELATED PARTY
Geain on Borgam purchase EL . Fout [Holtings] Livted & subsdiones Associote 21 425 118 24
OPIRATING CASH INFLOW BEFORE N PITAL 5253 s "
t
{ircrease] / decrense in recevables 1386 715 Mosh Holdings Limited nuiuw.___,. - - 02 .
Decrease / tincreasel in invantories 993 n208} ke Ashlay e Dhvactor 20
increasa in payabes 549 618
Incregse / [decrease) n provisions %4 (1151 Newcastie Unted Footboll Club Lirited & St lormes Holdings Linitat! nu..,uﬂﬂ“.ﬂ_m_ a7 ) a1 20
CASH INFLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES N e a2
Rangers Retail Limited Associate . . - a1
A1 The outstandmgbalance with Four [Mekding red reflacts the funding relgtes tn Agent Pravacnteur Munagarment consider thot the underlying
tesults of Faur [Holdingst Linited supports the recoverability of the receivobiles bolance, The results of Faur tHoldings) Limited are not matanel on
the besis of ner assets omd profht belore ray, ¥ detaled hove not been pi d under IFRS 12
' {23 Useol the Caingany jet and helicopter ore <harged of commercinl rates
N (ki) The sales relote toinventory and purchases include the reversai of the FYZ0 advertising charge

nnted on Steinbws 100% Recycled and Carbon Capluied thirouah the Woodland Trust. helpmg to croate new Ratish woodland across the UK
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An agreement has been entered into with
Double Take Limited, a company owned by
Mash Holdings Limited in which Matilda Ashley,
Mike Ashley's daughter, is a director. Under

the agresment, Double Take Limited licenses
the Group the exclusive rights to the cosmetic
brand SPORT FX. During the period a review
has been undertaken ond no royalties or other
fees are expected to he payable to Double Take
Limited for these rights until at least September
2021, the fee arrangement will continue to be
reviewed on an ongeing basis, no provisien is
required ini the financial statements. It should
be noted that the Group (rather than Double
Take Limited) owns the rights to SPORT FX for
clothing, fostwear and sports equipment.

N M Design Londen Limited a company in
which Nicola Murray, Michael Murray's mother,
is a directer, perform design work for the Group
in relation to some of the Group's sites.

A provision was made in FY20 for £2.0m
payable to Newcastle United Foothall Club, this
waos reversed in FY21.

The trade ond other receivables balance with
Four (Holdings) Limited includes an unsecured
loon balance of £60.0m (gross of amounts

recognised in respect of loss allowance]

which attracts interest ot a rote of 3% within
current assets. This has been nccounted for

at amertised cast in cccordance with IFRS 9.
The carrying value has been determined by
assessing the recoverability of the receivable
balance, discounted at an approbnate market
rate of interest. £4.7m was recognised it the
yedr in respect of doubtful delsts. Further
disclosure can be found in note 22.

The sales amount in relation to Four {Moldings!
Limited relates to the interest charge on the
logn and the purchases relate to the purchase
of clothing products.

At the period end the Group does nat have
significant influence ovar but holds greater than
20% of the veting rights of Studic Retail Group
plc and Mulberry Group plc. Studic Retail Group
plc have disclosed transactions with the Group
as a related party within their most recent
Financial Statements. Transactions between
Studio Retail Group plc and the Group related
to normal commercial trading arrangements
and are not considered material to the resuits
of the Group. The lotest equity amounts and
results are shown below:

Mulbury Qreup ple Studia Awtoil Glug ple.

Pariad anded 27 March Period andud 26 March

ozt 207

Shere Copitu] 20 487
Share Prernium 122

Qther Regerves 032 0y

70 353

4 Ltd

PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD 46 Ta

The Group does not consider it has the power te porbicipate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the entities and se management do not consider the Group to be able to exert

significant influence over these enti
and JAS 24 Related Party Disclosures.

1o

otf on Stebers 100 Roeeycled and Db Copluad

5 as per (A5 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

Key M E tive And Non: stive Di

FRASERS GROUP

Suicrres ciradf o -term

tar C "
8 Aprl 2001 Waph 2010

{&m} \Em)

13 15

Shors-sthaine payments

Other payments

43

TOTAL

13 (1]

Key management personnet are considered to
be the directors and members of managernent
who play a key part in the Jong term strategy
and aperations of the Group.

MM Prop Consultancy Limited, o company
owned and controlled by Michoe! Murray, who
is a member of key monogement personnei

as per |AS 24, continues to provide property
consultancy services ta the Group. MM Prop
Consultancy Limited is primarily tasked with
finding and negotiating the acquisition of new
sites in the UK, Europe and Rest of the World for
both our larger format stores and our combined
retail and gym units but it also provides advice
to the Company's in-house property team in
relation to existing sites in the UK, Europe and
Rest of the World,

In the year oll properties are assessed and
those that are considered by the Group's
indepeandent non-exacutive directors to have
completed development and be eligible for
review at the year-end are assessed and if
required volued by an independent valuer
who confirms the value created by MM Prop
Consultancy Limited. The Group's independent
non-executive directors then review and agree
the value creoted and have full discretion to
approve o poyment to MM Prop Consultancy
Limited of up to 25% of the value crected.
There is a current pipeline of propetrties that
may be eligible to be assessed both positively
and negatively by the Group's Non-executive
directors in future years.

I the current year £2,.5m has been agerued
bosed on 25% of the value created on two
properties where the gain has crystallised
through contract exchange or completion

of saie (FY20 - £nil provided and Enil poid,
MM Prop Consultancy Limited wos last paid
in relation to FY19). This is payable to MM
Prop Consultancy Limited and agreed by the
independent Non-Executive Directors.

During the period the Group entered into an
agreement with M P.M Elevation Limited, a
company owned and contralled by Michoe!
Murray in relation to elevation strateqgy services.
M.P.M Elevation Limited will be paid an annual
fee of £0.1m in relation to the provision of the
elevation strategy services {FY20: £nil).
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35. ULTIMATE CONTROLLING
PARTY

The Group is controlled by Mike Ashley throuch
his 100% shareholding in Mash Beta Limited and
Mash Holdings Limited, which own 303,507,462
(58.44% of the issued ordinary share capital

of the Company) and 26,492,540 {5.10% of the
issued ordinary share capital of the Company,
ordinary shares respectively at the period

end. MASH Holdings Limited is the smallest

and largest company to consalidate these
accounts. MASH Holdings Limited is registered in
England and Wales and & copy of their financial
statements can be obtained from Companies
House, Crown Way, Cardiff, CF14 3UZ.

36. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

On 4 May 2021 the Group commenced a share
buyback programme with the aggregate
purchase price of al! shares acquired under the
programme to be no grecter than £60m and the
maximum number of shares to be purchased
of 10m ordinary shares with a nominal value of
10p each. The purpose of the programme was
to reduce the share capital of the Compuany.
3,895,835 ordinary shares of 10p each for
consideration of £22,429,985 were acquired
through this programme. |

Cn 21 June 2021the Group commenced an-
irrevocable non-discretianary share buyback
programme to purchase the Group's shares
during the closed period which commenced 21
June 2021 and ends on the day of reporting ful]
year FY21 results. The aggregate purchase price
of all shares acquired under the programme
were no greater than £60m and the maximum
number of shares to be purchased were 10m
ordinary shares with a naminal value of 10p
each. The purpose of the programme was to
reduce the share capital of the Company. in tota
to dote 2,024,127 ordinary shares of 10p each for
consideration of £11,937,385 have been acquired
through this programme.

m

The Board is now in discussions with regards

to transitioning the CEQ role frem Mike Ashley
to Michael Murray over the course of FY22.

Itis currently propesed that Michael Murray

will assume the role of CEQ on 1May 2022,

A reward and remuneration package is now
under consideration om the assumption Michael
Murray will assume the CEC role. Any reward
and remuneration package will be subject to any
requisite shareholder approval.

The Group's elevation strategy is transforming
the business and receiving positive feedback
from consumers and our brand partners,
especially on projects such as the new Oxford
Street Sports Direct which opened in June 2021,

The Board consider it oppropriate that Michae!
leads us forward on this increasingly successful
elevation journey.

Should Michael Murray assume the CEO role,
Mike Ashley would step down from the CEQ role
at the same time but would remain on the Board
as an executive director,

2 Woodkind Trust. he

to create new Bun

woodiand acrass the UK

FRASERS GROUP
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37. SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS

NAME REGISTERED OFFICE COMPANY  PERCENTAGE OF \I5UED SHARE

ADDRESS HUMBER CAPITAL HELD

18 Mantrose Retoll Limited Shuebrook' 1577036 ™
Fourth Fluor Tatorta Square

% Poimz Limitad {in hyudauen] Torenta Streat Leeds L1 JHpon 6950718 g
23 April 2020

Actwoter fronds Limited Shurebrook ' 5344658 107

Activator Progucts Luded Shiebrook 22046M G
Cogenty Glabol Inc 850 New

Active Apparel New Corp Burtan Raad Swte 201 Dover TG 00
Delowore 19504 USA

Alpho Developments Stoekpart 1Ld Shursbrook’ 12662564 100
7240 Floor. Menara Synphony
Ma'%, Jalun Semengat Lolan
Professar Khaw Kay Kiml ,

I8 "

AP Brands Holdings Lid Seksyer1 13, 46200 46200 49214 00
Patghny Jopy Setangor Dorul
Ehson, Malaysio
Chnchs House, Cord Stieet,

Bellotix Associotes Limited Douglos. Iste of Mar, IM§% 1Z, MBI we
Isle of Mo
chs Hovse, Lord Sureet,

Bellatrx Qverseas Dougias, isle of Maon, (M99 1RE, 1258276 100
Isle of Mon
Clinck's House, Lord Street,

Belotr Unhrmted Douglos, lsle of Man, M99 1RZ, M6708: 10
1l of Man

Biue Syuore Soles Limitad Shirebrack 15362892 0o
h Tre Corporation Trust Comisay.
Carparation Trust Center, 1209

Bob's Stores USA LLC Orange Straet, Wilrmnglon, New 535085 0
Costle County DE 1980,
Unitad Srates

Brands & Foshion NV Lompoldstrast by 79, 7800 D277-0u5-412 )
Mychelan, Belgium

Brands 001 Lnited Shrebenok * 5347540 w0u

Beands, Alocg Lvited Shursbrook’ 6836705 L)

Brands Holdings Limited® Shirebraok 4061435 046

Rrands Holdings Sponsorshi Linvted Shirebrask 10375418 100

Brandy Ing Limited Shurebrook! 1585715 0y

Brasher Leiture Limitad Shurebrock 90942 100

BSL \nterngtional Limited Shusbrook 2800425 100
Via Central de Mithares ng 121
- 4475-334, Frguesia de Milheras,

Calico - & Ar Despertos & 3781 n

lico - Comercia e Artigos de Despartos 5 A Conteihe do Mg, Porta, 50371804 0g
Portugal

Compr Limited Shurabrook SISRETH o
£ € Puerto Venec local B4,

Cardingl lnvestments S | Trav. Jurdines Reales, 7 50021 B8A542756 o
Zaragoze, Spar

Corhon Shutlecanks Lirmted Shigbraok 280562 100

Cariten Sports Campany Limited Shirebraok " 467686 0o
G Puarta Venecio, local 84,

Cotrnona investments § ¢ Trow Jardines Reales, 7. 50071 BRABS426A3 105

Zaragozo, Soom

112

Parc Industrel, Avenue Ernest,

FRASERS GROUP®R

cps & 461077 16
D5 P 5A Solvisy 29 14A0 Scntes, Belgum 40646107 0
€0 Cittana Brands Limiten Shirebroo 650676 100
Carvnunity Buy Lrmted Shusbiraok £PE0240 00
Crmna| Chnthing {mitey Shirabrook! 412750 0ig
_ Martin House, 184 ingram Street,
e Clothrng Limited oo, Scorland G1 108 $C382991 00
€€ Puerto Yenec s, lacal 84,
Cuurlins Investmants 5L Tray Jordines Reales, 7. 5024 B88415269 106
Faragezi, Sean
Dusvid Guatlrey & Associates UK} Lrmied Shrebrick 610510 00
Design Source Supply Limited Shvenrock 5638568 100
Dink Digstal Holdings Limeted, Slurehrook 245015 W
ik Digtol Limited Shyrebrook’ 022685 Ll
Oirect Frsting Lemted Shieebrook 5203465 100
Pirert Golt P Lrmiced Shirebrook " F5HOBS it
Direct Gali Retail Limiled Shirebrook 8P5BET W
Leopaldstiat nr 79, 2600
Devnery Internutional NV Mg helen, Belgum 435352220 w0
Urwt 19038 & 1905, Trchunge
Eostehance Limitud Twer, 33 Wang Cpw Roni, VLT o
Kowloun Bay, Kowloon,
N Hong Kang
Farst Flows La Chasse Chambers.
toach froperties Limted < Ve U232 AUE vty 24753 1an
ttal Services Limited Sturehroak’ 5146957 100
Evans Cycles Brands Liaited Shurebigok nb3a915 00
Fuans Cyeles Liter Shirebreok 1577650 wn
Esarns Cyctes Prapedy Limited Shirebrtok ' 1M63493% wo
Euarlast Austrona Limited Shwahrack BIpE91 00y
tverlost 42 West I91h St 3l
Ewpriost Sparts itermational I Corp Floor New Yark, New Yark, 10018, 13-2818380 100
United Stotes
Carporohon Service Cambany
" B0 State Streer. Albony.
Fugtlust Sports Miy Cacg Noeae York 120500304t 13 4804772 oy
United Statas
Corporatuon S8 pwics Company
Everlest World Boxing Headguarters Comoratren 80 State Steet, Albany, New 131804713 00
Yark, 177267-7543, Uivtrect Shates
The Corporation rusk Company.
Corperotion Trust Center, 1209
Everlust Worldwidle inc Grange Street, Whimington, New 13-3672716 106
. Castle County DE 19801,
United Stutes
Exsporty Limnted Shirebrook 775080 1w
*aniger And Blackburn Lioted Shirabirook 639554 ah
FG (AF Holdings) Limited Shrelrcok 13781902 160
FG USA Trade Grown Limiad Shirehroak, 1326390 0o
A0 Dbt & Bhelps
1he Chancery 58 5prng
Tield & Trak (LK) Lid in bquidatianl Gardens, Manthester, Greater 5622577 100
. Manchester, M2 1EW,
United Kingdom
Furetson Limted Shirebroole L] 100

tismee o rons




FRASERS GROUP PLC - ANNUAL REPORT - 2021

FRASERS GROUP

Faraver Media Limited Shirebrook 249185 100
Farevar Sparts Limited Sturehraak ' Y4EEN o
Frasers Group fEuropean Haldings) Limited Shirebrook 12903845 100
Frasers Group Finongial Services Limited Shirabrook " 1391369 00
Frasers Group Loyalty Services Limiled Shirehraok' 13340837 L)
Freeshyeld Limiter) Shirebrook 6330786 100
Gnme AR Limited Basmgstoke 10142852 00
Garna Belong Lunited Shiebrook! 12/94417 100
Gume Digital Holdings Limitad Basngstake 7593832 100
Game Digital Linited Bosingstoke 9040213 100
Game Digital Selutions Lumited Susingstoke' 9476209 100
Game tsports and Everits Limited Sasngstoker 9454730 100
Gama Retoil Limited 3nsingstoke - 1837246 100
Game Spon Holdings Linuited 3osingstoke - 10846702 100
Sama Spain lnvestments Limited Busingstoke 10863881 o0
e 7 - 9, Percelas 12 -1,
Viame Storas lbena SLU Pozuglo de Alarcen, Madnd, 861209751 100
Spain
Gelart 1P Limited Shirebraak' 576185 100
Gelert Limited Shirabroak” 8576204 100
Uit 15038 & WCS, Exchanga
. , Tawer, 33 Wang Chiu Koad,
Glabal Apporel [HK) Limitad Wowloon By, Kowlaon. 1330162 100
Hong Kong
Golddigga Bronds Lumted Shirebrack 6636113 100
€ CPusrte Yanes o lacul 84 '
Golay Investments S.L Trov, Jardunes Reales, 7 50021 BBB54270% 040
Zaregors, Spon
Gradvote Clothing Limited Shirebeock: 2511018 Bl
GRMNT Ltd Thirebrack' 1144039 100
Bert Huonstrakode 2, 10870N,
GlLines BY Armstardarm, b etherlunds 7117820 100
Gul IP Urmited Shirebrock’ B612478 100
Gul Watersports Lirited Slwrebrock 758916 100
PO Box BTISEX, Sth Fioor Lesley
Heotons {N L) Limited Buldings, B1-A5 Foun on Street, Ni035599 0o
Beliust, North 2o Ireland
Healon House, I, Business
Heotens Stores Linded Pork, Wihitestowa, Tallaght, 509525 100
Dublin, Irslanc, D24E932,
Heraton House, 104 Busdess
Heotons Uniniled Gompany Pork, Wiktestowr . Tatlght, 0y 160
Oubslin, Irelanc: D24E932,

Heaven or Hell Limited Stirebrock " 5895287 100
HK Sponts & Goll Aktiebolag Eskioistorpsvager 7 269 96, 556510-6189 100
Bastad, Swaden

Heuton House. 104 Busness
HOF brgland Stores Limited Pork, Wiitestowr Tallught, 626344 100
Dublin, Ireland  [324€937
Hot Tuna P Limited Sherebrook” £B36752 100
House of Frager Brands Limited S rebroukt 105587361 100
Hon s of Frasar Limited - Sk rabrook 10686681 100

3

ﬁ

Intarnational Brond Managarmant Limited* Shirebirgak” 514123 00
Investing Busingss Limitad Shirebiragie' nlanig wo
Jack Wills DF) Limited Shirabrook' 14715495 0o
Juck Wlls Property Limited shirebrook NTPS643 w00
Hedton House, ID4 Business
Juck Wils Retal treland ] Lirmited Bark, Whitestown, Tallaght, 656208 100
Dublin, Iralund, D24F¥32,
Jdnck Wills Retait Limsted Shirehrask’ 11634810 00
James Lilywhites Lirmted - Shirebrook! 118840 moe
Kongot Hakdings Lamited Shirebrook” INTTIY 100
Kungal Limsted Shurebrank’ 3343793 w0
Kangol Trustess Limitad shirebraok'! JS05512 100
Aminoka Kudan Bulkding &/F.
Karnmat Internotonal Limited 1124} Kudarnkita, Chiyoda-ku, Q100-01-012128 9%
Tokyo, 102-G073, Japan
Karnmar Limited Siurebrook’ 5215974 100
Kenwungton Heolth Clubs Limited Shirebrook 6071489 oo
KooGo 'F Limited Shirebraok 12402087 160
La Jollo {UK) Limited Shirebrook 5737580 100
Luneshift Limited Shirebrook" A146743 0o
Lillywhites Lunsted - Shirebraok 230939 100
Litesome Sportswear Limited Shirebroak! 207887 104+
Lonsdaie Auttrolia Limited Shitgbroak'" TE65885 190
Lonsdale Boang Linited Shurabrook " 34917361 100
Lonsdale Sports Limited Sturebrook™ 4430781 e
Level Sports {Holdings] Lirmited Shirebrook " 9608995 0o
Lovell Sparls Limited Shirebraok " 4384358 100
Lovells SP Limited Shirebrook! 8907509 00
Masters Holders Lunited Shirebrook BTEFNE 00
Mdiown Ltd Shirabrook! 9461997 100
The Carporation Trust Company,
Carporution Trusl Cunter, 1209
Misussippt Manufoctunng LLC Qrange Streat, Wilmington, New 0o
Costle County DE 19801,
Urwied States
tha Corparation Trust Company,
Corporution Trust Cepter, 1209
Maountain Sports LLC Qronga Streat, Wilnungton, New 6386224 wo
Costle County BE 19607,
United States
The Cerporation Trust Cernpany,
Carparathion Trust Cenler, 120%
Mountan Sports USA LLC Oraiga Straat, Wiknington, New 24759 o1
Costle County OF 19807,
United States
Muddyfox 1P Limited Shirabroak 1246764 o
Muddyiox Limited Shirabrook™ 4187350 0o
Nevicd IP Limited Shirabrook"' BRIATIE Wwo
Na Fear Brand Lirmited Shirebrook * 5568043 no
Na Fear Intarnatonol Limted Shirebroak! 5532482 00
No Faur USA Linitud Shiebraoi'* 7712470 w00
OKI-NI Limited Shirebroak! 1635034 100

Printed on Steinbeis 100° Recycled and Carbon Captured through the Woodland 1 rust, helng o crcate new Bnhish woodland across the UK
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Clyimpus Yentures Limitec Sirebrook! 3945757 00 5th Fluor, Lesiey Buidngs,
301 [Bally Limitact €1-65 Fountoin Streat, Bellast, NI653829 100
W P 3porthase Limiteds Shiretwoak 103385] 100 Narthers Irstandt, BT SEX
Paridls Sport Lirited Shirabrook ™ 5836690 ¥o 81 18ngar] teted Shirebrack’ 5579705 00
Acodemy Houss, 36 Roland b (Borrow o Furness) Limited Shuebrouk: 7851574 100
POD Calfection Sarwces Cmiredt Streat, Lundion, WIF 7LU, 9918855 0o
United Kingaom S0 Fost] Linmibuk Shirabroak BBTZ4A7Y 100
Propeller (UK | Limited Shircbicaokt 2770207 0o D1 (B rwicia) Lo Shirebrook’ 2715957 W0
Psyche Haldings Lired Shiraliraak 03438664 0o SO TBetws y-Copal Limitied Sheepbrock 6836673 100 -
Psvcha Lined Shrrebnoak 0zBa40m 00 521 {8 suenhenn Luriled Shirebroak 7549198 100
Puffo I Limiten Shirat ook lngokd no 5003 (B shop Auckland] Limited Shirebraok! 3004248 0o
Queunsberry Boxnyg IP Limited ) Shirekraok” 7928363 0o 5D (Brands 1] Lirated Shirehrook M5B . 0
Queenshery Ruws Lnitad Shirebiook” 6723660 100 S0 1Beonds 20 Lim tent Shirebrook 12299584 100
CCPyetto Venscia, loeal 84, ) 50U {Brands 31 Limatadt Shiabrook " 12295567 100
Quete tavestments S § Trav Jaschnes Reales, 7. 50021 BEB5AI713 00
Zaeayoza, Spoin SDI [Brands d] L Shirebronk 17299315 100
Guickraply Limtud Shireleack $e04727 100 5D1 [S-dgwaten Larten Shieelrook 7R57061 100
Republic 1P Limwed Shirebirook” 5635015 100 SO (Frghtant et Shirglorook ' 11579780 100
Hepubhic.com Retoll Lirmited Shirenruok 288957 0 S [Brxtard Lirmited Shirebroak - 127300 00
ehopsody vestments (Europe} Si 1 Cote c.m,”wﬁuw_m s 60 o 001 {Broos B Lin ted Shurabrook . 5336830 100
DI [Brack HOWS Limiteed Shirahrook 9336806 100
Robinsons Country Leisure (umted Sthretrack” 1204723 0w T Shrebronh 10079 0o
588 Brands Limsd - Shnehrook' 5635585 100 o Barte e shireroak 2495632 100
5C Sports {5G) FTE 1D zwv:umwpn_nwwwwnﬁmw“m%m 194203086K 100 501 [Cardt! Flannels] Limited) Shrebrook lon7ase 100
3 04661 501 {Cordiff Q51 Limited Shirebrooh 12578045 100
SO (Retarl Co 10| trmted Shirebronk” 11889119 00 R —— [ 81959 100
S50 (et Co 1y Limited Shuretizook 12258852 foo 5DI [Chatham} umited Shuaprook £836670 100
SD (Retail Co 12) Limted Stirebiraok” 17396/97 00 <O fChestint 21 Limitee PR s 00
SD [Retonl Go 13 Limated Shitebraok 12258767 ‘oo L0 (Cheshunt) Limicad Shirebronk 1775595 100
50 [Retail 0 4} Limited Shirehircok’ 14635611 e 1 IChino) Onine Limited Shirebrook 0245782 100
SO [Retoil Co 71 Limiterd Shirabirgok 1687276 ‘0 SO (Cluctan] Limitug Shiretiraok” 852078 108
SO {Retai Co 8) Limited Shwebraak 16667376 &th Floor Lesley Ruidings.
50 (Retoul Co §} Lirmivad Shuraky ook heeso?? e SO {Clanme Lirnited E.awM_Mﬂ”"_”..,‘.m._...”u,.%mwmw NIB53359 1080
SO Equestran Lemited Shirabrook 849780 o0 D (Ceicnanterf Limted Shingnaok 5633790 00
50 Outdoer 17 Limited Shuabrook 356022 o SO (Caroys Limitg Shiebroak 10885612 0o
5D Quidoor Limted Shurebrost” 2560360 o0 501 ICork) Lumited Shiebrook 1775763 100
SDB25A muﬁh %%Hmmumhhmh:wmmaﬂ 0849.964 368 na SO ICoynntryd Lemibeed Shrenraok * 9630128 0o
SDI{{Prapro 1357 Limited Shiebraok 1227937 wo SDI Dm0t | et Sturebrook’ Hatned 108
SDI (58 Haldings] Lirmted Shirebrook 0E2050 W S0 {Derby) Limaed Shrebroak’ RSl 100
SO} [Aberdeen 2] Linited Shirzbrook 125793 Jon S0 (Dary Lunit z‘Mrvﬂ.ﬂhwhﬂﬁhﬁus.mﬂ. NIAS3340 00
S0l {Aberdeent Limited Shwabronk 8517597 100 Morthern Ireland BT SEX
SOt Aberwystayth] Limted Shrebrook 276959 100 $D1 {loneosier Limited Shirebrook 988670 100
SDI{Acqeo 5 Limited Shirabrack 10162904 00 512t {Dundbes) Litvted Shrrebroak * 4702004 s
DI (Atrae} Limted Shirebrook - 3352462 100 S01{DuntermIng) Limdec Sirerook 4483679 10
S04 [Ashtord] Limitag * Shirebroak iBapaen 100 SO [Last am| Lnuted Shirabironk 9810378 160
SDI {Ashigton) Limiied Shirebrock 7345231 06 SO (Fust Kilhordel (el Shirabravk 6656368 100
5D Ay} Limited Snirebrook 5528267 g SOV iEehntirgh Lirrted Shiranrooh 10100590 100
DI [Enfen] Limitad Shvrmbeoi, 100609 100
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SO! Fulharm} Limited Shirebrock 7852031 100 50U {Newtan Abbot) Linutad Shirebronk'* &A36666 09
SO {Gansborough) Limited Shirebrook: 6338907 100 SD1INFSK) Limited Shirebroak™ 10ANN02 106
50| {Gatastuels]) Limited Shurebrack ) 785209 100 SDI {Northampton) Limizad Shirabroak™ 853372 100
S0 {slasgow Fort] Limited Shirebrock: GB61504 00 SDI {Northwach) Limnted Shirebrook” 5656255 00
501 {Glasgow Frasers} Limitad Shirabrock’ 11531596 106 S0 (Nottingham Lirutadt Shirebroo 1010060 o
5011Glasgow Ingram Street] Limited Shirebrock 9935519 100 5D (Nuneaton) Limited Shirebrock ' 7852749 100
SDI {Gloucestar] Limited Stwrubroch * TH53u67 0o S04 (Qswastiy) Limited Shirearook! 7852363 100
5D {Graat Younmouth] Limited Shirebrock n732687 100 S0 (Oxlord Streat HOF} Lunited Shirahrook! To7ATAL 100
50! {Hanley) Limited Sturebrook 228017 100 S (Oxford Streat) Limited Shirebraok: 10046080 100
501 Hastings) Limited Shirebrock BE5E93 100 SO} [Panzonce) Limilad Shirebrook! 7852257 0o
501 {Hergford) Lenived Shirabrack ' JEHBE 47 100 SO [Paturlwa) Livitad Shirabrook! raszam 100
501 {Hofca] Limited hirabrock BI9960 100 S0t [Plymouth Flannels) Limrted Shurabrook 3127387 100
SO {HaH Holdlngs) Limsted shirebrook " 61592 00 S04 [Plymouth] Limited hinebironk' 9470468 100
S0 {Haunslow] Lenired Shirebrook™ 1008618 100 501 [Portsmouth) Limited Shirehroak” 12579794 100
301 HU) Limited Shirebrook’ 9638564 0o SO [Preston) Limited Shirebrook! 10915199 100
501 {Ipswich 2] Limited Shirabrook” 12578948 00 ‘ SDI [Propco 100} Limited Shirabrook” N732200 100
SPH Ipswich) Limted Shirabrook™ y7gean wan 5D [Propeo 101) Lumiter Shirebraok’ N7I86 100
EDI (Isle ol Mon) Limilad Shwabraok™ Y901745 a0 01 [Fropeo 102} Lurmted Sinrebrook! 1775629 100
L1 (Jersey Holding) Limted Shieabrook' 0177028 00 SDI [Propco 105) Linuterd Shrebrook N275597 00
SD4 (K Lynn} Limited Shirebrook” 10073076 100 SDI [Propeo 307 Limited Shirebrook ' NFIST06 100
50| (Keighley) Limtad Shirebronk ™ 6360239 00 SO [Propeo 1) Limitsd Shirebrook NFI527 00
501 (Kuadal) Limited Shirebrook® 6318918 100 SBI [Propro 12} Lunitad Shirebrook ST o0
S0 {Kenush Tawnj Lanited Shirebroak” 9901707 100 S0 [Propea 14} Limitad Shirebrook 12258708 100
52l (Kidderminstary Lunlted - Shirebrook 9203731 00 SUI {Propco Maj Limitan Shirsbrook” 12300052 00
S04 [Kilmarnock] Limited Shirebraok! 7653433 00 SO1 {Propca 118} Limvted Shirebrogk 12332460 W00
501 [Kingston} Limited Shirabraok! 10915209 100 S01{Propco 117 Limited Shirebrock" 12132456 100
SO [Kirkealdy] Limited Shiradaok 78572097 100 SDI {Propco 18] Limited Shirebroak * } 12332859 . 0o
SOl {Leeds] Lumited Shirebioak 9253515 19 SDI (Propte 199) Limited Shirebroak! ' 17332862 e
SC1{Leicester] Lumitac Snirebroole - o 100 SDI Propcn 125) Lirmted . Shirsbroak! 12577378 100
S {Liverpool) Limited 5 wrobrook SBBHT3A 100 SDI {Propca 131 Limited Shitebroak! 21366 100
5DI (Lowestalt} Limited Stwrehraok 7B52265 00 DI {Propco133) Lirmited Shirebraok * 8972499 00
SDH(LSL Holdings) Limitad Shirebrook " WIBIRTA 100 SO {Propro134] Limited Shirebrook™ 5625631 100
SD {Manchester Chestham Hill) Limied wrebrook 1NDOS6Y 100 S {Propco 137) Limited Shirebrook ' 1227321 100
50 {Manchaster Denten] Lumited 51 webrook ' 9122795 00 SDU{Propee 35) Limited Shiebroak'' . 11500282 16a
SDI {Market Road) Lirmited S rebrook 10799247 00 SDI {Prapca 36) Limited Shirebraok! 1523336 100
SOl [Middlesbroughl Limited Shirebrack ' 0081909 00 SDI {Propeo 37] Lt Shirebrook" 11533343 00
SOl {Nossuu Strast) Limited Sturebrook ! 1227962 100 SO {Propeo 38) Limited Shirabrock 1523424 100
551 {Nectit) Limited $h rabrook " 7853548 00 SDI (Prapco 3%) Limiter Shirebrook” N$73440 i 100
SDI {Newark] Lirmited Shirebrook ' 7853470 5 5Dt {Propeo 40) Lnitad Sherebrook! 1523489 100
SDI ‘Newcastle} Limited Shirebrook' * 127266 100 SD! Propca 41) Limited Shirebroak’ 1523621 1ou
SDI - Newpori IOW} Ltd Shi-ebraak' 12578944 00 5Dt Propeo 42} Limited Shirebroak’ 1151953 160
501 (Newport] Limitad shiebrook’ 867914 00 SO [Propea 43) Limitad Shirebrook" 11523609 100
SDI (Newgquay| Limited Shirebrook 0089500 100 5D [Propeo 4d) Linoted Shirghrook™ 1523608 0y

5th Flaar, Lesley Buldings, , 5D (Propco 451 Limited Shwebioak™ 11523654 100
SDH [Nuiry] Lumuted £1-65 Fountan Street Bellasl, NIG51158 100

Northem treland, BT1 5EX D (Propco 46| Limived Shirebroak 1523748 0o
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SDH [Prepeo 7] Limited Shrebonk 11530370 100 501 Romegate] Limmted Shweprook J852250 100
gl
o Ath Floor T 5 SDH Reading] Lirntedt Shrebrask 10427164 00
SDI [Propea 481 Limited (in liquidatior) aaan il pronte e n823788 00 {Readingf (imite rebro 7 0
—_— 5DV IRegnt Livuted Slutebroak’ 27457 w00
5D (Propco 49 Limited Shirebrock” 11525M5 00
5B lkole S Lirmired Shitabrostc 7853669 100
SDi [Propea 50} Limited Strabicook 1826182 1ar-
Shitehraok” 100Msa! 00
SDHPropco 51t Umnided Shuebrock' n527237
St *Saisbury L Shrebrock * IACTSTE 100
5P (Propeo 52) Limited Sihrebrook’ 526977 01
S0 IScorboroughy Limited Sturebroak * 7128463 00
5P {Propso 541 Limited Shwebrock 1527149 ‘o
S {8 cuntiuorise Panshes Ceatred Linuted Qhmebraok” 1730447 wa
SO1 [Propeo 551 Limited Shrebrock” 527303 e
SIS unttarpe] Lerted rebrack 7259055 00
SDU [Propea 56] Limited Shirebrook 11537287 L3l )
SDASDI Froprs 136] Lirntea Shitebraok 9888635 06
SDI [Propeo §7) Limmted Shirebrogk’ 1527500 02
D} (Southarnptan 7] Limited : Shirebronk 5645089 06
SDI {Propeo 56 Lmited Shirebrock: 15275596 W00 .
5Dl 1Southarmptan) Limied Shiretirgok 8512480 100
4th Flgor Teronto Squatk.
SD{Propee 59+ Limited Toront Stree, Leeds, fmnA IHE 1827584 00 S50 |Sputhpert] Limited Shireliroat SABHBOG 100
SDIPropco 60t imited Shwehrack” 11331386 100 Shrebrock 850204 too
501 {Prapco 61 Liited Shrebrack - 1531382 100 SO Helenst Limwred Shwebrook” 785281 5 iae
SO (Propa 42t Limited Shrebrock 531444 o 5D [5tatfcrd) Lt Shurabrook 8368681 100
SO |Propeo 63t Limited Shrebrook wns03 ¢ 100 DI IStames] Limned Shirsbrook’ N6ahaET 10
SDI{Propeo 641 Limited Shirebrook 1531508, 107 5DHstackport] Linted Shirebrack 5370181 109
SD1{Propen 65 Limited Shirslroch [ 0o D1 {$take Longtan) Limited] Shrebrach 7852877 100
D1 (Prapco 67) Limited Shrelroak 1572676 100 06 (5toke Newington) Lisied . Shirebrook” 1853207 00
SO [Propeo 68} bimited Shrebrock” 872831 0o DL {Strabnne] Linitert Shirebrack 9890243 100
S0 [Prapes 691 Limited Sturshrook” 1572830 an DI IStreatiormi Lumted Shifebroak * 066335 06
SO0 (Fropco 20} Leatad Shirelrook 11572933 501 IStrogd) Limited Shitebroate 532 00

501 [Propea 71 Limied Shirebrook” 11874887 ot SDl{Sunderiand) Limited rabrock A755147 100
DI [Propco 73} Limited Shirebrook - 185050 w0 SO {Stton] Limed Shwabraoi 31228001 0
S0 {Propce 74] Lims Shirebrook 875091 100 501 ISwinclon] Limited) Shirebrogk 586662 0o
SO (Propca 751 Limited: Sherebrook N577156 a0 SO Taliagh) Lanited Shitebrogkt* 05203 - 100
SDN (Peopep 761 Lrmitad Shirehrook 1577617 w0 SuiiTauntar Lemted Shiebronk RS9t 100
501 [Prepeo 771 Limtad Shirebrook ns7et6L D1 {Thaneti Limied Sheebrook 12579034 w0
S0 {Propee 80} Limited Shwebrock W57 1ol SDIIThe Hause Yarml Lirmtad Shirebroak 12232621 1086
5D {Propco BY] Litnited Shirsbrook' Neariza e 11" he Lion Hetell Limited Shrebrook! HBIGHED na
$B1(Prapca B3] Limited Shirehraok’ 6a302 100 SO1Thurro: 4 Limitsa Shuebrook 10089743 100
5DV [Fropea 85 Limited Shirehrook NBAFEIY w0 501 Trowhndge! Limited Shieprack 12355661 W00
S0 (Propeo 661 Limted Shrebrock 11649235 100 Ui (Ut 2 Lirmited Shrebronk N2731h 100
S0 [Fropeo B7) Lmted Shiretrack” 1649336 [ 50! Iuxbange) Limted Shirebrook | 177206 1606
S01$Propta B8} Limited Shiretronk! 1674753 103 SO [Wakeheld) Limited Shirebraak” paBITH an
$0I Prapca 891 Linited . Shirebraok: WS42T4T 00 SDI{Walsaly Lirmted Shirebrook’ 2452289 100
5D [Propce 90§ Limited Sheretwoak 649431 100 S0 (Wotford) Lired Sheratsook 632505 100
SO [Propeo 91} Lmited Shirarosk™ 687077 w0 SDI [Widnes! Linited Shirebronk £576472 100
SDI{Propco 52) Limited Shiretyrook” 1730704 100 501 [Wagan IP Lamitedf Shirebroak 838407 0
SO0{Propoe 931 Lemited Shirebrook' - 73083 00 320 Wigon) Limited Shirebiraok’ 12579267 e
S0 {Propca 94l Limited Shiretiragk: 1720440 100 SDIWishow, imited Shirebrach 6656365 00
SDM [Propea 96 Limuted Shirety ook’ 730563 W00 S0 [wieshoml Lirmted Shirebrock' RS0 N0
SDH [Frepeo 98) Limites Shirehrook N7IAAGE 0o 501 IWythenshowe] Lamited  ~ Shirebrook 5655156 W00
SpI{Propro 99) Limited Shirebrook’ WIIIn 100 SOI {Yeowi] Lumited shirsbrook 12571947 0
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01 tYorkl Limitad Shirsbrosk: N300 0o

Tha Carparation Tris! Cempary,

Corporation Trus: Canter, 1208
5012300 Collns LLE Qiange Slreet, Wil nington, New BEFI031 00

Castle Counly DE 19801, United

Statss

Tha Carparation Irust Compary,

Carporation Trusk Canter, 1205
501735 Collins LG Qranga Streat, Wilmington, New 8700128 0o

Castle County DE 19801, United

States
SEM Aviation Limitadt Shirebrack 9633152 Yo
5D Fitnese Bimngharm] Limired Stwrebrook’ 90318982 0o
5D Fitness [Bury 5t Edmunds] Limterd Shurebrook 9038547 00
3031 Fitnass [Cheltanham| Gimited - S039840 100
5D Fithess (Colchestert Limited Shirebrook s0390M 100
501 Fitmess (Croydor] Limitad Shrehrook 9039243 100
5D Fitiese (DW] Loivted Shirearaok 12238794 00
50| Fitness (Epsom) Limited ShireSrook 039043 00
<O Fitnss (Farshatn] Lirmited fIn hqwedationd H.M.M..“_.” u.uma_“.am”ﬁ H__:wﬂ 9035057 w00
S0 Firaess {Forinby] Limuted [— w0398 w00
SOt Faness {Glasgawl Limited shirabrook 903881 100
SO Fitnass [Guldford) Lirmited Shiretraak! 9019269 100
501 Fitness {Hovel mited Shwebrack 9035030 00
SDI Fitnvess {Huntingdon] Lunted “hirabronk 03 100
$31 Fitniess (K Heath) Limited ' Shirebraok! 03977 00
531 Fitness (K Lyon} Limited | Shrebiroaw wo3uBLT 100
SBI Fitass Mattenng] Limted Srebrogk 9039857 00
S Fitnass (Lincoli City) Limded Swabrock” 3039331 100
SDI Fitness (Lincaln Sauth West) Linited Svwabrook soasme 100
SDI Fitness [Liverpool] Lainuted " S webrook 9039347 wWo
SOI Fitnass [Manchastar] Limitud S wabirook 9039239 w00
SCI Fitness {Mitngaviel Limited Stwabrook™ 2075510 100
S Fitness {Nawark} Linited Shirebrouk 301964 0o

c/a Kannadys, 10th F cor, Rve

Hulse, AB-60 H gh Streat,
SO Fitnwss (N} Limitod Bellast. Nartbern irzland, 8T1 NieTz034 att

3BE, Uriteus Kingdom

s Ktnvacdys, ¥0th F Go, Rovur

Hovise, 4B-60 High Street
S0 Fitness (N1 2] Lhimited Beltast, Northern ire fand, BT1 NIEF2033 100

JRBE. United Kingdam

55 Kennedys, 10th Fioor, River -
! House, 4B-60 Hngh Strest, .

SDIFitnass [N1 3] Limiked Bl e NISTI03S 100

3BE, United {ingdom

oo Kannadys, 10th Fioor, Ruer

Haouse, 48-60 Hic h Stract,
S0 Fitress [N1Ap Limited Butlust, Northern irus and, BT1 NI672885 00

2RE, Urnted Gnguam

co Kannadys, 10th Fleor, Rvr
SUM “itness (N1 5) Limited House, 40-60 High Street, Nis72884 100

Beilast, Marthem Ireland, BT1
4BE, Urited Kingdom

17

SD) Fitness [Northfield) Lwnited Shrebrook ' S035412 100
SOI Fitness [Rughy) Limited Shrehrock' 9039408 0o
SDI Fitness [Sale] Limited Shuehraak' 5039405 0o
SO Fitness (Salisbury] Lmited shiabrook * 9039429 00
SO1 Fitness 1 Limited Shuabrock * 12371923 00
S0 Fitness 10 Limited Shuebroak' " 12372368 W
SO Fibnese 1 Limiad Shirabrook"™ 12820362 100
SDI Fitness 17 Lirmited Shirebroak™ ) 282058 100
SOt Fitness 13 Limited Shirebrook " 12820585 00
SDi Fibness 14 Limited Shitebrotk! 12810516 0o
SOt Futhess 15 {omited Shirebrook 12821345 Wwo
S04 Finess 16 Limited Shirebroak! 12827564 W0
S04 Fitness 17 Limited Shirebrook' ' 12822657 1o
501 Fulness 18 Limited Shirebraok * 12822294 100
501 Fitness 19 Limited Shuebraok * 2856 0o
SO Fitreas 2 Lrmitac Shuebronl 12372165 W00
SO0 Fitruess 20 Limitad Shirebraok™ 12823728 50.
501 Friness 21 Lirmdted Shirgbrook™" 12823572 w00
501 Fitness 22 Lirmited Shirebrook™ 12823510 100
SCI Filness 23 Limited Shirebrook * 12823788 0o
SGI Fitvess 24 Limied Shirebroak' * 12823986 100
S Fitness 25 Lomited Shirebrook' ' 12823526 00

tness 26 Limited Shurebrogk' 12825248 09

tness 37 Limited Shirsbrook * 12830411 00

tress 28 Limited Shirebrook! 12525356 00
50| Fitrass 29 Limited Shirebrogl 12825569 100
SO Fitnese 3 Linuted Sturubran) 12372169 100
SDI Fikness 30 Limited Shirebrook” 12825/ 100
SDI Fitness 31 Limitea Shirebiook! 12930743 100
SDI Fitnass 32 Lumited Shirebrook ' 12970838 100
501 Fitness 33 Limited Sherebrook 12936826 100
5D Fitrass 34 Limited Shirebrook 12930839 100
S0 Fitness 35 Linited Shirebrool 2930938 woe
S0 Firmess 38 Limited Shirebraol! 32936954 100
SDI Filness 37 Limited Stirabrack ! 12930944 0o
SO Fitpess 38 Limited Shrebrook ! 09626724 100
SB1 Filress 39 Limited Shirebirook " 0YDIB /6B 100
SDI Fitnags 4 Limited Shirebrook ' 2Iarn4 100
SOl Fitness 40 Lirted Shirebrook ' PLUELL 1] 100
SDI Fitress 41 Limited Sturebrook” 09038839 100
S0 Fitness 42 Limited Shirabrook * 09036943 100
501 Fitness 23 Limited Shirebrook 09039021 00
SOI Fitress 44 Lumited Shirebreok a9039343 o
SDI Filness 45 Limited Shiretirook! 09035481 100
SDI Fitness 46 Limnted Shwabrool 3030435 0
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5D1 Fitness 47 Limited Shirebrook ! 13030364 o
SDI Fikrass 48 Limitad Shursbrook 13030107 00
501 Fitness 49 Limited Shirehrook 13030173 o
$Di Fitngss & Limatad ShucebrGok” 23S we
SDI Ftwass 50 Limited Shirebrook! 13030075 W08
50| Fitness & Linuted Shorgthragk 2372124 o
SPI Fitness 7 kmited. Shirebrogk:” 23N e
DI Fness § Lirnited Shrebronk! 17372308 0%
501 Fitnass 9 Lirted Shuebroch 12372303 100
121 Four Limited Shirebrook 979779 0o
The Condamatait Trust Company,
Corporatian Trusk Canter, 1209
S Gift Cord LLC Qrange Stragt, Wilrmington, New 56773739 100
Castla County DE 19401
United Stotes
S0 Goif Limited Shirebrook’ 9081512 100
The Cotporation Trusk Company,
Corparntion Trust Center, 1209
501 Hallings USA inc Orange Street, Wilmington, New 5651201 we
Custie County DE 19801
United Startes
DI Lifestyl2 Limted Shiebrock 6293618 w0
Corporonon Serace Company,
St Propertias (USA] 1 Office Park Court, Swite 103 SI3671 hele]
Calumbig
Van Xanynanburgwey 45,
5Dl Property (Eurape] BY ART2PL Bergen op Zoom £3042594 wa
Netherlants
50 Property (Evans Cycles) Limited Shirebr ook 16463 0
§B1 Progerty Limmles Shirelrock 2757491 0o
The Corporaten Trust Company,
Crrporotion Trust Center, 1209
SO Property US ing Orange Straet, Wimington, New AEHIDOM 100
Costls County DE 9801,
. United States
SO Property US Limited Shirobiogh’ 11373420 00
S0 Retanl Servrces Lirmrled Shirebrogk! 8143303 00
S0I Spark Lendon Linuted Shirebraak VBdBIS? 0o
D Sports (SC 16T Ledd Shirebrock 129750 W00
St Sports [Stoke) Limited Shirebrogk: 10163722 w0
The Corporntian Trugt Compuny,
Corporotion Trust Center, 1209
S Sports Groyp Amencas LLC Qrange Street, Wilmngtan, New 047353 0o
Costie Courity PE 19501,
Unitext States.
The Corporation Trust Company:
. Carporohion Trust Canter, 1209
SDi Stares LLC Drange Street, Wiltungtan, New 1240332 we
Castle County DE 19801,
Umted States
The Corpotation Trust Campariy,
Corporation Trust Center, 1209
SDLUSA LLC Orange Streat, Wilmingeon, New HIB5155 00
Cestle County DE ¥B01,
Unerad Staes
18

|

trnlad on Stenbers 100

Racygind et

atlaon

Capta

¢

S ot e Wi

The Carperation Trust Compnny.
Corporation frust Cender, 1269

FRASERS GROUPF

SU1 Venzures LLE Oriange Straet, Wimington, New 6890021 w0
Costls County DE 19801,
United States
<D« Progarty [Bitousgl BY Netherlanas 62455807 100
Sl com Fitness Porent Limited" Shirebrook * 082454 100
Porc Industrial, Avenue Ernest,
sbisa Sy 291480 Santes Belmum H10198.436 100
Seven Strang Limited Shuratraok 56186 100
Shelfca A3 Linned Shicbrook” 1085/408 100
SIASIG Logeics A Deglova st 50 1135 Riga PR «
Lotyin
- Jqua str 53 L¥-1.35 P
1A Spartiand A Deglava st SO Lv1-35 Rga 40003530961 &0
Latvia
§ta Sportsduect com A Deglava st 50 191-35 Riga 20103932873 an
Latvio
Sk ond Dutdoar Warehause Lunited Shirebraok 2917223 100
Shans 10 Lm tad Shurbr ok 16568 00
Sinzenger Carltan {Haldings} Limited Shiraueeick 10483081 100
Sinsengers Austroho Lined Shursbraok * aa1rale 100
Slazengars Limed Shiabragk' NK000 0o
Smith & Brooks Lwvtad Sherebrook 075720 00
Smieh Aind Brocks Grauns Limited shurabroak 40331 wo
Senith Andl Broks Holdings Limad Shirabraoh’ 963571 100
0
SNO Spor Yerlriebs GmbH Flugplunzsteafie 30, 4600, Wels 272614 100
Austria
i The Bluck Church , 5t Marys
Safa Monufacture Ireland Limited Flar. Dutin DO kX el 89923 it
Sofacum Bido Limited Shirgbracid1h 9381955 00
- Flags 4V 6, Dea Dungen,
o v - 710676 "
sofocom B 5275HH. Netherlands 26768 o
Sofacom Ltd Shirebrank 522498 00
ondico 1P Limied Shirehraok s546121 100
Spnsont Limited Sheehreak 609888 w0
Fl hat; ol

St Eybl & Sarts Easerts Logablbmtngbe Gt | U9PCHITIT 10, 4600 s N SEQzA M 0o

. Flugptatzstroie 30, 4600, Wels -

Spart Eybl Holdng Gmi ot B00%5 » 00
€35, 3e Flaor, ASEAN Bulding,
690 Sz Averiue, Kerint

ect com Clina Pte Limited Cominumity, Minzht Street. 914403015799875030 00
Longhuo Ditnict, Shenen,
Chino

Parny mnt 135 Kesldinn, i

Spartiond Egvthe A S Tolue Estang 11317 W77 &0
Patny rant 138 Keskiipna,
it I 0 1] .

Sponland Imerononal Group A S T 10597195 50
i & €u Tong San Street, A11-0%,

Ssperts Direct (Singopore) Pre Ltg The Central, 89817 Singapare 2020045427 5L
Level 15-2, angunun Foher
Imaenal Court, Jaion Sutan

Sports Direct Asig Rekail Scln Bhd s, 50750 Kuala Lumpur W P 20190154081 5
ralaysi

spurts Drrenct Moldings Limuted® Shirebisck 6464317 00
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Sportsdinact corm Vienna Notlh Grelsk Wels, Fhugplatzstrabe 30 FNI044BHG 100
S5G Sport GmbH (SSD) vomholrsie 46, c.cuvm””_._uﬂ HRA 7134 100
Starling Redourced (Haldingsl Limited Shilrslirani* 4651701 100
Starling fesourtes Liratad ] Shirsbrookt 1412254 100
Stirlings {Argyla Sireat) Lirmitad Z".‘:M ﬂo&“v .owu“ﬂ.ﬂ:%.ﬂﬂ_“ SCOABI0E 0o
Straub Corporation Limtad Shirabook " 3003534 o
Sty Succesa Lid " Shirebrook V1BI0527 1o
C CPusrto Vanecis, loca! B4,
Suplay tiwatliments 51 Tros, Jurdines Raoles, 7 50021 BABS 4769 100
Zaragarm, Spnin
Switmine Eupan SPRL Soteny 19,400 S, Pt 478623006 100
[ — e S0OIBSY 190
- 3773 Hownrd Hugus ioway, STE
The Anbgua Group Inc 500S Las vagos, Nevogin, USA 07344794 100
89165-6014 . ’
The Flonnels Group Linsited Shiratiook TNASIO 100
The Trotsmack Licarsing Compony Li Shiretook™ w81y 100
Totol Estatas Limited Shirabook™ freen 100
T Yol UK Limitsdl Shirghrook™ 168090 100
UAB SO (Gedimin] LT Smmynishis g3 biloh. 125039836 E
UAB Sporttand LT Semmyiviskiv g _u..n..h_w__..“” 125034836 5t
UAB Sportschrect.com Selmymiski g, m_..us._.“__” 04185613 51
Urivatsal Cyches Limited Shirabrack” 1239067 08
USA Pro 1P Limits Shirehrook" 5497914 100
USC IP Uimited Shitabrool £936808 100
Used Torkls Limitad hiratook™ 7989154 100
Van Midart [Lllestrle) Limitad Shirabrook™ 8319959 100
Vinecomb Inveslments I.U—n_:_uu Limiteg Shirabyrgoht WEns 100
Vinacombs Invedtmeats Limited Shireirack™ 22046022 100
Voodoo Dolls Brand Luritact Shimhrook™ 5373305 100
Woreshop? Limited Shirshrmgh” 9870040 100
Hanion Houwss , 1A Bushess
Warrnombool = Park, Whitastown, dﬂ-:ﬂﬂw.-. 387014 100
Dublin 74, Iralnd
Watariine Anghrvg Produts Lmiod Shirabrook™ 7896374 100
"ust Toost Copital IHOFGO) Limited 18 Mboll Creseant, m.._n_p__‘,uzmwﬁ SCATTEL 100
Westminstar Manuloctnng LLC 2 lica Park Count Sults 103, 44356 100
Widiaw Limited Shiratiook ® 4571678 100
Witharm Sykes Limitad Shirabrook™ 123228 10
world of Service Intemnational Limttad Shirabsogk™ 1207465 100
World af Service Limilad Slucalyrook™ 0TI )
Yeoivans Cutroars Limited - Shirelorcol 0SB 100
ZTuparch SP2.0.0 vl. 2ernicka 22, Robakawa, KRS DOGO4SIAIS 0o

62-02 Goki, Poland

Sponts Diract Intumatlonal Haldings Lirm Shirshiok A0IT31 100
Sporls Diregt Intarnotional Limited Shirebrook! n5¥s7 0o
Levei ¥5-2, Bangunan Fabar
imparinl Court Jalon Sultan 8
Sports Diract MST Stin Bht sl $2700 Kualo Lumpisr 925116-M 51
Mualoyshe
Sparty World intermational Limitad Shirslrook™ &501266 100
Van Kontlenbugeeg 45, 4812 BL
Spors ‘Waorld The Nethadands BY. Bergen op zoom, Nulharlands 14055291 100
Sportadirsct (iealamd) ehf d 2. 201 Kapomun LI0124760 100
Unit 19038 E 1505, Exchonge
Towii,, 13 Wang Clyu Raad,
mvaawn,in_.nua_ IAsiaj 4 td Kowkon Boy, Kowloon, Hong 116139, 100
Kohg
Raom 315, 3rd Flour Building 2,
Sportydirect.com {Shanghal] Limited e ¥3¥ Gonglao Rood, China FINOUSMAIKAEJAGH 90
&F.-86-9, No. 213, Chaolu Rd.,
Spartsdirsct.comn [Talwan) Ll Xitun Oist. Tolehung City 407, 82770819 [
Toywnn
Sportsdiruct com Austria GrioH Fluppiatestrafia 30, .mom.:ﬁw.w 205738 y 100
N Parc Induskriul, Avenua Ernest,
Sporggdirect.com Belghum S.A, Solvay 29 1480 Saintes, Balgium 416 268 471 100
- Miltiadas Styliorau 4B, Shop 2,
Spottsdirect.com Cyprus Limitad 8577 Tolt, Pughas, Cyprus. HE 210340 100
Progus 1- Meave Mesto, Na Parcl
Sportsdirect.com Czech Republic 1 o, 1670¢30, 100 03, Craih kepubire 24268933 100
Sporsdiract.com Fltnars Limitad ‘Shirebrook™ 2078577 o0
Spartadiact cam Franca Bt B s FRITI9062613 100
H-10$3 Budapest, Korolyl Mihaly oy
Sportsdiract cam Hungary Kit e 12 vhungary 01-GY-986624 100
Soortsdirect.com immabilien GmisH Flugplatrstiabu 20, som..uuh 10481 p 100
Browery Straur, Zone 3 Centrol
Sportsdiract.cam Maita Limitad Business District Birkirkara CBO: 9928 100
3040 Mol
Pt Tk 135, Resklinng,
Sportsdirct.com OU Tullian, N4, Estoniu 1285837 ™0
- S.5kindowa Straet, &1-B8R
Sgortsdifect.com Poland SP.2.00 Pazood, Poland , 00-B72, 452610 100
Worsow
/s Norton Rosa Fulbright, L11,
Sportsdirect.com Py Lid 2485 Aaurke Stemat, Malhourng 603187 NY 100
VIC 3000, Australio
N 3 Pore ndustiiat, Avienuo Etnast,
Sp artsctiract.com Retoll {Eurapo} S.A. Solwoy 29 1480 Saintes, Bl 458BBI0AG 08
Spartsdlract.com Retall Limitad® Shirabroole 3406347 100
) Conlta Comargiol Puarto
: Local 84, Trovesio dv
Sportsdiract.com S,L A, Spain A as Jarclines Reales n® 7, SO0, B-B6567880 00
Zaragaza , Spain
Spentsditsct.cam Slovakia bro. Voka /8, 00, Bratioue, 47240 458 100
Spartsdilract.com SLVN d.0.0. Plonjava 4, 1236 Tezln, Slovania 1198157000 00
portsdiract.com lond AG. g 27, 3011 Bern,
CHE- Switzarland 351681991 10
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Frasers Group plc intends to provide a parental guarantee for the following United Kingdom D1 (Gansboragh) Limted 06338907 SOI [Sueathamd Linited | 0086135
incorporated subsidiaries thus entitling them to exemiptian from statutory oudit under section 479A 50l Gatastuels) Limited orszon SDI {Stroach Limited 07852251
of the Companies Act 2006. SOI {Glatyow Fott) Lumited 09BE1504 " DI tSundenand High Streat) Limited 10107775
COMBANY NAME COMPANY NUMBER COMPANY NAME COMPANY HUMBER S0t {Glasgow Frasers) Limited 11331586 504 underland) Linited ORIS5347
Dwect Fishing Limited 0B203469 S0 Market Rocd) Limited WI9TA7 S {Glusgow Inaram Street] Limted agg25519 SO {Sultant Limiters 122861
Hot Tuna 1P Linited 5438792 SD7 iMirddeshrough) Lumtedd 10051505 SO (Gloucaster} Lurted Qrasa0az SDi {Swindor) Limited 09868657
D Eqquastrian Limited 08692780 SDI [Nassau Struet) Litmuted n221964 01 {Great Yarmauthi Limited . 2687 S0 {tafaght) Limded 1oms208
<0 Outdoor Lmtad 08580260 01 (Neath) Lurited oraszie SO Hanley) Limited nz20017 SDI [Taunton} Limited 785219
DI fAbardean) Limitad 08512552 SDI [N Cavendish Street] Limited 0630651 . 301 tHastongst Lienuted Ohiozs6%3 SP {Thurrock) Lmted 1668574
SDI [Aberwystwyth) Linited 02789996 SDI (Newark) Lted 07853470 501 iHerefoni] Lmnated 09888642 SDI iutridge 2} Lifnted 0916
5D3 (Auntrae] Linted 0335792 51 iNefvcastlel Lot s S0t fHofeol Limited 05319960 SO} fuxdicige] Larutect Jomizie
S phshiord) imited O7BABA60 SDI (Newport} Lenited DESI9TIR 501 {Hoh Holdings) Lumitect 1061592 SP1 fwioketield) ec DR4SIMN
SD! {Ashingtan} Limited 07849221 SDI (Newquay] Linited 10089800 SD1 IHoursiow) Lumted 100RE71R SO {walsoll) Limiled 07BS2289
SDI {Ayr) Limied - 5578267 SPI [Newtan Abbat) Limited D&BIG6RG SO0 Hull Limnited- OFRIBS64 st Iwatford) Limutad 08328505
DI {Bangar} Limited 05529705 501 Northaimatar Lirmited 07852272 SO {ipswich] Lumited De20840 SOH Pveymauth] Lithited 06714452
SDI tBarow In Furness) Limited 071851574 SO0 (Narthwach) Limitadt . 08658795 SO lislo ©F Man) Lunited 09901/45 SO (Wielnes) Limited) ans7e472
™ DI (Beddgefert] Littited DBSFTS51 SDi {Nottingham) Limited 10100609 S0k (K Lynm) Lroited - 10073076 SOt Iwhgani Lim ted . 12579287
SO1 taifast) Limiled 0987241 DI {Nuneaton} Linited 07852249 S0 {Kelghleyl tirmted D&260239 SO1 {Wishaw) Limited DB65E65
DI {Berwickd Limited 2739957 D1 tOsmestryd Larune [ 501 [Kendal] Limted o6336918 S Wolverhampten) Linntad 09788373
SOI [Betws-¥-Coed) Limited 06836623 SOI {Oxford Street] Limitad 10046080 SO {Kentish Town] Limitedt as9oie? SO ptythershawe) Limited 09859156
SDi {Baxleyhuath) Limited 097688372 SOH (Paisteyd Limited 02933408 SO1 {Micklerminster) Limizert 09203751 SO trark) Limited nanIn
SN (Bickenheae(} L nited D7B49158 ADI (Purzance) Limited - 07852297 SDI [Kimmninock) Limited 07853433 S0 Four Limjted DINGIT9
5D (Bishop Auckland) Limited 03004746 S0 {Pelerteal Limitad 0852400 SDI {Kingston) Limited 10915209 501 Solf Limtterd 09083512
5! (Brdgwatar) Limitad 07452061 501 (Plymouith Flanmels) Limited uSZI3R7 501 Wurkeady) Limited ores2097 SPI Properties fAigan) Linited 05034522
501 (Brixton) Limited 09927300 4 {Plymouth) Limited 09470468 SDI L eeds) Liruted 09293515 - 7493
DI Burton) Limites! 08495632 SDI {Preston) Limted 10515199 SO eicastert Lmited oMo 5D sport Landon Limitod o3n4bz67
SO {Cardilf Flannelsy Limted PE—— Dk Rormsgate) Limited 0852250 D4 {Liverpodll Linuted 03888734 D Sports {East Harm) Limited 10255103
SO iCorlisla} Limstad - 07651959 SO1 (Reading) Limked 10422464 SDI [Lowestolt) Limited O7RS2265 5D Sposls IStoke) Limited 10163722
SO {Chatham) Lirnstad 06836679 SO [Redear) Lirnltet 02731452 SDI {2 81 Haldings) Lunited 10161824 Slithngs {Argyle Street) Lunlted SCO88108
SDI {Chestunt 2) Limited 1775717 SD1 {Rolle 31) Limited 07852669 DI fLuton) Limited ) OP6H062S Vitiacomb Inwestments Holdis Limired 10181818
 SDI (Cheshurt] Linited J—— 3B [Rormiordl} Lyited 10071847 01 {Manchester Cheethom Hill) Limifed 100568 Viinreshop! Limitad 09870849
5D (Clactont Limitad 07852076 551 (Salsbury} Lunited 10107572 50 (Manchester Denton) Limted 09127295 . Wareshopd Limited 09670808
sl ﬁo_,nxﬁ_na Lirnitecl 0543290 5D [Scarboraugh) Limitad 06378463 Alpha Developiments Stockport Limiter! 12662564 SDI {Propca 75} Limited sTTISE
5D {Cork) Limited w573 DI {Scuntharpe) Limited 07952055 501 IStockpont} Lirmited Dh37281 SDi tPropco 119} Limited 12332352
SO iDarlingtond Limied WT51%3 S0t [Slough) Limaed Q7gs2a17 01 {The House Yarmi Livited 123387
S0 [[erhy) Limited 09316031 ) 501 (solibully Limked ORE164T
5D (Derryl Limited NI&§3340 SO {Southaimplon 2 Limited 09665889
DI toneuster} Limitad 09888670 SO {Sautharmpton) Limsted 08512480
$D) iDundeel Limited 09702004 5OI [Southpert) Linited 09588806
SDU {Dunferriline) Liinited 08483879 SPL St Austell] Limited 07852284
5D (East Hop) Limitec 03610378 551 {5t Halens) Limster) 07852201
501 [East Kilbricle) Limited 06656368 S0k (stafford) Limited 04568481
SDIEdinburgh) Limitad 10100970 SDI [stoke Longten) Litited 07851877 :
SOt Eetretd) Lumted 10086209 . 5D {Stoke Newngtor) Limited 07852207
SO (Fultm) Limited 07852037 SDI {Strabane) Limited 09890243
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FRASERS GROUP PLC COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES
COMPANY BALANCE SHEET IN EQUITY |

at 25 April 2021 For the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2021
Netes An ot Avat
3 aprl 2021 16 Aprl 1072 Colled share  Treawry Parm  Copital o -.”.-..“ Profit .
e lem) . wpshary  peomium share  centnte redemption " nt ELens Tatal
p——— g . capital  aesount  ressrve  wopitad resarve BT hatount
Investments 2 14949 17358 {Em) [ {tm} {tm) lem) (Em) {Em) 1Em) {Em)
CURRENT A3$ETS AT AT 20 APRIL 201 w1 w3 amn 01 [ ) - UL 18
Debtors 4 1629 868 inancial peried - - - 1477 1)
o 1 hand 1318 n saspoct of long- _ . _ R
Cash ot bank and i han et wincial gssets - recagnised X 1221 123
hiddd 04 Shars purchase (440} - - 02 - - [7EE ]
Craditars: amaunts falling due within one year 5 1605 0} [@o1S] Reversal ol prier year laif val -
hare buyback eantractuel ob o ) 0.0
NET CURRENT LIARILITIES (ds0.6) g s L
NETASSETS s 7847 AL AT 28 APRIL 2020 o (/% {293 o1 5O 161.0) - hr X T
#rofit lor the financiol pericd . - - - . - - 8 ma
CAMYAL AND RESERVES .
ment in raspect of lang- - - . 771 ™
Tolled up share captal ? 641 LT . toem financial assets - recognlsed -
Shore premium 8/4.1 8743 - Shuts schiainu - - - - - 0.3 o8 - A&
“rassury shure reserve (295.71 17957 AS AT 25 APRIL 2021 [7X] Tl {2987} %] Y} 847 03 4800 10648
b ] o1 ’ . N ’ . .
Tertmaneiit centyBolion 16 copde) o The share premium account is used to record the excess proceeds over nominal volue on the issue of
Zapital redernphian reserve Ll ki shares. The permanent contribution to capital relates to o cash payment of £50,000 to the Company
Dwin shure reserve 166 71 1670} on 8 February 2007 under a deed of capital contribution. The capital redemption reserve arose on
Sliare based payment raserva a8 - the redemption of the Company's redeemable preference shares of 10p each at par on 2 March 2007,
Frofit and Loss atcaunt 4800 1705 The own shares and treasury reserves represent the cost of shares in Frasers Group plc purchased in
SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS TP T1a7 the morket and held by Frasers Group plc Employee Benefit Trust to satisfy options under the Group's

N - - Share Scheme. For further information see note 25 in the Group Notes to the financial statements.
Frasers Group plc reported a profit after taxation for the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2021 of £231.8m

{FY20: a loss of £47.7m).

T+ accompanying accounting policies and notes form part of these Financial Statements.

Tae Financiat Statements were approved by the Board on 5 August 2021 and were signed on its
behalf by;

Cris Wootton
Chief Financial Officer
Company number: 06035106
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NOTES 10 114 COMPANY FiNaNcia; e
STATEMENTS _

Forthe 52 weeks endad 25 April 2021 As permitteq by FRS 107 the Company e ™ selected struments thy, ough ather
. taken Advantage of p, diselosyrg eXemptiang n%—ﬂﬁ%wmzm. ve SmﬂBm, The ﬂoﬂ.ﬁnsﬂ :_Dw. o
; i ) lected to accnyy O MSvemants in s iste,
1 C POLy g vailable unge, thet stondgry M relation to ]
AC QUNTING LICIE Financiof 1 SHIUTRNtS, presamot N oF g eagy INvestments through oehey no:._uarm:.m:a.
hnn!,a._.:u Palicigs flow stotement, m:namyvcmwn‘ Payments ¢he 'Ncame, Thase S<mu~3¢_._wm are fiot subject

" »m__...__ chﬂ meﬂﬁwﬁczﬁeﬁohﬁw“ ather .:....,eroiamu meMmbers of the Grou &_mno«oq mu_“ listed _ﬁ:(.mmw.:m:ﬂm _D.<_amza Ncame
L ' Where "equired, equivalent disclosuras gre given % eaginised in ihe PIORt ondl logs Secount,
© London Stock mxnranmm. The .
o9Istered affice ig |y A, Brock pory East, ™ the Graup acequnt OF Feasers Group plc This treotment 084 not apgly 4, Investments
w},,qm?dar. NG20 apy Princigal Activiry in the Ooi.ca:w_m subsidiarigs end Qssocjates
wherp Movements gre "eLognised the profit
These finonciat statemants fgy, Dern preporag The principar ACtivity of Froses Group ple js e 055 account and investmengs afe subject
i complignee with FRS 197 “The Financigy thot of g 3<m23@3~ro§.:m Sompony. o irpainmen
zﬁ.no_i;m Standor ooplicable in the Lk
and Repubife of trefangr {"FRS 02" ang the _:.i-:s!:.. >uunnmn~n-
-mpc:mim:nm ofthe Oo_.:no:..m.m Act 2005, Fixed Gsset q,:.\mmgm:ﬁ in sybs; An antity js treated s an associatey
The finaveic) Stetements e oreparad in Iccounted for g cost less proyig; c:nw;ar:._m where the ﬂoS.qu EXercises
stetling, which is the functiong) CUrreney of the impqirmens. In the Group TCCOyeg Issoviakes Significont influence i thot it hog the power g
nc3vnu< Kosmnaé AMaunts i thesa finoncjo Bre eccounte for under the CquUItY mathod Porticipate i the opercting ang financial Policy
stetements Are rattided g the neorest £ 4y, by which the Group's ivestment i initinly decisiong,
recorded at cog and m:vum&cma»? odjusteq .
These qSCounty have been Prepareq jn W reflect the Groupy share of the na¢ Tssets Financiol Assats
e Mance with apelicabls Uniteq Kinadom of the associoge, A8 this is ot Peetitied ynger Financil assets, other than Investments
SCLOUNting stondgres. A summary of yre FRS 102 D550Cintes gre PCSSunted for gr oo T D initialty Measured of
Materiay ;RO NG olicias odopted yry 1855 provision for iMpoirment, o Issessment i ansaction oo leeli i
describag below, Price fincly, 9 transaction
:;.Qn...m%» mM_ny ﬂ_vﬂram%nnm of s.”rm.qrmﬁmrw_.ww COSts) gng mcwmmncm«;_:. held qf Cost, fasg
i are indications th ® Lompany's inveg e Y iMpairment. Provision for qicrmient s
Bosis anne_.:z:u i sUbsidigrieg OF Ossaciateg may be impoireg or mﬂwv.__,%vma when there ¢ oE.wh“mm evidence
The ccaunts have been ..u_.mvc_.mn.::of_. the that o Impairment lass Previoysfy recogniseq that the Oo_,:vc:< will ot be able vo collect
historical e basis EXCopt for the modification hos figlly o Bartially raversey, If such Mdications Imounts gua TCCrding to pe OI9NG] tarms
to a fair value basgjs for certqin financia exist, the 003.32. estimates the "eCoverable of the receivable The 003.53 upplies o
nstrumangs 05 sperified i the ecounting amount of the 9sset Shortfaie between th consistent Gocounting policy oy the Group in
Polities bajgy, Qarrying vajye of the vestme s <rted bheir terrms of i Gireent nf financig 935ets ane the
These firanciaf staternangg for tha Period engay “MHVM __NMM. __nMM“._ Mw_ ”M_ ”Mﬁmunﬁwmrw‘w“‘oh_ﬁeﬂ recognition of S¥pected Sredit losses
25 Apil 2091 Ore preparad i Secordance wi, reCognised oy iMEoitment lasses, Impaimeny Finaneiql Lichilitiey
FRS 105, The Financia) mmwo&:m Standord losses gre recegnised i profit or jogg.
Oppiicablg in the UK ang Repubjc of Irefang Financig) liobiitieg Ore classifiey Gccarding
The na3U03< has followed the "equirements 1o the substance of the finangiay Nstrumenty
As permitter by Section 408 of the Campanes Of IFRS 9 fyr listeef Investmens, oq Permitted Lontractyg| obligatians, rather than the
Act 2005, Profit and lagg gccaunt of gm‘ by ERS 107 Section 17 The 00:69.4 has mada nStrument's tegal form, Financiql
ncﬂbanf > Nt presenteq The Companys the irrevocapja electian avaflable yndep IFR% extluding Convertible dajyt arrd
profit after Eaazo: for the 52-weak Periog Do account for the ivestments at fair valye ' are initigjy Medsured ot transaction
ended 25 ) 2027 was £2318m (Fyzq. loss of through the other OMprehensive income ptice [aftay deducting transaction costs) ang
£47.7m), FYOQy, R «cvuma:mzc{ R g Wsised cogs

Ernployeg Benaf;e Trust

Over the specin PUrpose entity,

The cost of shares CCquirad by the 5 Ports Direcy
mSv__E\mm Benefit Trust i5 reCognisad withiry
Vwn share feserve’ iy equity.

Pelforreg Taxotion

Deferraq tax jg Rrovided for ana fyy Provision
basis on g titming nmmmmwmsnmw_ Whith haye
arisen but nop eversed ot the halanee sheet
date, deferrag tox oisset g ot recognised to
the extent that the transfer of BCONomie benggi
in the future g more unlikely than not,

Deferrag tax ig celcufotay on g :o.._,ammnocimo.
basis of the tax ropes that gre expected to
ABPly in the Periods in which timing Q:%m..m:nm«
reverse, based on tax rates and g Eractad
or mc_u%o:_..?m? enacted ot the balance sheet
dote,

Foreign Currenciey

ﬂB:En:oi in foreign Currencies are initiafh,
ecorded in the naiva:ww m:_._n:.ozu_ Surrency
by OPpIying the st EXChanga rote suling of
the date of the transaction, chmﬂoé Qsgets
and liabiliieg amzoi_.:aﬁma. int foraign currenciey
e retransigrey Ot the ratg of mxnra:mm E:.:m_

Dividangs

G.in_m:nm an the ﬁoivaa<w orchniary shares
are recognisad as g linhj lity in the nos_ua3<.m
Finangjof mﬁaﬂmz,_m:»m, and as g deduction from
BQuity, in the Reriad in which the dividends

are declareq, Whera Such fingg dividangs

are proposed subject to the Pproval of the
Gsi.oa:_\ s mraamroamww the fing) dividends ore
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Equity Instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Company after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company,
with the exception of those accounted for via
merger relief available under Section 612 of

the Companies Act 2006, are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of any direct issue costs.

Income From Group Undertokings

Income from Group undertakings is recognised
when qualifying consideration is received from
the Group undertaking.

Related Party Transactions

The Company has taken advantoge of the
exemption contained in FRS 102 and has
therefore not disclosed transactions or balances
with wholly-owned subsidiaries which form part
of the Group. See note 34 of the Group Financial
Statements for further details of related party
transactions.

Share-Bused Payments

The Company issues from time to time
equity-settled share-based payments to certain
Directors and employees of the Company and
its subsidiaries. These are measured at fair value
at the date of grant, which is expensed to profit
and |oss on a straight-line basis over the vesting
periad, with the corresponding credit going to
equity.

Non-market vesting conditions are not taken
into account in determining grant date fair
value, Instead, they are taken into account by
adjusting the number of equity instruments to
ves-. At the end of each reporting period the
Company revises its estimates of the number of
opt ons that are expected to vest based on the
non market vesting ond service conditions. Any
revisions, if ony, are recognised in profit and loss
with: o odiusUMETIL 1D Boity.

Fair value is calculated using an adjusted form of
the Block-Scholes madel which includes a Monte
Carlo simulation model that takes into account
the exercise price, the term of the option, the
impact of dilution {(where material}, the share
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price ot grant date and the expected price
volatility of the underlying share, the expected
dividend yield, and the risk-free interest rate

for the term of the scheme, The expected staff
numbers used in the model has been adjusted,
based onh management's best estimate, for the
effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions,
and behavioural considerations.

For cash-settled share-based payment
transactions, the Company measures the services
received and the liability incurred at the fair
value of the liability. Until the liability is settled,
the Company remeasures the fair value of the
liability ot the end of each reporting period and
at the date of settlement, with any changes in
fair value recognised in the Income Statement
for the period.

The credit for the share based payment charge
does not equal the charge per the profit and loss
as it excludes amounts recognised in the balance
sheet in relation to the expected national
insurance contributions for the shares.

Critical Acceunting Estimates And Judgements

In the application of the Company’s accounting
palicies, the directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that
are not readily opparent from other sources. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results meoy
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying cssumptions

are seviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions

to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised, if the
revision affects only that peried, or in the period
of the revision and future periods.

The estimates and assumptions which have o
significant risk of causing a material adjustment
tn the carrying amauot of nssets and liahilikies
are outlined below.

ew Brtsh woudl

Control and Significant Influence Over Certain
Entities

The Company holds greater than 20% of the
voting rights of Studio Retail Group ple and
Mulberry Group plc. The Company exercises the
same judgements as per Note 2 of the Group
finoncial statements on assessing whether it has
control and significant influence over associates
ond joint ventures.

Impairment of Investments

At woch period end management ossess the
future performance of entities with which the
Company holds an investment in to ascertain
the future economic value of its investments.
Judgement is involved in the assessment of
future performance and this involves an element
of estimation uncertainty. As ct the period end
the directors have reviewed the carrying value
of its investments and has made impairments
as disclosed in Note 2 of the Company financial
statements.

el aeross the UK
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INVESTMENTS

Tovastmant in  Investmants J..s-h-.:{: Yotal

aubsidiprier i qusscigtes s
[[T0] {Cmi} 1tm! 1Em)
A3 AT 20 APRIL 2013 ] no 0 14161

Additions 375 48 242

Transfer 58 15 8)

impairment churge 12200 - - 122,04
Duposals . - - 123 an
Amaunts recognised theaugh other compraliensive meome - - X 2zn
AS AT 26 APRIL 203D 1885 - 0.3 12354
Additary 8% - 133 2.2
imparment charge an - - it
Disposaly - - 15.6) mel
Amounts recogmsed thraugh other comprahensive ncorme - 173 7
Exchonge ditfarences 137 nn
AS &T 25 APRIL 2011 [EEERY - 2616 1y

The fair value of the long-term financial assets
is based on bid quoted market prices at the

balance sheet date or where market prices are
not available, at management's best estimate.

Long-term financial assets include various
holdings including a 35.6% stake in Studio
Retail Group plc and a 36.9% stake in Mulberry
Group plc for further details refer to Note 20 of
the Group Financial Statements.

For further disclosures in relation to investments
in associgtes and leng term financial assets

see note 19, 20 and 34 of the Group Financial
Statements.

The Directors assess the value of the
investments in subsidiaries at each period

end for indicators of impairment. For the

period ended 25 April 2021 an impairment

Joss of £11m has been recognised within the
incorne statement for loss moking companies
where the recoverable amount is less than the
carrying value {FY20: £22.0m)}. The odditions to
investments in subsidiaries in the period are due
to a reorganisation of the US subsidiaries.
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Frinted on Stembers 1004 Recycled and Carbon Gapia

The Company is the principal holding company
of the Group. The principal subsidiary
undertakings of the Company are set out in
note 37 of the Group Financial Statements,

The Group's policies for financial risk
management are set out in Note 3 and Note 729
of the Group Financial Statements.

d thrauals e Vool
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3.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Finoncial Assets And Liabilities By Category

The fair value hierarchy of finoncial assets and liabilities, which are principally denominated in
Sterling or US Dollars, were os follows:

25 April 011 26 April 2020
{Em} £m}
FINANCIAL ASSETS
AMORTISED COST:
Trade und other idgeivables® 2”8 "1
FYoch
Long Term Finoneiul Assets (Lquity instryments) bl 801
SETS (Fv):
Denwotiue fnoncial assers - contacts for dillerence 201 77
' A1 1621
FINANCIAL LLASILITISS
AMORTISED COST;
“rexele urd ather paynblés 5073 B&71
LAABIL
Szavotes bnancial Liabites - controcts for diffsrence 17 344
809.0 o018 .
- Prepayments of £37mi{FY20 £01mi, corparation kax of E1Om [FY20 €1 Omj and delerred yux gssets of Eni LFY20, £3 Tmb are not icluded as o
financol asset
4. DEBTORS .
35 April 2011 26 April 2020
il {Eml
Aecynts owe g by Geoul yndertokinog 8
Denvatiowe in e 0 assers 201 77
it dapeory ma 743
Corperatan fun 10 10
drapayments 3t af
Juteroed box Q3sets note 61 N 17
1625 )

Other debtors inchudes £131.0m (FY20: £71.3m) of deposits in respect of derivative fingncial
instruments which are collaterol to cover margin requirements for derivative transactions heid with
counterparties. The collateral requirement changes with the market {which is dependent on share
price, interest rates and volatility) and further purchases / sales of underlying investments held.

Further information on derivative financial assets can be found in the Group consolidated accounts
in the finencial instruments note 29 and the finencial risk management disclosure note 3.

K
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FRASERS GROUP

5. CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

8 April 3101 26 ApHl 2020

(£} (Em}

Trade craditoes 13 05
Amounts owed to Group undaertukings : 6025 B65 8
Danvotive financiol habalities 17 44
Dther craditors 35 o8
030 L5

The amounted owed to Group undertakings ma nly relates to an unsecured interest free loan with
Sportsdirect.com Retail Limited which is repayable on demond.

Further information on derivative financial fiabilities can be found in the Group consalidated
azcounts in the financial instruments note 29 and the financial risk manogement disclosure note 3.

Other creditors at 25 Aprit 2021 mostly relate to the accrual for costs payable to MM Prop
Consultancy Limited, see note 34 of the Group fivancial statements.

6. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

Othar lempecery

differances

AT 20 APRIL 2013 33
Cradited to tha proft ond lass account 04
AT 26 APRIL 2030 i 13
Chaeged to the pralit and loss ucrount an

AT 25 APRIL X1 -

The tax rate used to measure the deferred tax aszets and liabilities was 19% {FY20: 19%) on the
basis that these were the tox rates that were substantively enacted at the balance sheet date for the
periods when the assets and liabilities are expected to reverse.

7. CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL

18 Aphl 2011 6 ApHl 2020
T m) I£m]
AUTHORISED
909 200,010 ordinary shares of 10p ench 1000 1000
499490 redeeinable prefershce shores of 10p each
100.0 100.0
CALLED UP AND FULLY PAID
540,603,369 (FY20, 640,602,36%) ardinary shore of 10p sach 41 ) 61
SHARE CAMTAL ("% -t

The company holds 121,260,175 ordinary shares in treasury as at the period end dote
{FY20: 121,260,175).
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8. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

On 4 May 2021 the Group commenced a shore
buyback programme with the aggregate
purchase price of oll shares acquired under the
programme to be no greater than £60m and the
maximum number of shares to be purchased
of 10m ordinary shares with a nominal value of
10p each. The purposes of the programme was
to reduce the share caopital of the Company,
3,895,835 ordinary shares of 10p each for
consideration of £22,429,985 were acquired
through this programme.

On 21 June 2021 the Group comimenced an
irrevocable non-discretionary share buvback
programme to purchose the Group's shares
during the closed period which commenced 21
June 2021 and ends on the day of reperting full
year FY21 results. The aggregate purchase price
of all sheres acquired under the programme
were no greater than £60m and the maximum
number of shares to be purchased were 10m
ordinary shares with a neminal value of 10p
each. The purpose of the programme was to
reduce the share capital of the Company. In total
to date 2,024,127 ordinary shares of 10p each for
consideration of £11,937,385 have been acquired
through this programme.

The Board is now in discussions with regards

to transitioning the CEQ role from Mike Ashley
to Michael Murray over the course of FY22.

It is currently proposed that Michael Murray

will assurne the role of CEO on 1 May 2022,

A reward and remuneration package is now
under consideration on the assumption Michael
Murray will assume the CEO role. Any reward
and remuneration package will be subject to any
requisite shoreholder approval.

The Group's elevation strategy is transforming
the business and receiving positive feedback
from consumers and our brand partners,
especially on projects such as the new Oxford
Street Sports Direct which opened in Jure 2021,

The Board consider it appropriate that Michael
leads us forward on this increasingly successful
elevation journey.

nd avioss the L

Should Michael Murray assume the CEQ role,
Mike Ashley would step down from the CEO role
at the some time but would remain on the Board
as an execytive director.

9.  PAYROLL COSTS

Frasers Group plc has no direct employees, the
Directors are remunerated through Sportsdirect,
com Retail Limited. Details of the Directors'
rerruneration can be found in the Directors’
Remuneration Report.

10. RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS
Related party transactions with the Company

are disclosed within note 34 in the Group
Financial Statements.
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LOSSARY

Unaudited Income statement

FRASERS GROUP

Slwavks  Siwesks  SZwasks S1wnals
Praeciinrrb it T e
{Em) \Em) (i 1Em) (Lw)
HEVENUE 16353 34574 3/ 313598 31453
Cost of sales Zusd 31 1229480 (7724 4} 0IM 7
GROSE PROFIT 15508 16626 15835 13351 13306
hutign ang ndministrgtive axpenses (1636.0§ (15603} 138 11726t 1.255 61
Other opereting incoma 389 s e %5 i35
Exceptianct items 116 Py 1y 148 AT
Protit on dispasal of proparty 23 547 Ba 163 -
Frofit on diposal of subs - - 799
GPERATING NLOSSIPROFIT f60.3; e 1605, w08 <&t
Imvestment ncome/icosts] 98.0 34 61 67 1937 "3
Finunte income 4.0 30 400 38 a8
F.nance cost [L%) 93 19 4 a9 ya
Strare of {loss) / peolit of assaciated undentalungs and o.0 vantutes - {15 (86 187 ue
Ferir werlue geun on sken acquisition - 204 - .
PROFIT BERGRE TAXATION 14315 1797 411 2816
Fasation €25 63 1379 142.9)
(LOSSHPRGFIT FOR THE PERIOD .0 1016 160 231 m7
Equity helders of the Grous {82.0] 438 120 201 7299
Non-controlling interests 50 77 40 3 8
1LO$3)/PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD 3.8 1010 60 7312 2

Notes to the consolidated Income Statement five year record:

8
2,
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All information is presented under IFRS.

The fve year record has been prepared on the same basis as the Financial Statements for the 52

weeks ended 25 April 2021, as set out in note 1, basis of preparation, of the Consolidated Finoncial

Statements.

10U Regycie a

ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASURES

Reconciliation of excluding acquisitions and currency neutral performance measures;

UKSparfs  Pramium  Rurepaon Rertl  Whelacely
Ratail  Lestyle Horoil World Retall & Licopalng  27u® Tetal
AEVERVE
+ ¥71 Repartest 9655 756 5151 1527 1533 26253
Adjustments for acausiions and currency deutral (a7 al Wiy 1203 %) - - (391.8)
FY21 EXCLUDING ACQIUISITIONS AND CURRENC Y NEUTRAL 18611 €517 ana 1527 1533 3005
Y20 Reported 22031 720 5977 1243 1602 39574
Adjustents for acquisitions ond currency neukra. ezt 1792) {tieg) 2 [eit) 1334.3)
FY20 EXCLUDING ACQUISITIONS AND CURRENCY NEUTRAL 19458 423 3.8 1.0 151y 3409
% WARIANCE (16.6%) 1A% [3D.5%) 16.3%| 0.3% (1A%}
UNDERLYING ERITDA
FY21 Reported 2792 a1 256 w0 o
Adyustinents for arausions ond Lurrendy nevtrol D4 ! 7al - 208
FY 1 EXSLUDING ACGUISITIONS AND CURHENCY HEUTRAL %8 401 e w0 W
£Y10 Reponad 7274 45 518 168 2512 3024
Adustoneis for ucquisibions ane currency neutrt 4 EE] 50 01 w07 us
FYI9 EXCLUDING AND CURRENG Y NEUTRAL ms 4 56.5 (6.6) us e
% VARIANCE W W% 1195.8%] 4a7.9%) 4% 169%
Movement in provisions pre-{FRS 16
Legofand  Prapaty
repttatory ey Other Tstal
iEmi ILm) L)
AT 20 APRIL 2098 EETL] (1133 dtos
Aereotunts orcmne a0 1z - 33
Amaunts utiised / reversed ek (70 81 531 W17
Acyuisitions - W0e - 0.6
AT 26 APRIL 2030 L s ir ans
Ameunts provided I a2 - 5.8
Amoun's unlsed / reversed 1170} 14581 4 144.3)
AT 15 APAIL 2021 = ng 11 309.6

During the period, onerous lease provisions [Pre-IFRS 16] were recognised due to on ongoing
management review af the Group's store profile and strategy including current and anticipated
freehold acquisitians, resulting in averall additional eherous grovisions of £71.9m (FY20: £26.9m} in
the period, with reference to the Groups alternative performance measures.
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Reconciliation of underlying performance meozures (EBITDA and PBT): Reconciliation of Adjusted Profit/{loss) before Tax performance measure:
52 wuaks endad 52 weehs snded 52 waeks snidad 52 weahs anded
, 15 Aprill 2021 18 Apeil 2020 15 Apil 2010 26 April 2020
EMTDA PET ENITDA 7 PBT Pat .
{Lm} (Lm} IEm) {hm) {Em]
JPERATING {LOS5)/ PROFIT 0.2y B - RIPORTED Ix} ws
Deprecimtion of property, plant and equiement and invastment praperties 203 J08 . Excapuonal itums ' 16 171
foacludng Cg oluse gsel) tair volue gain on skep acdwsbian - {204)
Impuirmant of property, plant and squipment and invastment properias g ] 28 }
texcluding right-of-uss assat] Faur valug ndjusiment to foreign currency contracts 46 213
Amortisation of intangible ossets 71 - I'H et smvestiment (incormel / £osts w60l Jie
mpaurvant of intangible assats (non-axceptionoll - . . 59 - Reaised FX loss ¢ [gain] 201 134,01
VERS 16 nght-of-use ossat depreciation 021 - urh - Share scharme 11 R
IFRS 16 fight-of-use asset impairment 1682 - 1961 ADIUSTED ) ar
IFRS 16 dispasal and madificativn/ramecsurement of lzose habnhibes 1770 . kL - B
565 - 5568 - .
S8 of lloss) / profit and Impairments of assoriates - . 59
REPORTED 5168 5o s
Exceptional itens 16 16 1. [
1. 15 1 n1
IF 35 16 Reversul of iebf expense 1273 (1273) 13z sy 0375
IF35 16 Reversal of oneraus lease provisian (3661 13651 1355) {355
IFRS 16 night-oi-use usset depraciation - 81 - 114 .
IFRS 16 right-oluse asset imparment - 1687 - 10683 i
IF#5 16 dispasal aind madificationframegsurement of lease Kabribes - 2171 - ©n
Int=rest Payoble - IFRS 16 - ny wy ’
705 m.ao) 5

Prchit on sofe of properties

Prafit on sale of properties - pre-ITRS 16 busis 57 1971 {109 3) AR .
IFR3 16 sale and lecseback - odjustment la post-1IFRS 16 basts - - 551 551 .
n 5] (5.2 54.2) -
{Prefit] £ loss an dispasal ef findncial instruments - (2851 - 77
Realisad FX foss / (gain} 63 261 (348 {48
Fair valus adjustment on equity durvatives - 14751 - 69
Fair vulua adjustment an foreign cutrancy centracts - 46 - [HE]
: Farr value gain an step ocguistion . - - 10 4
UNBERLYING wos 024 e
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COMPANY DIRECTORY

REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare lnvestor Services ple
The Pavilions

Bridgwater Roadf

Bristol

BS99 6Z7

Telephone:
0370 707 4030

COMPANY SECRETARY AND
REGISTERED OFFICE

Frasers Group ple

Unit A, Brook Park East
Shirebrook

NG20 8RY

Telephone:
0344 245 9200

_ Frasers Group plc is registered in England and
Wales (No. 86035106)

SOLICITORS

Reynolds Porter Chamberlain LLP
Tawer Bridge House

St Katharine's Way

London

E1W 184

Dentons UK and Middie East L{LP
- One Fleet Place

London

ECAM TWS

BROKERS

Liberum Capital Limited
Reopemecket Place, Level 12
25 Ropemaker Street
London

EC2Y 9LY
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PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Barcloys Bank plc

5 The North Colonnade
Canary Wharf

London

£14 4BB

HSBC Bank plc
8§ Canada Square
London

F14 5HQ

AUDITORS

RSM UK Audit LLP
25 Farringdon Street
London

ECA4A 4AB
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The date, time and farmat of the Annual
Generol Meeting to be announced in line with
Covid-19 guidance. Each shareholder is entitled
to attend {subject to Covid-19 guidance) and
vote at the meeting, the arrangements for
which are described in a separate notice.

RESULTS
For the year to 24 Apr 2022

+  Haif year results announced:
thc December 2021

+  Prelimmary announcement of full year
results: thbe

v Annuai Report circulated: the

SHAREHOLDER HELPLINE

The Frasers Group shareholder register is
maintained by Computershare who are
responsibie for making dividend payments
and updating the register, inciuding details

of changes to shareholders’ addresses. If you
have o query about your sharehalding in Sports
Direct, you should contagt Computershare’s
Frasers Group Sharehokder Helpline en:

§370 767 4030, Calls ore charged at standard
geographic rates, although network charges
may vary.

Address:

The Pavilions
Bridgwater Road
Bristol

BS9S 627

Website:

www computershare.com

WEBSITE

The Group website at www.frasers.group
pravides news and details of the Company's
activities plus information for shareholders and
contains recl time share price data as well as
the latest results and announcements.

UNSOLICITED MAIL

The Compony is obliged by law to make its
share register publicly available and as
consequence some shareholders may receive
unsalicited mail, including from unauthorised
investment firms.

For more information on unoutharised
investment firms targeting UK investors, visit the
website of the Finoncial Conduct Authority at
www fcaorguk

If you wish to limit the amount of unsolicited
mail you receive contact:

The Mgiling Preference Service
OiMA House

70 Margaret Street

London

W1W 85§

Telephone:

020 72913310
Email:
33©m3n_.o_‘o.cw

or register enline at
www,mpsonline.org.uk

Frasers Group pic

Unit A, Brook Park Eqst
Shirebrook

NG20 8RY

0344 245 9200

www frasers.group




